
1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and 
to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation..

D 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY
Board of Directors

AGENDA
Wednesday, April 21, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.

Virtual meeting only.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND VIA THE WEB LINK, OR 
TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER, LISTED BELOW. 

NO PHYSICAL LOCATION IS BEING PROVIDED FOR THIS MEETING
(be sure to keep your phones or microphones on mute, and do not place the call on hold)

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://tmwa.zoom.us/j/93199705901?pwd=b1BNd2hHM2pqVkVhZFlCcGgzV1NkUT09

Password: 205040
Or call:

Phone: (888) 788-0099
Webinar ID: 931 9970 5901

Board Members
Chair Vaughn Hartung Vice Chair Kristopher Dahir
Member Neoma Jardon Member Alexis Hill
Member Jenny Brekhus Member Naomi Duerr
Member Paul Anderson

NOTES:
1. This meeting is being conducted pursuant to the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 (“Directive 006 
http://gov.nv.gov/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/2020-03-22_-_COVID-19_Declaration_of_Emergency_Directive_006/. 
and will be held by teleconference only.
2. The announcement of this meeting has been electronically posted in compliance with NRS 241.020(3) and Directive 
006 at http://www.tmwa.com, and NRS 232.2175 at https://notice.nv.gov/. 
3. Pursuant to Directive 006, the requirement contained in NRS 241.020(3)(c) that physical locations be available for the
public to receive supporting material for public meetings has been suspended. Staff reports and supporting material for the 
meeting are available on the TMWA website at http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/ or you can contact Sonia Folsom at (775) 834-
8002. Supporting material is made available to the general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6).
4. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 
discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest.
5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items.
6. Pursuant to Directive 006, public comment, whether on action items or general public comment, may be provided 
without being physically present at the meeting by submitting written comments online on TMWA’s Public Comment Form 
(tmwa.com/PublicComment) or by email sent to boardclerk@tmwa.com prior to the Board opening the public comment period 
during the meeting. In addition, public comments may be provided by leaving a voicemail at (775)834-0255 prior to 4:00 p.m. 
the day before the scheduled meeting. Voicemail messages received will be noted during the meeting and summarized for entry 
into the record. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The Board may 
elect to receive public comment only during the two public comment periods rather than each action item. Due to constraints of 
TMWA’s videoconference system, public comment must be provided by voicemail, email or online comment as indicated above.
7. In the event the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, the remaining Board members may elect a temporary 
presiding officer to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are present (Standing Item of Possible 
Action). 
8. Notice of possible quorum of Western Regional Water Commission:  Because several members of the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors are also Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission, it is possible that a 
quorum of the Western Regional Water Commission may be present, however, such members will not deliberate or take action at
this meeting in their capacity as Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission.

D 



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for April 21, 2021 
Page 2 

1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation.. 

1. Roll call* 

2. Pledge of allegiance* 

3. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

4. Possible Board comments or acknowledgements* 

5. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

6. Approval of the minutes of the March 17, 2021 meeting of the TMWA Board of Directors 
(For Possible Action)  

7. Discussion, action, and possible authorization to the General Manager and approval of Water 
Resource Exchange Agreement between TMWA, TRI General Improvement District and 
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in furtherance of the July 17, 2018 TMWA, TRIGID, Reno 
and Sparks Return Flow Management Agreement and reclaimed water service to the Tahoe 
Reno Industrial Center — John Enloe (For Possible Action)  
(continued from the March 17, 2021 meeting) 

8. Presentation and informational Report on a Proposed OneWater Nevada Feasibility Study to 
evaluate feasibility of using recycled water for irrigation in Warm Springs Valley (Palomino 
Farms and LW Land Company) and to provide water sustainability benefits — John Enloe 
and John Zimmerman* 

9. Discussion and possible approval of an Interlocal Agreement between TMWA and the City 
of Reno for TMWA to provide supplemental irrigation water to Reno’s American Flat Road 
Project — John Zimmerman (For Possible Action) 

10. Discussion and action, and possible direction to staff for the ratification of the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement between TMWA and the International Brotherhood of Electrical 
Workers (IBEW) Local 1245 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 — Andy 
Gebhardt and Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

11. Discussion and possible action, and direction to staff regarding 2021 legislative activities, 
current bills, and TMWA recommended positions on legislative proposals  John 
Zimmerman and Leo Drozdoff (For Possible Action) 

12. Water Supply Update — Bill Hauck* 

13. Presentation on proposed Conservation, Communications and Outreach Plan for 2021, 
discussion and possible direction to staff — Andy Gebhardt and Cammy Elquist LoRe (For 
Possible Action) 

14. Presentation and discussion regarding consideration of adding a Risk Manager position, and 
possible direction to staff — Jessica Atkinson and Michele Sullivan (For Possible Action) 

 



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for April 21, 2021 
Page 3 

1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation.. 

15. Discussion and action on appointments to the Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) to fill the 
multi-family customer primary representative, and senior citizen and residential 3 customer 
alternate representatives, and other possible vacancies for terms beginning May 1, 2021 to 
December 31, 2023 from the following pool of candidates listed in alphabetical order: Al 
Black, Russ Foreman, Jordan Graham, Tom Kurtz, Kevin Ryan and Alex Talmant — Sonia 
Folsom (For Possible Action) 

16. General Manager’s Report*  

17. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker*  

18. Board comments and requests for future agenda items* 

19. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 1 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE MARCH 17, 2021
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors met on Wednesday, March 17, 2021, via Zoom Virtual Meeting, Reno, Nevada.
Chair Hartung called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. 

1. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Paul Anderson, Jenny Brekhus, Kristopher Dahir, *Naomi Duerr, **Neoma Jardon,
Vaughn Hartung, and Alexis Hill.

A quorum was present by telephonic appearance. 

*Member Duerr left at 12:29 p.m.

**Member Jardon left at 12:34 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Vice Chair Dahir.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

Beverly Harry, Native Community Organizer for the Progressive Leadership Alliance of Nevada 
(PLAN), submitted a short video showing their work of cleaning up along the Truckee River, 
downstream of Sparks, led by indigenous community volunteers. She thanked the Board and for them to 
consider the projects proposed by the Truckee River Fund that would directly benefit the Truckee River.

4. POSSIBLE BOARD COMMENTS OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS*

Member Duerr stated that the video was very impressive with the use of a drone to capture the 
before/after images of the area, and the encampments, was very notable. She added this is why the 
Portland Loo was installed along the river, and working to stand-up the Nevada Cares Campus.

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion by Member Dahir second by Member Anderson, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the agenda.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 2 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 17, 2021 MEETING

Upon motion by Member Hill, second by Member Hartung, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the February 17, 2021 minutes. 

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION AND DIRECTION TO STAFF 
REGARDING 2021 LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, CURRENT BILLS, AND TMWA 
RECOMMENDED POSITIONS ON LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS

John Zimmerman, TMWA Water Resources Manager, Leo Drozdoff, TMWA Lobbyist, and Michael 
Pagni, TMWA General Counsel, updated the Board on the status of significant bills approved for 
recommendation by the legislative subcommittee. Mr. Zimmerman stated there are only 287 bills to date, 
and over 1,000 bill draft requests (BDRs) have yet to be introduced. 

Staff reported on: AB3 (allows parcel maps and documents be sent electronically) was heard in committee 
once but no action taken, support; AB5 (attempts to clarify what actions State Engineer can be judicially 
reviewed) was heard but has not moved forward, monitor; AB6 (codifies existing State Engineer practice 
that hearings are not required for temporary change applications), support; AB87 (proposes to streamline 
the process by which certain easements of cities and counties can be vacated and abandoned without a 
hearing), staff worked with the bill sponsor and they provided an amendment stating local governments 
could choose to have a simplified procedure for vacating easements, still opposed but if the amendment 
is introduced the position will change to monitor; AB97 (revises provisions governing toxic chemicals), 
staff is working with Assemblyman Watts on other ways to address both his and TMWA’s concerns,  and 
an amendment is being drafted, monitor; AB146 (to address various requirements to control water 
pollution) sponsored by Assemblywoman Sarah Peters, staff have spoken with her to understand her
intent, they received a conceptual amendment (appears to improve on the clarity and intent, and addresses 
the fiscal note), and are in the process of reviewing it; SB67 (increases the threshold by which an agency 
can self-perform capital projects from $100k to $250k), TMWA submitted an amendment so that the
$250k exemption would only apply to agencies that have a State approved apprenticeship program like 
TMWA. Mr. Zimmerman added the legislative subcommittee recommended support only if TMWA’s 
amendment was approved, otherwise remain neutral; and SB149 (two counties can create a groundwater 
board in a basin that has not been designated by the State Engineer), it is important to note all of TMWAs 
basins have been designated, and this proposed bill would allow two counties to create a joint groundwater 
board if they share a groundwater basin. An amendment is circulating by some rural counties and 
stakeholders who would want to change the bill to bypass State Engineer approval and Governor 
appointment of board members, monitor. 

Member Brekhus referenced AB87 and proposed having a standard review process, changing the term 
from “shall” to “may” abandon easements so that government bodies can withhold at their discretion, and 
she supports the position of oppose. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 3 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

Mr. Pagni clarified the bill is enabling legislation where it would allow a local government to adopt this 
simplified procedure if it wished, which would only apply to vacating an easement owned by the local 
government. If TMWA holds an easement it would not be subject to this simplified procedure and
TMWA’s rights would be in addition to rights of government would have so a street. He also added that 
there is another statute that addresses when an entity vacates a street or alleyway, there are notification 
procedures in place so the utility is made aware and those public utility easements would be preserved.
AB87 would not affect those particular easements, rather simplify the processes where there is an old 
easement held by the local government for some other purpose that nobody uses anymore. 

Mark Foree, TMWA General Manager, added there are times when TMWA would want to use those 
easements and if we don’t have any say in abandonments it poses an issue. He asked about easements that 
are not in the public right of way. Mr. Pagni replied that is the reason why TMWA took an initial position 
of oppose and staff have been working with the sponsor to make changes in their proposed amendment to 
address that concern and carve those types of easements out; that only certain types of easements would 
be subject to the simplified procedure. 

Member Brekhus inquired about the BDR related to water banking and the bill related to general 
jurisdiction courts to set up a water court. Mr. Zimmerman replied staff was able to see a conceptual bill 
(recommend neutral) but have yet to see the official bill language. The proposed bill related to water courts 
was withdrawn. Chief Justice Hardesty spoke with the State Engineer (bill sponsor) about the process and 
a letter was sent out to all water stakeholders to comment on whether a commission to study water 
adjudication should be set up. TMWA submitted a letter of support of any process that improves the way 
water law cases are adjudicated and are now waiting for the Supreme Court to establish the commission
and appoint members. Both TMWA and Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) will most likely be 
appointed to the commission as urban municipal water purveyors. 

Upon motion by Member Dahir, second by Member Duerr, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved staff recommendation to change position on AB87 from Oppose to 
Monitor if the amendments are accepted.

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Member Hill, which motion duly 
carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board approved 
staff recommendation to change position on SB67 from Monitor to Support 
if the amendments are accepted.

8. WATER SUPPLY UPDATE

Bill Hauck, TMWA Water Supply Administrator, reported that snowpack conditions improved since 
January and the February storms, although not significantly and have kept the snowpack levels stable. 
Consequently, the Truckee River and Lake Tahoe basins are at about 69% of average, which is below 
normal, but not as severe as in 2015; according to the US Drought Monitor, the region is being classified 
as a severe drought; it is the second dry year in a row and runoff projections are significantly below 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 4 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

average; April 1 forecast is 65% of average and Lake Tahoe (largest reservoir in the system) will be relied 
upon to provide Truckee River flows, but will continue to drop through the summer and fall.  Despite this 
fact, normal river flows are projected for the rest of the year, and assuming normal weather over the next 
two weeks, a drought situation as defined under the Truckee River Operating Agreement (TROA) will 
likely not be declared. TMWA’s response to a drought situation is directly related to Truckee River flow 
projections and not the elevation of Lake Tahoe. TMWA’s reserves are in a good position, about 42k acre 
feet (AF), between privately owned stored water (POSW) in Donner and Independence Lakes, and credit 
water stored under terms of TROA in Lake Tahoe, and Stampede, Boca and Prosser Reservoirs, which is 
equivalent to about half of TMWA’s annual demand. TMWA requested a one month variance, which 
TMWA has been doing for over 20 years when necessary, for early filling at Donner Lake to ensure the 
lake remains full, and total system storage is about 40% of maximum capacity.

Member Duerr asked for clarification regarding the amount of TMWA owned water in upstream 
reservoirs. Mr. Hauck replied the amount changes every year depending on Floriston rates, but currently 
TMWA has over 28k AF of credit storage in upstream federally owned/operated reservoirs and over 14k 
AF of privately owned stored water between Independence and Donner Lakes. Chair Hartung requested 
Mr. Hauck to send the link to the TMWA upstream reserves tracker to the Board.

Vice Chair Dahir thanked Mr. Hauck for the explanation of when a drought situation is declared under 
TROA and asked if what is being reported throughout the state regarding drought applies in our region.
Mr. Hauck replied no, the US Drought Monitor shows over 90% of the State is in some form of extreme 
drought, but that is not case in the Truckee River system and network of upstream reservoirs.  

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 291: A
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE FUNDING FOR ONE OR MORE OF THE PROJECTS 
RECOMMENDED BY THE TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
AND AN AUTHORIZATION FOR THE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION TO FUND 
SUCH PROJECTS FROM FUND PROCEEDS (RESOLUTION MAY REFLECT 
ACTION TAKEN IN ONE OR MORE VOTES ON RECOMMENDED PROJECTS)

Sonia Folsom TMWA Executive Assistant, presented the project proposals recommended by the Truckee 
River Fund (TRF) Advisory Committee for Board approval. 

Chair Hartung inquired why project #250, Truckee Meadows Parks Foundation: Doggie Ambassador 
Awareness Campaign, was not approved for recommendation. Ms. Folsom replied that a similar project 
was presented to the Board a couple of years which was rejected and the TRF Advisory Committee did 
not want to recommend another project that would otherwise be rejected again.

Member Brekhus commented on the video presented by Ms. Harry, which is similar to concerns raised by 
her constituents, and would like to see funding allocated to new projects such as this one, as well as to 
consider instituting a four year cap of consecutive RFPs approved, followed by a two year hiatus. 

John Enloe, TMWA Director of Natural Resources, said he spoke with Ms. Harry, who was aware of the 
TRF Advisory Committee, and is considering if their efforts could be incorporated into the Keep Truckee 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 5 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

Meadows Beautiful (KTMB) river cleanups because KTMB is one of the groups that get funding on a 
consistent basis from the TRF. Also, the TRF Advisory Committee typically looks at projects that are 
upstream of the Glendale Water Treatment Plant and very rarely are projects funded downstream. 

Chair Hartung agreed that TMWA has a specific section of the river that is addressed, but we do have an 
obligation, to look at the Truckee River watershed as a whole, as a regional effort.  

Lauren Renda, Community Foundation Program Manager, said she was able to speak with Ms. Harry after 
her conversation with Mr. Enloe. They discussed the lack of support and considered partnering with other 
organizations. Ms. Renda invited Ms. Harry to present at the next TRF meeting. 

Member Jardon asked if there is a contingency in place to provide funding outside the normal application 
period and stated with the Nevada Cares Campus, along with regional efforts, for the houseless using the 
campus, there will be a coordinated effort to clean up some of the camps along the river. Mr. Enloe replied 
that in the last budget cycle, TMWA Board directed that staff withhold $200k from the TRF which was 
recently granted to the Nevada Cares Campus through Washoe County, and is on their agenda later this 
month.  

Public Comment 

Autumn Harry, Reno resident, clarified their group, although they collaborate with PLAN, are independent 
of PLAN and are a group of local people who live in Reno and Sparks, and on the Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Tribe (PLPT) reservation. They could work with PLAN or KTMB if it increased the potential for funding.

Upon motion by Member Hill, second by Member Anderson, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board
adopted Resolution No. 291: A Resolution to approve funding for one or 
more of the projects recommended by the Truckee River Fund Advisory 
Committee and an authorization for the Community Foundation to fund 
such projects from Fund proceeds.

10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE TMWA TENTATIVE BUDGET 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022 AND DRAFT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) FOR FISCAL YEARS 2022 THROUGH 2026

Matt Bowman, TMWA Financial Controller, introduced Sandra Tozi, TMWA Financial Analyst, who has 
been at TMWA for a few years, but has been in this position since Joe Petrelli retired last year. He 
explained the timeline for TMWA’s budget preparation and financial planning throughout the year. 

Mr. Bowman presented the tentative budget for FY2022, which establishes a conservative approach in 
setting the spending threshold: Compared to the FY 2021 budget, change in net position increased by 
$5.9M (17.8%) and net change in cash decreased by $7.2M (32.3%); operating revenue (includes water,
hydroelectric sales, and other operating sales) is $114M, change of $5.7M (5.3%) which is based on a 
forecast model (water rates, service connections and water usage) maintained by Shawn Stoddard, 
TMWA’s Senior Resource Economist Ph.D.; operating expenses are $104.7M, increased by $4.5M 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 6 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

(4.5%); $800k (2.5%) increase in services and supplies includes the commodity prices in chemical costs, 
a full year of operations of Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant and increase in sponsorship costs, which is 
offset by the new customer service system (expect savings between $750k-$1M each year.) 

Mr. Enloe reminded the Board of the several presentations from Frank McDonald, Desert Research 
Institute (DRI), on their extensive cloud seeding program in the Tahoe and Truckee River watershed which 
requires $250k for a full year of funding, but would only require a $100k in sponsorship to ensure the 
program continues, particularly with the potential drought situation. 

At this time there was discussion regarding the concern about the rate increase going into effect and the 
ratio between services and supplies and employees (there was no increase in headcount in FY21 and expect 
to see savings with increase headcount versus contracted or professional services); supporting the cloud 
seeding program when constituents expressed the need for river cleanups and monitoring (it is difficult to 
measure the benefit of cloud seeding); the possibility of paying less towards the bonds (TMWA’s financial 
strategy has always been to decrease debt); concern about the cloud seeding program disappearing due to 
lack of funding; and determining how best to allocate the $950k for sponsorships between TRF, cloud 
seeding and other causes related to the Truckee River. Mr. Bowman suggested they approve the $950k as 
a whole and when it is brought back for final approval in May, it will be itemized per the discussion.

Mr. Bowman continued: interest expense decreased by $600k (-4.8%) this is the history of TMWA’s debt, 
(total debt principal outstanding in FY16 was $480M and projecting it to be at $332.8M by end of FY22);
capital contributions included grants and developer contributions; an increase of $7M (62.5%) in 
developer infrastructure contributions (non-cash line item), developer will-serve contributions decreased 
by $1.3M (-31%), developer capital contributions-other decreased by $800k (-7.8%) and developer facility 
charges increased by $1.3M (21.7%), which are the primary cash developer contributions that TMWA 
receives; cash flow statement includes operations, capital and financing, and investing; and cash outflows 
are up by $7.3M, this increase is due to capital and financing activities of about $9M (13.3%), which is 
primarily due to increase in capital spending. 

Ms. Tozi presented on the draft FY2022-26 CIP: customer rate funded projects increased by $33.2M 
(6.4%) which is attributed to rehabilitation construction projects on existing infrastructure; staff is 
continuously analyzing and evaluating TMWA’s current infrastructure to stay ahead of maintenance and 
determine where the needs are within our system to mitigate any risks; new projects over the next five 
years is $21.4M; increase in amounts for projects from the prior plan in the amount of $17.0M; former
South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District (STMGID) reserves have $5.2M remaining which 
required two STMGID projects to be moved into customer rate funded projects; and projects that were 
completed from the prior CIP and will not be carried forward amounts to $10.6M. 

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Member Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board
approved Tentative Budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022 and 
Draft Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Fiscal Years 2022 through 2026,
with the understanding items related to sponsorship in the amount of $950k
will be addressed prior to final approval. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



March 17, 2021 TMWA Board Minutes Page 7 of 7 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

11. DISCUSSION, ACTION, AND POSSIBLE AUTHORIZATION TO THE GENERAL 
MANAGER AND APPROVAL OF WATER RESOURCE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TMWA, TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND TAHOE-
RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER IN FURTHERANCE OF THE JULY 17, 2018 TMWA, 
TRIGID, RENO AND SPARKS RETURN FLOW MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
AND RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TO THE TAHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL 
CENTER

Due to time constraints the Board agreed to move this item to the April meeting. Vice Chair Dahir clarified 
that delaying this item is not due to lack of support, rather the need to have more time for discussion.  

 No action taken.  

This agenda item was tabled for the April Board meeting.

12. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Foree reported on a successful migration to the new customer information and billing system (CIS)
though not without a few issues to resolve and a tremendous amount of work over the last 20 months from 
dozens of TMWA team members that worked on the project.  

Michele Sullivan, TMWA CFO, reported that the much needed new CIS took about 20 months to set up 
for release on March 9th. The new system allows for mass upload of meters for new meter installations 
starting in July, a better customer user experience, an improved auto dispatch system and annual savings 
of about $1M/year. 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 

14. BOARD COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

There were no Board comments.

15. ADJOURNMENT

With no further discussion, Chair Hartung adjourned the meeting at 12:38 p.m.

Approved by the TMWA Board of Directors in session on _______________. 

Sonia Folsom, Board Clerk. 

*Member Duerr was present for agenda items 1 thru 11 only. 
**Member Jardon was present for agenda items 1 thru 12 only. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 6



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager
FROM: John Enloe, Director Natural Resources  

John Zimmerman, Water Resources Manager
DATE: March 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion, action, and possible authorization to the General Manager and 

approval of Water Resource Exchange Agreement between TMWA, TRI 
General Improvement District and Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center in 
furtherance of the July 17, 2018 TMWA, TRIGID, Reno and Sparks Return 
Flow Management Agreement and reclaimed water service to the Tahoe 
Reno Industrial Center (continued from the March 17, 2021 Board Meeting) 

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Water Resource 
Exchange Agreement between TMWA, TRI General Improvement District (TRIGID) and 
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TRIC) related to the acquisition of Truckee River water 
rights and issuance of a return flow will-serve.

Summary  

On July 17, 2018 TMWA, TRIGID, Reno and Sparks entered the Return Flow Management 
Agreement (“RFMA”) in connection with the management of return flow resources to support 
reclaimed water service to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.  Under the RFMA, TRIGID is 
required to provide 1,500 acre-feet (AF) of Truckee River water rights permitted for return flow 
purposes (“TRIGID Return Flow Resources”) to satisfy return flow obligations in connection with 
the reclaimed water supply to Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.  Under the RFMA, TRIGID is 
required to deed or lease the TRIGID Return Flow Resources to TMWA to manage.   Permitting 
the TRIGID Return Flow Resources for use at TRIC has unique complexities. Representatives of 
the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe (“Tribe”) provided input and raised a question regarding permitting
more than the consumptive use duty (roughly 62.5%) of the TRIGID Return Flow Resources.  In 
order to address the Tribe’s concern, TRIGID would need to provide additional Truckee River 
water rights (up to approximately 2,350 AF) in order to obtain permits for 1,500 AF of return flow 
supply, necessitating additional water rights acquisitions by TRIC or TRIGID.   

At the time the RFMA was entered, TMWA was concerned about TRIGID competing with 
TMWA for Truckee River resources and attempting to move them downstream.  As a result, the 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

 Page 2 of 3 

RFMA requires TRIGID “to cooperate in good faith with TMWA to minimize acquisitions of 
additional Truckee River water rights or compete with TMWA for the acquisition of Truckee River 
water rights, and where such does not diminish the quality, quantity or availability of resources 
[to] cooperate with TMWA to facilitate exchange or other transfers of TRIGID water rights, 
acquired now or in the future, with TMWA water resources.”   
 
Given TRIC’s and TRIGID’s need to acquire and dedicate additional Truckee River rights and 
their obligation to cooperate with TMWA before acquiring additional rights, TMWA initiated 
discussions with TRIC and TRIGID in 2020 pursuant to the RFMA to explore other alternatives.  
From the outset, TRIC and TRIGID were both amenable to discussions and cooperated with 
TMWA in these efforts.   
 
After extensive discussions, TMWA, TRIGID and TRIC identified terms for a three-party Water 
Resource Exchange Agreement.  Under the Exchange Agreement, TRIGID will convey Truckee 
River rights to TMWA, TRIC will pay TMWA cash, and TMWA will issue TRIGID a return flow 
will-serve of 1,500 AF, which will satisfy TRIGID’s obligations under the RFMA to secure and 
permit the TRIGID Return Flow Resources.  The key elements of the Exchange Agreement are as 
follows: 
 

• TRIGID will convey to TMWA 1,143.39 AF of Truckee River water rights (with a net 
consumptive use yield of 700 AF) (“TRIGID Rights”) held in TRIGID’s inventory which 
are acceptable to TMWA.  TMWA anticipates using the TRIGID Rights in TMWA’s 
discretion, including for support of the return flow will-serve commitment as needed.   

• TRIC will pay TMWA $8,978,200 the (“TRIC Payment”).  TMWA anticipates using the 
TRIC Payment to gradually acquire water resources to be held by TMWA for use in 
TMWA’s discretion, including for support of the return flow will-serve commitment as 
needed. 

• TMWA will issue a return flow will-serve commitment to TRIGID, pursuant to which 
TMWA will commit to provide sufficient resources to supply the 1,500 AF of return flow 
required to be provided by TRIGID under the RFMA through the TRIGID Return Flow 
Resources.  TMWA will have sole discretion to determine what resources it will use to 
satisfy the return flow will-serve commitment (likely to include the TRIGID Rights) and 
will have the right to substitute different types of TMWA water resources from time to 
time. 

• Consistent with the RFMA and to maximize benefits under TROA, TRIGID will become 
a customer of TMWA and TMWA will deliver water for return flow resources to a point 
on the Truckee River near the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility (“TMWRF”) 
to satisfy the 1,500 AF requirement.   TMWA will charge TRIGID for return flow service 
as contemplated under the RFMA and under TMWA’s ILVNPS rate tariff. 

• TRIGID may elect to terminate the return flow will-serve commitment prior to delivery of 
reclaimed water from TMWRF, and in such event TMWA shall re-convey the TRIGID 
Rights to TRIGID and return the TRIC Payment to TRIC together with any water rights 
purchased with the TRIC Payment.  TMWA does not anticipate purchasing very many



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

1 The exact amount will vary depending on hydrologic conditions and the specific rights used by 
TMWA to support the return flow will-serve commitment.   
 Page 3 of 3 

water rights prior to the start of the delivery of reclaimed water because TRIGID will not 
need the full amount at that time.  

• The exchange is conditional on TMWA Board approval and TRIGID Board approval. 
 
One key element that enabled TMWA to negotiate such a beneficial transaction while keeping 
TMWA customers whole is that TMWA is uniquely positioned under TROA and as a result of the 
wide variety of water resources under its control to satisfy the TRIGID Return Flow Resource 
obligation with fewer water rights than TRIGID would otherwise be required to commit1.   In other 
words, through more efficient management of a broader array of water resources, TMWA is able 
to provide 1,500 AF of return flow supply utilizing fewer water rights than TRIGID.   
 
The Water Resource Exchange Agreement provides mutual benefits to all the parties consistent 
with and in furtherance of the intent and purpose of the RFMA, as summarized below: 
 

1. TMWA gets the benefit of avoiding TRIC/TRIGID acquiring and attempting to move 
additional Truckee River water rights downstream, and acquires a large block of TRIGID 
Rights to support the return flow will-serve commitment and $8.9 million to pursue other 
transactions to support the return flow will-serve and/or enhance TMWA’s water resource 
portfolio, all at no cost to TMWA customers.   

2. TRIGID gets the benefit of satisfying its obligation to provide 1,500 AF of return flow 
supply under the RFMA Return Flow Resources by dedicating far fewer water resources 
than it would be required to commit if it sought to permit Truckee River water resources 
for return flow purposes on its own, freeing up TRIGID resources for its municipal 
purposes and reducing the likelihood of competing against TMWA for future Truckee 
River water rights purchases.   

3. TRIC gets the benefit of avoiding the time, expense and uncertainty associated with 
acquiring additional Truckee River water rights and permitting the TRIGID Truckee River 
resources at some point in the future and secures the benefits of immediately satisfying the 
TRIGID Return Flow Resource obligation facilitating up to 1,500 AF of reclaimed water 
service through TMWRF as soon as the pipeline is operational.   

4. TMWRF, the Tribe and the river ecosystem realize the water quality benefit of less effluent 
discharged into the river while satisfying the unique water rights consumptive use 
reduction permitting requirements associated with reclaimed water use at TRIGID.   

 
TRIC has approved and signed the Exchange Agreement.  The Exchange Agreement was 
presented to the TRIGID Board for consideration, which was heard and approved on March 2, 
2021.  Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Water Resource 
Exchange Agreement between TMWA, TRIGID and TRIC related to the acquisition of Truckee 
River water rights and issuance of a return flow will-serve commitment. 
 
 
Attachment:  Water Resource Exchange Agreement 

 
 



WATER RESOURCE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS WATER RESOURCE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated for 
identification purposes as of the date last executed below, is entered by and between TRUCKEE 
MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority entity created pursuant to a 
cooperative agreement among the cities of Reno, Nevada, Sparks, Nevada and Washoe County, 
Nevada, pursuant to N.R.S. Chapter 277 ("TMWA"), TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“TRIGID”), and TAHOE-RENO 
INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“TRIC”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, TMWA, TRIGID, the City of Reno and City of Sparks entered into that 
certain Return Flow Management Agreement dated July 17, 2018 (the “RFMA”) pursuant to which 
TMWA is authorized to control and manage various water resources of the parties for return flow 
purposes to facilitate implementation of reclaim water delivery to TRIGID and in order to further 
regional water management objectives and provide indirect benefits to TMWA by reducing the 
demand for conversion of Truckee River water resources otherwise available for TMWA 
municipal supply to use in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.  Except as otherwise defined herein, 
capitalized terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the RFMA. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFMA, TRIGID is required to provide 1,500 acre feet 

annually (AFA) of Truckee River water rights (defined therein as the “TRIGID Return Flow 
Resources”) permitted for Return Flow Purposes for management by TMWA to satisfy certain 
return flow obligations set forth in the RFMA. 

 
WHEREAS, TRIGID owns 1,143.39 AFA of Truckee River water rights more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“TRIGID Exchange Rights”) banked for the benefit of 
TRIC, which have not been committed to any will-serve commitment and which could be made 
available to TMWA for management as a portion of the TRIGID Return Flow Resources.  

 
WHEREAS, TMWA, as allowed by TROA, holds certain water resources and may in the 

future acquire other resources that in TMWA’s sole discretion can be made available and used for 
Return Flow Purposes to satisfy the Return Flow Requirements associated with the TRIGID Return 
Flow Resources under the RFMA (“TMWA Return Flow Resources”). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFMA, TRIGID is required to cooperate in good faith with 

TMWA to minimize acquisitions of additional Truckee River water rights and minimize 
competition with TMWA for the acquisition of Truckee River water rights, and where such does 
not diminish the quality, quantity or availability of resources, to cooperate with TMWA to 
facilitate exchange or other transfers of TRIGID water rights with TMWA water resources. 

 
WHEREAS, TMWA Rate Tariff ILVNPS authorizes TMWA to provide instream return 

flow services based on dedication of water resources and/or purchase of a will-serve commitment 
supported by other resources owned or managed by TMWA, as determined by TMWA in its sole 
discretion. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 1 of 18



 
WHEREAS, TRIC and TRIGID desire to secure a will-serve commitment for return flow 

purposes through a combination of purchase and dedication pursuant to which TRIC will pay 
TMWA $8,978,200 and TRIC and TRIGID will convey the TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA 
in exchange for TMWA issuing an irrevocable Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment to TRIGID 
in the amount of up to 1,500 AFA to satisfy TRIGID’s obligation to provide the TRIGID Return 
Flow Resources under the RFMA on the terms and conditions below.   

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. WATER RESOURCE EXCHANGE AND RETURN FLOW WILL-SERVE 
COMMITMENT.   

1.1 Conveyance of TRIGID Exchange Rights.  Within fifteen (15) days after the 
execution of this Agreement by all the Parties (the “Closing Date”), TRIGID will convey all right, 
title and interest in the TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA by Water Rights Deed in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, TRIGID and TRIC will terminate any banking agreement 
encumbering the TRIGID Exchange Rights, and TRIC will assign to TMWA any beneficial 
interest held in the TRIGID Exchange Rights, if applicable.  TRIGID and TRIC acknowledge and 
agree no money shall be paid for the TRIGID Exchange Rights and the sole consideration for the 
conveyance shall be the issuance of the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment by TMWA pursuant 
to Section 1.2.  TMWA acknowledges and agrees that it shall bear all fees and charges, if any, 
associated with any reports of conveyance or change applications sought by TMWA with respect 
to the TRIGID Exchange Rights.  The Parties agree the TRIGID Exchange Rights shall not be 
construed as “water rights acquired after the Effective Date for use as TRIGID Return Flow 
Resources” for purposes of Section 5.2.1 of the RFMA, it being the express intent of the Parties 
that the TRIGID Exchange Rights shall not be governed by Section 5.2.1 of the RFMA and that 
TMWA shall have no obligation to commit or use the TRIGID Exchange Rights for Return Flow 
Purposes. 

 
1.2 Additional Consideration for Will-Serve Purchase.   On or before the Closing Date, 

TRIC shall pay to TMWA the sum of Eight Million Nine Hundred Seventy Eight Thousand Two 
Hundred Dollars ($8,978,200.00) (“Purchase Price”) in cash or other immediately available funds.   

1.3 Issuance of Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment.  In consideration of and 
conditional upon the conveyance of the TRIGID Exchange Rights and payment of the Purchase 
Price, concurrently with the conveyance of the TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA under Section 
1.1 and payment of the Purchase Price under Section 1.2, TMWA shall issue to TRIGID a return 
flow will-serve commitment in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C” (“Return Flow Will-Serve 
Commitment”) pursuant to which TMWA irrevocably commits (except as provided in Section 1.4) 
sufficient water resources to provide up to 1,500 AFA for Return Flow Purposes in satisfaction of 
and compliance with the Return Flow Requirement associated with the TRIGID Return Flow 
Resources under the RFMA.  Other than TRIGID being a beneficiary of the irrevocable Return 
Flow Will-Serve Commitment to satisfy its obligations under the RFMA, neither TRIC nor 
TRIGID shall have any right, title or interest in the TRIGID Exchange Rights and/or TMWA 
Return Flow Resources supporting the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment, and TMWA shall 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 2 of 18



have sole and absolute discretion to identify, designate, use and substitute from time to time the 
specific TMWA Return Flow Resources supporting the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment.  
Upon issuance of the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment, and for purposes of implementing 
this Agreement, TRIGID shall become a customer of TMWA under TMWA’s ILVNPS rate tariff, 
or such other tariff deemed applicable by TMWA, for purposes of delivering TMWA Return Flow 
Resources to meet the demands of TRIGID as a TMWA customer in connection with the Return 
Flow Will-Serve Commitment. The rates payable by TRIGID for the TMWA Return Flow 
Resources used to satisfy customer deliveries under the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment 
(whether under the ILVNPS rate tariff or other tariff) shall be calculated in accordance with 
Section 4.6 of the RFMA (which TMWA shall incorporate by reference into such tariff for 
customers receiving service under or in connection with the RFMA).  TMWA acknowledges and 
agrees the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment and deliveries thereunder to TRIGID as a 
customer will satisfy TRIGID’s obligations to provide the TRIGID Return Flow Resources under 
the RFMA, and that notwithstanding any provision of the ILVNPS tariff that subjects such service 
to interruption or curtailment in TMWA’s discretion, TMWA will provide sufficient resources to 
support the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment to ensure that deliveries thereunder are provided 
as and when necessary to satisfy the TRIGID Return Flow Resources obligation under the RFMA 
and in compliance with the Return Flow Requirement associated with the TRIGID Return Flow 
Resources under the RFMA.  TRIGID may allocate all or any portion of the beneficial interest in 
the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment to TRIC as separately agreed between TRIGID and 
TRIC.   

1.4 Contingent Re-conveyance of Truckee River Rights.   

(a) Prior to Delivery of Reclaimed Water. At any time prior to the completion of 
construction of the Pipeline Project and commencement of delivery of Reclaimed Water to 
TRIGID, TRIGID may deliver to TMWA written notice of its desire to terminate the Return Flow 
Will-Serve Commitment (“Termination Notice”).  Within thirty (30) days of TMWA’s receipt of 
the Termination Notice: i) TMWA will terminate the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment and 
TRIGID shall acknowledge such termination, upon which termination neither party shall have any 
rights or liability in connection with the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment; ii) TMWA will re-
convey to TRIGID fee title to the TRIGID Exchange Rights; and iii) TMWA will refund to TRIC 
the Purchase Price (if none had been expended by TMWA as of the date of the Termination 
Notice), or if all or any portion of the Purchase Price has been used by TMWA to acquire water 
rights, TMWA will convey to TRIC all water rights purchased with the Purchase Price proceeds 
and will refund to TRIC the unspent balance of the Purchase Price.   

(b) Following Delivery of Reclaimed Water. In the event TMWA terminates the RFMA 
pursuant to Section 7.2 of the RFMA after commencement of delivery of Reclaimed Water to 
TRIGID, at TRIGID’s election: i) TMWA shall provide a resource credit in the amount of 1,500 
acre feet for municipal service within TMWA’s retail service area for the benefit of TRIC and 
TRIGID or their assignees, as mutually agreed by TRIC and TRIGID; or ii) the Return Flow Will-
Serve Commitment shall remain in effect, provided service shall be delivered pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of TMWA’s ILVNPS rate tariff (or other applicable tariff in effect at the time), and 
the timing and volume of water delivered under the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment shall be 
determined in the sole discretion of TMWA and consistent with the applicable rate tariff; 
conditions and availability of water under the Truckee River Operating Agreement (“TROA”); 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 3 of 18



requirements of the TROA Administrator/Federal Water Master; and applicable water rights.   
TMWA will reasonably cooperate with TRIGID on the timing and volume of water delivered 
under the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment, provided TMWA shall retain final discretion over 
such decisions as set forth in the preceding sentence.   

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF TRIGID. 
 
 As a material inducement to the TMWA to enter into this Agreement, TRIGID represents 
and warrants to TMWA as follows: 
 
 2.1 Organization and Power.  TRIGID is duly organized, validly existing and 
authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Nevada, and has full power and 
authority to own, sell and convey the TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA and to enter into and 
perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. This Agreement and all other documents 
delivered by TRIGID to TMWA, have been or will be duly executed and delivered by TRIGID 
and are or will be legal, valid and binding obligations of TRIGID, and are enforceable in 
accordance with their respective terms.  Each of the persons signing this Agreement and other 
instruments required under this Agreement on behalf of TRIGID is or will be authorized to so sign; 
and the execution, consent or acknowledgment of no other person, entity, court or governmental 
authority is necessary in order to validate the execution and performance of this Agreement by 
TRIGID. 
 
 2.2 Property, Title and Related Matters.  TRIGID owns all right, title and interest in the 
TRIGID Exchange Rights free and clear of all security interests, mortgages, liens, pledges, 
charges, claims or encumbrances of any kind or character other than the TRIC banking agreement, 
and has not, and will not sell, encumber, pledge, assign, convey or transfer any of the TRIGID 
Exchange Rights, except as set forth in this Agreement.  The TRIGID Exchange Rights have not 
been committed to support any will-serve commitment by TRIGID. 

 
 2.3 Transferability.  TRIGID has no knowledge of any condition or fact related to the 
TRIGID Exchange Rights which would prevent or impede the transfer and exchange of the 
TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA. 
 
 2.4 No Litigation. There are no pending or to the best of TRIGID’s knowledge 
threatened actions which would materially and adversely affect the TRIGID Exchange Rights, or 
any portion thereof, nor are there any known specific facts which might give rise to such action or 
proceedings, or which would or could adversely change the use of the TRIGID Exchange Rights. 
 
 2.5 No Misstatement.  No representation, statement or warranty by TRIGID contained 
in this Agreement or in any exhibit hereto contains any untrue statements or omits, any material 
fact necessary to make the statement of fact recited not misleading. 
 
 2.6 No Agreements.  Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by TRIGID 
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will result in any breach or 
violation of or default under any judgment, decree, order, mortgage, lease, agreement, indenture 
or other instrument to which TRIGID is a party, or to which it is bound. 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 4 of 18



3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF TRIC. 
 
 As a material inducement to the TMWA to enter into this Agreement, TRIC represents and 
warrants to TMWA as follows: 
 
 3.1 Organization and Power.  TRIC is duly organized, validly existing and authorized 
to conduct business under the laws of the State of Nevada, and has full power and authority to sell 
and convey all its right, title and interest in the TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA and to enter 
into and perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. This Agreement and all other 
documents delivered by TRIC to TMWA, have been or will be duly executed and delivered by 
TRIC and are or will be legal, valid and binding obligations of TRIC, and are enforceable in 
accordance with their respective terms.  Each of the persons signing this Agreement and other 
instruments required under this Agreement on behalf of TRIC is or will be authorized to so sign; 
and the execution, consent or acknowledgment of no other person, entity, court or governmental 
authority is necessary in order to validate the execution and performance of this Agreement by 
TRIC. 
 
 3.2 Transferability.  TRIC has no knowledge of any condition or fact related to the 
TRIGID Exchange Rights which would prevent or impede the transfer and exchange of the 
TRIGID Exchange Rights to TMWA. 
 
 3.3 No Litigation. There are no pending or to the best of TRIC’s knowledge threatened 
actions which would materially and adversely affect the TRIGID Exchange Rights, or any portion 
thereof, nor are there any known specific facts which might give rise to such action or proceedings, 
or which would or could adversely change the use of the TRIGID Exchange Rights. 
 
 3.4 No Misstatement.  No representation, statement or warranty by TRIC contained in 
this Agreement or in any exhibit hereto contains or will contain any untrue statements or omits, or 
will omit, any material fact necessary to make the statement of fact recited not misleading. 
 
 3.5 No Agreements.  Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by TRIC 
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will result in any breach or 
violation of or default under any judgment, decree, order, mortgage, lease, agreement, indenture 
or other instrument to which TRIC is a party, or to which it is bound. 
 
 
4. REPRESENTATIONS OF TMWA. 
 

As a material inducement to TRIGID and TRIC to enter into this Agreement, TMWA 
represents and warrants to the TRIGID and TRIC as follows: 
 
 4.1 Organization and Power.  TMWA is duly organized, validly existing and authorized 
to conduct business under the laws of the State of Nevada and has full power and authority to issue 
the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment to TRIGID and to enter into and perform its obligations 
pursuant to this Agreement. This Agreement and all other documents delivered by TMWA, have 
been or will be duly executed and delivered by TMWA and are or will be legal, valid and binding 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 5 of 18



obligations of TMWA, and are enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.  Each of the 
persons signing this Agreement and other instruments required under this Agreement on behalf of 
TMWA is or will be authorized to so sign; and the execution, consent or acknowledgment of no 
other person, entity, court or governmental authority is necessary in order to validate the execution 
and performance of this Agreement by TMWA. 
 
 4.2 No Misstatement.  No representation, statement or warranty by TMWA contained 
in this Agreement or in any exhibit hereto contains or will contain any untrue statements or omits, 
or will omit, any material fact necessary to make the statement of fact recited not misleading. 
 
 4.3 No Agreements.  Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by TMWA 
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will result in any breach or 
violation of or default under any judgment, decree, order, mortgage, lease, agreement, indenture 
or other instrument to which TMWA is a party, or to which it is bound. 
 
5.  MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

5.1 Time.  Time is of the essence in the performance of all obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 
 5.2 Nevada Law. The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall 
be controlled and governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Nevada. 
 
 5.3 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Legible executed counterparts of this Agreement may be delivered by facsimile, PDF 
e-mail attachment, or any other electronic means. 
 

5.4  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and/or 
assigns. 

 
5.5 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the sole and only agreement between 

the parties hereto relating to their agreement regarding the subject matters and correctly sets forth 
the rights, duties and obligations of each to the other as of this date.  Any prior agreements, 
promises, negotiations or representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are of no force 
and effect. 

 
5.6 Non-Merger.  This Agreement and all of its conditions and covenants shall not 

merge with the deeds referred to herein but shall survive the recordation of such documents and 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

5.8 Recitals.  The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 6 of 18



5.9 Board Approval.  This Agreement is contingent upon the approval of the terms by 
the Board of Directors of TMWA and the Board of Trustees of TRIGID.   

 
[Signature Page Follows]  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 7 of 18



[Signature Page – Water Resource Exchange Agreement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
first above written. 
 
“TMWA” 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER 
AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority 
 
By:_______________________________ 
              Mark Foree, General Manager 
 
Dated: ____________________________ 
 

“TRIGID” 
TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada  
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        Shari Whalen, General Manager 
 
Dated: ____________________________ 
 
 
“TRIC” 
TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company 
 
By: Norman Properties, Inc., a California 

corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
       Don Roger Norman, President 
 
Dated: ______________________________ 
 
 

 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 8 of 18



EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF TRIGID EXCHANGE WATER RIGHTS  

  
All of the rights of the Grantor to divert from the Truckee River and its tributaries the water 
appurtenant to the land situate in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, more particularly 
describes as:  
 

I. 
A portion of Permit No. 64368 which consists of 192.22 acre-feet along with 1.265 
cfs of diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Lake Ditch heretofore 
allocated to James L. Hash, successor to D. C. Wheeler Inc. and to others, in that 
certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch 
Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court 
of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed 
and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 207, 207.5, 265.5 and 
as changed by Permit No. 11489, Certificate 4827. 
 
 

II. 
A portion of Permit No. 65134 which consists of 45.14 acre-feet along with 0.234 
cfs of diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Orr Ditch heretofore 
allocated to Dennis R. O’Sullivan, successor to J.D. O’Sullivan in that certain 
action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, 
et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United 
States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated 
in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 311. 

 
 

III. 
All of Permit No. 67467 which consists of 128.38 acre-feet along with 0.392 cfs of 
diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of Steamboat Canal heretofore 
allocated to D. C. Wheeler, Inc., in that certain action entitled United States of 
America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in 
Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District 
of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM 
OR RIGHT NO. 65. 

 
 

IV. 
A portion of Permit No. 72776 which consists of 40.0 acre-feet along with 0.157 
cfs of diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Steamboat Canal 
heretofore allocated to Leonidas Frederick Johnson, successor to L. Cardella and 
S. Capurro, in that certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. 
Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the 
District Court of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 9 of 18



being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 50 
and 50a. 
 

V. 
A portion of Permit No. 73061 which consists of 58.52 acre-feet along with 0.346 
cfs of diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Cochran Ditch 
heretofore allocated to W. H. Menke, D. P. Jones, successor to Mary De Remer, 
and E. L. Hall, successor to Mary De Remer, in that certain action entitled United 
States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the 
same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the 
District of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated in said Decree under 
CLAIM OR RIGHT NOS. 438, 443 and 444. 
 
 

VI. 
A portion of Permit No. 74330 which consists of 16.69 acre-feet along with 0.100  
cfs of diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Eastman Ditch and 
Pioneer Ditch heretofore allocated to Steele Corporation, in that certain action 
entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, 
Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United 
States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated 
in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NOS. 524 and 596. 
 
Reserving unto the Grantor any and all water and water rights over and above the 
16.69 acre-feet and a proportionate rate of diversion under Permit No. 74330 
specifically granted herein.  It being the intent of the Grantor to convey 4.90 acre-
feet under CLAIM NO. 524 and 11.79 acre-feet under CLAIM NO. 596 and to 
reserve the remainder. 
 
 

VII. 
All of Permit No. 74908 which consists of 8.60 acre-feet along with 0.029 of 
diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the Orr Extension Ditch 
heretofore allocated to Mrs. Adelina Trosi (formerly Mrs. Charles Trosi), in that 
certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch 
Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court 
of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed 
and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NOS. 337 and 338. 
 
 

VIII. 
All of Permit No. 85734 which consists of 24.06 acre-feet along with 0.152 of 
diversion rate.  Said water rights being a portion of the North Truckee Ditch 
heretofore allocated to Alex Crotta, successor to Lucy M. Uyatt, in that certain 
action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, 
et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 10 of 18



States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated 
in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NOS. 576 and 577. 
 

IX. 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Peter Quillici, Intervenor, in that certain action entitled United States of America, 
Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity 
Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District of 
Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM 
OR RIGHT NO. 17. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 6.14 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 
Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-810-03, 038-
810-04, and 038-810-05 on Truckee River Mapping TR-.068 
 
 

X. 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Domingo Gavica in that certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, 
vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in 
the District Court of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water 
being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 19. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 16.0 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 
Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-221-02, 038-
221-03, and 038-221-04 on Truckee River Mapping TR-067. 
 
 

XI. 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Mrs. Phillipine Mitchell in that certain action entitled United States of America, 
Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity 
Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District of 
Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM 
OR RIGHT NO. 31. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 26.12 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 11 of 18



Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-090-14 and 
038-090-60 on Truckee River Mapping TR-067. 
 
 

XII. 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Unknown Owner in that certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, 
vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in 
the District Court of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water 
being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 33. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 6.0 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 
Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Number 038-090-60 on 
Truckee River Mapping TR-067. 
 
 

XIII. 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Paul Garson successor to Chris Theusen, Intervenor, in that certain action entitled 
United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, 
Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United 
States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated 
in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 46. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 222.855 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL 
in Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-100-19, 038-
100-21, and 038-120-13 on Truckee River Mapping TR-064. 
 
 
 

XIV 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
Chris Mortensen, Sophia Mortensen, and M. Mortensen, Jr., Intervenor, in that 
certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch 
Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 12 of 18



of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water being distributed 
and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 47. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 318.0 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 
Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 038-100-27, 038-
430-20, 038-430-21, and 038-420-22 on Truckee River Mapping TR-064. 
 
 

.XV 
Said water being a portion of the STEAMBOAT CANAL heretofore allocated to 
James Atcheson, L. R. McKenzie, successors to A. L. Laughton and Geo. 
Christensen, Intervenor, in that certain action entitled United States of America, 
Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity 
Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District of 
Nevada, said water being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM 
OR RIGHT NO. 48. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 11.07 acre-feet, more or less, per season from STEAMBOAT CANAL in 
Washoe County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion 
and place and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers, 038-430-24, 
Interstate I-80, and a portion of 038-430-03 on Truckee River Mapping TR-064. 

 
 

.XVI 
Said water being a portion of the ORR DITCH heretofore allocated to Mrs. Alice 
Chism in that certain action entitled United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr 
Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the 
District Court of the United States in and for the District of Nevada, said water 
being distributed and allocated in said Decree under CLAIM OR RIGHT NO. 271. 
 
Said right authorizing delivery of a pro-rata share of the rate of diversion not to 
exceed 23.60 acre-feet, more or less, per season from ORR DITCH in Washoe 
County, Nevada, together with the right to change the point of diversion and place 
and manner of use thereof. 
 
Reference is made to Washoe County Assessor Parcel Numbers 006-183-42, 006-
221-23, 006-222-02, and 006-222-22 on Truckee River Mapping TR-128. 
 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 13 of 18



Grantee does hereby agree to assume the payment of all water master fees and charges that may 
hereafter become due and payable in respect to said rights referred to herein by reason of the 
Decree in the United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, 
the same in Equity Docket A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District of 
Nevada, and Grantee does hereby further agree to pay all administration, operation and 
maintenance charges that may be herein payable arising for periods from and after the date hereof 
to Washoe County Water Conservation District and constitute a charge or lien against the lands 
herein described by reason of the Boca Dam construction.  

 
 

 
 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 14 of 18



 
Exhibit “B” 

Form of Deed 
APN:  N/A 
When Recorded mail Document to: 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Water Resources Dept. 
P.O. Box 30013 
Reno, NV 89520-3013 

 
The undersigned hereby affirms that this document submitted for 
recording does not contain the personal information of any person or 
persons per N.R.S. 239B.030. 

 
 

WATER RIGHTS DEED 
 

 THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into this _______ day of _______________, 2021 by 
and between TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of 
Nevada hereinafter referred to as "Grantor", and the TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER 
AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority entity created pursuant to a cooperative agreement among 
the cities of Reno, Nevada, Sparks, Nevada and Washoe County, Nevada, pursuant to N.R.S. Chapter 
277, hereinafter referred to as “Authority”.  

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
 That the Grantor, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby 
acknowledged, does by these presents grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the Authority, and to its 
successors and assigns forever, all of Grantor’s right, title, and interest in and to those certain water 
and water rights more particularly described in Exhibits ”1” attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
including without limitation any and all rights arising in connection with pending Applications to 
Change, Permits and Certificates related to such Water Rights on file in the office of the Nevada State 
Engineer. 
 

To have and to hold said Water Rights together with the tenements, hereditaments and 
appurtenances thereunto belonging or appertaining and the reversion and reversions, remainder and 
remainders, rents, issues, and profits thereof unto The Authority, its successors and assigns, forever. 

 
The Authority does hereby agree to assume the payment of all water master fees and charges 

that may hereafter become due and payable in respect to said rights referred to herein by reason of the 
Decree in The United States of America, Plaintiff, vs. Orr Water Ditch Company, et al, Defendants, 
the same in Equity Docket No. A-3 in the District Court of the United States in and for the District of 
Nevada, and the Authority does hereby further agree to pay all administration and operation and 
maintenance charges that may be herein payable to Washoe County Water Conservation District and 
constitute a charge or lien against the lands herein described by reason of Boca Dam construction. 
 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 15 of 18



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their names to be hereunto subscribed 
the day and year first above written.  

 
“AUTHORITY” 
 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER 
AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority 
 
 

By:_______________________________ 
              Mark Foree, General Manager 
 

“GRANTOR” 
 
TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada  
 
By:  ______________________________ 
        Shari Whalen, General Manager 

 
 
STATE OF NEVADA ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on __________________________, 2021,  

by Shari Whalen, as General Manager of the TRI General Improvement District, as therein named. 

 
 

_________________________________ 
                       Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEVADA  ) 
   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _________________, 2021 by Mark 
Foree as General Manager of TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY, on behalf of said 
Joint Powers Authority therein named.  
      
      ____________________________________ 

Notary Public 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 16 of 18



Exhibit “C” 
Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment 

 
 

RETURN FLOW WILL SERVE COMMITMENT LETTER 
(Tariff ILVNPS) 

 
______________, 2021 

 
        
TRI General Improvement District    Return Flow Demand: 1,500 AFA 
Attn: Shari Whalen 
____________     Approval Date:   ____________ 
____________ 
 
RE: Commitment for Return Flow Purposes/Return Flow Management Agreement  
          
Dear Ms. Whalen: 
 
 Pursuant to that certain Water Resource Exchange Agreement between the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority (TMWA), TRI General Improvement District (TRIGID) and 
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center dated ______________, 2021, and in furtherance of the 
Return Flow Management Agreement dated July 17, 2018 between TMWA, TRIGID, the 
City of Reno and City of Sparks (“RFMA”), this letter constitutes an irrevocable 
commitment that TMWA has assumed a legal obligation to supply sufficient water 
resources to deliver water to the Truckee River for Return Flow Purposes under Tariff 
ILVNPS or such other tariff deemed applicable by TMWA to meet the return flow demand 
of TRIGID as a customer of TMWA up to the amount stated above.  Notwithstanding any 
provision of the ILVNPS tariff or such other tariff deemed applicable which subjects such 
service to interruption or curtailment in TMWA’s discretion, TMWA will provide 
sufficient resources to support the Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment to ensure that 
deliveries hereunder are provided as and when necessary to satisfy the TRIGID Return 
Flow Resources obligation under the RFMA. TRIGID shall be the customer of record with 
TMWA in connection with water deliveries pursuant to this commitment and the rates 
payable by TRIGID for the TMWA Return Flow Resources used to satisfy customer 
deliveries under this Return Flow Will-Serve Commitment shall be governed by Section 
4.6 of the RFMA (as incorporated by reference into the applicable tariff).  Except as 
otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the 
RFMA as of the date of this Commitment.  This commitment is made subject to all 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 17 of 18



applicable TMWA Rules and payment of fees for water delivery in accordance with the 
Water Resource Exchange Agreement and RFMA.  This commitment does not constitute 
an obligation to provide municipal water service.  
   

Very truly yours, 
 
 
       
cc: _______________ 

 
 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7 
03-17-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 18 of 18



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 1 of 3 

  

TO: Board of Directors
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager
FROM: John Enloe, Director of Natural Resources & Planning 

John Zimmerman, Water Resources Manager
DATE: April 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: Presentation and informational Report on a Proposed OneWater Nevada Feasibility 

Study to evaluate feasibility of using recycled water for irrigation in Warm Springs 
Valley (Palomino Farms and LW Land Company) and to provide water 
sustainability benefits

Background 

Palomino Farms, LLC and LW Land Company, LLC (Palomino-LW) collectively own approximately 
1,512 acres of farmland (shown in Attachment 1) and 2,580 acre-feet (AF) of groundwater rights in 
Palomino Valley, which is an unincorporated area that is part of the larger Warm Springs Valley.  Under 
the auspices of OneWater Nevada, with the cooperation of Palomino-LW, a study is proposed to explore 
the coordinated use of surface water, groundwater and recycled water as part of a long-term sustainable 
water management plan (“Feasibility Study”).

Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County are interested in exploring long-term opportunities to use recycled 
water for agricultural irrigation of Palomino-LW land in lieu of using the Palomino-LW groundwater 
rights.  TMWA is interested in locating sites where it may bank water underground through active and 
passive groundwater recharge and new groundwater resources, to provide a future source of water for 
drought protection, water resource sustainability, and operational flexibility.  There may also be benefits 
to the Palomino Valley area from leaving the Palomino-LW land as farmland irrigated with recycled 
water and open space, preserving the existing farmland and rural lifestyle. 

The proposed Feasibility Study would evaluate the feasibility and direct and indirect benefits of (i) 
providing another option for regional effluent management, (ii) reducing the volume of treated effluent 
being discharged into the Truckee River, (iii) the long-term use of recycled water for irrigation of the 
Palomino-LW land, (iv) increasing the sustainability of the Warm Springs groundwater basin by resting 
current Palomino-LW irrigation wells, (iv) recharging and storing on a long-term basis potable water 
and potentially advanced purified water in the Warm Springs groundwater basin using Palomino-LW 
land, and (vi) providing TMWA with a water banking site and an additional source of water for drought 
protection, water resource sustainability, and operational flexibility. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8 

Page 2 of 3 

Discussion 

TMWA, in collaboration with Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County, would perform and pay for all work 
required to complete the Feasibility Study pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) outlining each of 
their respective obligations and responsibilities regarding the Feasibility Study and the Project.  Under 
the ILA, TMWA, Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County would work together and cooperatively on the 
intent and scope of the Feasibility Study, including evaluation of the direct and indirect benefits to the 
region, and public outreach, engagement, and education.  Each Party to the ILA would be responsible 
for twenty five percent (25%) of the actual costs incurred by TMWA to perform and complete the 
Feasibility Study (excluding charges for TMWA staff time) with a not to exceed cost of $1.6 million.  
Cost share responsibility of Reno, Sparks, Washoe County and TMWA would not exceed $400,000 
each.  A task summary and cost estimate for proposed scope of work of the Feasibility Study is outlined 
in Attachment 2.   

To facilitate the Feasibility Study, TMWA would concurrently enter a Feasibility Study Agreement with 
Palomino-LW pursuant to which Palomino-LW would grant TMWA physical access to the Palomino-
LW land for a ten-month period.   Palomino-LW would grant TMWA access to data and information 
related to irrigation operations, the land, wells and water rights as necessary to allow TMWA to conduct 
the Feasibility Study.  

The Feasibility Study effort is generally described as follows: The potential to recharge, store, and 
recover water from the Palomino Farms will be addressed in phases.  Understanding the geology, water 
quality, storage, flow, and geochemical characteristics of the saturated and unsaturated zones are critical 
to determining the long-term viability of this site for aquifer storage and recovery (ASR). 

Major Feasibility Study phases include: 

1. Project Planning 
2. Historical Review 
3. Groundwater Flow and Transport Modeling 
4. Preliminary Basin Assessment 

TMWA has completed work on phases 1 thru 3 and has determined the site warrants further 
investigation and investment.  Preliminary groundwater modeling shows that over 50,000 acre-feet of 
water could be stored at the Palomino-LW site.  However, elevated concentrations of arsenic, fluoride, 
and nitrate are in the vicinity of the proposed ASR sites so additional geochemical characterization, 
water quality sampling and transport modeling is needed to ensure that existing poor water quality will 
not impact the stored water. 

Phase 4, Preliminary Basin Assessment, will resolve potential “deal breakers” regarding water quality in 
the basin.  If the existing water quality cannot meet drinking water standards, then recovery may not be 
economically viable.  The Preliminary Basin Assessment aims to address this through a detailed 
evaluation of the following: 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8 

Page 3 of 3 

a. Well Inventory 
b. Water Levels 
c. Water Quality Sampling (Drinking Water Concerns) 
d. Geology 
e. Saturated aquifer sediments Geochemical Characterization 
f. Solute Transport Model (based on new info above) 
g. Project Feasibility Variables 

i. Water Quality 
ii. Recharge Potential 
iii. Water Quantity 

TMWA, Reno, Sparks and Washoe County will also discuss permitting requirements with regulatory 
agencies that have or may have jurisdiction over implementation of all or any element of the Project, 
including, but not limited to, Nevada State Engineer, Washoe County, Nevada Department of 
Transportation, and Nevada Division of Environmental Protection.  A portion of the funding is also 
planned for preliminary surveying and right-of-way investigations along Pyramid Highway, and 
engineering support services for alternative facility analyses, construction phasing and cost estimates. 

During the 10-month Feasibility Study period (subject to favorable results from the Phase 4 assessment 
outlined above), TMWA, Reno, Sparks, Washoe County and Palomino-LW would negotiate a five-year 
option agreement for future TMWA, Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County consideration.  As presently 
contemplated, the Option Agreement would grant the right to purchase (1) all necessary rights and 
interests in the Palomino-LW land and (2) the Palomino-LW water rights sufficient to allow TMWA and 
Reno, Sparks and Washoe County, subject to obtaining necessary permits, the right to implement the 
Project.  The total purchase price for the above-described interests in the Palomino-LW land and 
Palomino-LW water rights under the option would be $27,000,000 and any option payments would be 
applied toward the purchase price.  The option would reserve to Palomino-LW the right to use the 
Palomino-LW land for any activity so long as such activity does not adversely impact the Project.  Such 
uses include, but are not limited to, entering into an agreement with a contract farmer, leasing the 
Palomino-LW land to a farmer, and encumbering the Palomino-LW land with a conservation easement. 

 

Summary: 

No action is requested at this time.  This is an informational report on a proposed Feasibility Study to 
evaluate the feasibility of using recycled water for irrigation on Palomino-LW land and other water 
resource sustainability benefits.   

Staff plans to bring forward two agreements for TMWA Board consideration at the May 20th meeting: 
The Feasibility Study Agreement with Palomino-LW and the ILA for the Palomino Farms Sustainable 
Water Resource Feasibility Study.  Assuming TMWA Board approval of the two agreements, staff from 
Reno, Sparks and Washoe County would subsequently take the ILA to each of their respective 
governing bodies for review and approval in late May or June. 



")

!

!

!

!

!

!(

PRATT WELL 1

PRATT WELL 2

PRATT WELL 3

WESTERN
TURF WELL

MURPHY WELL

BPS + 
TANK

REGIONAL EFFLUENT MANAGEMENT
PALOMINO FARMS

K:
\H

yd
ro

lo
gi

cS
ci

en
ce

s\
S

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 fi
le

s\
ef

flu
en

t +
 re

tu
rn

 fl
ow

\g
is

\m
xd

\p
al

om
in

o_
va

lle
y_

ef
flu

en
t_

in
se

t.m
xd

IRRIGATION
PARCELS

+/- 1,500 ACRES

WESTERN TURF
IRRIGATION 

PARCELS
+/- 290 ACRES

NEW
EFFLUENT MAIN

NEW POTABLE 
MAIN

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

¯

PALOMINO FARMS DETAIL

TMWRF

EXISTING EFFLUENT
SYSTEM

PALOMINO FARMS
IRRIGATION

PARCELS

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 1 of 1



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8
Attachment 2

1 |  P a g e  

Attachment 2

Palomino Farms Sustainable Water Resource Feasibility Study 

Feasibility Study Budget Summary



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Chairman and Board Members 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager
FROM: John Zimmerman, Water Resources Manager
DATE: April 15, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of an Interlocal Agreement between 

TMWA and the City of Reno for TMWA to provide supplemental irrigation 
water to Reno’s American Flat Road Project 

SUMMARY

Staff requests Board approval of an interlocal agreement between TMWA and the 
City of Reno under which TMWA would provide water to the City for irrigation use at its 
American Flat Project. The agreement is subject to Reno City Council approval. 

RENO’S AMERICAN FLAT PROJECT

The City of Reno, through an independent contractor, currently irrigates land it is 
leasing from Washoe County.  The land is located roughly 2 miles north of the Reno Stead 
Airport.  Reno currently uses water from Swan Lake to irrigate the land, however, the land 
will be used in the future for irrigation with advanced purified water as part of the regional 
A+ water reuse strategy.  This year Reno staff anticipates that there will not be enough 
water in Swan Lake for irrigation and requested TMWA supply additional water (up to 500 
acre-feet) to supplement the irrigation water supply.  Two TMWA production wells near 
Swan Lake are capable of providing the additional water and, but for Reno’s request, would 
not have been used to meet TMWA customer demands this year.  Providing the water is in
TMWA’s interests because it furthers the regional benefits of the Advanced Purified Water 
Demonstration Project at American Flat.  TMWA also benefits operationally because it 
will be able to use two wells that have not been operated for a while and that would 
otherwise remain idle this year. Operating the wells reduces the amount of rehabilitation 
and maintenance TMWA must conduct to keep the wells at optimal operational levels and 
provides water quality data that TMWA uses to ensure the wells will be ready when needed 
to meet customer demands. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

PROPOSED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

Under the attached Interlocal Agreement (ILA), Reno will pay and reimburse 
TMWA for all costs to provide the service.  There is already an existing aboveground 
pipeline near Swan Lake that Reno uses for the Project, which is near one of the wells 
TMWA intends to use to provide the water.  Reno will construct additional pipelines to 
connect to TMWA’s wells. 

The water service will be subject to TMWA’s Interruptible Water Service rules and 
staff is requiring Reno to reimburse TMWA for the cost of pumping those wells 
($0.20/1000 gallons).  The ILA also provides that TMWA may, in its sole discretion, 
choose to supply water with Fish Springs groundwater from TMWA’s distribution system.  
TMWA would charge Reno for the estimated costs to provide Fish Springs water for this 
service through its distribution system to Reno ($0.60/1000 gallons).  TMWA staff will 
conduct the same review process that all water service applicants must go through to ensure 
the water facilities are appropriately designed and constructed. 

TMWA staff is not recommending the County’s land be annexed into TMWA’s 
service area because the service is temporary and unique to this Project only.  TMWA also 
will not require Reno to dedicate water rights to obtain the water service and instead will 
temporarily change TMWA’s groundwater rights from the two wells to provide the service.  
Water service under the ILA will be provided at the sole discretion of TMWA and may be 
subject to frequent and immediate interruptions or curtailments for indefinite periods.  
Lastly, the ILA will be automatically renewed from year to year unless either party 
terminates it by providing 30 days’ advance notice. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Staff recommends the TMWA Board approve the ILA and authorize the General 
Manager to sign it if the Reno City Council approves it. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
FOR TEMPORARY DELIVERY OF WATER 

 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  is entered into as of the date indicated below by and 
between TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority 
(“Authority”) and the City of Reno, a municipal corporation (“Customer”), hereinafter sometimes 
referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Authority is a public purveyor of water service within Reno and Sparks, 
Nevada, and areas of Washoe County. 
 

WHEREAS, Customer has an agreement with Washoe County dated August 6, 2019 which 
allows Customer to irrigate certain real property owned by the County described as APN 079-332-
36 and 079-332-37 (“County Property”) with water from Swan Lake to reduce the water level of 
Swan Lake.  Customer has engaged an independent contractor to conduct farming operations on 
the County Property. 

 
WHEREAS, Customer desires Authority to deliver non-potable water (as defined below, 

the “Supplemental Water Service”) in the event supplemental irrigation water is needed to provide 
water to the farming operation on the County Property when non-potable water from Swan Lake 
is unavailable or insufficient to meet the irrigation demands.  

 
WHEREAS, Customer desires Authority to deliver the Supplemental Water to a master 

meter, from points of connection Customer may then transmit from the point of connect to the 
County Property for irrigation purposes.  

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient water resources of Authority to provide the Supplemental 

Water and Customer acknowledges and understands that it will be required to pay for the cost and 
installation of the necessary water facilities to provide water to the County Property as per Swan 
Lake/American Flat Irrigation Project PWP I20027.  Authority is willing to provide Customer and 
Customer agrees to accept service under the IWS Rate Schedule for the Authorized Use (as 
described below) on the terms and conditions set forth below. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
1. Service to Customer and Authorized Use.  Authority agrees to supply water service 

to the County Property on an interruptible basis (the “Supplemental Water Service”).  The use of 
water under this Supplemental Water Service is limited to irrigation at the County Property (the 
“Authorized Use”).  Customer agrees it shall not use any water supply provided under the 
Supplemental Water Service for any purpose other than the Authorized Use.  The Supplemental 
Water Service shall be subject to all terms and conditions of service set forth in this Agreement, 
the Authority’s IWS Rate Schedule, and Authority Rules of Service, as such may be amended from 
time to time, the terms and conditions of which are incorporated herein by reference. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

 2 

 
2. Customer Facilities.  Customer shall be solely responsible for installing, operating, 

permitting and maintaining all water distribution facilities downstream of the Points of Connection 
(“Customer Facilities”) necessary to deliver water to the County Property.  Customer shall be 
responsible for all water facility modifications, improvements, and meters required to allow 
Authority to provide water to Customer under this Agreement.  Customer shall be responsible for 
the cost of installing all necessary meter facilities to measure the amount of water supplied to 
Customer by Authority.  These facilities are seen in Swan Lake/American Flat Irrigation 
Project PWP I200027. In addition to any of the above-described costs, Customer shall reimburse 
Authority for Authority providing and installing the following:  RTU/radio equipment at Lemmon 
Valley Well No. 8 (including associated wiring/appurtenances); flow meter at Lemmon Valley 
Well No. 8; level transducer at Lemmon Valley Well No. 7 (to control Customer’s frac tank level); 
and Authority’s cost of labor to install an RTU at Lemmon Valley Well No. 7. 

3. Delivery of Water.  Authority intends to supply water consistent with the IWS Rate 
Schedule or Modified Rate (as applicable) to Customer from Authority’s Lemmon Valley Well 
Nos. 7 and 8 or Authority’s distribution system to a master meter connected to Customer Facilities 
(the master meter referred to as the “Points of Connection”), which Customer may then convey 
through Customer’s Facilities to the County Property.  Water supply under the Supplemental 
Water Service is provided at the sole discretion of the Authority and may be subject to frequent 
and immediate interruptions or curtailments for indefinite periods.  During the term of this 
agreement and subject to Authority’s discretion to interrupt or terminate service, Authority agrees 
to provide up to 500 acre-feet annually (AF) to Customer at the Points of Connection.    Available 
supply flows from each source is limited to the following:  Lemmon Valley Well 7 up to 450 gpm; 
Lemmon Valley Well 8 up to 650 gpm and TMWA resources, which may include Fish Springs 
groundwater resources, up to 450 gpm.  Authority shall bill Customer at the rate of $0.60/1,000 
gallons for all water provided from Authority’s potable distribution system and $0.20/1,000 
gallons for water provided directly from Authority’s Lemmon Valley Well Nos. 7, and 8 
(“Modified Rate”).  The above-described rates are lower than TMWA’s IWS rate schedule, 
however, they fully compensate the Authority for the cost of providing service to Customer for the 
Authorized Use due to the location of the County Property and Customer’s payment for all 
facilities necessary to provide the service.  Additionally, this service provides a unique public 
benefit because it allows Customer to continue its American Flat Road project, which is intended 
to lower the level of Swan Lake and provide flood mitigation, and it provides the Authority with 
an opportunity to assess the operational capacity of the wells. 

 
4. Conditions of Water Service.  The Supplemental Water Service shall be and remain 

in all respects subject to the applicable Rate Schedules and the Rules of the Authority, and any 
lawful amendments and supplements thereto, all of which are incorporated into and made a part of 
this Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Rate Schedules 
or Rules, the Rate Schedules and Rules shall govern.   This Supplemental Water Service is being 
provided to Customer only and shall not be assignable to any other entity without Authority’s 
advance written consent in Authority’s sole discretion.  If Customer discontinues the use of the 
County Property, then Customer must notify Authority and Authority is authorized to terminate 
this Supplemental Water Service and retire the service facilities.   

 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

 3 

5. Water Resources Supporting Service.  Authority agrees that Customer shall not be 
required to dedicate water resources to Authority to support the Supplemental Water Service for 
the Authorized Use because TMWA has existing resources to temporarily commit to the Service.  
The Customer shall have no right, title or interest (including beneficial interest) in the Authority’s 
water resources used to support the Supplemental Water Service.    Authority shall have sole 
discretion in identifying the Authority’s water resources used to support the Supplemental Water 
Service, and Authority may use one or more sources or substitute from time to time sources of 
supply in its sole and absolute discretion.  

 
6.   Indemnification.  Customer will hold harmless, protect, indemnify and  (at 

Authority’s option) defend Authority, its officers, employees and agents from and against any and 
all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, actions, causes of action (in law or equity), demands, liens, 
expenses and charges, including injury to, loss of use of, or damage to any property of Authority, 
relating to or arising directly or indirectly from or incident to any: (i) water service interruption; 
(ii) breach of this Agreement by Customer; (iii) error, negligence, act or omission of Customer; 
(iv) claim arising from or related to Customer’s Facilities or delivery of water through Customer’s 
Facilities; or (v) use of water on County Property.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that 
Customer’s indemnification of Authority as described above applies to any claims, liabilities, 
losses, damages, actions, causes of action (in law or equity), demands, liens, expenses and charges, 
and reasonable expenses, of any kind or nature whatsoever, including injury or death, brought by 
Customer’s independent contractor or Washoe County related to Authority’s water service to 
Customer under this Agreement.   

 
7. Notices.  All notices and communications, except those specified in the paragraph 

below, shall be in writing and sent prepaid mail to the addresses stated below, or at such other 
addresses as may hereafter be designated in writing: 

 
Authority:  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

P.O. Box 30013    
Reno, Nevada  89520 
Attn:  Water Resources Manager 

 
 Customer:  City of Reno 

c/o John Flansberg 
    Public Works Director 
    1 East First Street, 7th Floor 
    Reno, NV 89501 
 
Notices with respect to curtailment or restoration of water service, or with respect to force majeure, 
shall be sufficient if given by Authority in writing, or by facsimile or orally in person or by 
telephone to the person or persons designated from time to time by the customer as authorized to 
receive such notices.   
 
 
 
 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

 4 

8. Miscellaneous.   
 

8.1. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall not be construed to 
provide any person or entity not a party to this Agreement with any benefits or cause of action 
arising from the performance of this Agreement. 

 
8.2 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement may not be assigned without the 

express prior written consent, in its sole discretion, of the Authority. 
 

     8.3 Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended or supplemented only by an 
instrument in writing executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.  No oral statements 
or representations made before or after the execution of this Agreement regarding the subject matter 
of this Agreement are binding on a party, nor may any such oral statements or representations be 
relied on by a party. 

 
 8.4 Required Approvals.  This Agreement is subject to approval by the Reno 

City Council and TMWA Board of Directors and contingent on Customer and Authority obtaining 
all state, Washoe County, and City of Reno authorizations and approvals. 

 
 8.5 Term and Termination.  The term of this Agreement shall be one year and 

shall renew automatically from year to year unless a party provides 30-day advance written notice 
of termination to the other party. 

 
 8.6. Applicable Law.  This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws of the 

State of Nevada. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly 

authorized officials on the date indicated below Authority’s signature. 
 
Authority: 
 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS  
WATER AUTHORITY 
 
By______________________________ 
      
Its______________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 

Customer: 

CITY OF RENO 

 
By:________________________ 
      Hillary L. Schieve, Mayor 
 
 
 
Date: _____________________ 
                 (“Effective Date”) 
 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

 5 

 ATTEST: 

 
_______________________ 
Ashley D. Turney, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Office of  City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Andy Gebhardt, Director of Operations 

Jessica Atkinson, HR Manager  
DATE: April 21, 2021
SUBJECT: Discussion and action, and possible direction to staff for the ratification of 

the Collective Bargaining Agreement between TMWA and the International 
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 1245 for the period of July 
1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between 
TMWA and IBEW for a two (2) year period beginning July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023. Staff 
strongly believes that this proposed agreement is a fair and equitable agreement that will provide 
labor stability for TMWA during the next two years. 
Summary

• The current agreement between TMWA and IBEW will expire on June 30, 2021. 
• TMWA and IBEW began discussions on a successor agreement for a wage extension 

only in January of 2021. 
• On March 17, 2021, parties reached a full tentative agreement on a two-year (2) year

wage extension, with all other provisions of the CBA remaining. 
• The tentative CBA was presented to IBEW membership for a vote and was approved by 

membership on March 30, 2021.  
• TMWA Board approval is required for ratification of the CBA. 

Discussion
The tentative CBA before the Board provides for coverage from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2023. The only changes to this CBA are in the Wages portion.: 

Fiscal Items
Title 4 - Wages 

• The wage schedule has been modified to reflect a 2.5% general wage increase to base 
wage effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2021. 

• The wage schedule has been modified to reflect a 2.5% general wage increase to base 
wage effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2022.



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
Attachments 

• #1: Final Proposed Wage Table FY2021-2023 
• #2: Fiscal Impact Statement 
• #3: TMWA-IBEW Collective Bargaining Agreement 

 
 



PROPOSED
ATTACHMENT 1

EXHIBIT "A" (1)

Job 
Class 
No.

Job Title/Classification Wage 
Step

Wages 
as of 

7/05/21

Wages as 
of 7/19/21

Wages as 
of 7/03/22

Plus PERS 
Increase* Plus

2.50% 0.250% 2.50%
54040 Apprentice, Fitter Start $31.19 $31.97 $31.89 $32.69

6 Months $32.22 $33.03 $32.94 $33.76
1 Year $33.67 $34.51 $34.43 $35.29

18 Months $34.66 $35.53 $35.44 $36.33

53045 Apprentice, Mechanic, Hydro/Generation Start $33.48 $34.32 $34.23 $35.09
6 Months $34.30 $35.16 $35.07 $35.95

1 Year $35.97 $36.87 $36.78 $37.70

18 Months $36.81 $37.73 $37.64 $38.58

2 Years $38.49 $39.45 $39.35 $40.33

30 Months $40.16 $41.16 $41.06 $42.09

55010 Apprentice, Mechanic Maintenance/Control-WP Start $34.81 $35.68 $35.59 $36.48

6 Months $35.66 $36.55 $36.46 $37.37
1 Year $37.40 $38.34 $38.24 $39.20

18 Months $38.29 $39.25 $39.15 $40.13

2 Years $40.04 $41.04 $40.94 $41.96

30 Months $41.77 $42.81 $42.71 $43.78

53000 Apprentice, Operator, Hydro/Generation Start $34.72 $35.59 $35.50 $36.39
6 Months $35.99 $36.89 $36.80 $37.72

1 Year $37.66 $38.60 $38.50 $39.46

18 Months $38.50 $39.46 $39.36 $40.34

55070 Apprentice, Operator, Water Plant Start $36.38 $37.29 $37.20 $38.13
6 Months $37.70 $38.64 $38.55 $39.51

1 Year $39.03 $40.01 $39.91 $40.91

18 Months $40.36 $41.37 $41.27 $42.30

2 Years $41.70 $42.74 $42.64 $43.71

30 Months $43.02 $44.10 $43.99 $45.09

36 Months $44.35 $45.46 $45.35 $46.48

WAGE SCHEDULE (Amended 07/1/2021)

Wages as 
of 6/22/20

Change from 2 to 3 year program effective 11/1/2019. Wages as 

of 6/25/18 are actually wages as of 11/1/2019 and represent 

redistribution of % of journey wage due to extension of program.

*PERS rate increases shall be split between TMWA and the employee. The wage schedule will 

be automatically decreased by one-half of any PERS increase and automatically increased by 

one-half of any PERS rate decrease.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10

Page 1 of 4



PROPOSED
ATTACHMENT 1

EXHIBIT "A" (1)

Job 
Class 
No.

Job Title/Classification Wage 
Step

Wages 
as of 

7/05/21

Wages as 
of 7/19/21

Wages as 
of 7/03/22

Plus PERS 
Increase* Plus

2.50% 0.250% 2.50%

WAGE SCHEDULE (Amended 07/1/2021)

Wages as 
of 6/22/20

55120 Apprentice, SCADA Technician Start $38.03 $38.98 $38.88 $39.85
6 Months $39.00 $39.98 $39.88 $40.88

1 Year $39.95 $40.95 $40.85 $41.87

18 Months $40.90 $41.92 $41.82 $42.87

2 Years $41.83 $42.88 $42.77 $43.84

30 Months $42.81 $43.88 $43.77 $44.86

3 Years $43.76 $44.85 $44.74 $45.86

42 Months $44.71 $45.83 $45.71 $46.85

53040 Apprentice, Technician, Electrical, Plant Start $35.15 $36.03 $35.94 $36.84
6 Months $36.00 $36.90 $36.81 $37.73

1 Year $37.76 $38.70 $38.61 $39.58

18 Months $38.65 $39.62 $39.52 $40.51

2 Years $40.41 $41.42 $41.32 $42.35

30 Months $42.17 $43.22 $43.12 $44.20

55045 Assistant, WT Equipment Specialist Start $35.73 $36.62 $36.53 $37.44
6 Months $37.57 $38.51 $38.41 $39.37

1 Year $39.41 $40.40 $40.29 $41.30

18 Months $41.25 $42.28 $42.18 $43.23

2 Years $43.10 $44.18 $44.07 $45.17
51015 Facilities & Grounds Maintenance I Start $25.81 $26.46 $26.39 $27.05

6 Months $27.85 $28.55 $28.47 $29.18
51020 Facilities & Grounds Maintenance II Start $29.87 $30.62 $30.54 $31.30

6 Months $32.43 $33.24 $33.16 $33.99
51025 Facilities & Grounds Maintenance - Senior Start $37.03 $37.96 $37.86 $38.81
54010 Facilities Locator Start $39.87 $40.87 $40.76 $41.78
54045 Fitter Start $37.61 $38.55 $38.45 $39.41
54050 Fitter/Welder Start $39.02 $40.00 $39.90 $40.90

Step 2 $40.24 $41.25 $41.14 $42.17
Step 3 $41.47 $42.51 $42.40 $43.46
Step 4 $42.67 $43.74 $43.63 $44.72

52030 Foreman/Forewoman, Customer Services Rep, 
Working Start $36.63 $37.55 $37.45 $38.39

53080 Foreman/Forewoman, General Customer Services 
Rep, Working Start $40.28 $41.29 $41.18 $42.21

6042 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Heavy, Water Start $53.76 $55.10 $54.97 $56.34

52040 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Hydro/Generation, 
Working Start $53.76 $55.10 $54.97 $56.34

6043 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Light, Water Start $51.42 $52.71 $52.57 $53.88

Position created effective 9/6/2019

*PERS rate increases shall be split between TMWA and the employee. The wage schedule will 

be automatically decreased by one-half of any PERS increase and automatically increased by 

one-half of any PERS rate decrease.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10

Page 2 of 4



PROPOSED
ATTACHMENT 1

EXHIBIT "A" (1)

Job 
Class 
No.

Job Title/Classification Wage 
Step

Wages 
as of 

7/05/21

Wages as 
of 7/19/21

Wages as 
of 7/03/22

Plus PERS 
Increase* Plus

2.50% 0.250% 2.50%

WAGE SCHEDULE (Amended 07/1/2021)

Wages as 
of 6/22/20

6016 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Mechanic, 
Hydro/Generation Working Start $53.76 $55.10 $54.97 $56.34

55060 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Mechanic, 
Maintenance and Control, Working Start $55.91 $57.31 $57.16 $58.59

55110 Foreman/Forewoman, General, Shift, Water 
Treatment, Working Start $56.98 $58.40 $58.26 $59.72

53070 Foreman/Forewoman, Hydro/Generation, Working Start $48.85 $50.07 $49.95 $51.20

54080 Foreman/Forewoman, Light, Working, Water Start $46.71 $47.88 $47.76 $48.95

55050 Foreman/Forewoman, Mechanic 
Maintenance/Control-WP Start $48.85 $50.07 $49.95 $51.20

55100 Foreman/Forewoman, Shift, Water Treatment, 
Working Start $51.78 $53.07 $52.94 $54.26

54090 Foreman/Forwoman, Working, Heavy, Water Start $48.85 $50.07 $49.95 $51.20
51000 Helper Start $22.22 $22.78 $22.72 $23.29

6 Months $23.98 $24.58 $24.52 $25.13
1 Year $25.71 $26.35 $26.29 $26.95

18 Months $27.92 $28.62 $28.55 $29.26

54070 Inspector Start $47.06 $48.24 $48.12 $49.32
54075 Inspector, Construction Start $45.02 $46.15 $46.03 $47.18

1 Year $47.06 $48.24 $48.12 $49.32
53050 Mechanic, Hydro/Generation Start $44.41 $45.52 $45.41 $46.55

55020 Mechanic, Maintenance & Control, Certified, WP Start $41.84 $42.89 $42.78 $43.85

6 Months $43.14 $44.22 $44.11 $45.21

55030 Mechanic, Specialist, Maintenance/Control-WP Start $46.19 $47.34 $47.23 $48.41

54020 Operator, Equipment I Start $32.75 $33.57 $33.48 $34.32
6 Months $34.36 $35.22 $35.13 $36.01

54025 Operator, Equipment II Start $34.76 $35.63 $35.54 $36.43
1 Year $36.35 $37.26 $37.17 $38.10

54030 Operator, Equipment III Start $37.61 $38.55 $38.45 $39.41
54035 Operator, Equipment, Heavy Start $38.82 $39.79 $39.69 $40.68

1 Year $39.57 $40.56 $40.46 $41.47
53010 Operator, Hydro/Generation Start $41.84 $42.89 $42.78 $43.85

8470 Operator, Water Plant, Grade II, Treatment Only Start $40.51 $41.52 $41.42 $42.46

55080 Operator, Water Plant, Grade II, Treatment & 
Distribution Start $44.35 $45.46 $45.35 $46.48

55090 Operator, Water Plant, Grade III, Treatment & 
Distribution Start $47.08 $48.26 $48.14 $49.34

*PERS rate increases shall be split between TMWA and the employee. The wage schedule will 

be automatically decreased by one-half of any PERS increase and automatically increased by 

one-half of any PERS rate decrease.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10

Page 3 of 4



PROPOSED
ATTACHMENT 1

EXHIBIT "A" (1)

Job 
Class 
No.

Job Title/Classification Wage 
Step

Wages 
as of 

7/05/21

Wages as 
of 7/19/21

Wages as 
of 7/03/22

Plus PERS 
Increase* Plus

2.50% 0.250% 2.50%

WAGE SCHEDULE (Amended 07/1/2021)

Wages as 
of 6/22/20

52000 Representative, Accounts Payable Start $18.60 $19.07 $19.02 $19.50
6 Months $19.92 $20.42 $20.37 $20.88

1 Year $21.19 $21.72 $21.67 $22.21

18 Months $22.45 $23.01 $22.95 $23.52

2 Years $24.86 $25.48 $25.42 $26.06

30 Months $27.26 $27.94 $27.87 $28.57

3 Years $29.66 $30.40 $30.33 $31.09
52010 Representative, Customer Service Start $18.60 $19.07 $19.02 $19.50

6 Months $19.92 $20.42 $20.37 $20.88
1 Year $21.19 $21.72 $21.67 $22.21

18 Months $22.45 $23.01 $22.95 $23.52

2 Years $24.86 $25.48 $25.42 $26.06

30 Months $27.26 $27.94 $27.87 $28.57

3 Years $29.66 $30.40 $30.33 $31.09
52020 Representative, Customer Service, Senior Start $32.88 $33.70 $33.62 $34.46
54000 Service Utility Worker Start $30.72 $31.49 $31.41 $32.20

6 Months $31.62 $32.41 $32.33 $33.14
1 Year $33.50 $34.34 $34.25 $35.11

54060 Technician, Water Service Start $40.88 $41.90 $41.80 $42.85
55040 Specialist, Equipment, Water Treatment Start $44.41 $45.52 $45.41 $46.55

TBD Specialist, Heating Ventilation and Air 
Conditioning (HVAC) Start $39.02 $40.00 $39.90 $40.90

1 Year $40.24 $41.25 $41.14 $42.17
2 years $41.47 $42.51 $42.40 $43.46

55000 Specialist, Water Supply Start $31.44 $32.23 $32.15 $32.95
6 Months $33.11 $33.94 $33.85 $34.70

1 Year $34.70 $35.57 $35.48 $36.37
53020 Technician, Plant Electrical Start $47.56 $48.75 $48.63 $49.85
53030 Technician, Power Generation Start $47.56 $48.75 $48.63 $49.85
55130 Technician, SCADA Start $47.56 $48.75 $48.63 $49.85

6 Months $48.66 $49.88 $49.75 $50.99
1 Year $49.71 $50.95 $50.83 $52.10

Position created effective 2/16/2021

*PERS rate increases shall be split between TMWA and the employee. The wage schedule will 

be automatically decreased by one-half of any PERS increase and automatically increased by 

one-half of any PERS rate decrease.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10

Page 4 of 4



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Fiscal Impact Assessment Summary Required by NRS 288.153

Bargaining Unit:  International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local #1245

Term: 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2023

Baseline

Cost FY21 FY22 FY23

Cash Out 114,277        117,804        121,188                              

Health 1,491,699    1,551,748    1,614,512                           

Dental 154,662        160,976        167,575                              

Vision 13,666          14,218          14,790                                

Cell Phone Allowance 87,780          87,780          87,780                                

Certifications 5,860            5,860            5,860                                   

ER Match 717,019        739,150        760,385                              

General Wage Increase -                 283,990        577,172                              

General Wage Increase_PERs EE Contribution for 

Inc/Dec to Rates 50/50 -                 (29,108)         -                                       

Licensing 3,816            3,816            3,816                                   

Life 2,705            2,788            2,868                                   

LTD 1,710            1,733            1,753                                   

Meal Per Diem 496,199        511,349        526,289                              

Medicare 213,635        220,187        226,480                              

Overtime 2,451,904    2,527,582    2,600,197                           

PERS 3,422,700    3,587,476    3,690,658                           

Schedule Pay 11,266,722  11,359,590  11,400,917                         

Shift Differential 114,069        117,592        120,970                              

Travel 77,142          79,523          81,808                                

Upgrade Assignment 125,334        129,203        132,915                              

Workers Compensation 103,799        107,199        110,330                              

Totals 20,864,698  21,580,456  22,248,263                        

Intial Proposal-financial impact w/step increases -                (286,673)      (432,375)                             

Total less initial proposal/step increases w/no wage 

increase 20,864,698  21,293,783  21,815,888                        

Annual fiscal impact of salary increase 429,085        522,105                              

Cumulative Increase for FY22-23 951,190                              

2.5% General Wage Increase

NRS 288.153 Agreement must be approved at a public hearing; report of fiscal impact of agreement. Any new, 

extended or modified collective bargaining agreement or smilar agreement betwee a local government emloyer 

and an employee organization must be approved by the governing body of the local government employer at a 

public hearing. The Cief executive officer of the local government shall report to the local government the fiscal 

impact of the agreement.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 2

Page 1 of 1



 

 
 
 

 
 

Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) 
Reno, Nevada 

 

 
 

and 
 
 

Local #1245 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) 

AFL-CIO 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Term of Agreement: 
July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2021 

r*, 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER 
'/ AUTHORITY 

• Quality. Delivered. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 i

Table of Contents
A*5((0(N7 ............................................................................................................................................... 1
7itle 1 ± 5ecognition ..................................................................................................................................... 1
7itle 2 ± Continuity 2f Service....................................................................................................................... 3
7itle 3 ± 'efinitions ........................................................................................................................................ 3
7itle 4 ± Wages ............................................................................................................................................. 5
7itle 5 ± 7ransportation ................................................................................................................................. �
7itle � ± Working +ours ................................................................................................................................. 7
7itle 7 ± Premiums ...................................................................................................................................... 1�
7itle 8 ± Leaves 2f Absence ....................................................................................................................... 17
7itle 9 ± ,nclement Weather Practice .......................................................................................................... 18
7itle 1� ± 2vertime ...................................................................................................................................... 19
7itle 11 ± +olidays ....................................................................................................................................... 22
7itle 12 ± Vacations ..................................................................................................................................... 23
7itle 13 ± Safety .......................................................................................................................................... 25
7itle 14 ± 8nion Activity ............................................................................................................................... 2�
7itle 15 ± Sick Leave ................................................................................................................................... 27
7itle 1� ± Seniority ...................................................................................................................................... 28
7itle 17 � ([penses ..................................................................................................................................... 33
7itle 18 ± Apprenticeship ............................................................................................................................. 3�
7itle 19 ± 0iscellaneous .............................................................................................................................. 37
7itle 2� ± Supplemental %enefits )or ,ndustrial ,nMury ................................................................................ 41
7itle 21 ± *rievance Procedure .................................................................................................................. 41
7itle 22 ± (mployee %enefit Programs ....................................................................................................... 43
7itle 23 ± 'emotion And Layoff Procedure ................................................................................................. 49
7itle 24 ± 7erm 2f Agreement..................................................................................................................... 52 

ATTACHMENTS:
 
A77AC+0(N7 , ± (;+,%,7 ³A´ �1� ± Wage Schedules ............................................................................. 55
A77AC+0(N7 ,, ± (;+,%,7 ³%´ �1� ± Classifications and -ob 'escriptions ............................................. �1
A77AC+0(N7 ,, ± ([hibit ³%´�2� ± 'eleted -ob Classifications ................................................................ 75
A77AC+0(N7 ,,, ± Letters 2f 8nderstanding ........................................................................................... 7�
A77AC+0(N7 ,V ± (;+,%,7 ³C´ �1�      Lines 2f Progresson )or %idding � 'emotional  ......................... 77

Purposes %y 2ccupational *roups ............................................ 77
'efinition 2f 2ccupational *roups ............................................ 77

A77AC+0(N7 V ± 'eleted ........................................................................................................................ 79
A77AC+0(N7 ,V ± (;+,%,7 ³C´ �1� ± Lines 2f Progression 'iagram ..................................................... 8�
A77AC+0(N7 V, ± 2ut 2f 7own Work Assignment *uidelines ............................................................... 82
A77AC+0(N7 V,, ± -ob Site 5eporting .................................................................................................... 84
A77AC+0(N7 V,,, ± (mergency 5esponse Program ............................................................................... 8�
A77AC+0(N7 ;, ± 70WA Lines 2f 8pgrade ........................................................................................... 88

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



i

INDEX
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

TMWA & IBEW LOCAL UNION 1245

,7(0  PA*( 

Agreement �,ntroduction 	 Preamble� .......................................................................................... 1 
Arbitration Procedure ................................................................................................................. 43 
Apprenticeship ...................................................................................................................... 3��37 
%idding Notes ........................................................................................................................ 77�78 
%ulletin %oards, 8nion ................................................................................................................ 27 
Call 2uts ............................................................................................................................... 19�22 
Check�2ff, 8nion 'ues .......................................................................................................... 1, 27 
Clerical %idding Notes ................................................................................................................ 78 
Clerical � Change of Work +ours .......................................................................................... 15�1� 
Company Vehicle 8se ............................................................................................................... ��7 
Continuity of Service 7o 7he Public ............................................................................................. 3 
'ay (mployees ......................................................................................................................... 8�9 
'efinitions of (mployee Status ................................................................................................. 3�4 
'emotion Procedure ............................................................................................................. 49�52 
'iscrimination, 5ace, Color, Se[, (tc. ...................................................................................... 1�2 
'isTualification of Preferred %idder ............................................................................................ 42 
'ouble 7ime .......................................................................................................................... 2��21 
'rivers License 5eTuirements .................................................................................................. ��7 
(mergency 5esponse Program ............................................................................................ 87�88 
(mployee %enefit Programs ................................................................................................. 43�49 
(mployee Placement ............................................................................................................ 28�33 

� 'isabled ........................................................................................................ 32
� New 7echnologies ........................................................................................ 32 
� 5evision of 2perations ................................................................................. 32 
� 5eturn from 0ilitary Leave ........................................................................... 32 
� 7emperamentally 8nsuited ........................................................................... 32 

(Tuipment 2perator Progression *uidelines ........................................................................ 81�82 
([penses  .......................................................................................................................... 33�3� 

� 0eals ....................................................................................................... 33�34 
� %oard�Lodging ..................................................................................... 7, 35�3� 
� Subsistence ............................................................................................. 35�3�
� 0oving .......................................................................................................... 3� 

)amily Sick Leave Program ............................................................................................ 18, 27�28 
)oreman�Woman Selection ................................................................................................... 31�32 
*rievance Procedure ............................................................................................................ 41�43 
*roup Life ,nsurance .............................................................................................................. 5, 47 
+olidays  ........................................................................................................................... 22�23 
,ce )ighting  ......................................................................................................................... 8�9 
,nclement Weather ................................................................................................................. 8, 18 
,nterim Negotiations ..................................................................................................................... � 
-ob %idding  ...................................................................................................................... 28�32 
-ob Classifications�'escriptions �([hibit %� .......................................................................... �1�74 
Layoff, Lack of Work ............................................................................................................. 49�52 
Letters of 8nderstanding ............................................................................................................ 7� 
Leaves of Absence ................................................................................................................ 17�18 

� 0ilitary .......................................................................................................... 17 
� 8nion ....................................................................................................... 17�18 
� Personal ....................................................................................................... 18 
� )amily and 0edical ....................................................................................... 18 

Life ,nsurance Plan .................................................................................................................... 47 
Lines of Progression 'iagram .................................................................................................... 82 
Long�7erm 'isability Plan ..................................................................................................... 47�48 
Lunch Period  .......................................................................................................................... 7 
0anagement 5ights ................................................................................................................... 38 
0eal Allowances  ........................................................................................................................ 33 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10
Attachment 3



i

0eal Periods  ........................................................................................................................ 33 
0edical�'ental�Vision *roup ,nsurance ..................................................................................... 47 
0embership  ......................................................................................................................... 1�2 
0ileage Allowance ....................................................................................................................... � 
0ilitary Leave  ....................................................................................................... 17, 32�33, 49 
Non�%argaining 8nit Assignments ............................................................................................. 29 
2ccupational *roup 'efinitions ................................................................................................... 2 
2ff Schedule Assignment ........................................................................................................... 1� 
2ffice Service (mployees Classifications ............................................................................. 14�15 
2n Call � Standby ....................................................................................................................... 37 
2perations Center (mployees ................................................................................................... 1� 
2ut�2f�7own *uidelines ................................................................................................. 35, 85�8� 
2ut�2f�7own Premium .......................................................................................................... 35�3� 
2vertime Pay  ................................................................................................................... 19�22 
Part�7ime (mployees %enefits ............................................................................................... 4, 48 
Part�7ime (mployees 'efinitions ................................................................................................. 4 
Pass � 8nion %usiness 5epresentative ...................................................................................... 27 
Pay Periods  ............................................................................................................................ 5 
Prearranged Work ................................................................................................................. 18�2� 
Promotion �4ualifying Period� .................................................................................................... 29 
5ecognition  ....................................................................................................................... 1�2 
5elocation Assistance ................................................................................................................ 3� 
5eporting Place  ............................................................................................... 7�8, 18, 32, 35, 84 
5esidential 5eTuirements ............................................................................................................ 3 
5est Period  ............................................................................................... 9, 12, 15, 17, 21�22 
5etirement Plan  ........................................................................................................................ 43 
Safety  ............................................................................................................................... 25�2� 
Seniority  .......................................................................................................................... 28�33 
Service (mployees .................................................................................................................... 15 
Severance Plan  ................................................................................................................... 39�4� 
Shift (mployees  ................................................................................................................... 12�13 
Shift Premium  .............................................................................................................. 9, 1�, 4� 
Sick Leave  ........................................................................................................................ 27�28 
Strike and Lockout ....................................................................................................................... 3 
Supplemental %enefits for ,ndustrial ,nMury ............................................................................ 47�48 
7elephone Allowance ................................................................................................................. 39 
7emporary Assignments ............................................................................................................ 28 
7erm of Agreement .................................................................................................................... 52 
7ools  ................................................................................................................................ 38, 89 
7ravel 7ime  ......................................................................................................................... 7�8 
8nion Security  ........................................................................................................................ 27 
8pgrades  ............................................................................................................................. 11 
Vacations  ........................................................................................................................ 23�25 
Voluntary ,nvestment Plan .................................................................................................... 4��47 
Wages �([hibit A� ................................................................................................................. 54��� 
Wage Steps Withheld ................................................................................................................... 5 
Working +ours  ..................................................................................................................... 7�1� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10
Attachment 3



 1

A*5((0(N7 
 

7+,S A*5((0(N7, made and entered into this day of 21st day of )ebruary, 2�18, by and between 758C.(( 
0(A'2WS WA7(5 A87+25,7Y, a -oint Powers Authority entity created under a cooperative agreement 
among 5eno, Sparks, and Washoe County under N5S Chapter 277 its successors or assigns, hereinafter 
referred to as the Company, and L2CAL 8N,2N No. 1245 of the ,N7(5NA7,2NAL %527+(5+22' 2) 
(L(C75,CAL W25.(5S �affiliated with the American )ederation of Labor�Congress of ,ndustrial 
2rgani]ations�, hereinafter referred to as 8nion.   
 

W,7N(SS(7+ that� 
 

W+(5(AS, the parties to this agreement recogni]e the e[istence of N5S Chapter 288 and NAC 
Chapter 288 and their legal implications.  ,f any of the provisions of this agreement conflict with the N5S or the 
NAC, the provisions in the N5S or the NAC shall prevail� 
 

W+(5(AS, pursuant to N5S 288.1��, ,%(W Local 1245 has applied to 70WA for recognition by 
presenting a copy of its constitution, a copy of its bylaws, a roster of its officer and representatives, and a pledge 
in writing not to strike against 70WA under any circumstances and has provided 70WA with a verified 
membership list showing that it represents a maMority of the employees in this bargaining unit.  70WA officially 
recogni]ed ,%(W Local 1245 by approval of its %oard of 'irectors on 0ay 23, 2��1� 
 

W+(5(AS, the parties hereto desire to facilitate the peaceful adMustment of differences that may from 
time to time arise between them, to promote harmony and efficiency to the end that Company, 8nion and the 
general public may benefit therefrom, and to establish wages, hours and working conditions for certain hereinafter 
designated employees of Company� 
 

W+(5(AS, the parties hereby recogni]e that their industry is Tuickly transitioning into a competitive 
environment, and that they will be faced with competitive threats, e[panding customer reTuirements, and related 
implications that must be addressed during the transition.  %oth parties agree that the magnitude of the possible 
changes are currently unknown� however, the 8nion and Company both agree to meet these challenges Mointly 
as committed partners with the end result being the Company and 8nion that the customers choose.  �Added 
1�1�98� 
 
 N2W 7+(5()25(, the parties hereto do agree as follows� 
 

7,7L( 1 
5(C2*N,7,2N 

1.1 Company recogni]es 8nion as the e[clusive bargaining agent of the Company employees in the 
bargaining unit, which are those employed in the position classifications listed in Attachment ,,, ([hibit 
%.  Such employees shall not include confidential employees �as defined in N5S 288.17����.  +eads of 
departments, administrative employees �as defined in N5S 288.�25� and supervisory employees �as 
defined in N5S 288.�75� shall not be members of the same bargaining unit as the employees under 
their direction.  �N5S 288.17��  

 
1.2 Provisions of this Agreement shall be limited in their application to employees of Company as described 

in 1.1 of this 7itle.  When the words �employee� and �employees� are used in this Agreement they shall 
be construed to refer only to employees described in said 1.1 unless otherwise noted. 

 
1.3 Any employee, e[cept for those employees listed in 1.1 above has the right to Moin or not Moin the 8nion 

without fear of intimidation, coercion, or reprisal by any party.  Company shall deduct from their wages 
and pay over to the proper officers of 8nion, the membership dues of the members of the 8nion who 
individually and voluntarily authori]e such deductions in writing.  7he form of check�off authori]ation 
shall be approved by Company and 8nion.  �Amended ��11��1� 

 
1.4 ,t is the policy of the Company and the 8nion to provide a work environment free of unlawful 

discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and coercion.  'iscriminatory conduct in any form based on 
race, religion, se[, age, color, nationality or ethnicity, marital status, citi]enship, gender identity or 
e[pression, se[ual orientation, pregnancy, genetic information, medical condition, veteran status, or 
mental or physical disability, or any other basis made unlawful by applicable )ederal, State, or local law 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 2

is strictly prohibited. ,t is further agreed that wherever in their Agreement the masculine term is used, it 
shall be considered applicable to both se[es. 

 
1.5 ,f the Company hires employees whose duties are not covered under this Agreement but whose duties 

are significantly the same duties covered under Attachment ,,, ([hibit ³%´ �1� of the Agreement between 
Sierra Pacific Power Company and Local 8nion 1245 of the ,%(W which was effective -anuary 1, 1998, 
then the Company shall notify the 8nion of this circumstance and, upon reTuest by the 8nion� 

 
Allow representatives of the 8nion reasonable access to the business of the Company for the purpose 
of informing such employees of their rights to form and Moin organi]ations of their own choosing for the 
purpose of representation with their employer with respect to wages, hours and other terms and 
conditions of employment� and to e[plain the benefits of membership in and representation for such 
purposes by the 8nion.  ³5easonable access´ shall include the right to meet with employees on at least 
three �3� occasions at the business of the Company on non�work time �e.g., lunch break� during normal 
business hours.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
�a� Allow representatives of the 8nion reasonable access to the business of the Company for the 

purpose of informing such employees of their rights to form and Moin organi]ations of their own 
choosing for the purpose of representation with their employer with respect to wages, hours and 
other terms and conditions of employment� and to e[plain the benefits of membership in and 
representation for such purposes by the 8nion.  ³5easonable access´ shall include the right to 
meet with employees on at least three �3� occasions at the business of the Company on non�
work time �e.g., lunch break� during normal business hours.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
�b� 7he Company shall supply the 8nion with a list of such employees.  Such list shall contain the 

names, home addresses and home phone numbers of such employees.  7he 8nion shall at all 
times maintain the confidentiality of any such list. 

 
�c� 7he Company shall submit to a card check election to determine the desires of such employees 

to be represented for the purpose of collective bargaining by the 8nion.  ,f a maMority of such 
employees have signed cards authori]ing the 8nion to act as their collective bargaining 
representative, and such authori]ation card maMority is verified by the )ederal 0ediation and 
Conciliation Service, then the Company shall recogni]e the 8nion as the e[clusive bargaining 
representative of such employees. 

 
�d� ,f the 8nion is selected by a maMority of such employees as their collective bargaining 

representative, then the Company shall, immediately upon the reTuest by the 8nion, bargain in 
good faith with the 8nion for the purpose of concluding a collective bargaining agreement.  N5S 
Chapter 288.1�� and NAC Chapter 288 shall apply.  �Amended ��11��1� 

 
�e� At all times the Company shall remain neutral with regard to any Tuestion concerning the 

representation of such employees by the 8nion.  ³Neutral´ shall mean that the Company or 
Affiliate shall take no official position, nor shall it direct or condone any of its agents or 
representatives, including any attorneys or consultants to take any position against the e[ercise 
by its employees of their right to select the 8nion as their collective bargaining representative 
or to oppose the selection of the 8nion as the employees
 collective bargaining representative. 

 
1.� 7he Company and the 8nion recogni]e the Company¶s Administrative ,nstructions �A,s� and has 

negotiated and agreed to the terms of Correction Action and Progressive 'iscipline A�38� 'rug and 
Alcohol )ree Workplace Policy A��5� and '27 'rug and Alcohol 7esting Program A���.  ,n addition, 
the 8nion has agreed to the terms of all other Administrative ,nstructions, including updated revisions, 
which are not in direct conflict with the Collective %argaining Agreement �C%A�, with the understanding 
that the C%A will prevail when in direct conflict with the Administrative ,nstructions.  �Added ��12���� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
So long as the Company complies with the terms and conditions of this section, the 8nion will not 
defame, slander, libel or otherwise make derogatory statements concerning the Company¶s business 
practices.  Nothing in this section is intended to limit the right of the 8nion to discuss the benefits of 
Moining the 8nion or comparing the benefits that employees of Company currently receive with the 
benefits that the 8nion will seek to obtain for such employees.  �Added ��11��1� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 3

 
7,7L( 2 

C2N7,N8,7Y 2) S(5V,C( 

2.1 Company is engaged in rendering public utility services to the public and 8nion and Company recogni]e 
that there is an obligation on each party for the continuous rendition and availability of such services. 

 
2.2 Strikes and Lockouts 
 

�a� No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the Company during the term of this Contract. 
 
�b� 7he 8nion agrees that during the term of this Contract neither it nor its officers, employees or 

members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support, or suggest any strikes, work 
stoppages, boycotts, slowdowns, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, picketing or any 
other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference with the normal work 
of the Company. 

 
�c� ,n the event that 8nion members participate in such activities in violation of this provision, the 

8nion shall notify those members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and 
shall instruct the members to return to their normal duties.  �Amended ��11��1� 

 
2.3 Any employee in a %argaining 8nit classification shall perform loyal and efficient work and service, and 

shall use their influence and best efforts to protect the properties of Company and its service to the 
public, and shall cooperate in promoting and advancing the welfare of Company and in preserving the 
continuity of its service to the public at all times. 

 
2.4 Consistent with the Provisions of this 7itle, the parties recogni]e that 8nion, Company, and all 

employees are mutually obligated to promote efficiency in Company
s operations and harmony among 
Company
s employees. 

 
2.5 Consistent with the provisions of this 7itle which pertain to continuity of service to the public and duties 

essential to the operation of the utility, after 0ay 1, 1979 all employees shall be reTuired by Company 
to either report to work on a call out basis within 45 minutes or reside within a thirty�five �35� mile radius 
of the Company headTuarters to which they regularly report.  An employee, who is unable to report for 
work on a call�out basis within forty�five �45� minutes, will be e[empt from the provisions of Section 1�.3 
of the Agreement.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

7,7L( 3 
'(),N,7,2NS 

3.1 (mployees shall be known as ³7emporary,´ ³Provisional,´ Probationary,´ ³Part 7ime´ and �5egular� 
�Amended ��11��1� 

 
3.2 )or the purpose of the contract, a 5egular employee is defined as an employee who has completed si[ 

��� months of continuous service with the Company, e[cluding those hired as Provisional employees.  
�Amended ��11��1� 

 
3.3 A 7emporary employee is defined as an employee hired by the day for occasional or seasonal work, or 

for a limited time.  A 7emporary employee shall not be eligible for sick pay, holiday pay, vacation pay, 
insurance coverage, pension coverage or items of similar nature, e[cept as herein specifically provided.  
,f a 7emporary employee should in the course of continuous employment, be reclassified to Probationary 
or 5egular, they shall be credited with all continuous service in determining eligibility for such benefits 
that may accrue to them in their new status.  A 7emporary employee shall receive not less than the 
minimum rate for the Mob e[cept in the case of laborers.  7emporary +elpers, as defined in ([hibit A, 
may be hired for a period of not more than three �3� months at the special 7emporary labor rate.  
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
3.4 A Provisional employee is defined as an employee whose employment is intended to last more than si[ 

��� months but less than two �2� calendar years. 7he work performed is linked to specific proMects or is 
in anticipation of future events with a specific date at which the position will be eliminated.  7he use of 
the Provisional employee will not impede the opportunities of 5egular employees or by�pass the bidding 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 4

procedure as defined under 7itle 1� of this Agreement and are not subMect to 7itle 23 nor Sections 19.8 
or 19.9. Provisional employees will be reTuired to remain in the position for the duration of their term 
with no bidding rights. 7hey will accrue benefits eTuivalent to a 5egular employee for sick leave, 
vacation, group health insurance coverage �medical, dental, vision and life�, pension coverage and will 
be eligible to participate in the Company deferred compensation program�s�. )or purposes of overtime 
work, preference will be e[tended to ³5egular´ employees, and the Company is under no obligation to 
balance overtime for Provisional employees as specified under Section 1�.3 of 7itle 1�. A Provisional 
employee will not receive less than the minimum rate for the Mob and will progress through the appropriate 
classification wage progression in accordance with this Agreement. ,f employment of a Provisional 
employee e[tends beyond two �2� calendar years, the employee will be reclassified to ³5egular´ with a 
hire date and seniority date eTuivalent to the start date of their Provisional time.  �Added ��11��1� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
3.5 A probationary employee is defined as an employee hired for a position that has been regularly 

established and is of indeterminate duration.  A probationary employee shall receive sick pay, vacation 
pay, insurance coverage, pension coverage or items of a similar nature as they shall become eligible, 
but in all other respects shall be eTuivalent to a 5egular employee, subMect to the provision of 3.� of this 
7itle.  A probationary employee shall receive not less than the minimum rate for the Mob.  A ³probationary´ 
employee shall be eligible for all benefits under 7itle 22 of the C%A upon commencement of employment 
and at such time as the specific benefit plan allows participation.  �Amended ��12���� 

 
3.�  

�a� A Part�time employee is one scheduled to work less than five �5� days per week or less than 
eight �8� hours per day.  A limited number of part�time employees may be assigned to work 
covered by this Agreement, provided that such assignment shall not result in the loss of 5egular 
employment for 5egular employees, nor shall the employees so assigned affect the status of 
or impede the promotional opportunities of 5egular employees.  Part�time employees shall be 
paid the wage rates established in ([hibit A for the work performed.  ,n determining allowances 
for vacations, sick leave, and other benefits hereunder, such allowance shall be prorated in 
direct ratio that the number of hours worked per week bears to forty �4��.  �Amended 1�1�95� 

 
�b� 7he number of Part�time employees in all �Clerical� classifications will not e[ceed 15� of the 

aggregate number of employees in all �Clerical� classifications.  �Amended ��11��1� 
 

Schedules will be established in full hour increments and the employee
s classification, i.e., one�half 
�1�2� time or three�Tuarter �3�4� time will be based on the established schedule at the time they are hired 
and an annual �payroll year� review of hours actually worked �e[cluding non�productive time� thereafter.  
Status changes will apply prospectively only.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
3.7 7he retention of 7emporary, Provisional and Probationary employees is at the sole discretion of the 

Company, and termination of employment of such employees shall not be subMect to review through the 
grievance procedure.  �Amended ��11��1� 

 
3.8 �a� Continuous service with Company shall start with the date of employment and consist of the 

entire period of employment.  Continuous service will be broken when �a� an employee is 
discharged for cause� �b� an employee voluntarily terminates employment� �c� an employee has 
been laid off for more than twelve �12� consecutive months� �d� an employee has violated the 
provisions of 8.4� �e� an employee has taken a leave of absence of over thirty �3�� calendar 
days as defined in Section 8.1.  �Amended 5�1�88� 

 
�b� (mployees who transfer from Sierra Pacific Power Company �SPPC� to the 7ruckee 0eadows 

Water Authority �70WA� on -une 11, 2��1 shall be credited with continuous service with 
Company from their SPPC hire dates.  7hese hire dates shall not apply for purposes of P(5S 
as e[plained more fully in 7itle 22, but shall apply towards service for post�retirement medical.  
�Added ��11��1� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 5

7,7L( 4 
WA*(S 

4.1 7he wage to be paid employees of the Company covered by this Agreement shall be at the rates 
specified in the schedule hereto attached, numbered ([hibit A, and made a part hereof. 

 
4.2 All employees shall be placed on an hourly rate of pay and shall be paid on alternate )ridays for all time 

worked during the two �2� week period ending the previous Sunday midnight� e[clusive of overtime 
worked during the second week of the two week period. Any such deferred payment shall be included 
with the paycheck for the payroll period ne[t succeeding the period in which such overtime was worked.  
,n order to spread the payroll work the Company reserves the right to divide the payroll into two groups, 
paying each group on alternate )ridays.  ,f a payday falls on a holiday, the day ne[t proceeding such 
holiday shall be payday.  +owever, if a payday falls on the 'ay after 7hanksgiving the following 0onday 
shall be payday.  Payroll deductions for employees shall occur semi�monthly �first and second paycheck 
each month� including, but not limited to, (mployee�only�'ependent 0edical premium payments, Life 
,nsurance premiums, 8nion 'ues, and Credit 8nion deposits or payments.  �Amended ��11��1� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
4.3 �a� An employee who temporarily assumes the duties and responsibilities of a classification having 

a higher minimum rate shall be paid not less than the minimum rate of the higher classification 
for the time worked, meal and travel time, as applicable, computed to the ne[t Tuarter �ó� hour.  
�Amended 5�1�83�  

 
1. Any upgrade position lacking an incumbent employee and continuing for a cumulative 

period of 15�� straight�time hours in a 12�month period shall reTuire posting of the 
position.  7his provision does not apply to those classifications designated as ³upgrade 
only´.  ([ceptions to this provision can be made by mutual agreement between the 
Company and 8nion, i.e., training positions and special proMects.  �Added 1�1�98� 

 
�b� When an employee is temporarily reassigned to work in a classification higher than their 5egular 

classification, they shall be paid, upon such reassignment, the rate of pay they last received in 
such higher classification, plus any general wage increase or adMustments subseTuently made 
therein. 

 
�c� When an employee is temporarily assigned or reassigned to work in a classification lower than 

their 5egular classification, their rate of pay will not be reduced unless such assignment or 
reassignment is caused by the employee¶s failure to obtain or maintain a certification, license, 
or other Tualification reTuired under this Agreement for their Mob classification.  7he Company 
agrees to assign the employee to the highest possible Mob classification, below their current Mob 
classification, for which they are Tualified.  ,f the Company determines, in its sole discretion, 
that an employee took all necessary actions to maintain the certification, license, or other 
Tualification, then the employee¶s rate of pay shall not be reduced while they are in the lower 
Mob classification so long as they re�obtain the necessary certification, license, or other 
Tualification at the earliest possible date.  ,f the employee fails to re�obtain the necessary 
certification, license, or other Tualification at the earliest possible date or the Company 
determines that the employee is not diligently pursuing such certification, license, or other 
Tualification, then the employee¶s rate of pay must be reduced to the rate of pay of the 
classification to which they are assigned.   

 
�d� Where automatic progression between classification or within the pay rate range of a 

classification is provided by the Agreement, it is understood that the employee
s performance 
must be satisfactory to Tualify for advancement.  Where an employee
s performance is 
unsatisfactory and an automatic progression wage step has been withheld, the ,nvestigating 
Committee, provided for in Section 21.2 of the Agreement, may review the employee
s 
performance. 

 
�e� Where automatic progression in any classification is provided by the Agreement, an automatic 

progression wage step will be withheld after an employee is off work for si[ty ���� calendar days 
or more.  �Amended 5�1�83� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 6

4.4 Company and 8nion may agree to additional classifications inclusive of those referred to in 7itle 1, 
Section 1.5 and�or revisions of e[isting classifications and wages and lines of progression with respect 
thereto, during the term of this Agreement.  Pending negotiations with respect to such classifications, 
wage rates and lines of progression, the Company may establish temporary classifications and wage 
rates.  �Amended ��11��1� 

 
7he Company will promptly notify the 8nion of any such temporary classifications and�or revisions and 
wage rates, which are established. When the Company and 8nion reach agreement on the wage rate 
for the new classification and�or revised classification, it shall be retroactive to the date when the 
classification was first temporarily established or revised. 

7,7L( 5 
75ANSP257A7,2N 

 
5.1 Company or public transportation shall be furnished all employees reTuiring, at the discretion of the 

Company, transportation in the performance of their duties. ,n the event an employee is asked to use 
their own automobile for Company business, they shall be reimbursed at the current rate sanctioned by 
the ,nternal 5evenue Code, Section 274, 7reasury 5egulations and Administrative ,nterpretations.  
�Amended 1�1�95� 

 
5.2 �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
5.3 �a� Any employee who may be reTuired to operate Company vehicles and�or eTuipment while 

performing duties pertinent to their Mob classification must possess and maintain the appropriate 
licenses or permits reTuired by applicable laws and�or Company policy.  �Amended 5�1�82� 

 
�b� An employee who is unable to maintain a Mob�related driver¶s license, may be provided 

alternative work by their ,mmediate Supervisor while the employee re�obtains a valid license.  
�Amended 5�1�82� 

 
,f alternative work is not assigned or is unavailable, the employee will be reTuired to use earned 
vacation or will be temporarily placed in a +elper or Customer Service 5epresentative position, 
at the one�year wage step, for up to three �3� months while obtaining re�licensure. 

 
Should the employee e[haust their vacation and still has not obtained the Mob�related license, 
the employee may utili]e a personal leave of absence, for up to three �3� months, while they 
obtain the reTuired license. After such time the employee is subMect to termination. 

 
'uring any period the employee must re�obtain their reTuired license within ninety �9�� calendar 
days.  �Added 7�1��9� 

 
�c�  �'eleted �7��1�2�17� 
 
�d� A successful bidder on any Mob reTuiring vehicle and�or eTuipment operation, will be given a 

thirty �3�� day period beyond the date of the Mob award to obtain the proper licenses and�or 
permits. ,f employee is unable to obtain the license within the 3� days due to circumstances 
beyond the employee¶s control, the employee shall have until the first available appointment 
date after the �3�� day period to obtain the license has e[pired.  Additional training must be 
arranged through 'epartment 0anagement.  %idder must be trained and�or evaluated prior to 
receiving approval to operate Company vehicles and�or eTuipment.  �Amended 1�1�98� 
�Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�e� Any employee who is considered for an upgrade to a position reTuiring the operation of 

Company vehicles or eTuipment must be Tualified by training or e[perience prior to upgrade.  
(mployee will be subMect to the provisions of Section �a� and �b� above.  �Added 5�1�83� 

 
�f� 7he provisions of Sections �a�, �b� and �c� shall also apply to any employee operating a personal 

vehicle while being compensated by the Company for its use.  �Added 5�1�82� 
 
5.4 (mployees shall be authori]ed to utili]e Company vehicles only for the purpose of performing their 

assigned duties.  8se of such vehicles for personal reasons is prohibited. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 7

7,7L( � 
W25.,N* +285S 

�.1 All 5egular employees shall receive full�time employment for each work week employed provided they 
physically report for duty at their regularly assigned reporting place in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and are in condition to perform their work.  7his is not interpreted to mean 
that the Company does not have the right to lay off or release employees on account of lack of work or 
any other valid reason at the end of the work week. 

�.2 �a� (ach employee shall have a regular reporting place, a regularly established schedule of work 
hours and work days.  Such schedule shall indicate the starting and Tuitting times, the regularly 
scheduled meal period and the scheduled non�work days.  7he arrangement of such schedule 
shall be in accordance with the provisions hereafter contained for the classification in which the 
employee is regularly employed.  Schedules with work periods providing for starting times after 
12��� noon or before ���� a.m. shall provide eight �8� consecutive hours of work. 

 
�b� (mployees who are assigned to work away from their regular assigned reporting place will be 

reTuired to report to work at the established starting time and at the temporary�reporting place 
designated by Company.  When board and lodging is provided by Company, the reporting place 
will be the lodging designated by Company.  ,t is understood that the temporary�reporting place 
designated by the Company may change from time to time due to changes in Company
s 
operational reTuirements.  When necessary, Company shall provide water and sanitation 
facilities for the employee
s use at the temporary reporting place.  When the change of 
temporary reporting place occurs, the 8nion will be notified as far in advance as practicable.  
�Amended 1�1�95� 

 
�.3 7he workweek shall be defined to be that period of 1�8 hours comprising seven �7� consecutive calendar 

days.  )or all employees but those in classifications listed in Section �.13 the work week shall be that 
period beginning one �1� minute after 11�59 p.m. Saturday and ending 1�8 hours later. 

 
�.4 A change in the regularly scheduled lunch period for any reason shall be deemed to reTuire the payment 

of overtime for work performed during the regular lunch period and the employees may eat their lunch 
on Company time.  Lunch periods may be advanced or delayed one�half �1�2� hour without the payment 
of overtime. 

 
�.5 (mployees, including those on out�of�town assignment, who are reTuired to report for work on their 

non�work days, or on holidays which they are entitled to have off, or outside their regular work hours on 
work days, shall be paid overtime compensation for the actual work time, commencing at the time they 
physically report at their regularly assigned reporting place, and travel time in the amount of fifteen �15� 
minutes each way in connection therewith.  An employee who is called out for such work shall be paid 
overtime compensation for travel time in the amount of thirty �3�� minutes from their home and fifteen 
�15� minutes to return home.  ,f an employee who is called out for such work outside of their regular work 
hours on a work day continues to work into or beyond their regular work hours, they shall be paid 
overtime compensation for actual travel time in the amount of thirty �3�� minutes only from their home.  
�Amended 1�1�95� 

 
An employee who is reTuired to call out the remainder of a crew to respond to a call out and are  
themselves responding to the call will be deemed on the clock immediately.  7his time is to include the 
time it takes to prepare for the work assignment and actual commute time.  7he travel time of 3� minutes 
would not apply, as the employee is compensated for all time spent getting ready and commuting.  
�Added ��12���� 

  
 7he portion of this 7itle relating to travel time shall not apply to the following situation� 
 

�a� Prearranged e[tended work schedules on regular workdays.  �Amended 5�1�81� 
 
�.� �a� ,f an employee is instructed by their Supervisor to report for prearranged overtime on a non�work 

day, or on a holiday which they are entitled to take off with pay, and the employee reports for 
work as instructed, the employee shall be paid overtime compensation for a minimum of four 
�4� hours provided, however, this will not apply to cases in which the employee is prevented 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 8

from completing the assignment or earning the minimum through no fault of the Company, for 
reasons such as inclement weather, accidents, illness, or other reasons beyond the control of 
the Company.  ,n such cases the employee shall be paid overtime compensation for the actual 
time worked, but in no event less than the two �2� hour minimum.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
�b� ,n the event an employee is instructed to report for prearranged overtime as provided in �.��a� 

above, and such work is canceled, the employee shall be paid overtime compensation for a 
minimum of four �4� hours, if they have not had notice of such cancellation at least eight �8� 
hours prior to the designated reporting time.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
�c� ,f an employee is instructed by their Supervisor to report for prearranged overtime prior to their 

regular starting time on a scheduled work day, the employee reports for work as instructed and 
for any reason the work is canceled, the employee shall be paid overtime compensation for 
actual time worked, but in no event less than a two �2� hour minimum time.  �Added 5�1�91� 

 
�.7 )or the purposes of application of the provisions of this 7itle, all employees not specifically denoted by 

Sections �.13, �.14 and �.15 shall be considered to be day employees.  Sections �.13, �.14 and �.15 
shall determine the designation of all others. 

 
�.8 �a� 'ay employees
 hours of work shall be regularly scheduled as either 7��� a.m. to 11��� a.m. 

and 11�3� a.m. to 3�3� p.m. or 7�3� a.m. to 11�3� a.m. and 12��� noon to 4��� p.m. or 8��� a.m. 
to 12��� noon and 12�3� to 4�3� p.m. or 8��� a.m. to 12��� noon and 1��� p.m. to 5��� p.m. and 
the regular work days shall be 0onday through )riday. 

 
Working hours will be the same for all employees within an occupational group at their specific 
reporting place.  ,f Company desires to split starting times for employees within the same 
occupational group it shall be established by mutual agreement between Company and 8nion. 

 
�b� When by reason of an emergency in connection with ice fighting, it is necessary to work 

employees on a shift schedule at hours outside of their regular work hours� Company shall be 
e[empt from the penalties provided under Section 1�.1�a��5� after paying two �2� days of such 
penalty.  8pon the third day, the employees will assume the hours of the new schedule at the 
straight�time rate of pay for the duration of such assignment.  When employees are assigned 
to such shift schedules, the newly scheduled hours shall become their �regular work hours� in 
applying the other provisions of this 7itle. 

 
,n connection with ice fighting work assignments as provided for above, the following rules will 
be applicable to �'ay (mployees� with a normal workweek of 0onday through )riday, and 
employees classified as 2perator, +ydro�*eneration. 

 
1. When an emergency arises in connection with ice fighting, the Company may 

reschedule the hours of certain �'ay (mployees� and employees classified as 
2perator, +ydro�*eneration to the hours of a shift schedule. 

 
2. 7he starting time for a shift schedule is �7��, 15��, or 23��. 
 
3. 7he workday of a shift schedule consists of eight �8� consecutive hours. 
 
4. When �'ay (mployees� and employees classified as 2perator, +ydro�*eneration are 

assigned ice fighting on a shift schedule, they assume the hours of a shift schedule 
beginning with the first day of the assignment, but the work days and non�work days 
remain the same as their normal work week. 

 
5. 7he shift premium is applicable to the hours in these schedules as provided for in 7itle 

7, beginning with the first day of the assignment. 
 
�. No notice is necessary to start a shift schedule to fight ice.  +owever, as much notice 

as possible should be given both going on and coming off the shift schedule to allow 
the employees sufficient time to readMust their sleep and rest routine. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 9

7. 0eals at Company e[pense are limited to those where the Supervisor has not allowed 
sufficient time for the employees to eat breakfast and prepare lunch before reporting 
to work. 

 
8. 2n days the provisions of Section 1�.1�a��1�, �2�, �3�, and �4� are applicable, such day 

or days shall not be counted as one �1� of the days where penalty is paid under Section 
�.8�b�. 

 
9. 7he two �2� day penalty provided in Section �.8�b� is not considered overtime in 

applying the rest period provisions. 
 

�c�  7he regular hours of work established herein may be changed by Company at the reTuest or 
direction of public authorities, provided, however, that before any such change is made 
Company shall discuss it with 8nion.  Company shall not be reTuired to pay overtime 
compensation by reason of any change made as provided in this Section. 

 
�.9 �a� Company may schedule employees to work for periods of eight �8� hours at other than their 

regular hours in any of the following situations� 
 

1. 7he maintenance or repair of any generating plant or substations, and emergency 
repairs to hydro plant canal systems.  A generating plant or substation shall be defined 
as any facility that has high voltage apparatus, including 2C%s and disconnects.  
�Amended 5�1�87� 

 
2. Work involving cleaning debris from the water intake of a hydro or power plant. 
 
3. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
4. 7o provide relief in a regularly scheduled Mob which has been temporarily vacated by 

absence of an incumbent. 
 
5. 7o provide public safety and the protection of Company facilities underground which 

may be e[posed to possible damage by e[cavating operations performed by other than 
Company employees. 

 
�. Work involving emergency repairs to or the cleaning of sand and debris from all raw 

water delivery systems.  �Amended 1�1�98� 
 
7. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
8. At the reTuest of the customer, special proMect construction or uniTue maintenance 

reTuirements of facilities where customer impacts must be minimi]ed.  �Added 1�1�98� 
 

�b� ,n the event such assignment is for four �4� regular work days or less, the employees shall be 
paid at the rate of one and one�half �1 1�2� times the applicable straight�time rate for all such 
work e[cept that if the schedule continues beyond four �4� regular work days, the employee 
shall be paid one and one�half �1 1�2� times the applicable straight�time rate only for the first 
two �2� days of any such situation, and shall upon the third day, be paid at the straight�time rate 
for the duration of the assignment.  Where the provisions of 7itle 1�.1�a�, �1�, �2�, �3�, and �4� or 
the paragraph �c� ne[t following are applicable, such day shall not be counted as one �1� of the 
premium days under this Section �.9. 

 
�c� ,n the event the employee is reTuired to begin work in a temporary �off schedule� assignment 

with less than forty�eight �48� hours notice they shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate for 
all work performed on the �off schedule� assignment between the time of notice and the 
e[piration of the forty�eight �48� hour period.  Wherever possible, assignment to an �off 
schedule� status and return to the regular schedule shall be made in such a manner as to 
provide the same number of hours off between work periods as is provided by the employee
s 
regular schedule.  Where this is not possible and a change is made with less than the reTuired 
time interval, the difference between the amount of time off and the reTuired time interval shall 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 10

reTuire the payment of an additional one�half �1�2� times the straight�time or overtime rate which 
may be applicable. 

 
�d� 8pon completion of the temporary off schedule assignment, which may include scheduled days 

off, the employee shall be returned to their regular status and schedule.  ,n all cases an 
assignment to an �off schedule� status shall not operate to deprive an employee of a forty �4�� 
hour workweek. 

 
�e� ([cept for operating employees who are assigned to supplement maintenance employees as 

provided in �a� above, and for employees who are assigned to relief as provided in �a� above, 
the employees
 regular schedules of days of work shall not be changed. 

 
�f� ,f any such situation e[tends beyond four �4� weeks, Company and 8nion may agree to rotate 

the shift assignments without additional payment of overtime for such change. 
 
�g� 7he application of this Section shall in no way limit the right of the Company to establish 

schedules which would provide for work hours in e[cess of eight �8� on a work day, or more 
than five �5� days in a work week. 

 
�.1� (mployees shall have work schedules as follows� 
 

�a� 7hey may be regularly scheduled to work any eight �8� consecutive hours, e[clusive of meal 
period, between ���� a.m. and 7��� p.m., 0onday through )riday. 

 
�b� 2perations Center employees, other than those working hours as provided in Section �.1��a� 

above, may be assigned to work any eight �8� consecutive hours between 1��� p.m. and 12 
midnight. 

 
�c� *roup schedules when reTuired shall be developed to provide rotation of assignments and 

eTuali]ation of conditions.  Schedules may be established or revised during the term of the 
Agreement, provided however that such arrangements shall be first mutually agreed upon by 
Company and 8nion. 

 
�d� Shift schedules shall be posted for affected employees by November 3� for the following year.  

�Added 7�1��9��Amended 7�1�12� 
 

�e� 2perations 0aintenance establishment of voluntary 1��hour day, four�day work week schedule 
for the following position classifications� Specialist, (Tuipment, Water 7reatment� 0echanic, 
0aintenance 	 Control, Certified WP� Specialist, Water Supply� 7echnician, SCA'A� and 
0echanic, Specialist, 0aintenance 	 Control, WP. 

 
1. (stablishment of Schedule 

�a� 7he 1��hour, 4�day work week will be on a voluntary basis. 
 
�b� 7he 1��hour shift will be considered the employee¶s regular work hours as it 

applies to all sections of this Agreement, unless otherwise stated herein. 
 
�c� 7here will be no shift change penalty in connection with any change occurring 

relating to this schedule. 
 
�d� )or the above�listed positions, the workweek shall be defined to be that period 

of 1�8 hours comprising seven �7� consecutive calendar days. 7he workweek 
shall be that period of time beginning one �1� minute after 11�59 p.m. Saturday 
and ending 1�8 hours later. �See title �.3�. 

 
�e� 7he start time for all day employees under the 1��hour, 4�day work week 

schedule shall be ���� a.m. instead of as set forth in Section ��.8�a��. 
 

2. 0eals 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 11

�a� Lunch will be from five �5� hours after the time corresponding to an employee¶s 
regular starting time on regular workdays to si[ ��� hours after this starting 
time. Provisions of �.4 will apply. 

 
�b� 2vertime 0eals�  ,f Company reTuires an employee to perform work for one�

half �1�2� hour or more beyond regular work hours, it shall provide a meal 
appro[imately one�half �1�2� hour after regular Tuitting time. ([cept as noted 
in 2�a� above, normal meal practices will apply in all other situations. 

 
3. 8pgrades.  (mployees will be upgraded according to current department procedures 

and in accordance with 7itle 1�.7 �a�.  A person accepting an upgrade may be reTuired 
to change shifts if the crew they are working is on a different shift and no shift change 
penalty will apply. 

4. +olidays.  Scheduled holiday hours �88�year� and floating hours �8�year� will be 
credited to each employee at the beginning of the first payroll period of each year. 

�a� +oliday hours may be used to take time off from work in conMunction with 
vacation or as independent days off. 

�b� +oliday hours may be e[changed for regular pay at any time during the course 
of the payroll calendar year. (mployees will receive payment at straight time 
rates for holiday hours that remain unused at the end of the payroll year. 

 
�c� Scheduled holiday hours may not be taken in increments of less than one �1� 

hour. 
 
�d� 7he 24�hour period between ���� of the recogni]ed holiday and ���� of the 

following day will be considered the holiday. 
 
�e� When an employee observes a holiday as a day off, it may be used as 1� 

scheduled holiday hours, 1� hours of vacation or a combination of scheduled 
holiday hours and vacation, or taken off on their own time without 
compensation. 

 
�f� Nothing herein limits the right of the Company to reTuire an employee to 

observe any holiday as a day off. 
 
�g� Nothing herein shall be construed to increase or decrease the total number of 

total holiday pay earned annually under 7itle 11. 
 
�h� Should conflicts arise with 7itle 11 +oliday, they will first be addressed by 

supervision of the affected employees. 
 

5.  )loating +oliday.  Compensation for floating holiday can be taken in 8�hour increments, 
but cannot e[ceed 8 hours total annually as in 7itle 11. 

�.  )uneral Leave.  )ull day leave, as described in the %ereavement Leave Policy in the 
Administrative ,nstructions, can be taken in 1��hour increments. )or immediate family 
members, the three consecutive days off will be paid in 1��hour increments. 

7.  5est Periods.  )or employees under the 1��hour, 4�day work week, Section 1�.��a��1� 
shall be modified to replace eight �8� hours with si[ ��� hours and Section 1�.��a��2� 
shall be modified to replace nine and one�half �9 ò� hours with eight �8� hours. 

8.  2vertime. )or the purpose of the ten �1�� hour work schedule, overtime will be paid for 
all time worked in e[cess of ten �1�� hours per day and forty �4�� per week. As defined 
in a workweek. 

7he Company and 8nion reserve the right to return to the five �5� day, eight�hour shift schedule by giving 
3� days written notice. �Added �8�3��2�12�. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 12

�.11 �a� 7his section means that e[cept as noted below, there is an absolute prohibition against reTuiring 
an employee to work more than three �3� consecutive weeks without having two �2� consecutive 
days off.  7here is no penalty provided for a violation of the provisions of this section since the 
ban is absolute. 

,f an employee has performed work on twenty�one �21� straight days, the employee must be 
granted the ne[t two �2� days off.  ,f the ne[t two �2� days off occur on regular workdays for that 
employee, such employee shall, nonetheless, be granted the days off at the straight�time rate 
of pay.  �Added 1�1�95� 

 
�b� (mployees may work beyond the twenty�one �21� day limit only under the following condition� 

 
1. Any work situation involving an immediate ha]ard to life or property.  7his does not 

include situations limited to a loss of money or revenue only.  �Added 1�1�95� 
 
�.12 7he work week and work hours of part�time employees shall be governed by the following rules� 
 

�a� Company shall notify 8nion of all part�time employees hired, the work being performed and the 
schedule of work hours and workdays, if any, for such employees. 

 
�b� Schedules of work hours and workdays for part�time employees who would fall within the regular 

work hours and workdays established in Section �.8�a� may be established at the convenience 
of the Company. 

 
�c� Schedules of work hours or workdays for part�time employees who would fall wholly or in part 

outside the regular work hours and workdays established in Section �.8�a� shall be established 
by mutual agreement between Company and 8nion. 

 
�.13 �Shift� employees are as listed below�   
 

)oreman�woman, +ydro�*eneration, Working 
)oreman�woman, Shift, Working, Water 7reatment 
2perator, +ydro�*eneration 
2perator, +ydro�*eneration, Apprentice 
2perator, Apprentice, Water Plant 
2perator, Water Plant 
Specialist, (Tuipment, Water 7reatment 
�Amended ��11��1��Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�a� 7he workweek for shift employees shall be regularly scheduled but may be any seven �7� 

consecutive days.  7he normal work week of shift employees may start on any day of the week 
and at any hour of the day, and shall consist of one �1� eight �8� hour shift for five �5� days. 7he 
five �5� work days and two �2� non�work days may be arranged in one, two, three or four �4� 
week cycles.  7he shift employee
s workday shall consist of eight �8� consecutive hours.  7he 
starting time of such shifts are presently established at 8��� a.m., 4��� p.m., and 12��� midnight.  
'uring the term of the Agreement, present shifts may be changed or additional shifts added, 
provided however, that such arrangements shall be first mutually agreed upon by Company and 
8nion.  7he term �shift� shall be defined as a schedule of employee
s work days, non�work days, 
working hours, and the arrangement of work week cycles. 

 
�b� �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
�c� �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
�d�  �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
�e� Water 7reatment�Water Plant employee¶s 12�hour shifts.  �Added ��12���� 

 
1. (stablishment of shift 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 13

�a� 7he 12 hour shift schedules will be based on a two week pay period.  ,t will 
consist of si[ 12 hour days and one eight hour day, with seven days off.  7he 
day shift will be defined as those hours between �4�� to 1���.  7he swing 
shift will work from 1��� to �4��.  7he work weeks will be mutually agreed 
upon by the Company and 8nion. 

 
�b� 7he 12 hour shift schedule as defined above will be considered the employees 

³regular´ work hours as it applies in all sections of the Collective %argaining 
Agreement, unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
�c� 7o establish, continue, or change this schedule, will reTuire a minimum of 75� 

agreement of the crew members. 
 
�d� 7here will be no shift change penalty in connection with any change occurring 

relating to this schedule. 
 
�e� 7his agreement may be cancelled by either party with 9� days written notice.  

7he company and Local 1245 agree to meet and discuss proposed 
cancellation, but agree to return to their previous eight hour shift schedules as 
identified in Section �.13 �a� at the conclusion of the 9� day notification. 

 
2. 2vertime 
 

�a� 2vertime will be paid for all actual time worked in e[cess of 4� hours per 
defined work week pursuant to 1.�a� above, and all time worked on days  
normally observed as days off. 

 
�b� 2vertime rates of two times the rate of pay will be paid for all time worked in 

e[cess of 1� consecutive hours on a regularly scheduled day off. 
 
�c� A shift change penalty will not apply if the change is voluntary from the 

employee. 
 

3. +olidays 
 

�a� All 9� hours of scheduled holiday hours, which include floaters, will be credited 
to each employee at the beginning of the first payroll period of each year. 

 
�b� 'uring their first calendar year of employment an employee will be entitled to 

holiday hours in accordance with the following conditions. 
 
1. ,f an employee is hired between the first day of the first pay period of 

the year and -uly 1st of the same year, then that employee shall 
receive 8 )loating +oliday hours and 8 hours of each recogni]ed 
holiday remaining for the payroll calendar year. 

 
2. ,f an employee is hired after -une 3�th and before the end of the 

payroll calendar year then that employee shall receive 8 )loating 
+oliday hours and 8 hours for each recogni]ed holiday remaining for 
the payroll calendar year. 

 
3. +oliday hours may be used to take time off from work in conMunction 

with vacation or as independent days off. 
 
4. +oliday hours may be e[changed for regular pay at any time during 

the course of the payroll calendar year.  (mployees will receive 
payment at straight time rates for holiday hours that remain unused 
at the end of the payroll year. 

 
5. Scheduled holiday hours may not be taken in increments of less than 

1 hour. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 14

�. 8 of the 9� scheduled holiday hours will be considered )loating 
+oliday hours.  7hese hours may be taken at any time shift coverage 
is available. 

 
7. When overtime relief is reTuired, )loating +oliday hours must be 

taken in increments of four �4� hours or more. 
 
8. 7he 24�hour period between �4�� of the 2bserved +oliday and �4�� 

of the following day will be considered the holiday.  7he 2bserved 
+olidays are listed below in �1��. 

 
9. 2perators will be paid time and one�half �1 ò� when scheduled to 

work the 24�hour period between �4�� of the 2bserved +oliday and 
�4�� of the following day. 

 
1�. 2bserved +olidays will include� 
 

Holiday Date Observed

New Years 'ay -anuary 1 

0artin Luther .ing 'ay  

Presidents¶ 'ay 7hird 0onday of )ebruary 

0emorial 'ay Last 0onday of 0ay 

,ndependence 'ay -uly 4 

Labor 'ay )irst 0onday of September 

Veteran¶s 'ay  

Nevada 'ay Last )riday of 2ctober 

7hanksgiving 'ay )ourth 7hursday of November

7hanksgiving 'ay 2 )ourth )riday of November 

Christmas 'ay 'ecember 25 

4. 7ravel and 0eals 
 

�a� ,f the company reTuires an employee to perform work for more than two hours 
beyond the regular work hours, it shall provide a meal appro[imately two hours 
after regular Tuitting time and with meals thereafter of appro[imately 4 hours 
but not more than 5, as long as the employee continues to work, insofar as it 
is possible for the company to do so. 

 
�b� 2n overtime associated with 12�hour shift coverage, employees will be eligible 

for one meal. �Amended 7�1�2�12� 
 

�c�  2vertime not associated with 12�hour shift coverage, shall be subMect to 7itle 
17.  �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
5. 5est Period 

 
,f an employee works more than 4 hours past the ending of the shift for a total of 1� 
hours, the employee is entitled to a rest period of 9 hours.  ,f an employee is scheduled 
for work more than 4 hours prior to the regular start time and e[tends into the regular 
shift, the employee is entitled to a rest period. 

 
�. Shift Change 7ime 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 15

7wo Water 7reatment Plant 2perators on the crew at each producing plant location 
�*lendale and Chalk %luff� and one Water 7reatment Plant 2perator on the crew at 
each non�producing plant location �*lendale or Chalk %luff� will report fifteen �15� 
minutes before the beginning of their crew¶s scheduled shift to receive shift change 
report from the departing crew. 7his fifteen �15� minute time frame is referred to as 
³Shift Change 7ime.´  7he 8nion and the 2perators are responsible for designating the 
2perators �³'esignated 2perators´� who will report for the Shift Change 7ime for the 
purpose of eTuali]ing overtime among the 2perators, and the 8nion is responsible for 
handling any complaints by the 2perators relating to the allocation of responsibility for 
Shift Change 7ime.  �Added 7�1��9�  
 

�.14 �Service� employees are as listed below�   
 

Apprentice, 7echnician, (lectrical, Plant 
+elper  
Water Service 7echnician 
Specialist, Water Supply 
7echnician, (lectrical, Plant 
�Amended ��11��1� 

  
�a� 7he normal workweek for each Service (mployee shall be regularly scheduled and may be any 

five �5� consecutive days, starting on any day of the week.  7he arrangement of work hours, 
work days, non�work days and work week cycles, where applicable, shall be considered as the 
employee
s work schedule and shall be developed to provide rotation of assignments and 
eTuali]ation of conditions. 

 
�b� Working hours for Service (mployees assigned to work schedules providing for one�shift 

operations shall be either 7��� a.m. to 11��� a.m. and 11�3� a.m. to 3�3� p.m., or 7�3� a.m. to 
11�3� a.m. and 12��� noon to 4��� p.m. or 8��� a.m. to 12��� noon and 12�3� p.m. to 4�3� p.m. 
or 8��� a.m. to 12��� noon and 1��� p.m. to 5��� p.m. 

 
�c� Schedules for two�shift operations shall be as follows� )irst shift shall consist of any eight �8� 

consecutive hours between 7��� a.m. and 5��� p.m., e[clusive of a thirty �3�� minute meal period.  
Second shift shall consist of any eight �8� consecutive hours between 1��� p.m. and 12 midnight.  
(mployees assigned to the No. 2 shift shall be allowed necessary time to eat a meal on the Mob 
on Company time. 

 
 7he Company agrees to schedule Service (mployees on the No. 1 shift to take lunch four �4� 

hours after their regular starting time. 
 
�d� *roup schedules when reTuired shall be developed to provide rotation to assignments and 

eTuali]ation of conditions.  Schedules may be established or revised during the term of the 
Agreement, provided however, that such arrangements shall be first mutually agreed upon by 
Company and 8nion. 

 
�e� New work schedules may be established and present schedules may be revised during the 

terms of the Agreement, provided, however, that such arrangements shall be first mutually 
agreed upon by Company and 8nion. 

 
�.15 �a� �2ffice Service� employees are listed below� 7hese employees may be regularly scheduled to 

work any eight �8� consecutive hours, e[clusive of a meal period, between ���� a.m. and 12��� 
midnight, 0onday through )riday. 

 
)oreman�woman, Customer Services, Working 
5epresentative, Customer Services 
5epresentative, Customer Services, Senior 
5epresentative, Accounts Payable �AP� 
�Amended ��11��1��Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�b� 7he Company will schedule 2ffice Service employees to take lunch during the period from three 

�3� hours after the employee
s regular starting time to five �5� hours after their regular starting 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 16

time.  2ffice Service employees, with consent of the Supervisor, may e[change lunch periods 
on any given day. 

 
�c� 7he provisions of Section �.4 shall not apply to employees covered by this section. Schedules 

of 2ffice Service (mployees may be established or revised during the term of the Agreement, 
provided, however, that such arrangements shall be first mutually agreed upon by Company 
and 8nion.  �Amended 5�1�8�� 

 
�d� 2ffice Service employees may change their working hours and�or lunch period, with prior 

supervisory approval, by up to two �2� hours within the same work day with no penalty to the 
Company.  7his allows the employee to schedule personal time off while maintaining their 
regularly scheduled number of work hours, i.e. making time up within the same day of no more 
than two hours. 

 
A reTuest to change an employee
s work schedule must be arranged with the supervisor at 
least one day prior to the change, other than for emergency situations. 

 
When an employee has reTuested personal time off, the employee has the option to make up 
time within the same day by adMusting their or her work schedule, or may use vacation or floating 
holiday hours, or sick leave �under 7itle 15 or )amily Sick Leave guidelines�, or with Supervisor 
approval may elect time off without pay.  A minimum of 1�2 hour lunch period must be taken in 
accordance with Section �.15, unless reTuired by operational needs.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

7,7L( 7 
P5(0,80S 

7.1 All eight �8� hour work periods regularly scheduled to begin at 4��� a.m. or thereafter, but before 12��� 
noon shall be designated as first shifts.  All eight �8� hour work periods regularly scheduled to begin at 
12��� noon or thereafter, but before 8��� p.m., shall be designated as second shifts.  All eight �8� hour 
work periods regularly scheduled to begin at 8��� p.m. or thereafter, but before 4��� a.m., shall be 
designated as third shifts.  No shift premium shall be paid for the first shift.  A 3� shift premium shall be 
paid for work performed in the second shift.  An 8� shift premium shall be paid for work performed in 
the third shift.  �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
7.2 When a shift premium is applicable to time worked at the overtime rate of pay, the overtime rate shall 

be applied to the applicable shift premium. 
 
7.3 Shift premiums shall be payable only for hours actually worked, and shall not be paid for non�work time 

such as holidays, sick leave, vacations, etc. 
 
7.4 Shift premium shall be paid for meal and travel time at the applicable overtime rate.  �Added 5�1�83� 
 
7.5 Certified Welder Premium for employees in the +eavy and Light )oreman�woman classifications.  7o 

encourage employees in these Mob classifications to obtain and maintain welding certifications, the 
Company agrees to pay a premium of �2.181 per hour as follows� 

 
�a� When welding work is reTuired to be performed by a certified welder and a certified fitter�welder 

or a fitter certified in accordance with AP, 11�4 testing is unavailable or it is not practicable to 
assign welding work to either, welding will be assigned to an available certified Light 
)oreman�woman or certified +eavy )oreman�woman. 
 

�b� When welding is assigned to a Light )oreman�woman or +eavy )oreman�woman as described 
above, the welding wage premium shall be paid for all welding hours actually worked with a 
minimum of eight �8� hours welding wage premium for each day a Light )oreman�woman or 
+eavy )oreman�woman is assigned and performs welding work. 
 

�c� When a welding premium is applicable to time worked at the overtime rate of pay, the overtime 
rate shall be applied to the applicable welding premium. 
 

1 Shall be adjusted annually on July 1 by the percentage of the general contractual wage increase.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 17

�d� Welding premiums shall be payable only for hours actually worked, and shall not be paid for 
non�worktime such as holidays, sick leave, vacations, rest periods, etc. 
 

�e� Welding premium shall be paid for meal and travel time at the applicable overtime rate. 
 

�f� 7he welding wage premium will be adMusted each year by a percentage eTual to the general 
contractual wage increase for the )itter�Welder Mob classification. 
 

Nothing contained above is intended to reduce or eliminate the )itter�Welder Classification. Additionally, 
it is understood that when practicable, welding will first be assigned to the )itter�Welder classification. 
Second, in the absence of a )itter�Welder, when practicable, )itters with appropriate welding certification 
will be upgraded to the )itter�Welder classification. 

7,7L( 8 
L(AV(S 2) A%S(NC( 

8.1 �Leaves of Absence� and �Leaves� signifies approved absence without pay.  A leave shall commence 
on and include the first work day on which an employee is absent and shall terminate upon the agreed�
to date of e[piration of the leave of absence.  An individual
s seniority shall not be affected, e[cept for 
personal leaves of thirty �3�� or more calendar days.  7he employee
s status as a 5egular employee 
shall not be impaired by a leave of absence and the conditions of the leave shall be governed by the 
provisions herein applicable to the type of leave granted.  Any demotion of an employee caused by a 
reinstatement of an employee who has been absent on an approved leave of absence shall be governed 
by the 'emotion and Layoff Procedure.  �Amended 1�1�95� 

 
8.2 0ilitary Leave 
 

A leave of absence shall be granted to employees who enter the Armed )orces of the 8nited States, 
provided, however, that any such leave of absence and the reinstatement of any such employee shall 
be subMect to the terms of any Act of Congress, which provides for re�employment.  7he seniority rights 
for employees who are members of the Armed )orces shall accrue while they are absent on military 
duty. 

 
8.3 8nion Leave 
 

Company shall, at the written reTuest of 8nion, grant a leave of absence without pay to an employee 
who is appointed or elected to any office or position in the 8nion and whose services are reTuired by 
the 8nion, provided adeTuate arrangements can be made to take care of the employee
s duties, without 
undue interference with the normal routine of work.  Such 8nion leave shall be subMect to the following 
conditions� 

 
�a� 7he term shall be for a fi[ed period not to e[ceed three �3� years.  7he period shall be stated in 

the reTuest for leave. 
 
�b� 7he employee shall be returned to employment in their same classification held at the time the 

leave was granted and at the same headTuarters at which they were last employed, or at the 
nearest headTuarters to that location in which a vacancy e[ists. 

 
�c� 7he seniority of an employee who is granted a leave of absence under the provisions of this 

7itle shall accrue during the period of such leave.�Amended 1�1�98� 
 
�d� 8pon at least 72 hours written notice, employees may be granted time off to perform 8nion 

duties or services.  7he Company, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to deny such reTuest. 
 
8.4 Personal Leave 
 

Leaves of absence for urgent, substantial personal reasons may be granted to regular employees 
provided that mutual agreement is reached thereon by Company and employee, and subMect to the 
following conditions� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 18

�a� 7he leave will not e[ceed a period of si[ ��� months, or a si[ ��� month e[tension thereof, but 
in no case shall any leave or e[tension be granted which e[tends the total leave of absence 
beyond a period of one �1� year. 

�b� 7he purpose for which the leave is granted will not lead to the employee
s resignation. 
 
�c� ,f an employee fails to return immediately on the e[piration of the leave of absence, or if they 

apply for unemployment benefits, or they accept other employment while on leave, they shall 
thereby forfeit the leave of absence and terminate their employment with the Company. 

 
�d� An employee returning from an authori]ed leave of si[ ��� months or less shall be reinstated to 

their former classification and headTuarters location. 
 
�e� An employee returning from an authori]ed leave e[ceeding si[ ��� months shall be reinstated 

to their former classification and headTuarters provided a vacancy e[ists in their former 
classification.  ,f no such vacancy e[ists, the employee shall be reinstated in a lower 
classification thereto in the same Line of Progression.  ,f such reinstatement in a lower 
classification is reTuired under this section, the employee will be given preferential 
consideration over other employees in the filling of vacancies in higher classifications in the line 
of progression until such time as they are returned to their former classification or rate of pay.  
�Amended 5�1�82� 

 
8.5 7he Company will not consider the bid of an employee on a leave of absence.  �Added 5�1�87� 
 
8.� )amily and 0edical Leave 
 

Leaves for care of child, spouse, parent, or serious illness of employee shall be provided in accordance 
with State and )ederal Law, including but not limited to the )amily 0edical Leave Act of 1993, 29 8SC 
�� 2��1�2�54, and subseTuent amendments�³)0LA´�. 

7,7L( 9 
,NCL(0(N7 W(A7+(5 P5AC7,C( 

9.1 5egular and probationary employees who are unable to work in the field because of inclement weather, 
or other similar causes, shall receive pay for the full day, provided they physically report for duty at their 
regularly assigned reporting place and are in condition to perform their work.  +owever, they may be 
held pending emergency calls, and may be given first aid, safety or other instructions, or they may be 
reTuired to perform miscellaneous work in the warehouses or other sheltered locations.  7emporary 
employees under the same conditions shall receive pay for time they worked or are held on Company 
property or ordered to stand�by.  7hey shall not be paid in any event for less than four �4� hours. 

 
9.2 7he employee in charge at the Mob site shall be responsible for determining if the weather conditions 

warrant cessation of outside work.  ,n arriving at a decision with respect to weather conditions, the 
following shall be taken into account.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
�a� (mployee safety 

   
When �red� air Tuality days occur, as ordered by any air Tuality regulatory agency, strenuous 
work activity shall cease within affected areas e[cept when emergencies, and�or public safety 
or welfare are involved, and in those instances, the Company shall provide appropriate 
respirators for those employees reTuired to work.  �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�b� 2perating reTuirements 
 
�c� 8ndue ha]ards 
 
�d� Service to the public 
 
�e� -ob site�working conditions 
 
�f� Anticipated duration of time reTuired to leave unfinished Mob in safe condition 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 19

�g� Anticipated duration of inclement weather 
 
�h� 'istance from Mob site to operating headTuarters 
 
�i� 'riving conditions �Added 7�1�12� 
 
�M� Any other pertinent factors which in their opinion should be taken into account in reaching 

their decision relative to stopping or continuing work.  �Amended 1�1�98� 
 

7,7L( 1� 
2V(57,0( 

1�.1 �a� 2vertime is defined as �1� time worked in e[cess of forty �4�� hours in a work week, �2� time 
worked in e[cess of an employee¶s normal work hours �or eight hours for part�time employees� 
on a scheduled work day, �3� time worked on a non�work day, �4� time worked on a holiday, and 
�5� time worked outside of regular work hours on a work day.  2vertime shall be computed to 
the nearest Tuarter hour. 

 
�b� Prearranged overtime shall be defined as overtime for which notice has been given prior to the 

employee
s release at the end of the last regularly scheduled work period or an e[tension 
thereof, of no more than two �2� hours on that work day. 

 
1. Company may e[tend prearranged overtime as necessary.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
�c� Callout overtime shall be defined as overtime for which prior notice has not been given the 

employee as per 1�.1�b�.  �Added 5�1�81� 
 
�d� 2vertime work should be assigned in accordance with the following principles, which are 

intended to guide the actions of both Supervisors and employees� 
 

1. 7he nature of the utility business reTuires the working of overtime and is reflected in 
the language of this Agreement. 

 
2. 7he right to determine the importance and necessity of any work assignment rests 

within the rights of 0anagement. 
 
3. 5efusal shall be supported by a valid reason. 
 
4. A reasonable and sympathetic approach shall be taken by Supervision, with employees 

receiving as much advance notice as possible in order to allow them to alter their plans. 
 
5. ([tenuating circumstances and health of the employees shall be considered. 
 
�. 7he time necessary to complete the work assignment and the availability and 

practicability of the use of other employees shall be considered. 
 
7. Above all, the rule of reason shall be used by employees and Supervisors. 

 
1�.2 ,f an employee is called out by a responsible authority of the Company outside the employee
s regularly 

scheduled hours and works less than two �2� hours, the employee shall receive not less than two �2� 
hours to be compensated at the applicable overtime rate, for each such call out, provided the employee 
has finished their first call out and has returned to their home.  ,f the employee is sent on another Mob or 
Mobs prior to returning home from the initial call without a break in work time it shall be considered a 
single call out.  ,t shall be the policy of the Company to avoid a second assignment e[cept those of such 
urgency as would ordinarily warrant a call out, but the determination of such urgency shall be determined 
solely by the Company 5epresentative dispatching the call.  When an employee can resolve an issue 
from home, and does not have to leave their house, or the call is cancelled prior to the employee leaving 
their home, the employee will receive a minimum call out of ò hour.  �Amended 7�1�12�  

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 20

Such minimum call out pay provision shall not apply and the overtime payment shall be made only for 
actual work time outside regular hours where� 

 
�a� 7he call�out is less than two �2� hours prior to their regular starting time and the work e[tends 

into the regular workday. 
 
�b� 7he call�out is an e[tension of the regular workday or the employee has not left the plant 

premises when called.  Any employee reTuired to keep a radio�eTuipped Company vehicle at 
home when off duty shall, upon completion of a tour of duty, proceed directly to their home.  Any 
call�out while in transit shall be considered an e[tension of the regular day without interruption 
in time.  A call�out received after reaching home and signing off the radio shall be considered a 
separate call�out.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
1�.3 �a� 2vertime, time and one�half �1ò� and double time �2�, shall be treated separately and shall be 

divided as eTually as is practicable over the course of the payroll year, among those employees 
Tualified and available within a classification and headTuarters.  All overtime, time and one half 
�1ò[� and double time �2[�, for individuals in each headTuarters shall be posted separately 
every 3� days.  (mployees new to a classification or district or department shall be averaged 
into that district or department¶s year to date, time and one�half �1ò� and double time �2� 
overtime lists.  �Amended 4�5��5�  

 
�b� 'eviation from the distribution of overtime as stated in Section 1�.3 �a� must be established in 

writing and agreed to by both Company and 8nion.  �Added 1�1�98� 
 
�c� 'eviation from the distribution of overtime as stated in Section 1�.3 �a� will be allowed in select 

cases where employees within classification possess special skills �certifications, licenses, or 
training� uniTue to that Mob reTuirement.  �Added 1�1�98� 

 
1�.4 Nothing contained herein shall be construed to reTuire the payment of overtime compensation under 

more than one �1� of the foregoing definitions for a single period of operation. 
 
1�.5 �a� 2vertime compensation at the rate of one and one�half �1 1�2� times the straight rate of pay 

shall be paid to employees for overtime as defined in Section 1�.1 �a� �1�, �2�, �3�, �4�, and �5� 
and Section 1�.1 �b�.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
�b� 7he time worked in e[cess of si[teen �1�� consecutive hours �which includes unpaid meal 

period� and continuing until the employee is dismissed from such work shall be paid at the rate 
of two �2� times the employee
s straight rate of pay.  �Amended 5�1�82� 

 
�c� Prearranged overtime worked in e[cess of twelve �12� consecutive hours and continuing until 

the employee is dismissed from such work shall be paid at the rate of two �2� times the 
employee
s straight rate of pay.  �Added 5�1�81� 

 
�d� ,f, following an employee
s dismissal from work or on an employee
s non�work day, the 

employee is called out for work, they shall be paid at two �2� times their straight rate of pay for 
all work performed outside their regular work hours or on a non�work day.  �Added 5�1�81� 

 
�e�  �'eleted5�1�91� 

 
1�.� �a� Any regular or probationary employee who, as the result of a call out or a prearranged work 

assignment, has worked at overtime rates between their regular Tuitting time and their ne[t 
regular starting time on regular work days, shall be entitled to a rest period under the following 
conditions� 
 
1. ,f an employee has worked eight �8� hours or more at overtime rates, they shall be 

entitled to a rest period of nine �9� consecutive hours upon completion of such overtime 
work. 

 
2. ,f they have worked a minimum of two �2� hours at overtime rates and such work 

e[tends beyond nine and one�half �9 1�2� hours after their regular Tuitting time, they 
shall be entitled to a rest period of nine �9� consecutive hours upon completion of such 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 21

overtime work.  ,f they work less than two �2� hours at overtime rates and such work 
e[tends beyond nine and one�half �9 ò� hours after their regular Tuitting time, the 
employee shall only be entitled to a rest period of seven �7� consecutive hours upon 
completion of such overtime work. �Amended 7�1�12�. 

 
3. ,f they have worked a minimum of two �2� hours at overtime rates and such work 

commences later than nine and one�half �9 1�2� hours after their regular Tuitting time, 
they shall be entitled to a rest period of nine �9� consecutive hours upon completion of 
such overtime work.  ,f they work less than two �2� hours and such work commences 
later than nine and one half �9 ò� hours after their regular Tuitting time, the employee 
shall only be entitled to a rest period of seven �7� consecutive hours upon completion 
of such overtime work.  7he above provisions shall not apply if such work commences 
later than four �4� hours before their ne[t regular starting time.  �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
4. 5est periods, as provided above, shall commence upon completion of the employee
s 

overtime work or the start of their regular work hours, whichever occurs first. 
 
5. 2vertime work that Tualifies for a rest period will include 45 minutes consumption time 

for each missed meal. 7ravel time will not be included as time worked to Tualify for a 
rest period.  �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�b� 7he provisions of Section 1�.��a� shall apply to an employee who works at overtime rates on 

their regularly scheduled day off or on a holiday observed by the Company as follows� 
 

1. 7he overtime must have been worked immediately preceding their regular starting time 
on the ne[t regularly scheduled work day, and 

 
2. 'uring the corresponding time period normally observed by them as off�duty hours on 

consecutive workdays. 
 

�c� ,f the employee becomes eligible for a rest period in accordance with any of the conditions 
above, and the Company reTuires the employee to continue work into their regular work period, 
the employee shall be paid at two �2� times the standard rate of pay for all hours worked until 
they are given a rest period.  ,f, however, the employee is not entitled to a rest period, the 
employee shall revert to the straight�time rate at the beginning of their regular work period 
irrespective of whether they continue to work at said overtime work or changes to regular duties. 

 
�d� ,f the employee becomes eligible for a rest period and is called back to work during their nine 

�9� hour rest period, the employee shall be paid overtime compensation at the rate of pay 
eTuivalent to two �2� times the standard rate of pay for all work performed until they have been 
relieved from duty for at least nine �9� consecutive hours, and a new rest period will commence 
at the conclusion of such work. 

 
�e� Should a rest period provided for above e[tend into their regular work hours, the employee may 

be reTuired to report for work at the end of said rest period for the remainder of that regular 
work period.  7he employee shall be paid at straight time for any portion of their regular work 
period, which they are allowed to take as a rest period.  7hey will in any event be paid at the 
straight�time rate for the said regular work period. 

  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 22

7,7L( 11 
+2L,'AYS 

11.1 ,t shall be the policy of the Company to perform only necessary work on any of the holidays observed 
by the Company.  7he necessity for holiday work and the number and choice of employees reTuired to 
work on the holiday shall be determined by the Company. 

 
11.2 )or regular, probationary and Provisional employees, �holiday� as used herein is defined as a day on 

which each of the following holidays is observed by the Company�  �Amended ��11��1�  
 

New Year
s 'ay 
0artin Luther .ing 'ay 
Presidents
 'ay 
0emorial 'ay 
,ndependence 'ay 
)loating +oliday 
Labor 'ay 
Nevada Admission 'ay 
Veteran¶s 'ay 
7hanksgiving 'ay 
'ay After 7hanksgiving 
Christmas 'ay 

 
An employee, during their first payroll year of employment, shall be entitled to one )loating +oliday 
�Amended ��11��1� 
 Nevada 'ay will be observed the last )riday in 2ctober. 
 
(mployees shall observe their floating holiday�s� on a workday before the end of the payroll year at the 
convenience of the Company and the Company will not pay in lieu of unused floating holiday�s�.  ,n the 
event an employee is prevented from taking their floating holiday�s� due to operational reTuirements, 
they shall be entitled to defer the floating holiday�s� into the ne[t ensuing payroll year.  �Amended 
��11��1� 

 
11.3 ,f a holiday is observed by Company on a regular or probationary employee
s non�working day, the 

employee shall, during the ensuing twelve �12� months be given a work day off with straight�time pay at 
the convenience of the Company.  7he employee may have the option of foregoing the workday off and 
accepting regular straight�time pay for the holiday if they so desire. 

 
11.4 ,f a holiday is observed by Company on a regular or probationary employee
s scheduled non�work day 

and the employee works on that day, they shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate for all work 
performed plus their holiday allowance. 

 
11.5 ,f a holiday is observed by Company on a regularly scheduled workday of a regular or probationary 

employee and they perform no work that day, they shall be given a holiday allowance eTual to their 
regular straight�time pay for the day. 

 
11.� ,f a holiday is observed by Company on a regularly scheduled workday of an employee and they work 

that day, the employee shall have the option to� 
 

�a� %e paid the applicable overtime rate for all work performed plus their holiday allowance of eight 
�8� hours straight�time pay, or 

 
�b� %e paid the applicable overtime rate for all work performed and carry over the holiday, to be 

observed at another time, subMect to the provisions of 11.3 of the Agreement.  �Amended 5�1�83� 
 
11.7 �a� ,f a holiday falls on a Saturday, the Company shall observe the holiday on )riday. ,f a holiday 

falls on a Sunday, the Company shall observe the holiday on 0onday. 
 

�b� ,f a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, employees regularly scheduled to work that day shall 
observe the actual holiday rather than the Company observed holiday. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 23

11.8 ,f an employee takes off any of the days observed by the Company as holidays and is absent without 
bona fide reason on the work day either immediately preceding or following such day observed by the 
Company as holiday, they shall not receive holiday pay. 

7,7L( 12 
VACA7,2NS 

12.1 All active employees, e[cept 7emporary employees, begin accumulating vacation time upon 
employment.  Vacation time shall be computed from the employee
s continuous service date and will be 
credited bi�weekly. 

 
�a� An employee
s continuous service date shall be their most recent date of hire, which may be 

adMusted subMect to the provisions of 7itle 8. 
 
�b� When an employee
s accrual rate changes as stated in 12.2 below, the new accrual rate will be 

effective at the beginning of the pay period in which the continuous service date falls.  �Amended 
5�1�87� (ffective 1�1�88� 

 
12.2 )ull�time employees e[cept 7emporary employees earn vacation time as follows and subMect to the 

provisions of 7itle 2�� 
 

 
Years of Continuous Service 

%i�weekly 
Accrual 

5ate 

7otal Vacation 
+ours Per 

Year 
 

1st through 5th year �from 1 day ± �� 0onths� 3.�7� 8� 
 

�th through 12th year �At the completion of 5 full years, �� months� 4.�15 12� 
 

13th through 19th year �At the completion of 12 full years, 144 months� �.153 1�� 
 

2�th through 2�th year �At the completion of 19 full years ± 228 months� 7.�92 2�� 
 
 

27th years or more �At the completion of 2� full years ± 312 0onths� 9.23� 24� 

12.3 (ach employee who has completed five �5�, ten �1��, fifteen �15�, twenty �2�� years, etc., of continuous 
service with the Company will be credited with five �5� days vacation �4� hours� in the pay period in 
which the continuous service date falls.  �Amended 5�1�87� (ffective 1�1�88� 

 
12.4 Part�time employees e[cept 7emporary employees shall earn vacation time as stated in Section 12.2 

and 12.3, but adMusted as follows and subMect to the provisions of 7itle 2�. 
 
 �a� Vacation time credits shall be prorated as outlined in Section 3.5.  �Amended 5�1�87� 
 
12.5 An employee must complete si[ ��� months of continuous service to be eligible to take vacation.  After 

completion of si[ ��� months of continuous service, vacation may be taken as earned, subMect to 
operational needs of the Company and by mutual agreement of Company and employee.  �Amended 
5�1�87� 

 
12.� Vacation time shall be paid at the straight�time rate of pay.  �Amended 5�1�87� 
 
12.7 Vacation reTuests, which must be pre�approved by the employee¶s supervisor, should be submitted as 

far in advance as possible and must be taken in ó hour increments.  �Amended 7�1��9� 
 
12.8 (arned vacation, which is not used by an employee, may be allowed to accumulate.  Such vacation may 

be carried over from one �1� payroll year to the ne[t following payroll year provided that the carryover 
vacation does not e[ceed a ma[imum amount based on years of continuous service as stated below� 
�Amended 1�1�98� 

 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 24

 
Years of Continuous Service 

0a[imum Carryover 
Vacation 

1st through 5th year �from 1 day � �� months� 2� days or 1�� hours 

�th through 12th year �At the completion of 5 full years � �� months� 3� days or 24� hours 

13th through 19th year �At the completion of 12 full years � 144 months� 4� days or 32� hours 

2�th through 2�th year �At the completion of 19 full years � 228 months� 5� days or 4�� hours 

27 years or more �At the completion of 2� full years ± 312 months� �� days or 48� hours 

�a� All vacation carried over from one �1� payroll year to the ne[t following payroll year in e[cess of 
the ma[imum as stated in 12.8 above will be forfeited.  +owever, on an annual basis, an 
employee is allowed to transfer up to 8� hours in forfeited vacation to their 4�1�a� or 457 
deferred compensation accounts.  2nce an employee has made their election to a deferred 
compensation account, those elections are subMect to plan guidelines and annual ma[imum 
contribution limits as stipulated by the ,5S.  �Amended ��12���� �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
12.9 When an employee is reTuired to carry over a vacation from one �1� payroll year to the ne[t payroll year 

due to an approved absence from work because of an e[tended illness or industrial inMury, such vacation 
will be taken at the convenience of the Company and at such time as not to interfere with vacation 
schedules of other employees.  Such vacation will not be subMect to forfeiture as stated in 12.8�a�.  
�Amended 1�1�98� 

 
12.1� When an employee
s approved scheduled vacation is canceled by the Company due to unforeseen 

emergency conditions, or an employee foregoes their�her vacation for the convenience of the Company, 
the employee shall be allowed to reschedule their vacation by mutual agreement between Company and 
the employee.  ,f such vacation must be carried over to the ne[t following payroll year, it shall not be 
subMect to forfeiture as stated in 12.8�a�.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
12.11 ,f a holiday is observed by the Company on a workday within an employee
s vacation period, the holiday 

shall not be considered a vacation day.  �Amended 5�1�87� 
 
12.12 Company shall not reTuire an employee to take their vacation in lieu of sick leave or leave of absence 

on account of illness.  �Amended 5�1�87� 
 
12.13 5egular, probationary and Provisional employees whose employment with the Company has been 

terminated for any reason shall receive vacation pay for all accrued vacation time in lieu of any vacation 
allowance.  �Amended ��11��1�  

 
12.14 %efore -anuary of each year, there will be a sign�up in each department so that the employees may 

designate their choice of vacation periods.  7he Company shall prepare the annual vacation schedule 
on the basis of such sign�up, effecting whenever possible the selections of the employees within each 
classification in the order of Company seniority.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
�a� ,f, in accordance with 12.7, an employee has arranged to take their vacation in two �2� or more 

periods the use of seniority as a factor in securing preferential consideration over other 
employees shall be limited to one �1� of such periods. 

 
�b� Service employees shall be allowed to include one �1� night shift in their first choice vacation 

period.  �Amended 5�1�87�  
 
12.15 Vacation lists shall be posted on or before -anuary 15 of each year.  Scheduled vacation shall be taken 

as posted unless otherwise agreed to by Company.  Any reTuest for changes in scheduled vacation 
shall be submitted by the employee in writing and subMect to written approval by Company.  Such reTuest 
shall include the alternate date�s� proposed by the employee.  �Amended 5�1�87� �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
12.1� 'uring each payroll year, the employee may elect to cash out up to 4� hours of unused earned vacation. 

�Added 7�1�12� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 25

7,7L( 13 
SA)(7Y 

Working SA)(LY prevents suffering, loss of wages to ourselves and families, and damage to property and inMury 
to others. 

An important part of everyone
s acceptance of employment is to accept responsibility to do their work in 
accordance with the latest safety practices and to cooperate with other employees with whom they work to carry 
out safety rules and practices.  7herefore, every employee of this Company is automatically pledged to study the 
safety rules and put them into effect for every applicable circumstance. 
 
(very employee must be familiar with the special safety rules and regulations pertaining to their particular 
classification, in addition to the general overall safety rules. 
 
13.1 Company shall make reasonable provisions for the safety of employees in the performance of their work.  

8nion shall cooperate in promoting the reali]ation of the responsibility of the individual employee with 
regard to the prevention of accidents. 

 
13.2 7he Company will draft reasonable safety rules for employees and it will be the responsibility of all 

employees to observe these rules.  A copy of the rules will be furnished the 8nion. 
 
13.3 7he Company shall hold not less than eight �8� safety meetings each year at practical points throughout 

the system.  When practicable, such meetings shall be scheduled to permit as many employees as 
possible to attend.  (mployees shall be reTuired to attend safety meetings e[cept for good cause.  7he 
programs of the safety meetings shall be arranged by the Company and in general will cover material 
appropriate to each group. 

 
13.4 7he Company will promptly notify the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative of any accident resulting in death 

or serious inMury to an employee.  7he 8nion %usiness 5epresentative of Local 1245 shall be a member 
of the Company Accident Prevention %oard.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
13.5 7he Company and 8nion recogni]e the importance of timely, well documented investigative reports for 

any serious accident�incident determined to be worth investigating.  7o this end, the Company and 8nion 
agree that a Committee comprised of not more than twelve �12� members of the %argaining 8nit and 
twelve �12� members of 0anagement will be selected by their respective parties to receive special 
training from the Safety 'epartment in the appropriate methods of conducting accident 
investigations �� such training to be provided on Company time at Company e[pense. 

 
7hus, when an accident�incident occurs, there will be a trained group of personnel from whom to select 
the -oint Accident ,nvestigating Committee members as described in the remainder of this section.  
Selection to serve as a member of the -oint Accident ,nvestigating Committee shall be based on the 
knowledge and e[perience of the individual committee members so that, to the e[tent practicable, the 
Committee will be comprised of members e[perienced in the field of work in which the accident�incident 
occurred.  ,n no case shall the members of the -oint Accident ,nvestigating Committee be selected from 
the occupational group in which the accident�incident has occurred, unless mutually agreed on by the 
Company and 8nion.  �Amended ��11��1� 
 
At the reTuest of either the Company or the 8nion, any accident�incident of a serious nature shall be 
investigated by a -oint Accident ,nvestigating Committee.  7he -oint Accident ,nvestigating Committee 
shall consist of not more than four �4� employees, two �2� of whom shall be appointed by the Company 
and two �2� by the 8nion.  

 
,f such investigation is reTuested by the Company, the Company will pay wages at the appropriate hourly 
wage rate, for approved hours so worked by the 8nion committee members.  Normal out of pocket 
e[penses reTuired for the proper conduct of the investigation will also be paid by the Company. 
 
,f such investigation is reTuested by the 8nion, the Company will not be liable for any lost wages or 
e[penses incurred resulting from the 8nion member¶s participation in the investigation. 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 26

After investigating a serious accident�incident, the -oint Committee may, at its discretion, file a Moint or 
separate report or reports with the Company covering its recommendations for prevention of the 
recurrence of accidents of similar nature.  ,t is understood and agreed that the Company is not obligated 
or reTuired to accept the committee
s recommendations.  ,f the Company accepts or reMects any or all 
such recommendations, Company will give written e[planation to the -oint Accident ,nvestigating 
Committee.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
13.� A Company Safety Committee shall be established consisting of four represented employees, one non�

represented employee and the Safety 2fficer. 7he officers of the Committee shall consist of a 
�chairman,� �vice�chairman� and �secretary� who shall be selected by vote of the Committee.  7he four 
represented members will serve staggered four �4� year terms. 

 
A representative of the following departments will be assigned to the Safety Committee� 
 

'istribution 0aintenance �one member� 
2perations �one member� 
+ydro *eneration and Customer Service �one member� 
0PA7 employee �one member� 
5otating Seat to be from one of the areas listed in 1, 2 or 3 

 
,n establishing said Safety Committee, it is specifically recogni]ed and acknowledged that the employer 
is obligated to provide to the employees a safe and healthy place of employment and that the operation 
and�or establishment of the aforementioned committee shall in no way relieve the employer of that 
obligation.  7he Company Safety Committee shall develop a Charter listing the committee activities, 
members responsibilities, meeting times and agendas and the measures of its success.  7he Safety 
Committee will make recommendations concerning unsafe working conditions and recommending 
measures to be taken for correction thereof.  Such recommendations shall be in the form of written 
reports, copies of which will be sent to the appropriate Supervisor or 0anager, Safety 2fficer, +uman 
5esources, and each member of the Safety Committee.  Within ten �1�� working days from receipt of 
such recommendations, a written reply from the Safety 2fficer will be returned to the Chairman of the 
Committee.  5eplacement of committee members shall be done through solicitation and 
recommendation from the Company, 8nion and the Committee. (lection of new members shall be done 
by maMority vote of the current membership.  ,n the )all and Spring the members of the Safety Committee 
will agree on a date and time to conduct inspections of Company
s properties, vehicles, eTuipment, and 
activities.  0embers of the committees will have time off with pay for the purpose of making said 
inspections and shall be reimbursed by Company for e[penses incurred therefore.  �Amended ��11��1� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
13.7 �'eleted 7�1��9� 
 
13.8  ,f the Company reTuires any employee to wear steel�toed safety shoes �as defined in ANS, Standard 

=.41�, the Company will provide the shoes. 7he employee is then reTuired to wear in the performance 
of their duties, steel�toed safety shoes recogni]ed as such by ANS, Standard =.41.  �Added 5�1�91� 

7,7L( 14 
8N,2N AC7,V,7Y 

 
14.1 7he 8nion will use one�half �ò� of the Company
s regular bulletin boards and Company shall designate 

by lettering the portion of the %oard reserved for 8nion use. 
 
14.2 7he Company shall not discriminate against an employee because of their or her membership in the 

8nion or their or her activity on behalf of the 8nion, and the 8nion agrees not to discriminate against 
any employee because of their non�affiliation with the 8nion. 

 
14.3 7he 8nion
s use of bulletin boards shall be limited to the posting thereon of official notices of meetings 

and similar matters relating to official 8nion business, and 8nion shall not post thereon any matter 
relating to the solicitation of employees to Moin 8nion or the collection of dues, or any matter derogatory 
to Company. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 27

14.4 At the reTuest of the 8nion, the Company shall issue a temporary pass, renewable yearly, to any 
representative of the 8nion authori]ing them to enter any Company property where any employee within 
the %argaining 8nit is employed. 

 
14.5 �'eleted 7�1��9� 
 
14.� �a� (�0ail�  (�0ail will be made available to the 8nion for 8nion communications. 
 

�b� New (mployee 2rientation� ,%(W %usiness 5epresentative will be allowed to participate in the 
New (mployee 2rientation. 

7,7L( 15 
S,C. L(AV( 

15.1 A regular employee shall, in addition to any accumulated unused sick leave with pay to which they may 
be entitled as of 0ay 1, 19�8, also be entitled to accumulate further unused sick leave with pay at the 
rate of thirteen �13� sick days per year subseTuent to 0ay 1, 19�9, and calculated biweekly.  An unlimited 
number of working days of sick leave may be accumulated in this manner, subMect to the provisions of 
Section 2�.1.  7he employee may cash out unused earned sick leave in e[cess of 7�� hours during the 
payroll year, not to e[ceed 48 hours that payroll year.  �Amended 5�1�8�� �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
15.2 7he Company may reTuire satisfactory evidence of an employee
s illness or disability before sick leave 

will be granted.  ,f it is found that the employee is using sick leave for reasons other than a bona fide 
personal sickness or disability, said employee shall forfeit all sick leave accumulated up to that date.  
When an employee determines that they will be unable to report for work, they must notify their 
,mmediate Supervisor¶s cell phone, or if directed, the cell phone of the Supervisors¶ designee.  7hese 
calls must be made a minimum of 3� minutes before the employee¶s scheduled start time.  ,n the event 
an employee is unable to determine when they will be able to return to work, they must, on each day of 
their illness or disability, notify their Supervisor that they will be unable to report for work.  When the 
employee does become aware of the date when they will be capable of returning to work, they must give 
as much advance notice of this fact as possible to the Supervisor.  Lack of notification will result in denial 
of sick pay benefits.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
15.3 ,f a holiday is observed by the Company on a work day within the sick leave period of an employee who 

is entitled to holidays off with pay, the holiday shall not be charged to the employee
s sick leave �see 
11.5�. 

 
([cept as provided in Section 15.4, nothing in the foregoing 7itle shall be interpreted to entitle the 
employee to sick leave while on vacation, temporarily laid off by the Company, upon severance of 
employment, or while receiving industrial compensation. 
 

15.4 ,f an employee is confined to a hospital during their vacation period, upon reTuest they will be granted 
sick leave for the period of confinement. 

 
15.5 �'eleted 5�1�83� 
 
15.� �'eleted 5�1�83� 
 
15.7 �'eleted 5�1�83� 
 
15.8 Sick leave time may be granted in ó hour increments.  �Added 1�1�98� 
 
15.9 �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
15.1� )amily Sick Leave Program   
 

7he parties, in an effort to meet the needs of employees while maintaining sick leave usage at an 
acceptable level, hereby agree to the following� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 28

�a� (mployees may be granted up to thirty�two �32� hours sick leave per payroll year �assuming 
sufficient hours of accrued sick leave� for immediate family illness�emergency.  7he accrual rate 
remains unchanged.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
�b� )amily illness�emergency is any situation involving the employee
s immediate �as defined in the 

Company
s funeral leave policy� family reTuiring the employee
s personal attention which 
cannot be attended to outside normal work hours. 

 
�c� )amily sick leave time may be granted in ó hour increments.  �Amended 1�1�98� 
 
�d� Proven abuse will be handled pursuant to the provisions of Section 15.2 
 
�e� (mployees at any stage of progressive discipline for attendance related problems are not 

eligible. 
 
�f� ,t is recogni]ed that this program does not provide an additional benefit to employees.  7ime is 

provided, as described above, at the sole discretion of the Supervisor.�g�7he Company will 
communicate this program to Supervisors in a manner designed to foster consistency and 
understanding.  �Amended 1�1�95� 

 
�g� )amily sick leave usage will not be a consideration in employee performance appraisals.  

�Added 1�1�98� 
 
�h� 7his section shall be independent of Section 8.�, )amily and 0edical Leave Act and does not 

change the guarantees offered under the )ederal Act.  �Amended ��11��1� 
 
15.11 8nused Sick Leave at 5etirement �Added ��12���� 

  
(mployees who ³retire´ under the Tualified 5etirement Plan �minimum age 55 with at least 1� years of 
service� will convert 1��� of unused sick leave over 7�� hours at retirement to a 5etirement +ealth 
Savings �5+S� account.   

 
7,7L( 1� 

S(N,25,7Y 

1�.1 7here shall be two �2� types of seniority, namely, 2ccupational *roup Seniority and Company Seniority.  
Company Seniority shall be defined as total length of continuous service with the Company as 
determined in accordance with 3.7.  Company Seniority shall be used as the basis for determining such 
benefits as sick leave, retirement, vacations and protection against demotion and lay�off.  2ccupational 
*roup Seniority shall be defined as the total length of service in one �1� of the occupational groups 
shown in ([hibit C attached hereto.  2ccupational *roup Seniority shall be used in determining the 
preferred bidder within an occupational group and line of progression in the seTuence outlined in 1�.5.  
Attached hereto and made a part hereof is ([hibit C, an appendi[ outlining the �2ccupational *roups� 
and �Lines of Progression� to be used for promotion and demotion.  ,t is understood that the 2ccupational 
*roups have no relationship to �departments� as used in prior contracts between the parties nor shall 
([hibit C be construed to limit in any way the right of the Company to choose any form of organi]ational 
arrangement it prefers. 

 
1�.2 Company shall make up and post on bulletin boards, a Company seniority list and an occupational 

seniority list every si[ ��� months.  ,f no opposition shall be made in writing within thirty �3�� days after 
posting, the respective seniorities shall be considered as correct as listed.  A copy shall be furnished the 
8nion. 

 
1�.3 �a� 7he seniority status of employees as of -uly 1, 1959, shall be that shown on the personnel 

records of the Company, and seniority shall accumulate in the occupational group where then 
employed. 

 
�b� An employee who bids or is transferred from one occupational group to another or is transferred 

out of the %argaining 8nit shall, for a period of 9� days following the date they are awarded their 
new Mob in the new occupational group, or out of the %argaining 8nit, will be assumed to be 
continuing in the occupational group from which they transferred and shall have no seniority in 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 29

the group to which they transferred.  At the end of the 9� day period specified, they shall be 
credited with 9� days of seniority in the new group, and shall retain in the group from which they 
bid or was transferred, the seniority they have earned in that group as of the beginning of the 
9� day period specified. �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�c� An employee who is transferred out of the %argaining 8nit on a temporary assignment shall be 

considered to be continuing in the occupational group and classification from which they has 
been transferred.  Assignments of a temporary nature which are e[pected to continue beyond 
twelve �12� months shall first be discussed with the 8nion. 

 
�d� Such employee may not use the previous group seniority for bidding on posted Mobs in the 

previous group, but if they are re�transferred to the previous group they may use the seniority 
to re�establish themselves in that group. 

 
�e� All non�%argaining 8nit employees, who are used on the Mob for training purposes, shall be 

e[empt from the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 7hey shall be assigned to fully manned and supervised crews and for periods not to e[ceed 

ninety �9�� calendar days. 
 
1�.4 When an employee is temporarily transferred from the occupational group in which they are regularly 

employed to another occupational group, their seniority will continue to accumulate in their regular 
occupational group while they are temporarily working elsewhere. 

 
 
1�.5 When new Mobs are created as provided in 4.4, additional Mobs and vacant Mobs will be posted on the 

bulletin boards by the Company for a period of ten �1�� calendar days.  ,t shall be the duty of the 
Company to set forth in said bulletin the date of postings, the nature of the Mob, its duties, Tualifications 
reTuired and the rate of pay.  7he Company shall furnish the 8nion with a list of bidders on all Mobs and 
it shall be the duty of the Company within ten �1�� working days of the close of the bidding period to post 
on bulletin boards the name of the applicant, if any, awarded the Mob, and email a copy of such notice to 
the 8nion.  ,f no bids are received for the Mob classification during the bidding period, the Company may 
fill the Mob from any source whatsoever.  After a period of si[ ��� months, if Company has not hired an 
applicant to fill the posted vacancy, Company shall re�post the Mob vacancy if such vacancy still e[ists.  
,f a Mob is filled and the Mob again becomes vacant within forty�five �45� days from the date the Mob was 
last filled� it shall not be necessary to again post the Mob.  ,f the Mob was awarded to a Tualified bidder 
and becomes vacant within forty�five �45� days from the date the Mob was last filled it shall be awarded 
to the ne[t highest bidder.  ,f the ne[t highest bidder has been awarded another Mob, they shall have the 
option to accept either Mob.  7he vacant position shall be filled by the ne[t highest bidder.  �Amended 
1�1�98� 

  
Attached hereto and made a part hereof and numbered ([hibit % are the �-ob 'escriptions and 
4ualifications� of those Mobs coming within the scope of the bidding procedure.  %ids to Mob vacancies 
will be given preferential consideration in the following manner.  SubMect to 1�.7 and 1�.1�, the employee 
with the greatest occupational group seniority shall be awarded the Mob, e[cept under �c� and �e� below, 
the Company seniority shall be used� 

 
�a� %ids from employees within the same occupational group in the same classification or 

classifications higher than the e[isting vacancy. 
 
�b� ,f there are no bidders under �a�, all bids from employees in the ne[t lower classification within 

that occupational group. 
 
�c� Where no bids are received under �a� and �b�, all bids from employees in another occupational 

group with the same classification. 
 
�d� ,f there are no bids received under �a�, �b� or �c�, all bids from employees within the occupational 

group in which the vacancies e[ist. 
 

�e� Should there be no bids from any employee under �a�, �b�, �c� or �d�, all other bids from any 
employee in any occupational group, regardless of classification and subMect to 1�.7 and 1�.1�, 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 30

the bidder with the greatest Company seniority shall be awarded the Mob.  %ids from employees 
who have less than si[ ��� months of continuous service in the %argaining 8nit classification at 
the close of the bid shall not be considered as having company seniority.  �Amended ��12���� 

 
1. ,ncumbents are defined as those employees hired prior to -anuary 1, 1995 and listed 

in classifications in ([hibit C in double�lined bo[es.  ,ncumbents shall retain their group 
seniority for bidding purposes subMect to provisions listed below.  �See updated 
incumbency list ��11��1.� 

2. All bids to Apprentice classifications shall be considered ³(´ bids �e[cept those 
incumbents hired before -anuary 1, 1995 subMect to Section 1�.5�4�. 

 
3. An incumbent will have one �1� opportunity to accept a bid using group seniority per 

1�.5�1� for a double�lined classification, and will then continue to progress in their line 
of progression in accordance with Section 1�.5. 

 
4. ,f incumbent in double�lined bo[es bids a position within their line of progression at any 

location but elects to turn down such position or fails to place a bid, he�she will lose the 
opportunity to use group seniority for that particular position and location.  )uture bids 
to that position and location, if posted again, shall be based on Company seniority only. 
 �Added 1�1�95, Amended ��11��1� 

 
�a� When the occupational group seniority is identical for two �2� or more employees whose bids 

are entitled to eTual consideration under paragraph �a�, �b�, or �d� of Section 1�.5, preferential 
consideration shall be given to the employee with the greatest Company seniority, subMect to 
the provisions of Sections 1�.7 and 1�.1�. 

 
�b� When a bid cannot be awarded as stated in Section 1�.��a� because there is a tie between two 

�2� bidders for the same Mob and it is decided that to award the Mob the tie must be broken, a 
representative of the Company and a representative of the 8nion will meet and have a coin toss 
to determine which of the bidders will be offered the position. %ecause in this case there are 
only two �2� bidders tied, the 8nion representative will decide which of the coin �head or tails� 
will represent which employee. 7he Company representative will then toss the coin and 
whichever side �heads or tails� comes up, that bidder will be offered the position.  �Added 
��11��1�  

 
�c� When a bid cannot be awarded as stated in Section 1�.��a� because there is a tie between 

more than two �2� bidders for the same Mob and it is decided that to award the Mob the tie must 
be broken, the same process will be used as in 1�.��b� only that after the first person is 
eliminated, the process will be repeated until there is only enough bidders left to award the 
position.  �Amended ��11��1� 

  
1�.7 �a� Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the right of the Company to determine 

the number of employees reTuired in each classification nor shall it be construed as limiting the 
right of the Company to determine whether a vacancy shall be filled.  ([cept as provided in 
Section 1�.7�b�, awards to Mobs posted for bid shall be made in accordance with Section 1�.5.  
+owever, whenever a vacancy occurs in any Mob classification, Company may, in its discretion, 
temporarily fill such vacancy.  Any such temporary appointment shall, if practicable, be given to 
an employee who would be eligible to bid therefore under the seniority and Mob bidding 
provisions of this Agreement, subMect to the provisions of Sections 1�.7�b� and 1�.1��a�, and 
the lines of upgrade �Attachment ,V ([hibit C �2���.�Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�b� ,n filling vacancies in Mobs hereinafter collectively referred to in Subsection 1�.7�c� as �Working 

)oreman�woman Mobs,� Company shall consider the appointment of employees to any such 
vacancy as herein provided, and where the Company determines that the following 
Tualifications are relatively eTual, seniority shall govern� 

 
1. 7he Tuality of the employee
s performance on their current Mob. 
 
2. 7heir background of education and e[perience in similar or related work. 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 31

3. 7he amount of special preparation for the new Mob, if any is necessary or pertinent, 
which the employee has completed at the time the bid is made. 

4. 7heir previous demonstrations of leadership and progress. When filling a permanent 
position, upgrade hours need not be considered �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
,t is the intent of the parties that the 8nion shall not have the right to arbitrate the �Mudgment� of 
the Company, but that the 8nion shall have the right of appeal if it believes there was not a fair 
submission of facts upon which that Mudgment was made. 

 
After selecting an applicant on the above basis, the Company shall notify the 8nion by letter.  
'uring a period of fifteen �15� calendar days following the receipt of such notification, the 8nion 
may investigate the facts used by the Company in making its selection.  ,f, after such 
investigation, the 8nion feels that it would serve a useful purpose to further review the matter, 
the 8nion may reTuest a meeting with an officer of the Company or their representative.  7he 
8nion 5epresentative at such meeting shall not have participated actively in the original 
investigation.  7he 8nion and Company 5epresentatives would review the facts used by the 
Company in making the selection.  Company
s initial decision will stand unless, after such 
review of the facts, 8nion and Company representatives agree that the decision was arbitrary.  
,n any event, the 8nion and Company representatives shall, within thirty �3�� days, dispose of 
the case and their decision shall be final and binding upon the Company, the 8nion, and the 
employees involved. 

 
�c� 7he term �Working )oreman�woman� as used in this Section 1�.7 shall be construed to include 

any of the following�  �Amended ��11��1� �Amended 7�1�12� 
 

)oreman�woman, Working �All Classifications� 
,nspector 
5epresentative, Customer Services, Senior 
Senior )acilities and *rounds 0aintenance 0an  

 
1�.8 �a� An employee changing any classification shall be given a Tualifying period.  Within the first thirty 

�3�� days of the Tualifying period, the employee must determine whether they can meet the 
reTuirements of the new classification or elect to return to their former Mob classification and rate 
of pay.  ,f the employee elects to e[ercise the option of returning to their former classification 
and rate of pay within the thirty �3�� day period they will then be ineligible to bid on any position 
openings for a period of ninety �9�� days from the date they return to their former position.  7he 
employee may only e[ercise returning to their former position during the thirty �3�� day 
Tualifying period once every three �3� years.  After e[piration of the above�described 3��day 
period and up to 18� days after the employee begins work in the new Mob classification, only the 
Company and the -oint Apprenticeship 7raining Committee may determine if the employee is 
meeting the reTuirements of the new classification.  ,f within the above�described time period 
the Company and Committee determine that the employee is not meeting the reTuirements of 
the new Mob classification, then the employee must be returned to their former Mob classification 
and rate of pay. 

 
,f an employee bids into a position for which they have no e[perience and is the senior bidder, 
then they will be given an option to Mob shadow for up to five �5� working days prior to making a 
decision to accept the new position. 

 
,n the event it is necessary for the Company to demote a �Working )oreman�woman,� as defined 
in Subsection 1�.7�c� for failure to discharge the duties of their position, the identical procedures 
of notice to 8nion, investigation and review procedure for appointment as outlined in Subsection 
1�.7�b�, shall be used prior to completion of demotion. 

 
1�.9 All bids shall be submitted through the electronic application tracking system used by the Company. ,f a 

prospective bidder is unable to access the internet during the bidding period, then they may reTuest via 
email that +uman 5esources submit a bid on their behalf.  7he Company will not consider any bid 
submitted later than the closing date on the posted bid�Mob announcement form.   

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 32

1�.1� �a� Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Company need not consider the bid of any 
employee who does not possess the knowledge, skill, efficiency, adaptability and physical ability 
reTuired for the Mob on which the bid is made. 

�b� Company need not consider the bid of any employee for a posted Mob vacancy in another 
occupational group, if the employee has not worked for a minimum of 9� days in their present 
classification within the occupational group in which they are currently employed.  7he 
provisions of Section 1�.1��c� are not to be construed as placing any time limitation upon the 
subseTuent advancement of any employee within the line of progression in the occupational 
group to which they are Tualified to bid. �Amended 7�1�12� 

 
�c� Company will not consider the bid of any employee in an Apprentice classification for a posted 

Mob vacancy in another Apprentice classification.  �Amended 1�1�95� 
 
�d� Company will not consider the bid of any employee for an apprenticeship who has not met the 

reTuirements of the -oint Apprenticeship 7raining Committee.  �Added 5�1�83� 
 
�e� 7he Company will not consider the bid of an employee for any position if the employee has an 

overall unsatisfactory appraisal in their current classification.  �Added 1�1�95� 
 
1�.11 �'eleted 5�1�82� 
 
1�.12 7he seniority rights of employees who are members of the Armed )orces shall accrue while they are 

absent on military duty. 
 
1�.13  %oth the Company and 8nion recogni]e that there will arise situations with respect to partially 

incapacitated employees, employees displaced by new technologies or revisions of operational 
procedures, employees who are temperamentally unsuited to their Mobs, employees returning from 
military service �other than annual field training� or employees who are displaced either directly or 
indirectly by other employees returning from military service with the Armed )orces of the 8nited States 
�other than annual field training� who have been granted leaves of absence by the Company under 
Section 8.2 of the Agreement, and that in such cases the bidding procedure may be waived by mutual 
agreement in order to properly protect the seniority of employees who have given long and faithful 
service. 7he Company will discuss such cases with the 8nion as far in advance as possible with the 
obMect of avoiding any ineTuitable situations, which might result.  %oth parties will endeavor to provide 
for retention of employees in the Company, in Mobs suitable to their capabilities, first in the areas where 
they are employed at the time, or secondly in other areas of the Company
s operations.  ,f after full 
discussion of such cases and survey of all possibilities available to the solution of the problem, the 8nion 
and the Company are unable to agree on a satisfactory solution, the Company shall have the right to 
make changes or layoffs as it may deem necessary, consistent with the provisions of the Agreement.  
Should a partially incapacitated employee, an employee displaced by new technologies or revisions of 
operational procedures, or an employee who is temperamentally unsuited to their Mob, or employees 
returning from military service �other than annual field training� or employees who are displaced either 
directly or indirectly by another employee returning from military service with the Armed )orces of the 
8nited States �other than annual field training� who have been granted leaves of absence by the 
Company under Section 8.2 of the Agreement, agree to be transferred to work falling outside of the 
%argaining 8nit, and should the employee not prove to be satisfactory in this assignment, Company and 
8nion may mutually agree to waive the bidding procedure and return the employee to a %argaining 8nit 
Mob suitable to his�her capabilities, under the provisions of this Section. 

  
1�.14  After attainment of Mourneyman status through the Apprenticeship Program, the Company need not 

consider the Mourneyman¶s bid back into another Apprentice Program for a period of one year.  �Added 
1�1�98� 

  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 33

7,7L( 17 
(;P(NS(S 

17.1 �a� 8pon mutual agreement between the Company and the employee, the employee may provide 
their own regular meals on an out�of�town work assignment as outlined in Section 17.8�a� and 
be reimbursed by the Company the meals for which the employee Tualified during each day of 
the assignment.  7he reimbursed price will be the base cost of the appropriate meal as outlined 
in 17.1, e[cluding ta[ and tip. �Added 5�1�8���Amended 7�1�12� 

�b� 7he provisions of this 7itle shall be applied in a reasonable manner by the Company and the 
8nion to conform to the intent of the parties, namely, that the Company will provide adeTuate 
meals when employees are prevented from observing their normal meal practices, and such 
other meals as provided for in this 7itle.  7ime necessary to consume the meals shall be 
considered as time worked.  8nion will cooperate with the Company to insure that the time 
necessary to consume meals will not be e[cessive.  Company shall have right to consider 
e[cessive time taken to consume meals as time not worked. 

Definitions

�Normal 0eal Practice�� 

%reakfast� 7he two �2� hour period immediately proceeding the time corresponding to an 
employee
s regular starting time on regular work days. 

 
Lunch� )rom four �4� hours after the time corresponding to an employee
s 5egular starting time 

on 5egular workdays to five �5� hours after this starting time. 
 
'inner� )rom one and one half �1.5� hours after the time corresponding to an employee
s 

regular Tuitting time on regular work days to two and one half �2.5� hours after this 
Tuitting time.  

 
�Amended 7�1�12� 

 
7he meal practices observed on workdays shall prevail on non�work days. 

 
�AdeTuate 0eal�� 

1. %eginning on )ebruary 19, 2�18, all earned meals will be credited at �32.17 per meal.  Credit 
will appear on the paycheck following the pay period in which the meal was earned. 7his dollar 
amount will be adMusted annually pursuant to the CP, ,nde[ identified as the ³)ood Away )rom 
+ome´ for the preceding calendar year. 

 
2. (ach earned meal will be compensated for 45 minutes at the appropriate overtime rate so long 

as the meal is not consumed on company time. 
 

3. An employee taking an earned meal at the conclusion of their work must return company vehicle 
to the employee¶s regular reporting place and sign off prior to consuming the earned meal.  
�Added 7�1�12� 

 
4. �'eleted 7�1�12� 

 
�7ime Necessary to Consume�� 

Parties recogni]e that certain meals may take more or less than thirty �3�� minutes to consume.  Any 
e[cessive time may be subMect to Mustification. 

 
17.2 ,f Company reTuires an employee to perform work for one and one�half �1 1�2� hours or more beyond 

regular work hours, it shall provide them with a meal appro[imately one and one�half �1 1�2� hours after 
regular Tuitting time and with meals thereafter of appro[imately four �4� but not more than five �5� hours 
for as long as they continue to work, insofar as it is possible for the Company to do so. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 34

17.3 �a� 2n callout overtime, outside of regular hours on work days, the Company shall provide� 
breakfast, if callout work begins prior to two �2� hours before the time corresponding to the 
employee
s regular starting time on regular work days.  Lunch, if callout work begins prior to two 
�2� hours before the time corresponding to the employee
s regular starting time on regular work 
days and they have Tualified for a lunch through time worked.  Neither breakfast nor lunch, if 
callout work begins two �2� hours or less before the time corresponding to the employee
s 
regular starting time on regular work days, unless the employee has not been allowed sufficient 
time by their Supervisor, at the Supervisor
s discretion, to eat their breakfast and prepare their 
lunch before reporting for work. 

 
2ther meals will be provided at intervals of appro[imately four �4� hours but not more than five 
�5� insofar as it is possible for the Company to do so and for so long as the work continues.  
Where any such work e[tends into regular work hours the normal meal hours as defined in 
Section 17.1 shall apply.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
�b� 2n callout overtime on non�work days, Company will furnish meals at intervals of appro[imately 

four �4� but not more than five �5� hours, for as long as such work continues insofar as it is 
possible to do so. 

 
�c� 4ualifying time for the ne[t meal period shall begin upon completion of previous meal. �Added 

7�1�12� 
 

Normal meal practice shall prevail for work performed during those hours described in Section 17.1.  
�Amended 5�1�81� 

 
17.4 �a� 2n prearranged overtime assignments, Company will provide breakfast if such work begins 

prior to two �2� hours before the time corresponding to the employee
s regular starting time on 
workdays and non�work days.  ,f such work begins two �2� hours or less before the time 
corresponding to the employee
s regular starting time on a work day or a non�work day the 
normal meal practice relating to work days shall prevail.  ,f such work continues, Company will 
furnish meals in accordance with Section 17.2 for the duration of the assignment.  �Amended 
5�1�81� 

 
�b� ,f such prearranged overtime is wholly outside of regularly scheduled work hours on either work 

days or non�work days, employee shall be eligible for one �1� meal on the Mob and shall be 
allowed thirty �3�� minutes for consumption of such meal, appro[imately four �4� but not more 
than five �5� hours after beginning work, to be considered as time worked.  ,f such work 
continues, Section 17.2 or 17.3 will be applicable.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
17.5 ,t shall be the obligation of Company to provide meal time to any employee whose normal meal practices, 

as herein defined, are disrupted.  7hese meal times shall be given as nearly as possible, to the normal 
time for eating regular meals.   

 
17.� ,f an employee is called out during a period defined in the ³Normal 0eal Practice´ but actually reports to 

work after the ³Normal 0eal Practice´ period, the employee shall be credited the earned meal amount 
pursuant to Section 17.1.  Such employee will not be eligible for 45 minutes to consume said meal.  
�Amended 7�1�12� 

 
17.7 Nothing in the proceeding Sections of this 7itle shall be construed as altering in any way the lunchtime 

provisions set forth in 7itle �. 
 
17.8 �a� 5egular employees who are assigned to temporary work at such distance from their 

headTuarters that it is impractical for them to return thereto or to their regular place of abode, 
shall be allowed actual personal e[pense for board and lodging for the duration of such 
assignment, provided they board and lodge at places to be designated by Company.  8nder 
such circumstances, the Company designated lodging will be the reporting place.  �Amended 
1�1�95� 

 
�b� 7he subsistence allowance will not be applicable if board and�or lodging are provided by the 

Company.  8pon the approval of the Company, any employee electing to provide their own 
living accommodations and meals in lieu of those provided by the Company will be� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 35

(ach night
s stay of the work assignment�  �85.��  (ffective 1�1��3 
 
7he last day of the whole aforementioned assignment�  �42.5�  (ffective 1�1��3 

 
7he dollar amount prescribed above will be adMusted based on Section 274 of the 
,nternal 5evenue Code, 7reasury 5egulations and Administrative ,nterpretations.  
�Amended 1�1�95� 

 
(mployees working a five �5� day work week and electing to remain within the proMect area on 
their two �2� non�work days will not be entitled to the subsistence allowance for the non�work 
days.  ,f assigned to work si[ ��� days during the workweek, the subsistence allowance will be 
granted for each of the seven �7� days in the workweek. 
 
An employee shall not be entitled to the subsistence allowance for any day they are absent from 
duty for personal reasons. 
 
,n the event of the illness of an employee, subsistence allowance shall be granted only for the 
first regularly scheduled workday.  ,f such illness e[ceeds one �1� regularly scheduled workday, 
employees shall be encouraged to seek proper medical attention at facilities properly eTuipped 
to render same. 
 
7ransportation and allowances shall be provided to employees by the Company in accordance 
with the terms of Sections 17.8�a� and 17.9 of the Agreement, e[cept that time spent by 
employees traveling in their personal vehicles to the proMect at the beginning of the employee
s 
assignment and from the proMect at the end of the employee
s assignment shall not be 
considered as time worked. 
 
A travel allowance eTual to that provided for under 7itle 5, Section 5.1, for one �1� round trip, 
will be allowed each employee providing their own living accommodations and meals under the 
following conditions�  �Amended 1�1�95� 

 
1. 7ravel to the proMect at the beginning of the employee
s assignment and from the 

proMect at the end of the employee
s assignment. 
 
2. 7ravel from one �1� temporary reporting place designated by Company to another such 

Company designated temporary reporting place within the proMect for the purpose of 
relocating an employee
s personal living accommodations. 

 
(mployees will be reTuired to report for work at the established starting time and at the 
temporary�reporting place designated by Company.  ,t is understood that the temporary 
reporting place designated by Company may change from time to time due to changes in 
Company
s operational reTuirements.  Such changes shall occur at Company
s option. 
 
(mployees receiving the subsistence allowance in accordance with the foregoing provisions 
shall report for work on the first scheduled work day of the work week, at the established starting 
time, at the temporary reporting place designated by Company. 
 
(mployees providing their own living accommodations and meals shall accept full responsibility 
for the health, welfare and safety of any family members or personal property taken with them 
while on this Mob assignment.  (mployees shall hold the Company harmless of any and all 
liability involving family members, friends, personal property or eTuipment.  �Amended 5�1�82� 

 
�c� (mployees who are assigned to temporary out�of�town, overnight work assignments, as 

outlined in Sections 17.8�a� and 17.8�b�, shall be paid an additional �2.�� per hour out�of�town 
premium, commencing on departure the first work day and ending on the start of the last work 
day after the last night
s stay.  Such premium shall be paid for the duration of the assignment, 
e[cluding days not worked, even though such assignment may be interrupted by weekends or 
authori]ed days off during which the employee returns to their regular place of abode.  
�Amended 1�1�95� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 36

No out�of�town premium shall be applicable for one �1� night out�of�town assignments.  When 
out�of�town premium is applicable to time worked at the overtime rate of pay, the overtime rate 
shall be applied to the out�of�town work premium. 
 
2ut�of�town premium shall be applicable only for hours considered time worked and shall not 
be paid for non�work time such as sick leave, time of own accord, etc.  �Added 5�1�83� (ffective 
5�1�84� 

 
17.9 ,f on their non�work days any such employees remain at such designated places, their e[penses for 

board and lodging on such days shall be paid by Company, but if they go elsewhere for their personal 
convenience Company shall not reimburse them for any e[pense they incur thereby.  ,f any such 
employees return to their homes on their non�work days, Company at its option shall �1� allow them the 
eTuivalent of any saving it reali]es in their board and lodging costs, or �2� reimburse them for the 
e[penses of round�trip transportation by public carrier, or �3� provide round�trip transportation by 
Company vehicle, if such travel is at Company
s reTuest.  ,n the event that any such employees board 
and lodge at a Company boarding house, the allowance which may be made by reason of the saving in 
board and lodging cost will be based on the established charge to employees who regularly board and 
lodge at such boarding houses. 

 
17.1� An employee who is reTuired to change their residence from one �1� locality to another for the Company
s 

convenience, shall be eligible for authori]ed relocation e[penses �Company reserves the right to select 
approved e[penses� consistent with the current Company policy�procedure if the employee
s place of 
residence is at least 5� miles from their�her new headTuarters.  7his benefit does not apply if the move 
results from an employee e[ercising their�her rights under 7itle 1�, e[cept when there is only one 
Tualified bidder for a Mourneyman or above Mob, Tualified moving e[penses, not to e[ceed �2,��� with a 
limit on availability to said bidder once every five years, will be available.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
17.11 �'eleted 5�1�91� 
 
17.12 ,nsofar as possible, the Company will give at least one �1� day
s notice to an employee who is to be sent 

out of town for work in order that the employee may have time to prepare for the trip.  7he cost of 
Company provided meals for which the employee Tualifies during each day of such assignments shall 
not e[ceed the aggregate of the meal allowances specified in Section 17.1 for such meals.   

 
17.13 2n optional or voluntary training related travel out of the Company¶s service territory, the following shall 

apply� 
 

• Company to reimburse for actual e[penses.   
• 2ut�of�town premium will not be in effect.   
• No overtime will be paid� however, Company 0anagement to be sympathetic to travel 

connections and delays. �Added 1�1�98� 

7,7L( 18 
APP5(N7,C(S+,P 

18.1 �a� A committee, known as the -oint Apprenticeship 7raining Committee �-A7C�, shall be 
established for the purpose of working out apprenticeship problems. 

 
�b� 7he -A7C shall be comprised of two �2� members appointed by the Company and two �2� 

members appointed by the 8nion.  �Amended 1�1�95� �Amended 7�1��9� 
 
�c� 7he -A7C members shall serve from the date of their appointment until their successors are 

duly selected. 
 
�d� ,n addition to the two �2� Company 5epresentatives, the Company can elect a Chairperson who 

shall remain a non�voting member of the Committee.  ,n addition to the 8nion 5epresentatives, 
the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative shall remain a non�voting member. �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
�e� 7he chairman will be responsible for an agenda of, and presiding over, scheduled meetings.  

7he secretary shall record the minutes of each meeting and distribute them to all appropriate 
persons. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 37

�f� -A7C meetings shall be held Tuarterly or as designated by the Chairman.  �Amended 5�1�82� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
18.2 7he -A7C shall have the responsibility for developing new apprenticeship programs, amending e[isting 

apprenticeship programs, and investigating problems related to such areas as entrance reTuirements, 
standards of progress, methods of testing and scoring, apprenticeship working conditions, and 
procedures for removal or free]ing when apprentices fail to meet established reTuirements.  �Amended 
5�1�82� 

 
18.3 7he Company shall not be liable for lost time or e[penses of the 8nion appointed members of the -A7C. 
 
18.4 Any programs or plans which may be agreed upon by the -A7C with reference to items listed in 18.2 

shall be reduced to writing and upon approval and acceptance by the *eneral 0anager of the Company 
or designee and the %usiness 0anager of the 8nion, such supplemental agreements shall constitute an 
amendment to this Agreement as of the date specified in such supplementary agreement.  �Amended 
��11��1� 

 
18.5 �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
18.� When an apprentice in any formali]ed Apprenticeship 7raining Program has completed si[ ��� months 

at the top step of their apprentice wage progression and has successfully met all reTuirements for 
advancement to -ourneyman status, they shall automatically be reclassified to the classification and 
wage rate of a -ourneyman within the 'epartment in which their apprenticeship has been served, and 
the Company shall not be reTuired to post a -ourneyman vacancy.  When an apprentice has reached 
the top step of their wage progression and has successfully met all reTuirements for advancement to 
-ourneyman status, they may be, at Company
s discretion, reclassified to the classification and wage 
rate of -ourneyman within the 'epartment in which their apprenticeship has been served, and the 
Company shall not be reTuired to post a -ourneyman vacancy.  �Amended 5�1�81� 

 
18.7 All apprenticeship Mob vacancies will be filled in accordance with the provisions of Section 1�.1� of this 

Agreement.  �Added 5�1�83� 
 
18.8 )rom the date an apprentice voluntarily drops out of an apprenticeship, they shall not be eligible to bid 

another apprenticeship for a two �2� year period. �Added 7�1��9� 

7,7L( 19 
0,SC(LLAN(28S 

19.1 No employee shall be reTuired to be �on call.�  An employee placed on standby duty shall be considered 
working and shall receive pay as such.  Provisions to this section do not apply to the (mergency 
5esponse Program �Attachment V,,,�.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
19.2 �'eleted 5�1�8�� 
 
19.3 7he Company does not plan to contract work it normally does and agrees that in no case will it lay off 

employees as the result of work contracted.  7he Company has the right to enter in contracts.  7he 
Company will review on a Tuarterly basis, in the labor management committee, the status of the outside 
contracts.  �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
19.4 Company shall not, by reason of the e[ecution of this Agreement, abrogate or reduce the scope of any 

present plan or rule beneficial to employees, which is not specifically covered by this Agreement. 
 
19.5 -ob descriptions are not intended to be so restrictive as to prohibit performance of work not specifically 

mentioned in the Mob descriptions themselves.  Such work assignments shall be in accordance with 
Section 4.3 of the Agreement. 

 
19.� Nothing herein contained shall be construed as to limit the right of the Company to determine the 

character, e[tent and methods of its operations, the amount of production, the number of employees 
reTuired in total and in the specific classifications of work. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 38

19.7 7he Company will furnish for use by employees all special tools it deems necessary that may be reTuired 
by any classification in the performance of the Mob therein.  7he Company will replace all personal hand 
tools, as normally purchased by the Company, which are worn out in the service of the Company and 
are turned in to the Company for replacement. 

19.8 ,f any part or portion of this contract is determined to be invalid or be superseded by either state or 
)ederal law, by a court of competent Murisdiction, the remaining portions of the contract shall, remain in 
full force and effect.  ,f the invalid or superseded part is a mandatory subMect of collective bargaining 
under N5S 288.15� �in effect as of the date of this Agreement�, the Company and the 8nion agree to 
meet within �� days following such determination to negotiate the invalid or superseded provision. 

19.9 7o facilitate and promote effective communication, cooperation, and early resolution of disputes and 
issues, the Company and 8nion agree to form a Labor 0anagement Committee �L0C�.  7he L0C is 
intended to facilitate communication between the Company and the bargaining unit employees by 
providing a forum for discussion and collaborative problem�solving relating to�  

 
�a� 0atters arising from the provisions of this Agreement 
�b� Administration of this Agreement 
�c� ([changing general information of interest to the parties 
�d� ,tems which affect the working conditions of employees 

7he L0C shall be comprised of up to four �4� management employees appointed by the Company and 
up to four �4� bargaining unit employees appointed by the 8nion.  Attendance by bargaining unit 
employees at L0C meetings shall be without loss of pay, but no employee shall be eligible for any 
overtime pay for their participation on the L0C.  (mployees shall not be compensated for off�duty 
attendance at L0C meetings. 
 
7he L0C shall meet monthly unless otherwise agreed to by the Company and 8nion.  L0C meetings 
may, if agreed to by the Company and the 8nion, be attended by non�committee member employees.  
7wo days prior to each scheduled meeting, the Company and the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative agree 
to provide the other party with agenda items.  ,f there are no agenda items, then the meeting may be 
canceled.  7he Company shall prepare notes of each meeting, which may be published by the Company 
in the form of a ³%rief´ on the Company intranet after they are approved by the 8nion %usiness 
5epresentative. 
 
L0C members may make recommendations, however, the L0C shall have no independent authority to 
implement or amend policies, rules, procedures or practices. L0C member recommendations shall be 
referred to the appropriate Company management employee and a response shall be provided at a 
subseTuent meeting. 5ecommendations related to matters of mandatory collective bargaining, or 
provisions or administration of this Agreement must be referred to the appropriate Company 
management employee and the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative. 
 
7he L0C may not supersede any processes, rights or obligations otherwise provided by this Agreement.  
No discussion or consideration of any item before the L0C shall be deemed as a limitation on the 
Company¶s or 8nion¶s rights under this Agreement.  L0C meetings shall not bypass the grievance 
procedure or be used to discuss grievances and shall not be considered negotiation sessions for the 
purposes of collective bargaining.  

 
19.1� 7he Company and 8nion recogni]e that the use of ³Smart Phone´ technology in the workplace can 

potentially enhance productivity and be of benefit to both the employee and the company. %ecause of 
this, the company is authori]ing a voluntary allowance provided on a monthly basis of �75.�� for 
employees who maintain a ³Smart Phone.´ 7he company will determine classifications that are 
authori]ed to receive this special ³Smart Phone´ allowance. �Added 7�1�12� 

  
19.11 Severance benefits shall be provided pursuant to the Company¶s %argaining 8nit (mployees Severance 

Pay Plan, which became effective -anuary 1, 1995, for employees laid off through the application of 7itle 
23.  �Added 1�1�95� Amended ��11��1�. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 39

Bargaining Unit Employees Severance Pay Plan

(mployees are eligible for ³severance program´ options if they are determined to be no longer reTuired due to 
displacement as a result of a lack of work, a sale, divestiture, merger, or any other business event as defined by 
the Company.  Affected (mployee is defined as an employee in a specific classification and location. 
 
�See 19.1� �d�, Severance Program )low Chart.� 
 

�a� N27,),CA7,2N 2) ,N',V,'8ALS�  Company will notify 8nion and employees affected as soon 
as possible. 

 
�b� PLAC(0(N7�  Company and 8nion will work to place Affected (mployees in available positions 

for which they are Tualified� 
 

1. Volunteers will be reTuested and selected by Company seniority.  ,f there are no 
volunteers, reverse seniority will be used to select Affected (mployees for severance 
program. 

 
2. Affected (mployee�s� may be offered a comparable position >defined as the same 

headTuarters location �i.e., 5eno�Sparks will be considered one location� and same 
wage �i.e., comparable or higher wage if Tualified�@.  7he Affected (mployee will have 
five �5� working days to notify the Company of their decision.  ,f the Affected (mployee 
accepts the position, it will be awarded to them at the appropriate wage rate.  ,f the 
Affected (mployee refuses the position, he�she will be terminated with no severance.  
�Amended ��11��1�  

 
3. An Affected (mployee offered non�comparable position �defined as reTuiring 

relocation of greater than a 35�mile radius and�or wage reduction�� 
 

�a� 7he Affected (mployee will have five �5� days to notify the Company of their 
decision to accept the offer at the appropriate wage rate. 

 
�b� ,f an Affected (mployee accepts and is awarded the position, he�she will be 

eligible for retraining, if reTuired, and up to �2��� relocation e[pense. 
 
�c� ,f an Affected (mployee declines, he�she will be eligible for� 

 
1. Severance defined as� 

 
• 7wo �2� weeks of pay for each year of service, with a ma[imum of 52 

weeks 
• A lump sum payment of �4,5�� for training or outplacement services 
• Si[ ��� months of Company�paid C2%5A 

 
�c� ,f an Affected (mployee declines Severance, they will be eligible for consideration under 7itle 

23, 'emotion and Layoff Procedure �bumping�. 
 
�d� Severance )low Chart � �this chart should only be used as a guide when reviewing Section 

19.1�� 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 40

Severance Plan )low Chart 19.1� �d�
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 41

7,7L( 2� 
S8PPL(0(N7AL %(N(),7S )25 ,N'8S75,AL ,N-85Y 

2�.1 When an employee is absent by reason of inMury which comes within the application of the Nevada 
,ndustrial ,nsurance Act, the Nevada 2ccupational 'iseases Act, they shall be entitled to supplementary 
benefits for the duration of such temporary disability.  %enefits shall begin with the first work day of 
absence following the day of inMury.  7he amount of Supplemental benefit payable for each day of 
absence shall be 85� of the employee
s basic daily wage less the sum of any payments to which they 
may be entitled under the aforementioned acts or any other acts applying to the case.  7he Company 
will investigate any employee off work on industrial inMury.  ,f there is reason to believe that the intent 
and�or benefits of this section are being abused, the supplemental benefit will be terminated.  After si[ 
��� months off on industrial inMury the employee will no longer accrue vacation or sick leave until such 
time as they report back to work.  5eference is hereby made to Section 1�.13, relative to employees 
permanently inMured in the Company
s services.  �Amended ��11��1� 

7,7L( 21
*5,(VANC( P52C('85( 

21.1 Any grievance which may arise between 8nion or any employee in a %argaining 8nit classification and 
Company with respect to the interpretation or application of any of the terms of this Agreement and with 
respect to such matters as the alleged discriminatory or arbitrary discharge, discipline, or demotion of 
an individual employee shall be processed through the procedure set forth in the following paragraphs 
of this 7itle. 

 
21.2 An ,nvestigating Committee shall be established and shall consist of at least two �2� members, one �1� 

appointed by 8nion and one �1� by Company.  �Amended 1�1�95� 
 
21.3 A -oint *rievance Committee shall be established consisting of four �4� members appointed by 8nion, 

one �1� of which will be the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative, and four �4� members appointed by 
Company.  7he *rievance Committee shall meet at a time and place to be designated by mutual consent 
of the members thereof.  7he meetings shall be limited to one �1� per month but need not be held each 
month if there is a lack of business for the Committee to conduct. 

 
21.4 �a� S7(P 1 � As the initial step in the adMustment of an alleged grievance of an employee, the 8nion 

Shop Steward shall discuss same with the Supervisor in charge and the 8nion Shop Steward 
shall inform the Supervisor that this is the first step of the grievance procedure.  7he Supervisor 
shall have five �5� working days from date of notification to give their verbal response. 

 
�b� S7(P 2 � ,f they are unable to resolve the alleged grievance as provided in Subsection 21.4�a�, 

the 8nion Shop Steward shall present a written statement of the alleged grievance to the 
Supervisor in charge within five �5� working days after completion of the first step.  Such 
grievance report form shall have been approved by Company and 8nion.  7he Supervisor shall 
present their answer in writing on grievance form to the 8nion Shop Steward as soon as 
possible, but in no event more than ten �1�� working days from the date 8nion Shop Steward 
presents the written statement of the alleged grievance to the Supervisor in charge. 

 
�c� 'iscussions between 8nion Shop Steward and the Supervisor may be on Company time but 

shall be at such time and place as not to interfere with the work in progress. 
 
�d� *rievances shall be introduced at the initial step of the grievance procedure within the time 

limits specified in subsection �1� and �2� hereof� 
 

1. A grievance involving the alleged discriminatory or arbitrary discharge of an employee 
shall be introduced at the initial step of the grievance procedure not later than ten �1�� 
working days after an employee discharge becomes effective.  Company shall answer, 
in writing, within five �5� working days after receipt of 8nion
s written grievance. 

2. *rievances as described in Section 21.1 other than specified in �1� above shall be 
introduced at the initial step of the grievance procedure not later than thirty �3�� calendar 
days after the date of the incident or action complained of which is the basis of the 
grievance, or in a situation beyond the control of the employee, thirty �3�� calendar days 
after the date the employee became aware of said incident or action. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 42

21.5 S7(P 3 � ,f the 8nion Shop Steward and Supervisor involved are not able to reach an agreement on the 
disposition of a grievance, or if the Company fails to answer within the time limit above, it may be referred 
by the Shop Steward to the 8nion
s %usiness 5epresentative.  ,f the alleged grievance is not presented 
to the third step of the grievance procedure within ten �1�� working days after receiving the Supervisor
s 
answer in Step 2� the grievance shall be considered closed.  7he 8nion
s %usiness 5epresentative may 
present such grievance in duplicate on the proper form to the Labor 5elations 0anager, or alternate.  
7he form shall be completed by the Company and returned to the 8nion
s Committee Chairman within 
ten �1�� working days from receipt thereof. 

 
21.� �a� S7(P 4 � ,f no settlement is reached at Step 3, or the Company fails to submit a written answer 

within the specified time limit, the 8nion may refer such alleged grievance to the ne[t step of 
the grievance procedure, which is the -oint *rievance Committee. 

 
�b� ,f the grievance is not settled as provided in Sections 21.4 and 21.5, it shall be discussed by the 

-oint *rievance Committee at its ne[t regular meeting.  7he Committee shall consider 
grievances referred to it as provided in Section 21.5 and shall conscientiously endeavor to effect 
their settlement. 7he decision of this Committee shall be final and binding upon both parties.  
0inutes shall be kept of the Committee
s proceedings and the disposition of all grievances shall 
be recorded. 

 
�c� All grievances will be processed in the manner prescribed in Sections 21.4 and 21.5 and 21.��a� 

e[cept those involving alleged discriminatory or arbitrary discharge, discipline, or demotion of 
an individual employee, which, if not settled in the manner prescribed in Sections 21.4 and 21.5 
shall be referred directly to the ,nvestigating Committee. 7he ,nvestigating Committee shall 
make a complete investigation of all the facts pertinent to the grievance and shall strive to reach 
agreement on disposition of the grievance. 7heir agreement shall be recorded and shall be final 
and binding on Company, 8nion and the aggrieved employee.  ,f the Committee is unable to 
reach agreement, it shall refer the grievance to the ne[t regular meeting of the -oint *rievance 
Committee with a full and complete report of its investigation and the separate 
recommendations of the ,nvestigating Committee members. Company and 8nion agree that 
they will attempt to settle grievances involving alleged discriminatory or arbitrary discharge of 
an individual employee as e[peditiously as possible. 

 
21.7 S7(P 5 � ,f a satisfactory settlement cannot be reached by the -oint *rievance Committee in two �2� 

consecutive meetings �unless mutually otherwise agreed�, it shall be referred to the 5eview Committee, 
such committee to be composed of a 8nion 5epresentative and a representative of the Company who 
were not involved in any of the preceding grievance steps.  7he Company representative shall not 
directly supervise any party involved in the grievance.  7his Committee shall meet within thirty �3�� 
working days after the date the case is referred to the Committee, and shall endeavor to make a decision 
based on the record referred to it. ,t may, in its discretion, return the grievance to the -oint Committee 
with a reTuest for further investigation and consideration by that Committee. ,t may, at its discretion, 
conduct a hearing on any grievance submitted to it. 7his Committee shall be authori]ed to make a 
decision, which shall be final and binding on Company and 8nion.  ,f the members agree on the 
disposition of a grievance a statement to that effect shall be signed by the members.  �Amended ��12���� 

 
21.8 S7(P � � ,f a satisfactory settlement cannot be reached under the foregoing procedure, either party may 

refer the case to arbitration by notifying the other in writing to that effect.  Within twenty�one �21� days of 
such notice, 8nion and Company shall each notify the other of the persons appointed to act as their 
representative on the Arbitration %oard.  An Arbitration %oard shall be appointed on each occasion that 
a grievance is submitted to arbitration.  7he %oard shall be composed of three �3� members, one �1� to 
be appointed by 8nion� one �1� to be appointed by the Company.  At the earliest convenience of the 
representatives after their appointment, they shall meet for the purpose of selecting the third member 
who will serve as Chairman of the %oard.  ,n the event the parties are unable to agree on a person to 
act as a third member, within forty�eight �48� hours they shall Mointly reTuest the 'irector of )ederal 
0ediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of five �5� persons Tualified to act as a third member.  
After receipt of such list, the 8nion and Company shall alternately challenge two �2� names, the party to 
have first choice to be determined by lot.  7he remaining name shall be accepted as Chairman of the 
%oard.  7he Arbitration %oard shall hear all evidence and arguments on the points in dispute and the 
written decision of a maMority of the members of such %oard shall be final and binding upon the parties 
hereto.  7he %oard shall have Murisdiction and authority to interpret and apply the provisions of this 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 43

Agreement, insofar as shall be necessary to the determination of the grievance of complaint, but it shall 
not have Murisdiction or authority to alter in any way the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
7he %oard may make such retroactive award, or settlement, of any grievance or complaint as the eTuities 
of the case may demand, but in no event shall any award be retroactive beyond the date of the 
occurrence of the latest incident which gave rise to the grievance, nor shall any award be retroactive for 
more than one �1� year prior to date of submission of grievance at Step 3.  7he Company and the 8nion 
shall each bear the e[pense of its own representatives.  7he e[pense of the third party shall be borne 
eTually by the Company and the 8nion.  (ither party may call any employee as a witness in any 
proceeding before the Arbitration %oard, and if the employee is on duty, the Company agrees to release 
such employee from duty so they may appear as a witness.  ,f an employee is called to appear before 
the %oard, the party calling the witness will reimburse them for all e[penses including time lost. 

 
21.9 7he disTualification of a preferred bidder as provided in Section 1�.5 to a Mob classification listed in 

([hibit C by reason of Company application of Section 1�.1� shall be referred to 8nion
s member of the 
,nvestigating Committee. 7he 8nion
s member shall within fourteen �14� calendar days notify Company 
member that an investigation is desired. ,f no notification is made the award shall be made permanent. 
Where notification is given the Committee shall make a complete investigation of all the facts pertinent 
to the grievance and this investigation shall substitute as the initial step in the adMustment of a grievance 
provided in Section 21.4. Such investigation shall commence as soon as reasonably possible after 
referral and the Committee shall diligently carry on its investigation and shall strive to reach agreement 
on disposition of the grievance. 7heir agreement shall be recorded and shall be final and binding on 
Company, 8nion and the aggrieved employee.  ,f the Committee is unable to reach agreement it shall 
refer the grievance to the ne[t regular meeting of the -oint *rievance Committee with a full and complete 
report of its investigation and the separate recommendations of the Committee members. 

7,7L( 22 
(0PL2Y(( %(N(),7 P52*5A0S 

7he Company maintains the right to make administrative changes to any benefit plan that will not adversely affect 
the employee¶s benefit or cost of such benefit but may reduce the Company¶s obligation.  7hese changes will be 
reviewed and discussed with the -oint Wages and %enefits Committee. 
 
([cept in the event of the election of a different funding medium by the Company, if any %enefit Plan is terminated 
or modified in such a manner that the benefits are reduced, the 8nion or Company shall have the right to open 
negotiations for the purpose of negotiating a replacement plan or program but for no other purpose.  �Amended 
7�1��9� 
 
22.1 5etirement 
 

�a� 7he retirement system for all 5egular employees shall be the Public (mployee 5etirement 
System of Nevada �P(5S� in accordance with applicable provisions of N5S.  

 
�b� 7he 5etirement rate of compensation will be in accordance with N5S Ch. 28�.  
 
�c� (ffective -uly 1, 2�17, Nevada P(5S rate increases or decreases shall be split eTually 

between the Company and the employee. 7he Wage Schedule and the wage of each 
employee shall be automatically decreased by one�half of any P(5S increase and increased 
by one�half of any P(5S rate decrease. 

 
22.2 Post 5etirement 0edical  
 

7he Company has established two separate trusts to assist retirees of 70WA with the payment of 
premiums for post�retirement medical and group life insurance. 7he first trust is referred to as ³7he 
7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority Post�5etirement 0edical Plan 	 7rust,´ and was established as a 
Voluntary (mployees¶ %enefit Association under Section 5�1�c��9� of the ,nternal 5evenue Code of 
198�, as amended �Code�, and is referred to herein as the V(%A 7rust.  7he second trust is referred to 
as the ³7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority 2P(% 7rust )und,´ and was established under Code Section 
115, and is referred to herein as the 115 7rust.   
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 44

7he following is provided for informational purposes only and should not be interpreted as amending or 
modifying the terms of the V(%A 7rust or the 115 7rust, the post�retirement benefits stated therein, or 
the Company¶s obligations under the 7rusts.  ,f information provided in their 7itle 22.2 contradicts or 
conflicts with the terms of the 7rusts, or any amendments thereto, then the terms of the 7rust are to 
control. 

 
1. V(%A 7rust %enefit�  7he V(%A 7rust has been established to provide retirees and their 

dependents with benefits to assist with the payment of premiums for post�retirement medical 
coverage and post�retirement group life insurance coverage. 7he benefits payable to 
participants under the V(%A 7rust will vary depending on whether the participant is classified 
as an ³,%(W 7ransfer (mployee,´ ³,%(W 7ransfer (mployee 5eceiving Sierra Plan %enefits,´ 
or ³2ther ,%(W (mployees.´ %argaining 8nit employees entitled to receive benefits under the 
115 7rust described in Section 7wo below are not eligible to receive benefits under the V(%A 
7rust. 

�a� (mployees who ³retire´ under the Tualified 5etirement Plan �minimum age 55 with at 
least 1� years of service�, are eligible for Post 5etirement 0edical benefits.  )or Post 
5etirement 0edical Plan provisions, refer to the 7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority 
Post�5etirement 0edical Plan 	 7rust.  �Amended ��12���� 

 
�b� (mployees retiring on or after -uly 1, 1998, who are under age �5, will pay 2�� of the 

applicable 0edical Plan premium �including 'ental and Vision�� plus an additional 4� 
of the applicable 0edical Plan premium �including 'ental and Vision� for each year 
less than 2� full years of Credited Service. 

 
�c� (mployees retiring on or after -anuary 1, 1998, who are age �5 or over, or who 

subseTuently become age �5, will be offered the same +02 group policies or plans 
offered by the Company that provide medical, dental, or vision coverage to as active 
%argaining 8nit employees, a 0edicare Supplement Plan �plan design to be 
determined and mutually agreed upon in the -oint Wages and %enefits Committee�, 
and a 0edicare 5isk Contract. 

 
�d� (mployees retiring on or after -uly 1, 1998, who are age �5 or over, will pay 15� of 

the applicable 0edical Plan premium �including 'ental and Vision�� plus an additional 
4� of the applicable 0edical Plan premium �including 'ental and Vision� for each year 
less than 2� full years of Credited Service.  ,f a retiree elects to participate in a 0edicare 
5isk Contract, the 15� premium will be waived� any additional premium for years of 
Credited Service less than 2� shall apply.  ,n additional, retirees age �5 or over are 
reTuired to enroll in and pay the cost of 0edicare Part ³%´ or 0edicare Part ³C´. 

 
�e� *randfathering�  (mployees who are age �� or greater with at least 1� years of service 

as of -uly 1, 1998, will not be reTuired to pay 2�� �or 15� if over age �5� of the 
applicable premium at the time they retire, but will be reTuired to pay 4� for each year 
less than 2� full years of Credited Service.  )or e[ample, an employee who turns �� 
on 0ay 1, 1998, but chooses to retire 0ay 1, 2��1, when they have 2� years of service, 
will not be reTuired to pay 2�� of their applicable 0edical Plan premium. 

 
�f� 5etirees may choose to waive their medical coverage at the time of retirement or any 

time thereafter.  Waiver is permanent. 
 
�g� 5etirees may change plans once each year during an annual open enrollment period 

without pre�e[isting e[clusions.  5etirees can change their coverage level �retiree only� 
retiree plus spouse� etc.� if they incur a family status change within the plan year. 

 
�h� 0edical Plan premiums will be actuarially determined each plan year.  5etirees will be 

rated separately from active employees for self�funded plans. 
 
�i� 8nless the parties design a more mutually acceptable plan, all new employees hired 

on or after -anuary 1, 1998, will receive an individual account balance for post 
retirement medical eTuivalent to �1,25� per year of Credited Service at the time they 
retire.  'etails of plan design and administration will be deferred to -oint Wages and 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 45

%enefits Committee prior to any employee first becoming eligible.  7he Company 
agrees to review current plan and determine if improvements can be made to plan. 
�Amended 7�1�12� 

 
2. )ormer Washoe County (mployees %enefit�  7heir Section applies only to former Washoe 

County employees who became Company employees through the -anuary 1, 2�15 merger of 
Washoe County Community Services 'epartment Water 8tility with and into the Company. 

�a� 7he 115 7rust has been established to provide the means to fund all or a portion of 
premiums for post�retirement medical coverage to the above�referenced former 
Washoe County employees.  7he benefits payable to participants under the 115 7rust 
will vary depending on whether the participant is classified as a ³7ier 1 5etiree´ �hired 
by Washoe County on or before September 1�, 1997� or a ³7ier ,, 5etiree´ �hired by 
Washoe County after September 1�, 1997 and before -uly 1, 2�12�. 

 
�b� %enefits for 7ier , 5etirees�  7he ma[imum benefits to be paid by the 115 7rust to 7ier 

, 5etirees shall be as follows� 

�1� )or 7ier , 5etirees with at least ten �1��, but less than fifteen �15�, years of 
combined full�time employment with Washoe County and the Company, the 
ma[imum benefits payable by the 115 7rust will be 5�� of the premium 
attributable for coverage of such retirees under the medical plans offered to 
7ier , 5etirees under the 115 7rust.  

 
�2� )or 7ier , 5etirees with at least fifteen �15�, but less than twenty �2��, years of 

combined full�time employment with Washoe County and the Company, the 
ma[imum benefits payable by the 115 7rust will be 75� of the premium 
attributable to medical coverage of such retirees under the medical plans 
offered to 7ier , 5etirees under the 115 7rust. 

 
�3� )or 7ier , 5etirees with twenty �2�� or more years of combined full�time 

employment with Washoe County and the Company, the ma[imum benefits 
payable by the 115 7rust will be 1��� of the premium attributable to medical 
care coverage of such retirees under the medical plans offered to 7ier , 
5etirees under the 115 7rust. 

 
�c� %enefits for 7ier ,, 5etirees�  7he ma[imum benefits to be paid by the 115 7rust to 7ier 

,, 5etires less than �5 years of age is to be the same amount of the premium paid for 
group health coverage by an employer for coverage of non�state employees under the 
Nevada State Public (mployee %enefit Plan �³P(%P´� 5etiree +ealth ,nsurance plan.  

�1� %y way of background, the 2��3 Nevada Legislature passed legislation 
�A%28�� that afforded public employees of Nevada political subdivisions the 
opportunity to enroll, upon their retirement, in the P(%P 5etiree +ealth 
,nsurance Plan. 7he 2��3 legislation also obligated public employers of said 
retirees who enrolled in the Plan to pay a portion of the medical premium on 
the retiree¶s behalf �the ³Subsidy´�. 7ier ,, 5etirees are entitled to receive their 
Subsidy from the 115 7rust for use towards their coverage under the medical 
plans offered under the 115 7rust rather than the P(%P 5etiree +ealth 
,nsurance Plan. 

  
�2� 7ier ,, 5etirees who have attained the 0edicare (ligibility Age �currently age 

�5� or older will receive the eTuivalent of the state of Nevada¶s 0edicare 
([change 5etiree +5A contribution subsidy based upon the combined 
number of years of service with Washoe County and the Company and must 
elect 0edicare coverage.  At that time, 0edicare then becomes the primary 
carrier, and the medical plans offered under the 115 7rust are to become 
secondary.  ,f the 0edicare (ligibility Age is revised, the revised age is to be 
substituted for the current 0edicare (ligibility Age of �5. 7o receive the 
benefits described in their paragraph, 7ier ,, 5etirees must be employees of 
the Company immediately prior to drawing their retirement benefits.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 46

N27(� 7he P(%P non�state retiree subsidy and 0edicare ([change 5etiree 
+5A Contribution subsidy amounts are revised annually by the state of 
Nevada. ,f these benefits are discontinued by the state of Nevada, then 7ier ,, 
5etirees shall continue to receive the same premium amount that they were 
entitled to receive during the last year that these benefits remained in effect. 
 

3.  %oard 5esolution 5egarding Post�5etirement +ealthcare %enefits 

Should the 70WA %oard adopt a resolution that decreases or eliminates post�retirement 
healthcare benefits for 70WA employees not covered under their Agreement, ,%(W agrees 
that the %oard¶s resolution will apply to all employees covered under this Agreement.  7he 
application of the %oard¶s resolution to all employees covered under this Agreement shall 
comply with the terms set out within the %oard¶s resolution in the same manner that said terms 
apply to employees not represented by this Agreement.  Any such resolutions shall apply to 
employees covered under this Agreement without the need for further negotiations.  7itle 22.2�3� 
applies only to employees hired on or after the date of the %oard¶s resolution regarding post�
retirement healthcare benefits. 

 
22.3 'eferred Compensation �457 and 4�1�a� Plans� 

 
�a� 7he Section 457 and 4�1�a� 'eferred Compensation Program for %argaining 8nit (mployees 

of 7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority is provided by the ,C0A 5etirement Corporation and are 
the Plans in effect during the term of this Contract.  )or more detailed information regarding the 
Plans, refer to the Plan 'ocument distributed by the Plan.  �Amended ��12���� 

 
�b� 7he Company will pay the normal administrative fee for all plan participants. 
 
�c� 7he ma[imum employee contribution is defined by )ederal law.�d� )or fiscal year 2��9�

2�1�, the Company will provide a match of one dollar ��1.��� for each dollar of employee 
contributions up to three �3� percent of the following total earnings� �amended ��11��3� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
(ffective -uly 1, 2�1�, the Company will provide a match of one dollar ��1.��� for each dollar of 
employee contributions up to the 70WA %oard of 'irectors approved percent adopted in 
5esolution No. � dated 0ay 9, 2��1, and applied on the following total earnings�  �Amended 
7�1��9� 
 
• %ase Pay 
• ,ncentive compensation 
• 2ut�of�7own 
• 8pgrade 
• Shift Premium 
• 2vertime 
• 5est Period 
• Pager Pay 
• Any other cash earnings 

 
�e� 7he investment options shall be those made available through the ,C0A 5etirement 

Corporation. 
 
�f� Changes to allocations, payroll deductions, etc., and transfers among funds can be done at any 

time. 
 
�g� Plan withdrawal is defined by )ederal law. 
 
�h� �'eleted ��12���� 

 
22.4 0edical, 'ental, and Vision  
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 47

�a� 7he 0edical, 'ental and Vision Plan for %argaining 8nit (mployees of 7ruckee 0eadows Water 
Authority shall be those provided to regular employees of the City of 5eno.  )or more detailed 
information regarding the 0edical Plans refer to the Summary Plan 'escriptions. 

 
�b� An ,nternal 5evenue Service Section 125 is established to allow pre�ta[ premium contributions. 
 
�c� 7he 0edical Plan provides the following three �3� options� 

 
1. A preferred provider plan 
 
2. A health maintenance plan 
 
3. No coverage, contingent upon proof of other insurance 

 
�d� (lections of medical plan options will be made each year during a switch enrollment period.  

7he election remains in effect for the entire Plan year, unless employee incurs a ³)amily Status 
Change´ as defined by ,nternal 5evenue Code Section 125. 

 
�e� 7he rate structure for the 0edical Plan options shall consist of four�tiers�  employee only� 

employee and spouse� employee and child or children� and, employee and family.  (mployee 
contributions will be made bi�weekly on a pre�ta[ basis. 

 
�f� 7he Company will pay one hundred �1��� percent of the premium for the employee only 

coverage premium. 
 
�g� 7he Company will pay fifty�five �55� percent of the dependent coverage premium.  (mployees 

working less than a full�time work schedule will be reTuired to pay a prorated premium for the 
employee only and dependent coverage categories based on the regular hours scheduled. 

 
�h� 7he rates and the level of benefits will be determined by the City of 5eno. 
 

22.5 *roup Life ,nsurance 
 

�a� All regular, full�time, %argaining 8nit employees shall have *roup Life ,nsurance coverage with 
a basic benefit level of one �1� times base salary.  (mployees who ³retire´ under the Nevada 
P(5S retirement system will continue with the amount in force at retirement until age 7� at 
which time it reduces to one�half of the amount.  At age 75, it reduces to �2,���. 

 
�b� 7he Company will provide %argaining 8nit employees the opportunity to purchase optional life 

insurance at employee cost.  7his will be in the form of group term life subMect to any underwriting 
restrictions imposed by the insurance carrier.  (mployee contributions will be made bi�weekly 
on a post�ta[ basis. 

 
22.� �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
22.7 Long�7erm 'isability ,ncome Plan 
 

�a� 7he Company will provide %argaining 8nit employees with the long�term disability insurance at 
company cost. 

 
�b� Coverage amount is eTual to si[ty�si[ and two�thirds ����2�3� percent of the individual¶s pre�

disability monthly base wage up to age si[ty�five ��5� in accordance with the terms of the long 
term disability policy. 

 
�c� 7he ³own occupation´ disability period is twenty�four �24� months. 
 
�d� 0a[imum benefit amount is �5,����month. 

 
22.8 %enefits for Part�7ime (mployees 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 48

�a� 7he following provisions apply to part�time employees hired on or after -anuary 1, 1995, and to 
part�time employees who assume full�time status and subseTuently revert to part time on or 
after -anuary 1, 1995, and to full�time employees who become part�time on or after -anuary 1, 
1995. 

 
1. Allowance for vacation, sick leave, holidays and other nonproductive time will be 

prorated as described in 7itle 3.5�a�. 
 
2. 7o participate in the benefits programs, employees must work a minimum of 2� hours 

per week. 
 
3. All welfare benefits will have the appropriate premium allocation between Company 

and the employee based on the following formula� 
 

�i� 7wenty �2�� hours per week   one�half �1�2� time. 
 
�ii� 0ore than twenty �2�� but less than thirty�one �31� hours per week   three�

Tuarter �3�4� time. 
 
�iii� 7hirty�one �31� or more hours per week   full time. 
 

22.9 -oint %enefits Committee 
 

�a� A -oint %enefits Committee was established as of -anuary 1, 1995, for the purpose of  reviewing 
0edical, %enefit and 'ependent Care costs, issues and trends and to make non�binding 
recommendations for improving savings and enhancing 0edical, %enefit and 'ependent Care 
Programs�Policies and to assist employees in dealing with Child�(lder Care issues.  7he -oint 
%enefits Committee meets at least Tuarterly unless mutually agreed to meet more often when 
necessary.  'irect payroll costs for %argaining 8nit members are shared eTually by Local �1245 
and Company.  (ither party may cancel this agreement with 3� days notice.  �Amended ��11��3� 

 
�b� 7he Committee will consist of the 8nion %usiness 5epresentative and three �3� 8nion members 

and the 5epresentative of the *eneral 0anager and four �4� 0PA7 employees assigned by the 
*eneral 0anager.  7he Committee will be chartered to review health and welfare plans, and 
457 plans during the term of the contract. �Amended ��11��3� �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
22.1� 7ime 2ff for -ury 'uty and Serving as a Witness �Added 1��25���� 
 

(mployees who serve on Mury duty or are subpoenaed to testify as a witness in court on 70WA¶s behalf 
during regularly scheduled working hours will be e[cused from work and will receive their regular pay 
for the time they are reTuired to serve. 7he employee may retain Mury or witness fees.  
 
An employee who is served with a summons for Mury duty or a subpoena to appear as a witness must 
notify their supervisor as soon as possible.  (mployees who are subpoenaed to testify as a witness in 
court for non�70WA business will be limited to a ma[imum of 24 hours in any calendar year. �Amended 
7�1��9� 
 
8pon being discharged from Mury duty or appearing as a witness, the employee is e[pected to report to 
work for the remainder of their regular work schedule. 
 
,f an employee has brought legal action against another party and is subpoenaed to appear as a result 
of filing such action, then the employee is not entitled to pay for any time away from work. 
 

22.11 7ime 2ff for )unerals �Added ��11��1� 
 

A regular employee will be allowed time off, without loss of pay, to attend funerals of members of their 
immediate family and other individuals provided they get approval from their supervisor in advance. 
 
,n the case of death of a member of the employee¶s immediate family, the employee will be allowed not 
more than three consecutive work days off at the time of the funeral. ,mmediate family includes spouse, 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 49

children �foster and�or step�, parents, parents�in�law, brothers, sisters, brothers�in�law, sisters�in�law, 
grandparents, and grandchildren. 

Attendance by an employee at funerals of individuals other than members of the employee¶s immediate 
family �such as other relatives, fellow employees, friends, and business acTuaintances� will be limited to 
a ma[imum of 24 working hours in any calendar year, to be taken in increments of no more than eight 
hours. 

(mployees will be paid funeral pay for the amount of time they are actually absent from their Mob during 
their regularly scheduled working hours. Pay will be calculated at the employee¶s regular straight�time 
earnings rate. 
 

22.12 0ilitary Leave �Added ��11��1� 
 

7he Company has a military leave policy and employees are entitled to the benefits as provided by this 
policy.  �Amended 7�1��9� 

 
7,7L( 23 

'(027,2N AN' LAY2)) P52C('85( 

23.1 

,. *eneral 5ules 

�a� (mployees shall be given as much notice as practicable of Company
s proposed 
action.  )ollowing such notice, and prior to the date of the actual layoff, employees to 
be affected by the procedure shall be considered as though they have already been 
demoted, and notwithstanding the provisions of 7itle 1�, have their bids to fill vacancies 
in the normal line of progression considered under the provisions of V, below. 

 
�b� An employee¶s Company seniority, as defined in Sections 3.7 and 8.1 shall be 

determining factors in the application of this procedure. 
 
�c� Where a vacancy in an appropriate classification e[ists, the filling of such vacancy shall 

be in accordance with the appropriate provisions of this procedure.  ,f such vacancies 
e[ist at more than one �1� headTuarters, Company shall provide an employee with a 
list of such vacancies and the location thereof.  (mployee may then elect to fill any of 
such vacancies for which they have sufficient Company seniority >, �b�@. 

 
�d� An employee may not elect to demote another employee whose Company seniority is 

eTual to or greater than their own.  An employee may not demote an employee in a 
classification having a wage rate higher than that of their own classification. 

 
�e� (mployees scheduled for demotions under this procedure shall e[ercise one �1� of two 

�2� options� 
 
1. (mployee may demote a Munior employee in the employee
s present Mob 

classification at another headTuarters, or 
 
2. (mployee may demote within their occupational group at their present 

headTuarters.  ,n either of these options, the demoted employee shall be 
considered to have displaced the most Munior employee in the classification. 

 
,f the e[ercise of 2ptions �e� 1� and�or �e� 2� would result in a senior employee being 
laid off, then, and only then, the employee may e[ercise 2ption 3�.   
 
,f e[ercise of this 2ption would still result in a senior employee being laid off, the 
employee may then e[ercise 2ption 4�. 

 
3. (mployee may demote a Munior employee in any occupational group at their 

present headTuarters. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 50

4. (mployee may demote a Munior employee in any occupational group at any 
headTuarters. 

2ptions 3� and 4� above are intended to protect employees whose Mob 
classifications fall �below the entry level line�, but who have more seniority 
than other employees in occupational groups and�or headTuarters.  ,n either 
of these options, the demoted employee shall be considered to have displaced 
the most Munior employee in the Mob classification at that headTuarters location. 

 
�f� ,n the application of this procedure, an employee shall not be placed in a Mob unless 

Tualified to perform the duties. 
 

,,. Notices 

7he following notices shall be given in connection with the demotion and layoff provisions of 
this procedure. 

 
�a� Company will give an employee who is to be demoted as much notice thereof as 

possible, but not less than three �3� days, advising them of the classification to which 
they are to be demoted and whether there are any Mobs with respect to which they may 
e[ercise an election by filling a vacancy or by demoting another employee. 

 
�b� Not more than three �3� days after receiving the notice provided for in Subsection �a�, 

the employee shall advise the Company of their decision with respect to e[ercising the 
election.   

 
,f they desire to e[ercise the election, Company shall, within two �2� days thereafter, 
provide them with a list of the Mobs and the locations thereof to which the election may 
be applied. 

 
�c� Within three �3� days after receipt of the list described in Subsection �b�, the employee 

shall notify Company of their election to transfer and indicate the Mob locations in the 
order of their preference.  Preferential consideration shall be given to employees in the 
order of their Company seniority.  While Company shall endeavor to give effect to an 
employee
s preference in the order they have indicated, Company seniority shall be 
the determining factor where two �2� or more employees e[press a preference for a 
single Mob classification or headTuarters location.  Company shall notify an employee 
as to the specific location to which they will be transferred and the effective date of the 
transfer. 

 
�d� An employee
s failure to give the notices prescribed in Subsections �b� and �c� will 

operate to forfeit their right of election. 
 
�e� Any transfer resulting from the application of this Section shall be effective not later 

than fifteen �15� days from the giving of the notice provided for in Subsection �a�. 
 

,,,. When a demotion is to be made in a Mob classification�s� at a Company headTuarters >see , �e�@, 
the employee�s� with least Company seniority in such classification�s� shall have the option to� 

�a� (lect to displace that employee in their same classification and occupational group 
within the Company who has less Company seniority than he. 

 
�b� (lect to demote to the ne[t lower classification in the reverse order of the normal line 

of progression in their occupational group. 
 

An employee shall be demoted on a step by step basis� that is, they shall first be 
demoted in the reverse order of the normal line of progression for their classification to 
the ne[t lower classification.  ,f successive demotions must be made, the same 
procedure shall apply at each step until the employee is either placed in another Mob or 
is laid off.  ,f more than one �1� demotion is to be made, the described procedure shall 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 51

first be applied to the highest classification to be affected, and then to successively 
lower classifications. 

 
�c� ,f an employee cannot for any reason effect an election in accordance with �a� or �b� 

above, he shall demote into the general demotional pool. 
 
�d� All Mobs below entry line, in ([hibit C, shall be considered as a general demotional pool 

for demotion purposes. All demotions to be by Company seniority. �Amended ��11��1� 
 

Note� See Attachment ,V, Lines of Progression 'iagram, for details. 
  
�e� ,n all demotions and�or layoffs, the employees demoting into a Mob must be able and 

willing to perform the duties of the Mob with a minimum of further training.  Company 
shall make the determination of minimum training needed in all such cases. 

 
�f� -ourneymen who can demote apprentices shall retain -ourneyman status and the 

Munior apprentice�s� shall be demoted. 
 

,V. Layoff

,f there is no Mob to which the employee can demote under ,,, above, he or she will be laid off. 
 

V. Notice of Layoff 

When it is necessary for Company to lay off employees because of lack of work, Company shall 
give employees involved as much notice thereof as practicable, but in no event shall an 
employee be given less than thirty �3�� calendar days
 notice of layoff, provided, however that 
notice of layoff need not be given to employees who are employed on a temporary or 
probationary basis. 

V,. Accelerated Promotion 

)or the purpose of enabling employees who have been demoted or transferred under the 
provisions of this procedure, Company will give preferential consideration in the following 
seTuence to the bids made by such employees on any Mob vacancy� 

�a� %ids made by employees who formerly worked in such Mob classification and 
headTuarters� demoted from such classification from such headTuarters.  An 
employee
s bid shall not be considered under this subsection if following their demotion 
or transfer they have not e[ercised each opportunity available to them to bid on a Mob 
in their former classification and headTuarters� 

 
�b� %ids made by employees listed in Subsection �a� above who formerly worked in such 

Mob classification. 
,n considering, under Subsection �a� or �b�, bids received from two �2� or more 
employees on the same Mob, Company shall give preferential consideration to the bid 
made by the employee who has the greatest Company seniority. 
 
An employee who has been demoted or transferred under the provisions of this 
procedure who thereafter voluntarily removes themselves from the Line of Progression 
and occupational group to which they were previously transferred or demoted shall not 
be given consideration under this section. 

 
V,,. (nabler 

%y written agreement between Company and 8nion, special provisions may be substituted for 
the provisions of this procedure.  �Added 5�1�82� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 52

7,7L( 24 
7(50 2) A*5((0(N7 

24.1 7his Agreement shall take effect as of )ebruary 21, 2�18.  7he term of this Agreement shall continue in 
full force and effect until -une 3�, 2�21, unless written notice of change or termination shall be given by 
either party ninety �9�� days prior to the e[piration date above or the e[piration date of any year 
thereafter.  �Amended ��11��3� �Amended 7�1��9��Amended 7�1�12� 

 
24.2 Whenever notice is given for changes, the nature of the changes desired must be specified in the notice, 

and until a satisfactory conclusion is reached in the matter of such changes, the original provision shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
7his Agreement shall not be amended or supplemented e[cept by agreement of the parties hereto, 
reduced to writing and duly signed by each. 
 
7his Agreement cancels and supersedes that certain Agreement and ([hibits entered into on -uly 1, 
2�12, and e[tended on -uly 1, 2�15, by the Company and the 8nion. 

 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 

& LOCAL UNION 1245 
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS, AFL-CIO 

February 21, 2018 - June 30, 2021 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above 
written, acting by and through their duly authorized officers. 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF 
ELECTRICAL WORKERS, LOCAL 1245 

Ch~ ~s-

Ri&Pickworth 

Pat Waite, ~ mess Representative 

APPR VED 
INTERNATIONAL OFFICE -1.B.E.W. 

5/4/2018 

LonnieR. Stephenson, lnt'l President 
This approval does not make the 

Internationalapartyto this agreement 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 54

ATTACHMENT I
EXHIBIT "A" (1)

�As Amended )ebruary 21, 2�18� 
 

WA*(S 

a. 7he wage scales for all employees listed in Attachment , ([hibit ³A´ �1� shall be increased 
during the term of this Agreement as follows� 

 
• )iscal Year 2�18 ± increased by 3�, immediately upon ,%(W ratification and 70WA 

%oard approval 
• )iscal Year 2�19 ± increased by 3� 
• )iscal Year 2�2� ± increased by 3� 
• )iscal Year 2�21 ± increased 3� 

 
b. ,n addition to the general increases set forth in subsection �a� above, the wage scales for the 

following classifications will receive additional increases as follows for )Y 2�19, starting the 
first pay period of )Y 2�19�  

 
i. Classifications 5eceiving �� ,ncrease for )Y 2�19  

• )oreman�)orewoman, Shift Working Water 7reatment 
• Water Plant 2perator ,,, 
• Water Plant 2perator, 7reatment and 'istribution ,, 
• Apprentice Water Plant 2perator 

 
ii. Classifications 5eceiving 5� ,ncrease for )Y 2�19 

• SCA'A 7echnician 
• Apprentice SCA'A 7echnician 
• Plant (lectrical 7echnician 
• Power *en 7echnician 
• ,nspector 

 
iii. Classifications 5eceiving 4� ,ncrease for )Y 2�19 

• 0echanic Specialist, 0C�WP 
• Apprentice 0echanic Specialist, 0�C�W�P 

 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 55

A77AC+0(N7 , 
(;+,%,7 ³A´ �1� 

WA*( SC+('8L( 

Job 
Class 
No.

Job 
Title/Classification

Wage 
Step Wages 

as of 
6/25/17

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18
6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19*

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20

Plus Plus Plus Plus

      3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

54�4� Apprentice, )itter Start �27.88 �28.72 �29.58   �29.58  �3�.47  �31.38  
   � 

0onths �28.81 �29.�7 �3�.5�   �3�.5�  �31.48  �32.43  
   1 Year �3�.11 �31.�1 �31.94   �31.94  �32.9�  �33.89  

 18 
0onths �3�.98 �31.91 �32.87 �32.87 �33.85 �34.87 

    

53�45 Apprentice, 0echanic, 
+ydro�*eneration Start �29.93 �3�.83 �31.75   �31.75  �32.71  �33.�9  

   � 
0onths �3�.�� �31.58 �32.53   �32.53  �33.5�  �34.51  

   1 Year �32.1� �33.12 �34.12   �34.12  �35.14  �3�.2�  

   18 
0onths �32.91 �33.9� �34.91   �34.91  �35.9�  �37.�4  

   2 Years �34.41 �35.44 �3�.51   �3�.51  �37.��  �38.73  

   3� 
0onths �35.91 �3�.99 �38.1�   �38.1�  �39.24  �4�.42  

     

55�1� 
Apprentice, 0echanic 
0aintenance�Control�
WP 

Start �29.93 �3�.83 �31.75 4.��� �33.�2  �34.�1  �35.�3  

   � 
0onths �3�.�� �31.58 �32.53 4.��� �33.83  �34.84  �35.89  

   1 Year �32.1� �33.12 �34.12 4.��� �35.48  �3�.55  �37.�4  

   18 
0onths �32.91 �33.9� �34.91 4.��� �3�.31  �37.4�  �38.52  

   2 Years �34.41 �35.44 �3�.51 4.��� �37.97  �39.1�  �4�.28  

   3� 
0onths �35.91 �3�.99 �38.1� 4.��� �39.�2  �4�.81  �42.�3  

 

53��� Apprentice, 2perator, 
+ydro�*eneration Start �31.�4 �31.97 �32.93   �32.93  �33.92  �34.94  

  � 
0onths �32.18 �33.15 �34.14   �34.14  �35.1�  �3�.22  

   1 Year �33.�7 �34.�8 �35.72   �35.72  �3�.79  �37.9�  

   18 
0onths �34.42 �35.45 �3�.52   �3�.52  �37.�1  �38.74  

P(5S rate increases shall be split between 70WA 	 the employee. Wage schedule will be automatically decreased by one�half of an P(5S 
increase 	 automatically increased by one�half of any P(5S rate decrease.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 56

Job 
Class 
No. 

Job 
Title/Classification 

Wage 
Step 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/17 

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18 

6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18 

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19* 

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20 

55�7� Apprentice, 2perator, 
Water Plant Start �3�.�� �31.58 �32.53 �.��� �34.48  �35.51  �3�.58  

   � 
0onths �32.1� �33.12 �34.12 �.��� �3�.17  �37.25  �38.37  

   1 Year �32.91 �33.9� �34.91 �.��� �37.�1  �38.12  �39.2�  

   18 
0onths �34.41 �35.44 �3�.51 �.��� �38.7�  �39.8�  �41.�5  

5512� Apprentice, SCA'A 
7echnician Start �32.38 �33.35 �34.35 5.��� �3�.�7  �37.15  �38.27  

   � 
0onths �33.21 �34.21 �35.23 5.��� �3�.99  �38.1�  �39.25  

   1 Year �34.�1 �35.�3 �3�.�8 5.��� �37.89  �39.�2  �4�.19  

   18 
0onths �34.83 �35.87 �3�.95 5.��� �38.8�  �39.9�  �41.1�  

   2 Years �35.�2 �3�.�9 �37.79 5.��� �39.�8  �4�.87  �42.1�  

   3� 
0onths �3�.45 �37.54 �38.�7 5.��� �4�.��  �41.82  �43.�8  

   3 Years �37.2� �38.38 �39.53 5.��� �41.51  �42.75  �44.�3  

   42 
0onths �38.�7 �39.21 �4�.39 5.��� �42.41  �43.�8  �44.99  

 

53�4� Apprentice, 7echnician, 
(lectrical, Plant Start �29.93 �3�.83 �31.75 5.��� �33.34  �34.34  �35.37  

   � 
0onths �3�.�� �31.58 �32.53 5.��� �34.15  �35.18  �3�.23  

   1 Year �32.1� �33.12 �34.12 5.��� �35.82  �3�.9�  �38.�1  

   18 
0onths �32.91 �33.9� �34.91 5.��� �3�.��  �37.7�  �38.89  

   2 Years �34.41 �35.44 �3�.51 5.��� �38.33  �39.48  �4�.�7  

   3� 
0onths �35.91 �3�.99 �38.1� 5.��� �4�.��  �41.2�  �42.44  

     

51�15 )acilities 	 *rounds 
0aintenance , Start �23.�8 �23.77 �24.49 �24.49 �25.22 �25.98 

   � 
0onths �24.9� �25.�5 �2�.42   �2�.42  �27.21  �28.�3  

51�2� )acilities 	 *rounds 
0aintenance ,, Start �2�.7� �27.5� �28.33   �28.33  �29.18  �3�.�5  

   � 
0onths �29.�� �29.87 �3�.77   �3�.77  �31.�9  �32.�4  

     

51�25 )acilities 	 *rounds 
0aintenance � Senior Start �33.11 �34.1� �35.13   �35.13  �3�.18  �37.27  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 57

Job
Class 
No. 

Job 
Title/Classification 

Wage 
Step 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/17

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19*

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20

54�1� )acilities Locator Start �35.�5 �3�.72 �37.82   �37.82  �38.9�  �4�.12  
 

54�45 )itter Start �33.�2 �34.�3 �35.�7   �35.�7  �3�.74  �37.84  
 

54�5� )itter�Welder Start �34.89 �35.94 �37.�1   �37.�1  �38.13  �39.27  
 Step 2 �35.98 �37.�� �38.17   �38.17  �39.32  �4�.5�  
 Step 3 �37.�7 �38.18 �39.33   �39.33  �4�.51  �41.72  
 Step 4 �38.1� �39.3� �4�.48   �4�.48  �41.7�  �42.95  
 

52�3� 
)oreman�)orewoman, 
Customer Services 
5ep, Working 

Start �32.75 �33.73 �34.74   �34.74  �35.79  �3�.8�  

     

53�8� 
)oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral Customer 
Services 5ep, Working 

Start �3�.�2 �37.1� �38.21   �38.21  �39.3�  �4�.54  

     

��42 )oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, +eavy, Water Start �48.�� �49.5� �5�.99   �5�.99  �52.52  �54.�9  

     

52�4� 

)oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, 
+ydro�*eneration, 
Working 

Start �48.�� �49.5� �5�.99   �5�.99  �52.52  �54.�9  

     

��43 )oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, Light, Water Start �45.97 �47.35 �48.77   �48.77  �5�.23  �51.74  

  .  

��1� 

)oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, 0echanic, 
+ydro�*eneration 
Working 

Start �48.�� �49.5� �5�.99   �5�.99  �52.52  �54.�9  

     

55��� 

)oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, 0echanic, 
0aintenance and 
Control, Working 

Start �48.�� �49.5� �5�.99 4.��� �53.�3  �54.�2  �5�.2�  

     

5511� 
)oreman�)orewoman, 
*eneral, Shift, Water 
7reatment, Working 

Start �48.�� �49.5� �5�.99 �.��� �54.�5  �55.�7  �57.34  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 58

Job 
Class 
No. 

Job 
Title/Classification 

Wage 
Step 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/17

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19*

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20

53�7� 
)oreman�)orewoman, 
+ydro�*eneration, 
Working 

Start �43.�8 �44.99 �4�.34   �4�.34  �47.73  �49.1�  

 

54�8� )oreman�)orewoman, 
Light, Working, Water Start �41.77 �43.�2 �44.31   �44.31  �45.�4  �47.�1  

 

55�5� 

)oreman�)orewoman, 
0echanic 
0aintenance�Control�
WP 

Start �43.�8 �44.99 �4�.34   �4�.34  �47.73  �49.1�  

 

551�� 
)oreman�)orewoman, 
Shift, Water 7reatment, 
Working 

Start �43.�8 �44.99 �4�.34 �.��� �49.12  �5�.59  �52.11  

     

54�9� )oreman�)orewoman, 
Working, +eavy, Water Start �43.�8 �44.99 �4�.34   �4�.34  �47.73  �49.1�  

 

51��� +elper  Start �19.87 �2�.47 �21.�8   �21.�8  �21.71  �22.3�  
   � 

0onths �21.44 �22.�8 �22.75   �22.75  �23.43  �24.13  
   1 Year �22.99 �23.�8 �24.39   �24.39  �25.12  �25.88  

   18 
0onths �24.97 �25.72 �2�.49   �2�.49  �27.29  �28.1�  

       

54�7� ,nspector Start �4�.�7 �41.27 �42.51 5.��� �44.�4  �45.97  �47.35  
    

 

54�75 ,nspector, Construction Start �38.33 �39.48 �4�.�� 5.��� �42.7�  �43.98  �45.3�  
   1 Year �4�.�7 �41.27 �42.51 5.��� �44.�4  �45.97  �47.35  

       

53�5� 0echanic, 
+ydro�*eneration Start �39.71 �4�.9� �42.13 �42.13 �43.39 �44.�9 

    

55�2� 0echanic, 0aintenance 
	 Control, Certified, WP Start �37.41 �38.53 �39.�9   �39.�9  �4�.88  �42.11  

 � 
0onths �38.5� �39.72 �4�.91   �4�.91  �42.14  �43.4�  

     

55�3� 
0echanic, Specialist, 
0aintenance�Control�
WP 

Start �39.71 �4�.9� �42.13 4.��� �43.81  �45.13  �4�.48  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 59

Job 
Class 
No. 

Job 
Title/Classification 

Wage 
Step 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/17

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19*

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20

54�2� 2perator, (Tuipment , Start �29.29 �3�.17 �31.�7   �31.�7  �32.�1  �32.97  
   � 

0onths �3�.72 �31.�4 �32.59   �32.59  �33.57  �34.58  

     

54�25 2perator, (Tuipment ,, Start �31.�8 �32.�1 �32.97   �32.97  �33.9�  �34.98  
   1 Year �32.5� �33.48 �34.48   �34.48  �35.51  �3�.58  

     

54�3� 2perator, (Tuipment ,,, Start �33.�2 �34.�3 �35.�7   �35.�7  �3�.74  �37.84  

     

54�35 2perator, (Tuipment, 
+eavy Start �34.72 �35.7� �3�.83   �3�.83  �37.94  �39.�8  

   1 Year �35.38 �3�.44 �37.53   �37.53  �38.��  �39.82  
      

53�1� 2perator, 
+ydro�*eneration Start �37.41 �38.53 �39.�9   �39.�9  �4�.88  �42.11  

       

847� 
2perator, Water Plant, 
*rade ,,, 7reatment 
2nly 

Start �3�.22 �37.31 �38.43   �38.43  �39.58  �4�.77  

 

55�8� 
2perator, Water Plant, 
*rade ,,, 7reatment 	 
'istribution 

Start �37.41 �38.53 �39.�9 �.��� �42.�7  �43.33  �44.�3  

 

55�9� 
2perator, Water Plant, 
*rade ,,,, 7reatment 	 
'istribution 

Start �39.71 �4�.9� �42.13 �.��� �44.��  �4�.��  �47.38  

 

52��� 5epresentative, 
Accounts Payable Start �1�.�3 �17.13 �17.�4   �17.�4  �18.17  �18.72  

   � 
0onths �17.81 �18.34 �18.89   �18.89  �19.4�  �2�.�5  

   1 Year �18.95 �19.52 �2�.1�   �2�.1�  �2�.71  �21.33  

   18 
0onths �2�.�8 �2�.�8 �21.3� �21.3� �21.94 �22.�� 

  2 Years �22.23 �22.9� �23.58   �23.58  �24.29  �25.�2  

   3� 
0onths �24.38 �25.11 �25.8�   �25.8�  �2�.�4  �27.44  

   3 Years �2�.52 �27.32 �28.14   �28.14  �28.98  �29.85  
     

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 60

Job 
Class 
No. 

Job 
Title/Classification 

Wage 
Step 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/17 

Wages 
as of 

2/19/18 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18 

6/25/18 
Inequity 
Adj. % 

by 
Position 

Wages 
as of 

6/25/18 

Wages 
as of 

6/24/19* 

Wages 
as of 

6/22/20 

52�1� 5epresentative, 
Customer Service Start �1�.�3 �17.13 �17.�4   �17.�4  �18.17  �18.72  

   � 
0onths �17.81 �18.34 �18.89   �18.89  �19.4�  �2�.�5  

   1 Year �18.95 �19.52 �2�.1�   �2�.1�  �2�.71  �21.33  

   18 
0onths �2�.�8 �2�.�8 �21.3� �21.3� �21.94 �22.�� 

  2 Years �22.23 �22.9� �23.58   �23.58  �24.29  �25.�2  

   3� 
0onths �24.38 �25.11 �25.8�   �25.8�  �2�.�4  �27.44  

   3 Years �2�.52 �27.32 �28.14   �28.14  �28.98  �29.85  
     

52�2� 
5epresentative, 
Customer Service, 
Senior 

Start �29.39 �3�.27 �31.18   �31.18  �32.12  �33.�8  

     

54��� Service 8tility Worker Start �27.48 �28.3� �29.15   �29.15  �3�.�3  �3�.93  
   � 

0onths �28.27 �29.12 �29.99   �29.99  �3�.89  �31.82  
   1 Year �29.95 �3�.85 �31.77   �31.77  �32.73  �33.71  
 

54��� 7echnician, Water 
Service Start �3�.55 �37.�5 �38.78   �38.78  �39.94  �41.14  

     

55�4� Specialist, (Tuipment, 
Water 7reatment Start �39.71 �4�.9� �42.13   �42.13  �43.39  �44.�9  

 

55��� Specialist, Water 
Supply Start �28.11 �28.95 �29.82   �29.82  �3�.72  �31.�4  

   � 
0onths �29.�1 �3�.5� �31.41   �31.41  �32.3�  �33.33  

   1 Year �31.�2 �31.95 �32.91   �32.91  �33.9�  �34.91  
       

53�2� 7echnician, Plant 
(lectrical Start �4�.5� �41.72 �42.97 5.��� �45.11  �4�.47  �47.8�  

     

53�3� 7echnician, Power 
*eneration Start �4�.5� �41.72 �42.97 5.��� �45.11  �4�.47  �47.8�  

     

5513� 7echnician, SCA'A Start �4�.5� �41.72 �42.97 5.��� �45.11  �4�.47  �47.8�  
   � 

0onths �41.44 �42.�8 �43.9� 5.��� �4�.1�  �47.55  �48.97  
   1 Year �42.33 �43.�� �44.91 5.��� �47.15  �48.57  �5�.�2  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 61

A77AC+0(N7 ,, 
(;+,%,7 �%� �1� 

�As Amended, -uly 1, 2�12� 
 

-2% CLASS,),CA7,2NS�'(SC5,P7,2NS AN' 48AL,),CA7,2NS 

Note� 1� All positions e[cept those listed in the Clerical 2ccupational *roup must possess a current 'river¶s 
license.   

 
 2� (mployees will not be assigned work of another Mob description if there is an incumbent available to 

perform those duties. .eeping in mind the provisions previously provided for in 19.5 and 19.�, the 
company may assign employees based upon availability. �Added 7�1�12� 

54�4� APP5(N7,C(, ),77(5 

An employee who installs and maintains water pipes, conduits, mains and accessories under the 
general direction of a )oreman�woman, )itter, or other e[perienced and Tualified personnel while 
training for a -ourneyman classification.  ,n order to gain e[perience for advancement, they may be 
reTuired to work alone or under direct supervision on Mobs for which they have been trained and 
instructed.  State of Nevada *rade , Water 'istribution certification will be reTuired to progress to the 
one�year rate of pay.  State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution certification will be reTuired to 
progress to the two�year rate of pay. 7he employee
s education and general Tualifications must be 
such that they are considered capable of obtaining -ourneyman status.  %efore obtaining -ourneyman 
status, they must Tualify by test and demonstrate an ability to handle tools and operate eTuipment, 
such as earth boring machines, all types of tapping machines, pipe locators, concrete saws, 
compressors and other eTuipment commonly used in the trade. 

 
53�45 APP5(N7,C(, 0(C+AN,C, +Y'52�*(N(5A7,2N 

An employee who is engaged in performing work as an assistant to or under the general direction of 
)oreman�woman, 0echanic +ydro�*eneration, or other e[perienced and Tualified personnel while 
training for -ourneyman classification while training for a -ourneyman classification.  ,n order to gain 
e[perience for advancement they may be reTuired to work alone or under direct supervision on Mobs 
for which they have been trained and instructed.  7he employee
s educational and general 
Tualifications must be such that they are considered capable of attaining -ourneyman status. 

 
55�1� APP5(N7,C(, 0(C+AN,C, 0A,N7(NANC( 	 C2N752L, WP 

An employee who is engaged in performing as an assistant to, or under the direction of a 
)oreman�woman, 0aintenance 0echanic 	 Control, WP, or other e[perienced and Tualified personnel 
while training for -ourneyman classification, while training for a -ourneyman classification.  ,n order to 
gain e[perience for advancement they may be reTuired to work alone or under direct supervision on 
Mobs for which they have been trained or instructed.  State of Nevada *rade , Water 'istribution 
certification will be reTuired to progress to the one�year rate of pay.  State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 
'istribution certification will be reTuired to progress to the two�year rate of pay.  7he employee
s 
educational background and general Tualifications must be such that they are considered capable of 
attaining -ourneyman status. 7he employee will be automatically reclassified to 0echanic, Specialist, 
0aintenance and Control upon completion of the apprenticeship and obtaining a Nevada *rade ,,, 
Water 'istribution Certification.  ,f the employee does not hold a State of Nevada *rade ,,, Water 
'istribution Certification upon completion of the apprenticeship, then they will automatically progress 
to 0echanic, 0aintenance 	 Control, Certified, WP, until they are able to obtain a State of Nevada 
*rade ,,, Water 'istribution Certification. 

 
53��� APP5(N7,C(, 2P(5A725, +Y'52�*(N(5A7,2N 

An employee who is engaged in performing work as an assistant to or under the general direction of 
)oreman�woman, +ydro *eneration or other e[perienced and Tualified personnel while training for 
-ourneyman classification.  ,n order to gain e[perience for advancement they  may be reTuired to work 
alone or under direct supervision on Mobs for which they have been trained and instructed.  7he 
employee
s educational and general Tualifications must be such that they are considered capable of 
attaining -ourneyman status. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 62

55�7� APP5(N7,C(, 2P(5A725, WA7(5 PLAN7 

An employee who assists the )oreman�woman, Water Plant 2perators as reTuired, or other 
e[perienced and Tualified personnel while training for -ourneyman classification and who is in training 
to acTuire the e[perience and develop the skills necessary for advancement to 2perator, Water Plant 
classification.  ,n order to gain e[perience for advancement, they may be reTuired to work alone or 
under direct supervision on Mobs for which they have been trained or instructed.  State of Nevada *rade 
, Water 'istribution and Water 7reatment certifications will be reTuired to progress to the one�year rate 
of pay.  State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution and Water 7reatment certifications will be reTuired 
to progress to the two�year rate of pay.  7heir education and general Tualifications must be such that 
they are considered capable of attaining -ourneyman status. 

5512� APP5(N7,C(, SCA'A 7(C+N,C,AN 

An employee who is engaged in performing work as an assistant to, or under the general supervision 
of a )oreman�woman, -ourneyman SCA'A 7echnician or other e[perienced and Tualified personnel 
while training for -ourneyman classification.  ,n order to gain e[perience for advancement, they may 
be reTuired to work alone or under direct supervision on Mobs for which they have been trained and 
instructed.  7heir education and general Tualification must be such that they are considered capable 
of attaining -ourneyman status. 

 
53�4� APP5(N7,C(, PLAN7, (L(C75,CAL, 7(C+N,C,AN 

An employee who is engaged in performing work as an assistant to, or under the general supervision 
of a )oreman�woman, -ourneyman Plant (lectrical 7echnician, or other e[perienced and Tualified 
personnel while training for -ourneyman classification.  ,n order to gain e[perience for advancement, 
they  may be reTuired to work alone or under direct supervision on Mobs for which they have been 
trained and instructed.  7heir education and general Tualification must be such that they are considered 
capable of attaining -ourneyman status.  

 
51�15 )AC,L,7,(S AN' *528N'S 0A,N7(NANC( , 

An employee who has sufficient knowledge and adaptability to understand and carry on duties as 
assigned� must be a semi�skilled laborer, or eTuivalent with past e[perience such as, capable of 
handling ordinary tools safely in accordance with Company safety rules. Assist the )acilities *rounds 
0an ,, or work under their direction at various classes of work associated with grounds and building 
maintenance of all 70WA property. 0ust work towards obtaining certification as a Licensed�Certified 
Pesticide Applicator with a Category ³2rnamental and 7urf Pest Control´ and ³5ight�of�Way Pest 
Control´ certification, and a %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester Certification for both 
domestic and irrigation water services. After completion of 1 �one� year as a )acilities *rounds 0an ,, 
successful completion of %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester Certification and certification 
as Licensed�Certified Pesticide Applicator with Category 2rnamental and 7urf Pest Control´ and 
³5ight�of�Way Pest Control´ certification this person will automatically progress to the )acilities 
*rounds 0an ,, position at that starting wage. At any time a reTuired certification lapses, the incumbent 
will be demoted to the ne[t lower classification after failure to recertify within �� calendar days. 

 
51�2� )AC,L,7,(S AN' *528N'S 0A,N7(NANC( ,, 

An employee who has at least 1 years¶ e[perience as a )acilities *rounds 0aintenance 0an , who is 
Tualified to perform with limited supervision all work associated with grounds and building maintenance 
of all 70WA property as reTuired. ,ncluding but not limited to, painting carpentry, fence repair, irrigation 
systems, pruning and planting trees and shrubs, mowing and fertili]ing lawns. 0ust have and maintain 
a %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester Certification, and a restricted use Pesticide 
Applicators Certification with a Category ³2rnamental and 7urf Pest Control´ and ³5ight�of�Way Pest 
Control´ certifications. Will be reTuired to do backflow testing on domestic supply plumbing as well as 
irrigation devices as reTuired on 70WA facilities. Will be reTuired to operate landscape maintenance 
eTuipment and vehicles such as a variety of power tools and motori]ed eTuipment such as small 
tractors, mowers, weed eaters, blowers, chain saws, power chipper etc. 0ay be reTuired to provide 
general direction to any classification assigned to them in performing the work as defined. Should have 
knowledge of 70WA¶s various sites and facilities. At any time a reTuired certification lapses the 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 63

incumbent will be demoted to the ne[t lower classification after failure to recertify within �� calendar 
days. 

 
51�25 S(N,25 )AC,L,7,(S AN' *528N'S 0A,N7(NANC(  

An employee who has at least 3 years¶ e[perience as a )acilities *rounds 0aintenance 0an and 
possess the necessary knowledge skill and e[perience and under direction, plans, schedules, provides 
lead work while participating in the work of personnel engaged in the landscaping and maintenance of 
all 70WA facilities and grounds. 7his position will perform related duties as assigned and will also be 
responsible for the daily activities of contract�temporary�seasonal personnel engaged in grounds and 
facilities maintenance activities. 0ust be proficient in the use of computer programs and will be reTuired 
to use a computeri]ed maintenance management system to track and complete work orders, update 
scheduled maintenance activities, and keep facilities�work records current. 
0ust be able to interpret plans, specifications, and written instructions and coordinate�participate in all 
aspects of installation, repair and maintenance of landscaping, irrigation, vegetation and facilities 
improvements.  (nsures all the above activities are carried out in a safe and efficient manner. Will also 
be reTuired to operate a variety of power tools and motori]ed eTuipment such as small tractors, 
mowers, weed eaters, blowers, chain saws, power chipper, and will be reTuired to train subordinate 
employees in their use. 0ust have and maintain a %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester 
Certification, and a restricted use Pesticide Applicators Certification with a Category ³2rnamental and 
7urf Pest Control´, ³ATuatic Pest Control´ and ³5ight�of�Way Pest Control´ certifications. Will possess 
at a minimum a current Nevada Class ³%´ Commercial 'river License. At any time that a 
certification�license lapses the incumbent will be demoted to the ne[t lower classification after failure 
to recertify�license within �� days. Award to this position is subMect to Section 1�.7 of the C%A. 

 
54�1� )AC,L,7,(S L2CA725 

An employee who is a -ourneyman )itter who has successfully completed a Nevada State )itter 
apprenticeship and is Tualified by training and knowledge to locate 7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority 
�70WA� facilities. 5esponds to reTuests for information on underground utility locations� conducts 
field location inspections and clearly marks the utility in the area of the proposed e[cavation as 
described in the locate reTuest. 'ocuments and prioriti]es utility locate reTuests and data including 
emergency reTuests. 7he employee shall have an advanced working knowledge of the entire 
distribution system as well as a firm grasp of inspection procedures and policies. 0ust have the 
knowledge and e[perience in the application of pipe and cable locators and *PS eTuipment to locate 
facilities including water lines, communication lines and electrical lines.  0ust be able to read and 
interpret cards, maps and as�built drawings that are utili]ed as reference material to locate facilities. 
,dentifies errors on maps and provides detailed map corrections to the *.,.S department to accurately 
capture the location of the facilities. 0ust be able to work with computers to interface with a mobile 
dispatch and work order management systems. 0ust be familiar with the 8nderground Services Alert 
�8SA� locate system and pertinent State regulations in regards to underground utility locating 
reTuirements. 0ay be reTuired to investigate, document and file reports�claims on 3rd party damage 
to 70WA facilities. 0ust be able to write legibly and maintain a neat, clean appearance and must be 
capable of working with the public. 0ay work after hour locates and respond to emergency locate 
reTuests. 0ust maintain a State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution certification and a Nevada 
driver¶s license. 

 
54�45 ),77(5 

An employee who is a -ourneyman and Tualified by e[perience, training and knowledge to install and 
repair water services, mains and appurtenances, locate and repair leaks, do miscellaneous pipe fitting 
and operate eTuipment such as earth boring machines, all types of tapping machines, pipe locators, 
concrete saws and compressors.  7hey locate and repair leaks.  8nderstands the use of tools in 
connection with pipe work and the installation of all types of pipe.  0ay be reTuired to prepare ground 
for installation of mains and services and restore ground to reTuired condition.  0ay be assigned to 
other work as the occasion arises, including the installation of meters and regulators. 0ust maintain 
State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution certification or eTuivalent.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 64

54�5� ),77(5�W(L'(5 

An employee who installs and repairs water pipes, conduits, mains and accessories.  'oes gas and 
electric welding and is reTuired to be certified by testing in accordance with the 'epartment of 
7ransportation regulations and repair work on water lines and their accessories as reTuired and, in 
addition, will be reTuired to operate all tools used on water leakage detection eTuipment. Will be 
reTuired to prepare ground for the installation of mains and services and restore ground to reTuired 
condition.  0ay be assigned to other work as the occasion arises, including the installation of meters 
and regulators.  0ust have successfully completed a Nevada State )itter apprenticeship. 0ust maintain 
State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution certification or eTuivalent. (mployee must certify by 
completing and passing the most current edition of the AP, 11�4 0ultiple 4ualifications 7est.   

 
• 0ust have successfully completed a )itter Apprenticeship. 
 
• %idding process shall be based on the e[isting lines of progression in the Collective 

%argaining Agreement �C%A�. 
 
• 7he employee is reTuired to complete and pass a semester of each of the following 

courses, Welding ,, Welding Practice ,, Welding ,, and Welding Practice ,, through 
70CC or ³Tualified eTuivalent courses´. ,t is reTuired that the courses Welding , and 
Welding , Practice be taken concurrently and the courses Welding ,, and Welding ,, 
Practice be taken concurrently. Any courses presented as a substitution under 
³Tualified eTuivalent courses´ shall be agreed upon by the Company and the 8nion. 

 
• All courses must have prior approval. 8pon successful completion of a course, 

reimbursement shall be through 70WA¶s 7uition 5eimbursement program. 
 
• Courses shall be attended outside of regularly scheduled work hours. ,f the course is 

not available after regularly scheduled work hours, the employee shall be reTuired to 
obtain additional approval from the Company prior to registering for the course. 7ime 
spent in courses is not subMect to compensation. 

 
• 7he employee must immediately enroll in the first reTuired course upon being 

awarded the position of fitter�welder and attend the first course offered and the 
seTuential courses the following semester. 7he employee must be able to be certified 
within 18 months unless an e[tension of time is agreed upon by the Company and the 
8nion.  

 
• 8pon successful completion of the reTuired courses, the employee must certify by 

completing and passing the most current edition of the API 1104 Multiple 
Qualifications Test. 7esting of the welded pipe will be administered by a Tualified 
third party testing facility.  7he welds to be tested will be performed in the presence 
of a certified welder and or an Tualified welding inspector, who will verify that all 
welding procedures were followed and will certify in writing the name of the person 
that performed the welds, weld date, time, location, rod, machine settings and 
procedure used. 7his information will then accompany the welded pipe to the certified 
testing facility.  7he employee must use 12.75´ outside diameter or larger pipe and 
a minimum of ó´ wall thickness for testing. 

 
• ,f the employee is not successful in completing any one of the courses or passing the 

AP, 11�4 7esting, they shall be demoted to a )itter position. 7he )itter�Welder 
position shall be re�posted and that employee will not be considered for that 
)itter�Welder posting or any subseTuent )itter�Welder posting for a period of 9� days 
from the date of demotion. 

 
• 7he demotion to a )itter position, should the employee not successfully complete any 

of the reTuirement coursework or pass AP, 11�4 testing, shall supersede section 
1�.8 �a� of the Collective %argaining Agreement.  

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 65

• Wages and Progression. 7he wages listed below are calculated using the )itter wage 
that is in effect as of the 14th payroll period, year 2��7 wage plus �1 per step. 

 
1. Step , shall pay �32.88 per hour. 7his is the entry level for the position. 
2. Step ,, shall pay �33.91 per hour upon successful completion of the Welding 

, and Welding , Practice courses. 
3. Step ,,, shall pay �34.93 per hour upon successful completion of the Welding 

,, and Welding ,, Practice courses. 
4. Step ,V shall pay �35.9� which is the top level wages for the )itter�Welder 

position. 7his shall be obtained upon successful completion of the AP, 11�4 
7est and Welding certification. 

 
•  ,f an employee has successfully completed any of the reTuired courses prior to 

entering the position, they will be entitled to the pay that is relative to the course level 
completed. All courses or Tualifications that may be considered as eTuivalent shall 
be agreed upon by the Company and the 8nion prior to entering the position.  

 
• 2n the Mob training should consist of 1� to 32 hours per month. 7he training should 

consist of practice welding of all types needed to succeed with the AP, 11�4 0ultiple 
7est and actual field welding when possible. 7he Company shall make a reasonable 
effort to allow time to do so. 7his is not a reTuirement and is intended as a guideline. 

 
7he employee must maintain certification and recertify annually for welding for this 
position. 0aintaining of this certification will consist of performing a twelve�inch �12´� 
%utt weld and having it pass the radiographic �;�5ay� testing reTuirements as called 
out in AP, 11�4. ,n the event the employee is not able to maintain the certification 
the employee shall be demoted to a )itter position.

 
52�3� )25(0AN�W20AN, C8S720(5 S(5V,C( 5(P5(S(N7A7,V(, W25.,N* 

An employee who is directly in charge of and directs a crew of Customer Services 5epresentatives 
�CS5¶s� in their day�to�day operations.  Will be responsible for scheduling, logging of attendance, 
handling timesheets, maintaining daily work schedules, and monitoring CS5¶s to assure Tuality in their 
transactions with customers.  Also prepare their performance appraisals and be thoroughly familiar 
with the work procedures and methods for the area of work assigned and skilled in all areas of the 
Customer Service 5epresentative position.  7hey may be reTuired to assist representatives in on�the�
Mob training and answer Tuestions as they arise.  7hey will also handle those customers who wish to 
have their Tuestions or complaints answered on a higher level.  5eTuired to make independent 
decisions as necessary to satisfy customer needs.  Also reTuired to perform tasks as delegated by 
their Supervisor.  0ust have successfully performed as a Customer Service 5epresentative for at least 
three �3� years. 

 
)25(0AN�W20AN, *(N(5AL, W25.,N* �8P*5A'( 2NLY� 

 An employee assigned on an upgrade basis only at the Company¶s discretion, to assume a leadership 
role under any combination of the following circumstances� 

 
• 2n special proMects when reTuired to direct crew operations and coordinate all aspects of 

construction, maintenance and repair of Company facilities.  Will aid in the design of facilities and 
also participate in the planning stages of such proMects, 
 

• 5eplace a supervisor who will be absent from their duties for an e[tended time period, 
 

• When directing the work of other foremen and their crews �foreman�woman over foreman�woman�, 
 

• 2ther circumstances as deemed appropriate by management. 

An employee assigned to this upgrade must have been a Mourneyman in their occupation for a minimum 
of si[ ��� years or a foreman�woman or eTuivalent for at least two years.  Will be reTuired to 
communicate effectively and contribute to a positive team environment to provide Tuality service to 
both e[ternal and internal customers. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 66

 
• See Wage 7able for appropriate Mob class upgrade number. 

 
53�7� )25(0AN�W20AN, +Y'52�*(N(5A7,2N, W25.,N* 

An employee who, under general supervision, is in charge of and responsible for the operation of 
+ydro, Stand�by 'iesel and Combustion 7urbine Plants. 7he employee is directly responsible for the 
day to day 2peration 	 0aintenance of all hydro and water production flumes, ditches, diversion dams, 
head gates and related facilities. Will be reTuired to direct and inspect work being performed on all 
hydro plants and waterways. Will be reTuired to measure and record water flows, operate ditch and 
dam head gates on all Company waterways from the upriver storage dams to all hydro plant intakes. 
0ust have at least two years e[perience as a +ydro�*eneration 2perator and possess the knowledge 
and skills through e[perience and training to direct and train the +ydro�*eneration 2perator or 
Apprentice 2perator. 7he employee will be responsible to determine the lumber and hardware needed 
for flume and penstock repairs and rebuilds and may be reTuired to provide construction management 
and inspection. 7hey shall be responsible for controlling the Verdi Lumberyard inventory and access. 
7he employee shall be responsible for keeping proper records of plant operations, maintenance and 
outages. 7he employee shall be thoroughly familiar with Company dispatching and clearance rules 
electrical and mechanical tagging and safety rules. ,n the absence of management, the employee shall 
be the controlling party of all hydro and related facilities and is authori]ed to issue and grant all 
clearances. 7he employee must maintain a current driver¶s license and be Tualified to render first aid. 

55��� )25(0AN�W20AN, 0(C+AN,C, 0A,N7(NANC( 	 C2N752L, WP, W25.,N* 

An employee who has the knowledge and skill through e[perience and training to work with and direct 
the activities of a crew engaged in construction and maintenance of facilities connected with or related 
to the Water Production 'epartment.  0ust be a -ourneyman 0echanic, 0aintenance 	 Control, WP, 
to be considered for promotion to this classification.  0ust be skilled in the crafts in which they work 
and have sufficient knowledge of all tools and eTuipment used under their direction and guidance.  
0ust have sufficient knowledge of the function of water system eTuipment, how it operates 
mechanically, hydraulically and electronically.  0ust be able to interpret plans, sketches, specifications 
and written instructions.  Will be reTuired to interpret and work from various service and repair manuals.  
0ust be thoroughly familiar with work procedures and methods for the assigned area of responsibility.  
Will be reTuired to keep and maintain accurate and legible records of the operation and maintenance 
of water system related mechanical eTuipment.  Shall be thoroughly familiar with Company
s 
dispatching, clearance, rigging and ha]ardous materials handling regulations. 0ust maintain a State 
of Nevada *rade ,,, Water 'istribution Certification and a current driver¶s license. 

 
551�� )25(0AN�W20AN, S+,)7, WA7(5 75(A70(N7, W25.,N* 

An employee who is in charge of and responsible for the operation and maintenance of all water 
treatment plants and related water system facilities.  ,s reTuired to effectively contribute to positive 
working relationships and Mob performance of the employees under their direction and to provide and 
encourage Tuality customer service.  0ust possess the knowledge and skill through e[perience and 
training to direct, perform and assist in the activities and duties of the Water Plant 2perators, 
apprentices and other classifications as assigned.  0ust be capable of analy]ing water system 
problems and be responsible for contracting and directing other Water Production personnel to resolve 
these problems in the most timely and economical fashion.  Shall be responsible for scheduling and 
directing work and training activities while on shift.  0ust be capable of properly coordinating the flow 
of water through all treatment plants, regulators and pumping plants to satisfy pressure and storage of 
water.  7hey shall be responsible for record keeping such as, but not limited to timesheets, plant 
operation, maintenance, tests and unusual incidents during their shift.  Shall be responsible for 
implementing Company policies, including fitness for duty.  ,n addition to the duties of foreman�woman, 
is reTuired to relieve in all subordinate capacities when reTuires.  0ust possess sufficient knowledge 
of all tools and eTuipment, which may be used.  0ust be able to interpret plans, drawings and 
specifications and comply with all federal, state and local governmental regulations.  7hey shall be 
thoroughly familiar with Company
s dispatching and clearance rules, electrical and mechanical tagging 
and safety rules.  0ust maintain State of Nevada Water 7reatment and 'istribution 2perators 
Certification *rade ,,, or eTuivalent.  0ust maintain a valid driver¶s license. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 67

54�9� )25(0AN�W20AN, W25.,N*, +(AVY, WA7(5 

An employee who possesses the necessary knowledge and skill through e[perience and training to 
work with and direct the activities of a crew engaged in heavy construction, maintenance or 
replacement of facilities.  0ust have successfully completed a Nevada State )itter apprenticeship.  
0ust have demonstrated satisfactory performance as a light )oreman�woman for at least one �1� year 
or have eTuivalent e[perience before consideration will be given for promotion to this classification.  
Crew si]e will not be limited in number or skilled classifications under direction by this classification.  
0ust be skilled in the crafts in which they work and possess sufficient knowledge of all tools and 
eTuipment which they may have occasion to use or to be used under their direction and guidance.  
7hey must be able to interpret plans, sketches, specifications, and written instructions.  0ust be 
thoroughly familiar with the work procedures and methods for the area of responsibility assigned.  0ust 
possess sufficient familiarity with symbols and dimensions as related to plans.  Will be reTuired to keep 
time for themselves, as well as the crew under their supervision and prepare proper notes and records, 
as well as other clerical work associated with their Mob and crew.  0ust be capable of writing with clarity 
in a neat and legible fashion.  A +eavy Working )oreman�woman must maintain a State of Nevada 
*rade ,,, Water 'istribution certification or eTuivalent. 

 
54�8� )25(0AN�W20AN, W25.,N*, L,*+7, WA7(5

An employee who possesses the necessary knowledge and skill through e[perience and training to 
work with and direct the activities of semi�skilled personnel engaged in light construction, maintenance 
or replacement of facilities.  0ust have successfully completed a Nevada State )itter apprenticeship.  
0ust be skilled in the crafts in which they work and possess sufficient knowledge of all tools and 
eTuipment which they may have occasion to use or to be used under their direction and guidance.  
7hey must be able to interpret plans, sketches, specifications and written instruction.  0ust be 
thoroughly familiar with the work procedures and methods for the area of responsibility assigned.  0ust 
possess sufficient familiarity with symbols and dimensions as related to plans.  Will be reTuired to keep 
time for themselves, as well as the crew under their supervision and prepare proper notes and records, 
as well as other clerical work associated with their Mob and crew.  0ust be capable of writing with clarity 
in a neat and legible fashion.  (mployees must maintain a State of Nevada *rade ,,, Water 'istribution 
certification.  

 
51��� +(LP(5 

0ust have sufficient knowledge and adaptability to understand and carry on duties as assigned� must 
be semi�skilled laborer, or eTuivalent with past e[perience as such, capable of handling ordinary tools 
safely in accordance with Company safety rules.  Assist skilled workman or apprentice or work under 
their direction at various classes of work, which may be assigned in any location. 

 
54�7� ,NSP(C725 

 
An employee who possesses knowledge and skill as obtained by e[perience and training to direct and 
inspect work performed by contractors installing water facilities for the Company.  0ust have 
successfully completed a Nevada State )itter apprenticeship.  0ust possess in�depth knowledge of 
water distribution materials, construction standards, procedures and specifications, including the 
interpretation of grading plans and profiles.  Attends preconstruction conferences, interprets and 
reviews construction plans before and during construction to identify problems and conflicts and works 
with engineering to resolve identified issues.  5eTuired to inspect the activities of non�utility contractors 
when their construction activities pose a ha]ard to e[isting water facilities, provides direction to 
mitigate conflicts.  Coordinates proMects with internal departments, outside agencies and 
communicates with customers who may be affected by construction activities. Prepares reports, 
verifies change orders and Tuantities to ensure accurate billing. 0ust be familiar with and update the 
work order management systems. 5eTuired to keep the records necessary to complete as�built 
drawings, including type of material installed, dimensions of the installation as well as the use of *PS 
eTuipment to verify vertical and hori]ontal alignment, location and elevation of pipe to ensure the 
accurate mapping of all water facilities.  2perates pipe locators, pressure recorders, hydrostatic 
pumps, and other instruments and eTuipment common to water facility installations.  0ust be familiar 
with pertinent health regulations and ensure these regulations are adhered to during the construction 
and acceptance of new facilities.  0ust possess and maintain State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 
'istribution Certification or eTuivalent. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 68

54�75 ,NSP(C725, C2NS758C7,2N 

An employee who has sufficient knowledge of Construction to inspect contractors
 and�or Company 
work.  Will be reTuired to perform such duties as coordinating work between contractors and Company 
crews, scheduling and coordinating delivery of materials, preparing and maintaining construction 
records and verifying that work is done in accordance with plans and specifications.  0ust be familiar 
with all phases of construction including site work, e[cavation, carpentry, concrete work, steelwork, 
fencing, buildings, grounding, installation of both metallic and non�metallic conduit, and their 
underground facilities.  0ust be able to read and understand drawings and specifications, have 
knowledge of surveying, and be able to work with all other departments.  0ay be assigned to work as 
a member of a construction crew.  5eTuires two �2� years
 e[perience as a 5epairman or eTuivalent.  

 
53�5�      0(C+AN,C, +Y'52�*(N(5A7,2N 

An employee who is Tualified and regularly engaged in performing all types of hydro, diesel, and 
turbine generation maintenance, including maintenance of engine turbo chargers, oil systems, cooling 
systems and all related plant facilities. (mployee shall also perform all types of mechanical and 
electrical maintenance to water production and distribution facilities for which they are Tualified. 
(mployee shall maintain a current driver¶s license and be Tualified to render first aid.  8pon successful 
completion of the minimum Tualifications of Power *enerator 7ech�+ydro Certified 7ech, the 
0echanic, +ydro�*eneration will be reclassified to Power *enerator 7ech�+ydro Certified 7ech. 

  
55�2� 0(C+AN,C, 0A,N7(NANC( 	 C2N752L, C(57,),(', WP 

An employee who has completed a 0aintenance and Control 0echanic apprenticeship or eTuivalent 
and is Tualified to install, maintain, test and repair various types of mechanical eTuipment within the 
Water Production 'epartment, including, but not limited to, production wells, booster pump stations, 
pressure regulator stations as well as the water treatment facilities.  0ust have an understanding of 
the electrical systems related to the mechanical eTuipment.  0ust have a thorough understanding of 
hydraulic controls, and their principles, and will be reTuired to install, test, and service these controls 
in order to obtain an efficient operation.  0ust have a working knowledge of the SCA'A system and 
will be reTuired to access data relative to the operation of the various pumping systems and pressure 
]ones.  Will also input set points related to the hydraulic controls and their automatic functions and 
may at times be asked to aid the plant operators in the operation of these systems�]ones.  0ust be 
able to work from various service and repair manuals and be capable of solving technical problems 
where resources may be limited.  Will be reTuired to perform other related tasks such as incidental 
welding and rigging and will keep accurate and legible records of the operation and maintenance of 
the eTuipment for which the employee is responsible.  0ust be thoroughly familiar with the Company 
tagging procedure and safety rules.  0ust maintain a current Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution 
Certificate and a current driver¶s license. 7he employee will be reclassified to 0echanic, Specialist, 
0aintenance and Control, WP, upon completion of two years in this classification, and attaining 
chemical handling system training and Nevada *rade ,,, Water 'istribution Certification. 

 
55�3� 0(C+AN,C, SP(C,AL,S7, 0A,N7(NANC( 	 C2N752L, WP 

An employee who has completed a 0echanic, 0aintenance 	 Control apprenticeship or eTuivalent, 
has received ha]ardous materials handling training or eTuivalent and is Tualified to install, maintain, 
test and repair various types of mechanical eTuipment, chemical handling eTuipment, and piping 
systems used in water production, treatment, and distribution facilities, including, but not limited to, 
production wells, booster pump stations, pressure regulator stations, water treatment plants, and 
associated facilities.  0ust have an understanding of the electrical systems related to the mechanical 
systems controlling and driving mechanical eTuipment.  0ust have a thorough understanding of 
hydraulic controls and will be reTuired to install, test and service these controls in order to obtain an 
efficient operation.  0ust have a working knowledge of the SCA'A system and will be reTuired to 
access data relative to the operation of the various pumping systems and pressure ]ones.  Will also 
enter data relative to hydraulic setpoints and controls.  0ay be asked to aid the plant operators in 
operations of pumping and�or regulator station operation.  Will be called on to assist customers in 
resolving pressure or flow problems.  Will be reTuired to inspect contractor�installed work in any water 
production facility.  0ust be able to work from various service and repair manuals and be capable of 
solving technical problems where resources may be limited.  Will be reTuired to perform other related 
tasks such as welding and rigging and will keep accurate and legible records of operation and 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 69

maintenance of the eTuipment for which the employee is responsible.  0ust be thoroughly familiar with 
Company lock�out�tag�out procedures, safety rules and ha]ardous materials handling procedures.  
0ust maintain current Nevada *rade ,,, Water 'istribution Certificate. 

 
54�2� 2P(5A725, (48,P0(N7 , 

An employee who is under direct supervision and assists an e[perienced 2perator, or eTuivalent, and 
is in the process of acTuiring the e[perience and skills reTuired to advance to (Tuipment 2perator ,,.  
Will be reTuired to operate pavement breakers, rubber�tired e[cavation eTuipment such as loaders, 
and combination back�hoe�loaders with rated capacities not e[ceeding one and one�half �1 ò� cubic 
yards for loader buckets and one half �ò� cubic yard for back�hoe buckets. 

 
 After one �1� year, automatic progression to (Tuipment 2perator ,, classification will occur upon 

successful completion of the (Tuipment 2perator , Performance 7est.  5efer to (Tuipment 2perator 
Progression *uidelines.  

 
54�25 2P(5A725, (48,P0(N7 ,, 

An employee who has progressed through the (Tuipment 2perator , classification, or has eTuivalent 
e[perience and is Tualified by training and e[perience to perform special construction work using 
rubber�tired e[cavation eTuipment such as loaders, and combination back�hoe�loaders with rated 
capacities e[ceeding one and one�half �1 ò� cubic yards for loader buckets and one half �ò� cubic 
yard for back�hoe buckets boom trucks, forklifts, etc. �type of eTuipment may vary by department�.  
0ay be reTuired to complete Mob�related clerical work and assist in training. 

 
 After two �2� years of (Tuipment 2perator ,,, progression to (Tuipment ,,, classification will occur upon 

successful demonstration of (Tuipment 2perator ,, skills and department specific -ourneyman skills 
during two years of 2perator ,, classification.  5efer to (Tuipment 2perator Progression *uidelines. 

 
54�3� 2P(5A725, (48,P0(N7 ,,, 

An employee who has progressed through the (Tuipment 2perator ,, classification, or has eTuivalent 
e[perience and is Tualified by training and operating e[perience to perform special construction work 
using rubber tired eTuipment such as loaders, and combination backhoe�loaders with rated capacities 
e[ceeding 1 B cubic year for loader buckets and B cubic yard for backhoe buckets, boom trucks, 
forklifts, e[cavators eTuivalent in si]e to Cat 0odel 3�8 or less etc.  �type of eTuipment may vary by 
department�.  0ay be reTuired to complete Mob related clerical work and assist in training.  ,s 
additionally Tualified by training and e[perience to perform a variety of department specific 
-ourneyman level tasks.  5efer to the (Tuipment 2perator Progression *uidelines. 

 
54�35 2P(5A725, (48,P0(N7, +(AVY  

An employee who has completed a minimum of three �3� years as an (Tuipment 2perator ,, and�or a 
combination of two �2� years as an (Tuipment 2perator ,, and one �1� year as an (Tuipment 2perator 
,,,, or has eTuivalent e[perience and is Tualified by training and operating e[perience to perform 
special construction work using various rubber�tire and track� mounted or heavy eTuipment �type of 
eTuipment may vary by department� such as bulldo]ers, cranes, road graders and e[cavators or other 
similar eTuipment.  0ay be reTuired to complete Mob�related clerical work and assist in training. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 70

53�1� 2P(5A725, +Y'52�*(N(5A7,2N  

A shift employee with at least one �1� year
s e[perience as an Assistant +ydro�*eneration 2perator, 
who during their shift is in direct charge of and is responsible for the operation of one �1� or more 
+ydro *eneration units, 'iesel *eneration units, and any related facilities. 7hey will perform the duties 
of +ydro 2perator at unattended hydro plants and substations, water collection and delivery systems 
or ditch and stream gauging. 0ay be reTuired to perform monthly runs and testing for emergency 
generation units and assist in maintenance. Will be reTuired to observe and record station operation 
data on a continuous basis and maintain eTuipment in proper operating condition. Will be reTuired to 
operate, inspect, and perform routine maintenance of all Water Production dams, head gates, flumes, 
penstocks, and other related facilities in order to insure proper river and canal flows at all times. Will 
be responsible for minor maintenance of all eTuipment in their care. Will keep facilities and grounds 
in a clean and orderly fashion. Will prepare switching orders and maintain operating diagrams. 0ay 
be reTuired to perform and direct electrical switching in accordance with established Company 
procedures. 0ust be familiar with Company dispatching and clearance rules, electrical and mechanical 
tagging and safety rules, and be Tualified to render first aid. 0ay be reTuired to direct and train other 
operating employees in any or all of the above mentioned duties. 0ay be upgraded to 
+ydro�*eneration )oreman�woman. 

 
847� 2P(5A725, WA7(5 PLAN7, *5A'( ,,, 75(A70(N7 2NLY 

 
 An employee who has completed an apprenticeship and�or eTuivalent level of training or appropriate 

certification and is responsible for the flow of water in the canals and reservoirs and operates pumps 
and valves to regulate the flow of water through a treatment plant or pumping plant, coordinating the 
rate of flow with demand, storage and other operating plants� reads and interprets meters, charts, and 
gauges, changing recording charts and inking pens as necessary� performs such recordkeeping 
functions as log of plant operations, test results, maintenance work performed, unusual operating 
conditions and special reports as reTuired� takes samples of water at established times and makes 
such standardi]ed control tests as chlorine residual, coagulation tests, p+, etc., as may be reTuired� 
adMusts rate�of�feed of chemical dispensers accordingly, will conduct daily radiological monitoring tests� 
maintain plants and operating eTuipment in a clean and orderly condition, may perform maintenance 
cleaning of plant machinery, eTuipment, piping and structures� lubricates and makes limited repairs 
and adMustments to eTuipment commonly found in a water pumping or treatment plant, shuts down 
areas of the plant system for repairs� observes and reports unusual operating conditions or the need 
for maintenance of eTuipment, building and grounds� makes prescribed and special reports, receives 
supplies delivered during their shift and insures that they are properly stored.    0ust maintain a State 
of Nevada *rade ,, Water 7reatment 2perator
s Certification or eTuivalent.  7he (mployee shall be 
reclassified to *rade ,,, 7reatment 	 'istribution 2perator, Water Plant, upon completion of *rade ,, 
Water 7reatment and Water 'istribution Certifications. 

 
55�8�   2P(5A725, WA7(5 PLAN7, *5A'( ,,, 75(A70(N7 	 ',S75,%87,2N 

An employee who has completed an apprenticeship and�or eTuivalent level of training or appropriate 
certification and is responsible for the production of safe and clean drinking water in compliance with 
all )ederal, State, and Local regulations and restrictions, under general supervision of the Working 
)oreman�woman. Will also be responsible for the operation of pumps and valves to regulate the flow 
of water through canals and treatment plants and will coordinate the rate of flow with demand, storage 
and other operating needs� operates the overall distribution system through the companies SCA'A 
system, and using the SCA'A system to start, stop, and take out of service for work, whatever part of 
the distribution system is reTuired for the efficient delivery of water to customers� will take appropriate 
action to help resolve customer complaints when necessary� performs such record keeping functions 
as log of plant operations, test results, maintenance work performed, unusual operating conditions and 
special reports as reTuired� takes samples of water at 5egular intervals and makes such control tests 
reTuired to ensure the efficient production of a safe product for public consumption� performs tests and 
adMusts chemical feed eTuipment to ensure optimal performance of treatment plant process� will make 
limited repairs and adMustments, for which training has been provided� receives supplies delivered 
during their�her shift and ensures that they are properly stored. 0ust maintain State of Nevada *rade 
,, Water 7reatment and Water 'istribution certifications or eTuivalent.  7he (mployee shall be 
reclassified to 2perator ,,,, Water Plant upon completion of *rade ,,, Water 7reatment and Water 
'istribution Certifications.  
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 71

55�9� 2P(5A725, WA7(5 PLAN7, *5A'( ,,,, 75(A70(N7 	 ',S75,%87,2N  

An employee who has completed an apprenticeship and�or eTuivalent level of training or appropriate 
certification and is responsible for the production of safe and clean drinking water in Compliance with 
all )ederal, State, and Local regulations and restrictions, under general supervision of the Working 
)oreman�woman. Will also be responsible for the operation of pumps and valves to regulate the flow 
of water through canals and treatment plants and will coordinate the rate of flow with demand, storage 
and other operating needs� operates the overall distribution system through the companies SCA'A 
system, and using the SCA'A system to start, stop, and take out of service for work, whatever part of 
the distribution system is reTuired for the efficient delivery of water to customers� will take appropriate 
action to help resolve customer complaints when necessary� performs such record keeping functions 
as log of plant operations, test results, maintenance work performed, unusual operating conditions and 
special reports as reTuired� takes samples of water at 5egular intervals and makes such control tests 
reTuired to ensure the efficient production of a safe product for public consumption� performs tests and 
adMusts chemical feed eTuipment to ensure optimal performance of treatment plant process� will make 
limited repairs and adMustments, for which training has been provided� receives supplies delivered 
during their�her shift and ensures that they are properly stored. 0ust maintain State of Nevada *rade 
,,, Water 7reatment and Water 'istribution certifications or eTuivalent. 5eTuired for upgrade to 
Working )oreman�woman. 

 
53�3� P2W(5 *(N(5A725 7(C+�+Y'52 C(57,),(' 7(C+ 

An employee who has graduated and is certified by a diesel technical college or has certifications for 
diesel controls and diesel power train engine training. Additionally, two years¶ e[perience with 
maintenance, troubleshooting and repair of diesel generators reTuired. 

 
0ust have a thorough understanding and be Tualified to perform generator mechanical and electrical 
repair and diagnose both engine and electrical component�attachment problems as well as 
troubleshoot, diagnose and repair various diesel engines, governor controls, electronic control 
functions and knowledge of their standard operation and maintenance. Ability to troubleshoot, 
diagnose as well as perform emergency repair of analog and digital controls. 0ust have the ability to 
read and understand wiring diagrams and schematics. 0ust be able to perform planned and corrective 
maintenance of diesel fueled generator sites. Ability to follow proper procedures for performing load 
bank testing on generator sets. 0ust have knowledge of automatic transfer switches and control logic. 
5esponsibilities for diesel generator units are limited to diesel controls and responsibility terminates 
at all leads or wires leaving the unit. 5eTuired to learn hydro mechanical and emergency operation 
procedures. 0ust be thoroughly familiar with Company¶s electrical and mechanical tagging and safety 
rules. 7he ability to work independently with minimum daily supervision and must be able to work 
overtime as needed. 0ust maintain a current valid driver¶s license. 
 

52���     5(P5(S(N7A7,V(, ACC28N7S PAYA%L( �AP� 

   7heir position performs a variety of skilled and unskilled tasks dealing with the orderly flow of work 
within the Accounts Payable area. 7he incumbent will be responsible for a� reviewing, analy]ing and 
verifying consistency, completeness and accuracy of items to be entered into the accounts payable 
system �including validation with purchase orders and understanding of the accounts payable 
relationship with the purchasing function�, b� researching and resolving errors or discrepancies in 
invoices, c� timely processing of invoices, e[pense reports and credit card transactions for payment 
in the applicable accounts payable computer system, d� maintaining subsidiary ledgers, e� processing 
weekly accounts payable check runs, preparing check register reports and issuing checks with the 
applicable bank, and f� deciphering vendor W�9 information and maintaining 1�99 records. 

 
7he incumbent may work alone and make independent decisions as necessary on such duties for 
which the employee has been trained and instructed, including accounting and data entry functions 
and is reTuired to be effective when working with and responding to customer and vendor reTuests 
and inTuiries. Performs other assignments that may be clerical in nature and provides 
instruction�interpretation of accounts payable policies to both internal and e[ternal customers. 

 
7heir position reTuires incumbents to have five �5� years¶ e[perience handling accounts payable 
transactions, accounts receivable transactions, cash transactions, or general bookkeeping entries in 
a financial software program. ([perience in the Customer Service 5epresentative �977�� and Senior 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 72

Customer Service 5epresentative �9735� Mob classifications will count towards the five years¶ 
e[perience reTuired for their position. 

 
7he position may be reTuired by Company to pass written and�or proficiency tests covering any of the 
following Tualifications� 

 
1. 7yping with acceptable speed and accuracy �4� wpm� 
2. Aptitude for basic arithmetical calculations �general math test as administered by third party� 
3. Aptitude for routine accounts payable operations including 1�99 and W�9 procedures �accounts 

payable test as administered by third party� 
4. Ability to operate various office machines and personal computer 
5. 0icrosoft 2ffice computer application proficiency 

 
52�1� 5(P5(S(N7A7,V(, C8S720(5 S(5V,C(S 

An employee not reTuired to have prior customer services e[perience, but able to receive training in 
order to perform the duties of Customer Services 5epresentative �CS5�.  8pon satisfactory completion 
of the minimum training reTuirements of the Customer ,nformation System, and while receiving 
on�the�Mob training, may be assigned to any of the duties performed by the CS5¶s.  5eTuired to be 
effective when working with the public and responding to customer reTuests and inTuiries, as well as 
have other Tualifications and Tualities generally accepted as being desirable in a customer services 
classification.  Works alone on duties for which employee has been trained and instructed and makes 
independent decisions as necessary to satisfy customer needs and provide Tuality customer service.  
Will automatically progress through the wage rate scale provided the employee
s performance is 
satisfactory to Tualify for advancement.  0ust be able to perform mathematical calculations, type at an 
acceptable speed and accuracy, and be able to operate various office machines and personal 
computers with some proficiency.  0ay be reTuired by Company to pass written and�or proficiency 
tests covering any of the following Tualifications� 
 
 1. 7yping with acceptable speed and accuracy �45 w.p.m.� 
 2. 0icrosoft 2ffice computer applications proficiency. 
 3. Aptitude for arithmetical calculations. 
 4. Ability to operate various office machines and personal computers. 
 5. Spanish speaking skills. 

 
52�2� 5(P5(S(N7A7,V(, C8S720(5 S(5V,C(S, S(N,25 

An employee who has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Company, through a minimum of three 
�3� years
 e[perience as a Customer Services 5epresentative �CS5�, that he�she is Tualified to  
perform, with a minimal amount of supervision, all functions relating to CS5¶s.  5eTuired to be  

 effective when working with the public and responding to customer reTuests and inTuiries, as well as  
 having other Tualifications and Tualities generally accepted as being desirable in customer services  
 classifications.  5eTuired to make independent decisions as necessary to satisfy customer needs  
 and provide on�the�Mob training. 
 
54��� S(5V,C( 87,L,7Y W25.(5 

An employee who is reTuired to work alone in the field and is engaged in routine duties revolving 
around 70WA¶s Customer Service billing and credit�collections needs, such as meter reading, move�
in�move�outs and credit cut�in�cut�outs.  7he employee must be able to operate 70WA¶s meter reading 
eTuipment, both hand�held and truck mounted, and must be able to resolve and repair meter reading 
issues and eTuipment.  7hese repairs may include the 575, (57 or other signaling device, but will 
not include repairs to the meter.  (mployee will assist in other areas of customer service as reTuired 
including responding to internal and e[ternal customer reTuests.  An employee who has at least one 
�1� years¶ e[perience as an apprentice fitter or eTuivalent e[perience shall be given an e[perience 
rating to the one �1� year wage step.  Will be reTuired to have and maintain a driver¶s license.   
 
Not included in the Service 8tility Worker Mob description are the following� 
• Cut�in�cut out for repairs 
• (mergency water leaks 
• Water meter replacement 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 73

• After hours service calls 
• %ack )low 7esting 
• Water meter sets 
• Pressure complaints 

 
54��� WA7(5 S(5V,C( 7(C+N,C,AN 

An employee who is a )itter or eTuivalent.  7heir background of apprentice training and e[perience 
must be such as to Tualify them to perform these duties with skill and efficiency.  0ust be able to learn 
the application of pipe locator eTuipment, determine leak locations in regard to Company or customer 
side of curb cock and investigate water customer complaints.  Will be reTuired to set and remove water 
meters and remote readers.  Will be reTuired to check for and investigate tampered or damaged water 
meters, remote readers, and remote cables as well as repair or replace remote cables.  0ay be 
reTuired to assist in the field with the testing of water meters.  0ay be reTuired to change recording 
instrument charts at various locations.  Will be reTuired to make water cutouts and water cut�ins.  
Servicemen will test, adMust and repair all classes �si]es� of water meters.  0ust be familiar with water 
fittings and system pressures.  0ust maintain a State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution certification 
and must maintain a %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester certification. Successful bidder 
will have 9� days to obtain a %ackflow Prevention Assembly *eneral 7ester certification. 

 
55�4� SP(C,AL,S7, (48,P0(N7, WA7(5 75(A70(N7 

An employee who is responsible for the operation and routine maintenance of water treatment 
eTuipment, machinery and instrumentation including flow meters.  Will be reTuired to conduct water 
treatment tests including determination of coagulant and purification dosage.  0ust be able to modify 
e[isting water treatment systems when needed and be capable of recogni]ing the need for making 
these changes and make recommendations.  Will be reTuired to make preliminary analysis of usage 
and costs of chemical and chemical eTuipment.  0ust be able to make estimates for plant operations 
improvements and changes.  Will be reTuired to keep accurate records of plant operations and 
maintenance, chemical usage, purchases and other special reports as reTuired.  Will be responsible 
for maintaining proper stock of water treatment chemicals for all plants. 0ust maintain a *rade ,, 
'istribution, *rade ,,, Water 7reatment and %ackflow Specialist Certifications.  Will be reTuired to 
attain %ackflow Certifications within one year of award. 0ust maintain state of Nevada *rade ,, 
'istribution and *rade ,,, Water 7reatment certifications.  Within one year of award, will be reTuired to 
attain and maintain a %ackflow Assembly 7ester Certification, and 2+SA 4� +our +A=W2P(5 
certification �+a]ardous Waste 2perations and (mergency 5esponse�.  Within si[ months of award, 
will be reTuired to attain and maintain a Nevada C'L Class % with a +0( �+a]ardous 0aterials 
(ndorsement�. 

 
55��� SP(C,AL,S7, WA7(5 S8PPLY 

An employee who, with minimum supervision, is responsible for the inspection, minor maintenance of 
any and all water supply and distribution facilities owned and�or operated by 70WA. 0ust be able to 
observe and recogni]e normal and abnormal operating characteristics of pumps, motors, regulators, 
and similar eTuipment and see that correct operating pressures are being maintained on water 
systems. Will be reTuired to reset tripped motor starters, variable freTuency drives, etc. Will be reTuired 
to keep pump stations, well facilities, pressure regulating stations, and other facilities clean and orderly. 
0ust be able to work in vaults and other small underground facilities and comply with all safety 
reTuirements. 0ust be able to take water samples and perform simple water Tuality tests on both raw 
water and finished water. Will be reTuired to change charts, clean and fill inking pens, lubricate pumps, 
and perform work of similar nature. 0ust be able to complete daily log of sites visited and report 
irregularities that need correction to supervisor. 0ust have knowledge of basic personal computer 
programs �Word, email, C00S� and the ability to use a PC on a daily basis. 0ay be reTuired to assist 
other 2perations and 0aintenance staff if needed. 0ust maintain a State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 
'istribution certification within 12 months of entering the position. 0ay be reTuired to pass a written 
and�or performance test that will demonstrate competency of the Tualifications listed above. 0ust 
maintain a valid driver¶s license. 

 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 74

53�2� 7(C+N,C,AN, PLAN7, (L(C75,CAL 

An employee who is a -ourneyman and is engaged in testing, repairing, maintaining and installing all 
types of electric and electronic eTuipment and related components in generating stations, water 
production and related facilities. 0ay be reTuired to do plant and plant substation switching.  0ay be 
reTuired to do incidental welding, such as tack hangers and test welding machines after repair, etc. 
7heir background of apprenticeship and e[perience must be such as to Tualify them to perform these 
duties with skill and efficiency.  7hey may also be reTuired to instruct or advise operating personnel on 
problems pertaining to electrical eTuipment. 7hey must be thoroughly familiar with Company¶s 
electrical and mechanical tagging and safety rules. (mployee shall maintain a current driver¶s license 
and Tualified to render first aid. 

 
5513� 7(C+N,C,AN, SCA'A  

An employee who has completed an apprenticeship in the electrical field and can demonstrate 
e[perience in the instrumentation area or who has completed an apprenticeship in the instrumentation 
field and can demonstrate e[perience in the electrical area. 0ust have e[perience and aptitude in all 
areas of computer logic� controls, interfacing and system integration. (Tuivalent training and 
e[perience may also be considered. 0ust be Tualified to maintain, repair, install, and troubleshoot 
various water system instruments, electronic devices and motor control devices, including but not 
limited to calibration and�or repair of all primary sensors, chlorination eTuipment, meters, pressure 
switches, etc.� problem analysis and�or replacement�repair of telemetry communications circuits, circuit 
breakers, fuses, control wiring and other electrical motor control eTuipment� programming of logic for 
controllers and system software� troubleshooting remote terminal signals and computer integration 
systems. 0ust be able to understand relatively comple[ technical problems and perform a wide variety 
of non�routine tasks, where only general methods of procedure are available. 0ay be reTuired to do 
work planning and in a courteous and professional manner, train and direct the activities of other 
employees. 0ust have a good knowledge of electrical and mechanical tagging procedures, safety rules 
and the ability to render first aid.  0ust maintain a State of Nevada *rade ,, Water 'istribution 
certification or eTuivalent.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 75

A77AC+0(N7 ,, 
(;+,%,7 ³%´ �2� 

�As Amended -uly 1, 2�12� 
 

'(L(7(' -2% CLASS,),CA7,2NS 

7he following classifications shall be deleted and the incumbents shall be reclassified as indicated� 

1. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
2. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
3. �295 )oreman�woman, Shift, Working, Water 7reatment becomes �297 )oreman�woman, 

Shift, Water 7reatment, Working 
 
4. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
5. 7�83 Apprentice, 0echanic, 0aintenance becomes Apprentice, 0echanic, 0aintenance 	 

Control, WP 
 
�. 815� 2perator, Water 7reatment becomes Specialist, (Tuipment, Water 7reatment  
 
7.  7�2� Serviceman ,,, Water and Serviceman ,,,, Water becomes Water Service   

             7echnician   
 
8. �28� )oreman�woman, Working, +eavy Water ,, and )oreman�woman, Working, +eavy 

Water ,,, becomes )oreman�woman, Working, +eavy Water 
 
9. �395 )oreman�woman, Working, Light Water ,, and )oreman�woman, Working, Light Water 

,,, becomes )oreman�woman, Working, Light Water 
 
1�. 924� +elper ± )acilities 	 *rounds 0aintenance becomes )acilities 	 *rounds 

0aintenance , 	 ,, �per L2A��7�1�12� 
 
7he following classifications shall be deleted�  
 

1.   712� 7echnician, Well Production 
 
2.  714� 7echnician, Communications, *�W 
 
3.   7355 7echnician, Systems, Peaking�+ydro 
 
4.   8778 2perator, (Tuipment, Assistant 
 
5.  884� 2perator, Water Plant, Assistant 
 
�.  Wage Steps for )oreman�woman, Light Working Water and )oreman�woman, Light 

Working Water ,, 
 
7.  Wage Steps for )oreman�woman, +eavy Working Water and )oreman�woman, 

+eavy Working Water ,, 
 
8.     885� 2perator, +ydro�*eneration, Assistant �7�1�12� 
 
9.     7�92 Apprentice, )itter�Welder �7�1�12� 
 
 ��71 )oreman�woman, 0aintenance, +ydro�*eneration, Working

  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 76

A77AC+0(N7 ,,, 
 

L(77(5S 2) 8N'(5S7AN',N* 
 
1.  �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
2. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
3. �'eleted ��11��1�  
 
4. �'eleted 1�1�98� 
 
5. �'eleted 1�1�98� 
 
�. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
7. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
8. �'eleted 7�1�12� 
 
9. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
1�. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
11. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
12.  �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
13. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
14. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
15.  (48,P0(N7 2P(5A725 P52*5(SS,2N *8,'(L,N(S �Amended ��11��1� 
 

7he (Tuipment 2perator , performance test will generally consist of the following� 0onthly evaluations 
by the Working )oreman�woman or eTuivalent �a form entitled ³(Tuipment 2perator (valuation´ will be 
used for such evaluations�.  Additionally, the employee will be reTuired to study and become 
knowledgeable of proper eTuipment safety and operating techniTues as well as maintenance 
procedures for each piece of eTuipment they operate within the (Tuipment 2perator , classification.  
7his information is typically found in the eTuipment operator¶s manual and�or in other publications, 
which deal specifically with operating eTuipment. 
 
'emonstration of (Tuipment 2perator ,, skills and -ourneyman skills, if applicable, will generally be 
determined through demonstrated proficiency, which will be evaluated and documented on the form 
entitled ³(Tuipment 2perator (valuation´.  7hese evaluation forms are to be completed at least 
Tuarterly by the Working )oreman�woman or eTuivalent.  7he (Tuipment 2perator ,, should have 
these skills evaluated by at least 75� of the Working )oreman�woman in a given department over the 
course of the progression, which will help ensure a representative yet thorough appraisal of the 
operator¶s skills is being achieved. 
 
'emonstration of understanding and basic proficiency in the following -ourneyman level skills will be 
reTuired in order to progress to (Tuipment 2perator ,,,� 
 
Water 'epartment²Water facility installation techniTues, facility locating, map and print reading, use 
of water tapping eTuipment, leak repair techniTues. 

 
1�. 7he terms and conditions of that certain Letter of Agreement dated April 15, 2�14 and Letter of 

Agreement dated -une 1�, 2�14 �attached hereto� are incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 77

A77AC+0(N7 ,V 
(;+,%,7 �C� �1� 

�As Amended -uly 1, 2�12� 

L,N(S 2) P52*5(SS,2N )25 %,'',N* AN' '(027,2NAL 
P85P2S(S %Y 2CC8PA7,2NAL *528PS 

'(),N,7,2N 2) 2CC8PA7,2NAL *528PS 

2ccupational *roups shall be defined as those separate divisions of the applicable Company �'epartments� 
shown above.  ,n those �'epartments� where there is no such division, the entire �'epartment� shall be 
considered as an 2ccupational *roup. 
 

�A� %id � Same classification or higher than Mob posted using occupational seniority. �Amended 1�1�95� 
 
�%� %id � Ne[t lower classifications in�occupational group seniority.  Classifications shown on chart above 
at the reverse end of arrows shall be considered ne[t lower to those to which the arrow points. �Amended 
1�1�95� 
 
�C� %id � Same classification in any other occupational group using Company seniority. 
 
�'� � Any classification in same occupational group as Mob being posted using occupational seniority. 
 
�(� � Any classification in any occupational group using Company seniority. 

For Lines of Progression (see Lines of Progression Diagram)
BIDDING NOTES

1. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
2.  �'eleted 1�1�98� 
 
3. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
4. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
4a. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
5. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
�. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
7. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
8. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
9. Classifications labeled �9� shall be considered as �%� bids to Light and +eavy Working 

)oreman�woman.  )itters and )itter�Welders will be considered �A� bids to ,nspector.  A -ourneyman 
)itter may carry this note to any position within the 0aintenance 2ccupational *roup. ,f employee bids 
to another 2ccupational *roup the %id Note �9 shall no longer be utili]ed.  �Amended 2�2��4� 
�Amended 7�1��9� 

 
1�. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
11. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
12. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
13. �'eleted 5�1�81� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 78

14. �'eleted 5�1��8� 
 
15. �'eleted 5�1��8� 
 
1�. �'eleted �7��1�2�17� 
 
17. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
18. �'eleted 5�1�71� 
 
19. �'eleted 5�1�71� 
 
2�. �'eleted 5�1�74� 
 
21. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
22. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
23. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
24. �'eleted ��11��1� 
  
25. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
2�. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
27.  �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
28 �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
29. �'eleted ��11��1� 
 
3�. Clerical %idding Notes �0oved from Attachment ,,, � Letters of 8nderstanding �1, effective 1�1�98�

A. *enerally speaking, Clerical employees will be hired at the minimum of the range.  ,n 
e[ceptional cases, e[perience elsewhere will be counted in determining the starting rate.  ,n no 
case will e[perience elsewhere be given more weight in determining the starting rate than if it 
had been with the Company. 

 
%. When a Clerical employee is in a wage progression and is promoted from one �1� Mob 

classification to another, their rate of pay shall be the starting rate for new classification or their 
present rate, whichever is higher.  ,n the case of an employee who bids laterally to a Mob 
classification with the same wage progression, or an employee who bids downward to a Mob 
classification with a lower wage progression, their rate of pay shall be the starting rate for such 
classification, e[cept that allowance shall be made by the Company for previous e[perience in 
the new classification.  When a Clerical employee bids from one �1� 'epartment, 'istrict or 
Sub�'istrict to another in the same classification, their rate of pay shall remain the same. 

 
C. �'eleted 5�1�91� 

 
'. �'eleted �7��1�2�18� 

 
(.  �'eleted 1�1�95� 

 
31. 7he lines of progression for bidding in and out of the (Tuipment Specialist �815�� position shall be set 

forth in the figure titled Attachment ,V, e[hibit C � Lines of Progression.  +owever, no %argaining 8nit 
employee will be able to bid to a position if he or she has not satisfactorily completed the approved 
apprenticeship program reTuired for that position, or previously held that position.  �Added ��12���� 

 
�(� %,''(5S 
51��� ± +elper 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 79

A77AC+0(N7 V 
³(;+,%,7 '´ 

 
%A5*A,N,N* 8N,7 

0(',CAL�'(N7AL�V,S,2N 2P7,2NS C20PA5,S2N 

�'eleted �7��1�2�18� 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 80

A77AC+0(N7 ,V 
(;+,%,7 �C� �1� ± Lines of Progression 'iagram 

�Amended 7�1�2�12� 

CHART APPEARS ON NEXT PAGE

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 81

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 82

A77AC+0(N7 V, 
287�2)�72WN W25. ASS,*N0(N7 *8,'(L,N(S 

�Added -anuary 1, 1995� 

A. P85P2S( 

'ue to growth and operational changes, which have occurred in our service area over the last few 
years, it has become more common to send employees away from their permanent work location to 
work in other areas.  ,n most cases these temporary assignments are beneficial to both the Company 
and its employees.  As the number of out�of�town assignments increases, however, so does the 
potential for disruption of family life and personal inconvenience of our employees. 

 
%. N27,),CA7,2N 2) W25. ASS,*N0(N7 
 

As soon as a Supervisor learns that some of their employees will be needed on an out�of�town proMect 
or Mob they should make their employees aware of the following factors� 
 
1. Number of employees reTuired in each classification from their work location for the Mob or 

proMect. 
2. Scope of work of the Mob or proMect �build new line, general maintenance, plant overhaul, etc.�. 
3. Starting date and e[pected duration. 
4. -ob location and reporting place. 
5. ([pected working hours �overtime, if e[pected�. 
�. Any other information available and of interest to employees, e.g., is there a special proMect 

agreement with the 8nion for the Mob? 
 

.eep in mind that employees appreciate being kept informed and effective, timely communications 
improve morale.  7+( S8P(5V,S25 S+28L' *,V( (0PL2Y((S ASS,*N(' 287�27�72WN 
W25. AS 08C+ A'VANC( N27,C( AS P2SS,%L(. 

 
C. 0ANN,N* 287�2)�72WN W25. ASS,*N0(N7S 
 
1. V2L8N7A5Y� 

   
,f possible, the Supervisor should attempt to use volunteers in each Mob classification, with the skill 
level reTuired. 
 
,f there are more volunteers than are reTuired for the Mob assignment then employees should be 
selected on the basis of 1� Tualifications, 2� accumulated overtime, 3� accumulated number of nights 
out�of�town, 4� 2ccupational *roup Seniority from top to bottom, 5� operational needs. 
8nless otherwise agreed to, volunteers will be e[pected to work through the entire proMect from start to 
finish.  Supervisors should discuss this issue with employees at the earliest possible date. 

 
2. N2N�V2L8N7A5Y� 
 

,f volunteers are not available to fill the manpower reTuirements of a proMect, assignments will be made 
on a non�voluntary basis.  (mployees will be selected on the basis of 1� Tualifications, 2� accumulated 
overtime, 3� accumulated number of nights out�of�town, 4� 2ccupational *roup Seniority from bottom 
to top, 5� operational needs. 
 
2n the ne[t mandatory Mob assignment, the ne[t employees on the 2ut�2f�7own Assignment List 
should be selected.  %y assigning employees in this order, all employees will share eTually in 
performance of out�of�town assignments. 
 
,f an employee volunteers for an out�of�town assignment, they should be considered as doing so on 
their own accord, and will still be reTuired to take their turn at non�voluntary assignments based on 
Section C �2��a�. 
,f an employee is unable to work their out�of�town assignment when selected due to illness, personal 
hardship, or any other reason of a temporary nature, they shall be replaced on the list as the first to go 
when their problems are resolved. 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 83

Any new employee reporting to a work location will be placed on the +eadTuarters
 2ut�2f�7own 
Assignment List and will be assigned out�of�town work when their turn arrives based on Section C 
�2��a�. 
(mployees should be kept informed where they stand on the 2ut�2f�7own Assignment List, as this will 
give them additional time to plan in advance for out�of�town assignments. 

 
 '. P(5S2NAL +A5'S+,P 
 

1. When an employee feels that an out�of�town assignment will create a personal 
hardship they should e[plain all the facts to their Supervisor.  7he Supervisor should 
listen to the employee, evaluate the situation and make a decision whether to send 
the employee on a non�voluntary basis or not.  7hese decisions will have to be made 
on a case�by�case basis, relying on the information supplied by the employee as well 
as other facts, which may be known to the Supervisor. 

 
2. ,f a non�voluntary Mob assignment lasts more than eight �8� weeks the Supervisor 

should consider rotating personnel to complete that Mob assignment.  �,f for e[ample, 
the Supervisor knows that an out�of�town work assignment will last for ten �1�� 
weeks, they might consider sending two �2� different groups for five �5� weeks each.� 

 
 (. 27+(5 C2NS,'(5A7,2NS 
 

1. Continuity � ,s it better to have the same group of employee¶s do the full Mob rather 
than changing in the middle of the proMect? 

 
2. ProMect Length � (ight �8� weeks is not necessarily the ideal ma[imum assignment for 

some proMects.  Some might be shorter, depending on the travel reTuired, working 
conditions, eTuali]ation of overtime, etc. 

 
3. -ob Location � ,f the assigned Mob locations are so far away that employees cannot 

return home on weekends, consideration should be given to making shorter 
assignments and rotating employees. 

 
4. Productivity � (mployees away from home on an involuntary basis for long periods of 

time may become less productive.  +armony and efficiency in the operation should 
be considered by Supervisors. 

 
5.  Skills 5eTuired � Certain employees with special skills may be reTuired at certain 

proMects for the duration of the proMect, or they may be reTuired to remain at their 
home location regardless, of the provisions of these guidelines.  7his will depend on 
Mob reTuirements. 

 
�.  5eporting Place � When board and lodging are provided by the Company, the 

reporting place will be the Company designated lodging of the local headTuarters. 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 84

A77AC+0(N7 V,, 
-2% S,7( 5(P257,N* 

�Amended ��11��1� 

7he Company and Local 8nion 1245 of the ,nternational %rotherhood of (lectrical Workers hereby mutually 
agree to the following� 
 
A.  '(),N,7,2N � 7(0P25A5Y ASS(0%LY S,7(S 

(mployees who are assigned to work away from their regular assigned reporting place will be reTuired 
to report to work at the established starting time and the established temporary assembly site designated 
by the Company.  �7emporary assembly site is defined as a temporary work location, not regularly 
established as a Company reporting place or headTuarters.�  ,t is understood that the temporary 
assembly site designated by the Company may change from time to time due to changes in the 
Company¶s operational reTuirements.  When necessary, the Company shall provide water and sanitation 
facilities for the employee¶s use at the temporary assembly site.  7emporary assembly sites shall be 
within twenty �2�� road miles, one way, of the employee¶s regular reporting headTuarters and accessed 
by a regularly maintained, paved, all�weather road.  Access by other roads must be mutually agreed 
upon by the Company and the 8nion. When a change of temporary assembly site occurs, the 8nion will 
be notified as far in advance as practicable. 

 
%. C2N',7,2NS )25 ,0PL(0(N7,N*

1.  7he Company shall not reduce the work force as a result of Mob site reporting. 
 
2.  An employee¶s regular reporting headTuarters shall not be changed for the purpose of Mob site 

reporting 
 
3.  (ach employee shall receive an e[pense allowance for each day the employee physically 

reports to the temporary assembly site.  7he e[pense allowance will be �17.5� per day when 
the Mob site is within 2� road miles of the employee¶s regular reporting headTuarters. 

 
4.  7he guidelines contained in Section C �Staffing 7emporary Assembly Sites� of this agreement 

shall be followed to provide personnel for proMects or Mobs using a temporary assembly site. 
 
5.  7he Company shall provide a secure area for Company vehicles and employee¶s personal 

vehicles. 
 
�.  All other provisions and terms of the agreement between the Company and Local 8nion No. 

1245 shall apply as if employees were reporting to their regular headTuarters. 
 
7.  'uring the term of the Agreement (,7+(5 PA57Y on a department or location basis may 

cancel this proposal as related to that work area with thirty �3�� days written notice after 
Company and 8nion have met and attempted to resolve problems associated with Mob site 
reporting. 

 
C.  S7A)),N* 7(0P25A5Y ASS(0%LY S,7(S 

1.  A sign�up sheet will be posted in the regular reporting headTuarters no less than five �5� 
workdays prior to the establishment of a temporary assembly site.  7he sign�up sheet shall 
include a description of the proMect, location of the temporary assembly site, classifications 
reTuired, an estimate of the duration of the assignment, and any other relevant information. 

 
2.  -ob site reporting assignments shall be staffed on a voluntary basis unless there are an 

insufficient number of volunteers then the assignment will be staffed using reverse seniority.  
Volunteers shall be selected in order from the *roup Seniority List by reTuired classification.  
A system of totaling and eTuali]ing remote reporting assignments shall be established and 
reduced in writing in each department in a headTuarters. 

 
3.  8nless otherwise agreed to, employees will be e[pected to work through the entire proMect 

from start to finish.  ,f a personal hardship arises, consideration will be given to the employee 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 85

and the ne[t Tualified employee on the *roup Seniority List will be given the opportunity to be 
the replacement. 

 
4.  7he assigned foreman�woman, along with the supervisor and others involved in the proMect, 

will participate in planning and scheduling for the proMect. 
 
5.  7ransportation will be provided as necessary for personnel and their tools to and from the 

temporary assembly site on the first and last days of the proMect. 
 
�.  Safe storage for employee¶s tools will be provided. 
 
7.  (mployee¶s paychecks, messages, Company mail, notifications of C'L drug tests, etc., will be 

made available in a timely manner. 
  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 86

A77AC+0(N7 V,,, 
(0(5*(NCY 5(SP2NS( P52*5A0 

�Amended 4�5��5� �Amended 7�1��9� 

Consistent with the provisions and obligations of Section 2.1, 7itle 2 of the Collective %argaining Agreement 
between the Company and Local 8nion No. 1245 of the ,nternational %rotherhood of (lectrical Workers, the 
parties hereby agree to the following� 

7he Company and 8nion recogni]e there may arise situations in various departments of the Company where 
availability of some key classifications becomes imperative in the rendering of service to the customer and for 
the safe, effective operation of facilities.  7o assure availability of these key people, the Company and 8nion 
mutually agree to the following conditions that will apply to both parties for Positive (mergency 5esponse. 

7he hours of emergency response availability will be divided as eTually as is practicable over the course of the 
payroll year, among those employees Tualified and available within a classification and headTuarters.  
(mergency response hours for individuals in each headTuarters shall be posted separately every 3� days.  
(mployees new to a classification or department shall be averaged into that 'epartment¶s year to date 
emergency response hours list. 

A. Conditions Applicable to Company 
 

1. 7he Company will provide an appropriate radio�eTuipped vehicle for the employees 
who are responding from home directly to the Mobsite. �Amended 4�5��5�  

 
2. 7he Company will provide a pager or hand�held radio�telephone to improve the 

employee
s mobility and communication. 
 
3. Normal work hours will prevail during employee
s regular workdays. 
 
4. Availability schedule will apply from the end of employee
s shift on )riday until the 

beginning of employee
s shift on 0onday, during holidays and such other times when 
adeTuate emergency coverage is not available �Amended 1�1�98� 

 
5.  7he Company shall provide an option for either �1� availability premium to employee 

of� 
  �4.7��hour, effective 1�5��9 
  Note�  7he availability premium will be adMusted each -anuary 1, beginning   
  -anuary 1, 199�.  7he adMustment will be made by a percentage eTual to  
  the general wage increase.  �Added 1�1�95� 
     
 )or every hour employee is available for duty e[clusive of employee
s normal pay for 

regular scheduled hours worked.  �Amended 1�1�95� or �2� ³day in lieu of´ at the 
following rates� 

  
 All hours will be factored at the .259�hour accrual rate.  �Amended 
 7�1��9� 
 
�.  7he Company shall compensate the employee at the applicable overtime rate as 

provided in 7itle 1� of the Agreement for any hours worked outside normally scheduled 
hours during the availability period plus the availability premium for all hours available. 

 
7.  7he ma[imum limit of in lieu accrual hours on pager duty is 1�� hours, after which, only 

premium pay will be available.  �Added 1�1�98� 
 
 %. Conditions Applicable to (mployee 
 

1. (mployee must be available to receive communication to Tualify for emergency 
availability scheduled. 

 
2. (mployee must be in physical condition to perform assigned duties when emergency 

situations arise. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 87

3. 7he employee must respond to a page within ten �1�� minutes of the notification and 
report within a reasonable time thereafter. 

 
4. Substitutions of coverage may be arranged only with the approval of the Supervisor 

in charge, and the substitute employee must be Tualified to perform the assigned 
duties. 

 
5. 7he employee on emergency response will have first opportunity to fill the emergency 

response call�out.  ,f a substitute employee is reTuired, accumulated overtime will 
prevail.  �Amended 4�5��5� 

 
C. �'eleted 1�1�95� 
 
'.  ,f, in the event there is no duty employee, a departmental procedure to administer the 

(mergency 5esponse Program must be established in writing and agreed to by the Company 
and 8nion.  �Added 1�1�98� 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 88

A77AC+0(N7 ;, 
70WA L,N(S 2) 8P*5A'( 

�Amended 7�1�2�12� 

Chart Appears on Ne[t Page 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



 89

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 1 of 1 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Chairman and Board Members 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager
FROM: John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources
DATE: April 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action and direction to staff regarding 2021 

legislative activities, current bills, and TMWA recommended positions on 
legislative proposals 

SUMMARY

TMWA staff, lobbyist, and General Counsel continue to monitor and review all 
bills as they are released. At the Board meeting, TMWA staff, lobbyist, and General 
Counsel will provide an update regarding the Session and a summary of all significant 
bills and bills on which the Legislative Subcommittee recommends TMWA support or 
oppose. Attachment 1 lists all new bills reviewed by the Legislative Subcommittee since 
the last Board meeting. Attachment 2 lists all bills on which the TMWA Board has 
approved the Legislative Subcommittee recommendations. 

Key 2021 Legislative Deadlines: 

February 1 Session Begins 

February 8 Legislators’ Bill Draft Requests

March 15 Legislators’ Bill Introductions  

March 22 Committees’ Bill Introductions

April 9  Committee Passage (1st House) 

April 20 First House Passage

May 14 Committee Passage (2nd House) 

May 21 Second House Passage

May 31 Session Ends 



BILL DESCRIPTION SPONSOR(S) STATUS PAST MEETINGS PAST ACTION FUTURE MEETINGS LEG. SUBCOMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS

AB222 Revises provisions governing employment practices. (BDR 53-739) Torres Commerce and Labor
Assembly Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/9/2021 Upon Call of Chair

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB227 Revises provisions relating to contractors. (BDR 54-720) Carlton Commerce and Labor
Assembly Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
3/26/2021 Upon Adjournment

Do pass MONITOR

AB250 Revises provisions relating to insurance to supplement Medicare. 
(BDR 57-142) Jauregui and Hardy General File

Assembly Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
3/31/2021  1:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB253 Revises provisions relating to governmental administration. (BDR 19-
947) Considine Government Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/8/2021  
 8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB325 Revises provisions relating to the recording of documents. (BDR 20-
642)

Assemblymen Kasama, Titus, Leavitt, 
Dickman, Ellison, Hafen, Hardy, Krasner, 
Matthews, McArthur, O'Neill, Roberts, Tolles 
and Wheeler; Senators Buck and Seevers 
Gansert

General File
Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021  
 8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended SUPPORT

AB333 Makes changes to provisions relating to land use planning. (BDR 22-
357) Krasner, Roberts, Ellison, Hardy and O'Neill Government Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021  
 8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB338 Revises provisions governing the investment of certain public money 
in foreign bonds, notes or other obligations. (BDR 31-787) Orentlicher General File

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021  
 8:00 AM

Do pass MONITOR

AB356 Makes various changes relating to the conservation of water. 
(BDR 48-1090) Committee on Ways and Means Natural Resources

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 4/9/2021 
Upon Call of Chair

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB385 Revises provisions relating to compensation received by public 
officers and employees. (BDR 23-52) Benitez-Thompson and Brittney Miller Government Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021  
 8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB445 Revises provisions relating to financial administration. (BDR 18-862) Committee on Growth and Infrastructure Government Affairs Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021  
 8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended

MONITOR

AJR7 Urges the Congress of the United States to pass the National 
Infrastructure Bank Act of 2020. (BDR R-765)

Assemblymen Bilbray-Axelrod, Peters, 
Anderson, Benitez-Thompson, Brown-May, 
Carlton, Considine, Duran, Flores, Frierson, 
González, Gorelow, Kasama, Krasner, 
Martinez, Marzola, Cameron Miller, Monroe-
Moreno, Nguyen, O’Neill, Orentlicher, 
Summers-Armstrong, Thomas, Torres, Watts 
and Yeager; Senators Brooks, Ohrenschall, 
Buck, Denis, Donate, Harris, Lange, Ratti, 
Scheible and Seevers Gansert

Growth and 
Infrastructure

Assembly Committee on 
Growth and Infrastructure 
4/1/2021  1:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AJR15 Proposes to amend the Nevada Constitution to revise provisions 
relating to the State Legislature. (BDR C-859)

Committee on Legislative Operations and 
Elections

Legislative Operations 
and Elections

Assembly Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 3/25/2021  4:00 PM

Discussed as BDR MONITOR

ACR3
Requires the Legislative Commission to appoint an interim 
committee to conduct a study concerning environmental justice. 
(BDR R-568)

Peters and Watts Legislative Operations 
and Elections

Assembly Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 3/16/2021  4:00 PM

Heard MONITOR

ACR4
Directs the Legislative Commission to appoint a committee to 
conduct an interim study on general improvement districts. (BDR R-
199)

Assemblymen Krasner, Matthews and 
Torres; Senator Settelmeyer

Legislative Operations 
and Elections MONITOR

ASSEMBLY BILLS

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 1 of 5

Attachment 1



BILL DESCRIPTION SPONSOR(S) STATUS PAST MEETINGS PAST ACTION FUTURE MEETINGS LEG. SUBCOMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS

SB150 Makes changes to provisions relating to housing. (BDR 22-221) Harris, Donate, Buck, Denis and Lange Government Affairs
Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/5/2021  
 3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB176 Revises provisions relating to the Commission to Study 
Governmental Purchasing. (BDR 17-512)

Committee on Legislative Operations and 
Elections

Legislative Operations 
and Elections

Senate Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 3/30/2021  3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB247 Revises provisions relating to apprenticeships. (BDR 53-575) Dondero Loop General File
Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/2/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB255 Creates the Division of Supplier Diversity within the Office of 
Economic Development. (BDR 18-572) Neal Revenue and Economic 

Development

Senate Committee on 
Revenue and Economic 
Development 4/8/2021  1:00 
PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB283 Revises provisions relating to local improvements. (BDR 22-792) Brooks Government Affairs
Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/7/2021  
 3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB289 Revises provisions relating to workers' compensation. (BDR 53-713) Harris Commerce and Labor
Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/7/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB293 Revises provisions relating to employment. (BDR 53-907) Cannizzaro Commerce and Labor
Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/9/2021  7:30 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB294 Revises provisions governing collective bargaining by local 
government employers. (BDR 23-254) Cannizzaro Government Affairs

Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/5/2021  
 3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB297 Revises provisions relating to agriculture. (BDR 22-480) Spearman Government Affairs
Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021 
Upon Call of Chair

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB308 Provides for the establishment of a worksharing program. (BDR 53-
716) Dondero Loop Commerce and Labor

Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/9/2021  7:30 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB327 Revises provisions relating to discriminatory practices. (BDR 53-574) Neal and Harris Government Affairs
Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/7/2021  
 3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB368 Requires the issuance of bonds for environmental improvement 
projects in the Lake Tahoe Basin. (BDR S-366)

Committee on Government Affairs Ways and Means Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 4/9/2021 
Upon Call of Chair

Do pass SUPPORT 

SCR9 Expresses support for the Nevada System of Higher Education to 
work collaboratively in its science and research efforts addressing 
the needs of the Lake Tahoe Basin. (BDR R-364)

Committee on Education Education SUPPORT 

SENATE BILLS

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11

Page 2 of 5

Attachment 1



BILL DESCRIPTION SPONSOR(S) STATUS PAST MEETINGS PAST ACTION FUTURE 
MEETINGS

BOARD/LSC APPROVED 
POSITIONS

AB1 Revises provisions relating to training for Legislators. 
(BDR 17-438)

Committee on Legislative Operations and 
Elections

Legislative 
Operations and 
Elections

Senate Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 4/13/2021  3:30 
PM

Heard, No Action MONITOR

AB3
Revises provisions concerning the electronic transmission 
of certain maps and other documents relating to the 
approval of divisions of land. (BDR 22-406)

Committee on Government Affairs Government 
Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/6/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended SUPPORT

AB6 Revises provisions governing an application for a temporary 
change relating to appropriated water. (BDR 48-309) Committee on Natural Resources Transmitted to 

Senate

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 
3/31/2021  4:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended SUPPORT

AB28 Imposes an inverse preference on certain bidders for state 
purchasing contracts. (BDR 27-238) Committee on Government Affairs Government 

Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/6/2021  8:00 AM

Do pass MONITOR

AB37 Revises provisions relating to the enforcement of obligations 
for the support of children. (BDR 3-301) Committee on Judiciary Ways and Means

Assembly Committee on 
Judiciary 2/26/2021  8:00 
AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB61 Revises provisions relating to trade practices. (BDR 52-424) Committee on Commerce and Labor Commerce and 
Labor

Assembly Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/7/2021  6:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB65 Revises provisions relating to ethics in government. 
(BDR 23-257)

Committee on Legislative Operations and 
Elections

Legislative 
Operations and 
Elections

Assembly Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 2/23/2021  4:00 
PM

Heard MONITOR

AB87
Makes various changes to provisions governing the 
vacation or abandonment of certain easements. (BDR 22-
460)

Nguyen and Roberts Government 
Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/6/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended OPPOSE

AB90
Requires counties to pay impact fees to certain local 
governments for projects of intercounty significance. 
(BDR 22-883)

Benitez-Thompson Revenue
Assembly Committee on 
Revenue 4/6/2021  4:00 
PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

ASSEMBLY BILLS

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 3 of 5

Attachment 2



BILL DESCRIPTION SPONSOR(S) STATUS PAST MEETINGS PAST ACTION FUTURE 
MEETINGS

BOARD/LSC APPROVED 
POSITIONS

AB95 Revises the membership of the Legislative Committee on 
Public Lands. (BDR 17-463)

Committee on Legislative Operations and 
Elections

Legislative 
Operations and 
Elections

Assembly Committee on 
Legislative Operations and 
Elections 3/16/2021  4:00 
PM

Do pass MONITOR

AB97 Revises provisions governing toxic chemicals. (BDR 40-141) Watts Natural 
Resources

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 
4/5/2021  4:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended SUPPORT

AB100 Revises provisions relating to wildfires. (BDR 42-109) Committee on Government Affairs Government 
Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/8/2021  8:00 AM

Do pass MONITOR

AB146 Revises provisions relating to water. (BDR 40-123) Peters Natural 
Resources

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 
4/9/2021 Upon Call of 
Chair

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB147 Authorizes a board of county commissioners to create the 
office of county counsel. (BDR 20-119) Nguyen Ways and Means

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/8/2021  8:00 AM

Do pass MONITOR

AB153 Revises provisions governing performance contracts. 
(BDR 27-708)

Assemblywoman Bilbray-Axelrod; Senator 
Brooks

Government 
Affairs

Assembly Committee on 
Government Affairs 
3/24/2021  9:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AB154 Revises provisions governing certain notice provided by 
public utilities. (BDR 58-510)

Assemblymen Roberts, Tolles, Nguyen, Watts 
and Monroe-Moreno; Senator Hammond

Growth and 
Infrastructure

Assembly Committee on 
Growth and Infrastructure 
3/18/2021  1:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

AJR2
Recognizes that the health of forests, rangelands and soils 
are inextricably linked to the quantity and quality of water. 
(BDR R-112)

Committee on Natural Resources Transmitted to 
Senate

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 
3/31/2021  4:00 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended SUPPORT

AJR3 Urges various actions relating to the protection and 
conservation of land and water. (BDR R-775)

Assemblymen González, Watts, Yeager, 
Cohen, Anderson, Brown-May, Flores, Brittney 
Miller, Nguyen and Torres; Senator Donate

Natural 
Resources

Assembly Committee on 
Natural Resources 
3/22/2021  4:00 PM

Do pass MONITOR

ASSEMBLY BILLS

*Reflects recommended change in positions

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 4 of 5

Attachment 2



BILL DESCRIPTION SPONSOR(S) STATUS PAST MEETINGS PAST ACTION FUTURE 
MEETINGS

BOARD/LSC APPROVED 
POSITIONS

SB14 Revises provisions relating to certain emergency response 
plans and assessments. (BDR 36-280) Committee on Government Affairs Government 

Affairs

Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 
2/17/2021  3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB18 Revises provisions governing penalties for certain violations 
relating to public utilities. (BDR 58-277) Committee on Growth and Infrastructure Growth and 

Infrastructure

Senate Committee on 
Growth and Infrastructure 
3/31/2021  3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB33 Revises certain provisions relating to natural resource 
management. (BDR 47-312) Committee on Natural Resources Transmitted to 

Assembly

Senate Committee on 
Natural Resources 
3/2/2021  3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB40 Provides for the collection of certain data relating to health 
care. (BDR 40-415) Committee on Health and Human Services Health and 

Human Services

Senate Committee on 
Health and Human 
Services 4/6/2021  3:30 
PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB67 Revises provisions relating to public works. (BDR 28-400) Committee on Government Affairs Government 
Affairs

Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/9/2021 Upon Call of 
Chair

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB71 Revises provisions governing unclaimed property. (BDR 10-
398) Committee on Judiciary General File

Senate Committee on 
Judiciary 2/25/2021  1:00 
PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB107 Makes various changes relating to the statute of limitations 
for certain causes of action. (BDR 2-872) Ohrenschall Second Reading 

File

Senate Committee on 
Judiciary 3/25/2021  1:00 
PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB109 Revises provisions relating to the collection of certain 
information by governmental agencies. (BDR 19-95) Spearman General File

Senate Committee on 
Government Affairs 
4/5/2021  3:30 PM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB139 Requires certain health insurance to cover treatment of 
certain conditions relating to gender dysphoria. (BDR 57-54) Scheible and Harris Commerce and 

Labor

Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
4/2/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

SB141 Revises provisions relating to public works. (BDR 28-44) Brooks Government 
Affairs

Senate Committee on 
Commerce and Labor 
3/19/2021  8:00 AM

Amend, and do 
pass as amended MONITOR

*Reflects recommended change in positions

SENATE BILLS

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

Page 5 of 5

Attachment 2



Northern Nevada Water Supply Outlook
TMWA Board of Directors Meeting 

Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator

April 21, 2021

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 1 of 18



NRCS SNOTEL Data (03/16/2021) 
04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 2 of 18



April 1 Truckee River Basin Snowpack (last 35 years)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220
19

87
19

88
19

89
19

90
19

91
19

92
19

93
19

94
19

95
19

96
19

97
19

98
19

99
20

00
20

01
20

02
20

03
20

04
20

05
20

06
20

07
20

08
20

09
20

10
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
20

21

Pe
rc

en
t o

f A
ve

ra
ge

 (%
)

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 3 of 18



L ak e Tahoe Basin Snow p ac k  ( 0 4 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 1 )  04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 4 of 18



Truc k ee Basin Snow p ac k  ( 0 4 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 1 )  04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 5 of 18



NRCS SNOTEL Data (04/20/2021) 
04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 6 of 18



Mid-April NRCS Streamflow Forecasts 

• Lake Tahoe Gates Closed Rise (GCR)

0.45’ (34% Avg.) 30% COE (Apr-High)
0.35’ (27% Avg.) 50% COE (Apr-High)
0.31’ (24% Avg.) 70% COE (Apr-High)

• Truckee River at Farad, CA (A-J)

106 KAF (41% Avg.) 30% COE (Apr-Jul)
89 KAF (35% Avg.) 50% COE (Apr-Jul)
77 KAF (30% Avg.) 70% COE (Apr-Jul)

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 7 of 18



2021 NRCS Streamflow Runoff Forecast Summary 

Mid-Feb     Mid-Mar Apr-01      Mid-Apr

1. % Chance of TROA Drought Designation      15%             46%            79%          100%

2. Forecasted Lake Tahoe Elev. (Nov 15)       6224.87’    6224.06’     6223.40’   6223.17’

3. Projected Day of Missing FR                            NA               NA 10/7           9/13*

* A DROUGHT SITUATION has now been determined according to the terms of TROA, as Floriston
Rates are projected to be lost prior to October 31st . However, normal river flows are projected
past labor Day (actually through 9/12), and no reserves are projected to be used prior to that
time. See TMWA’s 2020-2040 Water Resource Plan, Chapter 4., pages 52-55. As TMWA’s
response to this determination is tied directly to projections for Truckee River flows, we are
planning for a Drought Level 1 Situation based on the severity of the drought.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 8 of 18



Actual and Projected Lake Tahoe Elevation through 2021
04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 9 of 18



Actual and Projected Lake Tahoe Elevation through 2021

Natural Rim – 6223.0 feet

Da
ily

 G
ag

e 
He

ig
ht

 (f
ee

t)

6220.00

6221.00

6222.00

6223.00

6224.00

6225.00

6226.00

6227.00

6228.00

6229.00

6230.00
1/

1/
20

11

7/
1/

20
11

1/
1/

20
12

7/
1/

20
12

1/
1/

20
13

7/
1/

20
13

1/
1/

20
14

7/
1/

20
14

1/
1/

20
15

7/
1/

20
15

1/
1/

20
16

7/
1/

20
16

1/
1/

20
17

7/
1/

20
17

1/
1/

20
18

7/
1/

20
18

1/
1/

20
19

7/
1/

20
19

1/
1/

20
20

7/
1/

20
20

1/
1/

20
21

7/
1/

20
21

1/
1/

20
22

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 10 of 18



Ac tual and Proj ec ted L ak e Tahoe Pap er E levation through 2 0 2 1
Da

ily
 G

ag
e 

He
ig

ht
 (f

ee
t)

TR O A D R O U G HT SI TU ATI O N

6 2 2 1.5 0

6 2 2 2 .0 0

6 2 2 2 .5 0

6 2 2 3 .0 0

6 2 2 3 .5 0

6 2 2 4 .0 0

6 2 2 4 .5 0

6 2 2 5 .0 0

6 2 2 5 .5 0

6 2 2 6 .0 0

6 2 2 6 .5 0
10

/1
/2

02
0

10
/2

2/
20

20

11
/1

2/
20

20

12
/3

/2
02

0

12
/2

4/
20

20

1/
14

/2
02

1

2/
4/

20
21

2/
25

/2
02

1

3/
18

/2
02

1

4/
8/

20
21

4/
29

/2
02

1

5/
20

/2
02

1

6/
10

/2
02

1

7/
1/

20
21

7/
22

/2
02

1

8/
12

/2
02

1

9/
2/

20
21

9/
23

/2
02

1

10
/1

4/
20

21

11
/4

/2
02

1

11
/2

5/
20

21

12
/1

6/
20

21

TR O A D R O U G HT SI TU ATI O N

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 11 of 18



Ac tual and Proj ec ted L ak e Tahoe E levation through 2 0 2 1Ac tual and Proj ec ted L ak e Tahoe E levation through 2 0 2 1
04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 12 of 18



Ac tual and Proj ec ted F loriston R ate Water at F arad through 2 0 2 1
Av

er
ag

e 
Da

ily
 D

isc
ha

rg
e 

(C
FS

)

TR O A D R O U G HT SI TU ATI O N

0

10 0

2 0 0

3 0 0

4 0 0

5 0 0

6 0 0

7 0 0

8 0 0

9 0 0

10 0 0
10

/1
/2

02
0

10
/3

1/
20

20

11
/3

0/
20

20

12
/3

0/
20

20

1/
29

/2
02

1

2/
28

/2
02

1

3/
30

/2
02

1

4/
29

/2
02

1

5/
29

/2
02

1

6/
28

/2
02

1

7/
28

/2
02

1

8/
27

/2
02

1

9/
26

/2
02

1

10
/2

6/
20

21

11
/2

5/
20

21

12
/2

5/
20

21

TR O A D R O U G HT SI TU ATI O NTR O A D R O U G HT SI TU ATI O N

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 13 of 18



Truckee River Operating Agreement (TROA)

DEFINITION NO. 26 “DROUGHT SITUATION”

“Means a situation under which it is determined by April 15, based on
procedures set forth in Section 3.D, either that there will not be
sufficient Floriston Rate Water to maintain Floriston Rates through
October 31, or the projected amount of Lake Tahoe Floriston Rate
Water in Lake Tahoe, and including Lake Tahoe Floriston Rate Water in
other Truckee River Reservoirs as if it were in Lake Tahoe, on or before
the following November 15 will be equivalent to an elevation less than
6223.5 feet Lake Tahoe datum.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 14 of 18



Truckee River Discharge at Farad 1909-2020 (USGS Gage 10346000)

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

1/
1/

19
09

1/
1/

19
12

1/
1/

19
15

1/
1/

19
18

1/
1/

19
21

1/
1/

19
24

1/
1/

19
27

1/
1/

19
30

1/
1/

19
33

1/
1/

19
36

1/
1/

19
39

1/
1/

19
42

1/
1/

19
45

1/
1/

19
48

1/
1/

19
51

1/
1/

19
54

1/
1/

19
57

1/
1/

19
60

1/
1/

19
63

1/
1/

19
66

1/
1/

19
69

1/
1/

19
72

1/
1/

19
75

1/
1/

19
78

1/
1/

19
81

1/
1/

19
84

1/
1/

19
87

1/
1/

19
90

1/
1/

19
93

1/
1/

19
96

1/
1/

19
99

1/
1/

20
02

1/
1/

20
05

1/
1/

20
08

1/
1/

20
11

1/
1/

20
14

1/
1/

20
17

1/
1/

20
20

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 15 of 18



Truckee River System Storage (04/19/2021) 

Tahoe Stampede Boca Prosser Independence Donner SUM
TMWA POSW 11,980 5,364 17,344
TMWA TROA 13,477 11,745 2,361 2,203 29,786
OTHER WATER 270,923 79,837 11,508 7,369

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

150,000

175,000

200,000

225,000

250,000

275,000

300,000

325,000

350,000

Re
se

rv
oi

r S
to

ra
ge

 (A
F)

38 % 40 % 34 % 32 % 68 % 56 %Capacity (%)

284,400 MAX SYSTEM CAPACITY 1,068,270 AF

CURRENT SYSTEM STORAGE 416,372 AF (39%)

389,637

CURRENT TMWA STORAGE 47,130 AF 91,582

13,869 9,572

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 16 of 18



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 17 of 18



Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator  
Email: bhauck@tmwa.com

O: (775) 834-8111 M: (775) 250-1333

Thank you!
Questions?

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12

Page 18 of 18



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

   1 of 10 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM:  Andy Gebhardt, Director, Operations and Water Quality 

Cammy Elquist LoRé, GoodStanding Communications Planner 
DATE: April 15, 2021 
SUBJECT: Presentation on proposed Conservation, Communications and Outreach 

Plan for 2021, discussion and possible direction to staff 
 

Report Highlights: 

• This plan combines TMWA’s outreach activities into one comprehensive 
communication plan. It leverages numerous forms of communication: multimedia 
advertising, news coverage, direct-to-customers, social media, digital media and 
website content. 
 

• With Truckee River flows projecting a Level 1 drought, conservation outreach is 
planned that aligns with the Drought Management Plan. Conservation measures 
will be a primary message starting earlier (mid-May), with another push into the 
fall that will promote the cooling down of irrigation systems. 
 

• Additional messaging will use TMWA’s 20th anniversary for perspective into 
TMWA’s history, current state and future outlook. This approach will be folded 
into messaging through bill inserts, eNewsletters, web pages and social media. 
 

• The long-term goal of this communications plan is to establish high levels of 
knowledge regarding TMWA’s water resource management, operations and 
planning among stakeholders, which increases the potential for more informed 
customers and supports high customer satisfaction. 

 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

2  of 10  

Summary 

Twenty years ago,  our community made an 
important decision that secured  
our region’ s water resources and kept water 
infrastructure under local control through  
the formation of Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority. 
 
I t has b een a period of sub stantial change,  making TMWA’ s 2 0 - year anniversary worth celeb rating 
b eyond the time stamp. Whether in historic drought,  record- b reaking snowpack or glob al 
pandemic,  TMWA has demonstrated how adaptab le and resilient this region’ s primary water 
system and staff can b e. For customers,  this constant stewardship and commitment has b een the 
b ackb one of mission fulfillment for TMWA,  ensuring the delivery of high- q uality drinking water 
throughout Reno,  Sparks and Washoe C ounty.  
 
I n fact,  everything TMWA does and has done ultimately supports its vision to  e nh ance  th e  q u al i ty  o f  
l i f e  i n th e  T r u ck e e  M e ad o w s  b y  d e l i v e r i ng  e x ce p ti o nal ,  cu s to m e r - f o cu s e d  w ate r  s e r v i ce s . 
D oing this goes b eyond water treatment alone— it req uires an integrated and proactive approach to 
water resource management,  infrastructure investment and long- term planning as well. 
 
I n this way,  TMWA has a key water leadership role in the community. From a communication 
perspective,  this means addressing a b roader range of topics,  which is reflected in the four primary 
communication pillars b elow. B y aligning communication activities within these areas,  TMWA’ s 
communication team can drive its effort and resources toward well- defined ob j ectives. 
 
Communic ation Pillars  O b j ec tives 

C onservation E ngagement E nco u r ag e  s m ar t w ate r  u s e ,  h e l p  e ns u r e  d e m and  o n th e  s y s te m  i s  
m anag e ab l e  and  h e l p  m e e t co ns e r v ati o n r e q u i r e m e nts  o f  T r u ck e e  
R i v e r  O p e r ati ng  A g r e e m e nt.   

C ustomer O utreach E ns u r e  cu s to m e r s  ar e  i nf o r m e d  and  u nd e r s tand  th e i r  b i l l  s tate m e nts ,  
r ate s ,  and  o th e r  tr ans acti o n d e tai l s  r e g ar d i ng  th e i r  w ate r  s e r v i ce .  

Water Q uality E ducation M ai ntai n w i d e s p r e ad  aw ar e ne s s  ab o u t th e  h i g h  s tand ar d s  and  r i g o r  
ap p l i e d  th r o u g h  T M W A ’ s  w ate r  tr e atm e nt p r o ce s s .  

Water L eadership Awareness R ai s e  k no w l e d g e  ab o u t w ate r  r e s o u r ce  m anag e m e nt,  r e s i l i e nt 
i nf r as tr u ctu r e  s y s te m s  and  f i d u ci ar y  s te w ar d s h i p .   

 
With each of these pillars,  TMWA’ s 2 0 th anniversary provides an opportunity to reflect on and 
highlight the proactive decisions,  proj ects and long- term investment that has kept our drinking 
water system adaptab le and resilient over time and will continue to do so into the foreseeab le 
future. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

3  of 10  

2 0 th Anniversary Positioning 
 

N ew  logo develop ment  
A 2 0 th anniversary logo will b e used for placement in relevant ads,  collateral and materials 
throughout the year. The versions ab ove will b e used b ased on collateral type or materials used.  

Bill inserts  
An anni v e r s ar y  i nf o g r ap h i c will b e developed and delivered through customer b ills during the 
month of J une. I t will include multiple topic- specific graphic elements that can stand independently 
and will b e used throughout the year through b ill insert articles,  social media posts,  and to support 
other types of outreach efforts. 

L ob b y disp lay*  
E x panding upon the anniversary infographic,  a new lob b y display will b e installed that will continue 
to b e ex hib ited throughout the year. Milestones will clearly outline how planning and investments 
have resulted in continuous improvement for the community’ s water system for the past 2 0  years.  

Media interview s 
C urrent and past TMWA leaders will b e scheduled for a series of media interviews on N e v ad a 
N e w s m ak e r s ,  K O H ,  K U N R and morning news shows. The goal will b e to reinforce the long- term view 
taken in planning and ex ecuting TMWA’ s operations. TMWA’ s communication team will assist with 
key messages and interview preparation. 

Content develop ment and c reative design  
Twenty years of TMWA accomplishments will b e j ux taposed with current state and future 
proj ections,  tying- in continuity of service to customers and resource stewardship to the b roader 
community.  
 

* P l anne d  to  o ccu r .  L o b b y  i s  cu r r e ntl y  cl o s e d  p e r  co u nty  and  s tate  h e al th  g u i d ance .   

I co n f o r  co v e r s h e e ts ,  e m ai l  s i g natu r e  
b l o ck s  and  s e l e ct co l l ate r al  ap p l i cati o n.  

S u p p o r t tag  e l e m e nt f o r  b anne r s ,  
p r e s e ntati o ns ,  w o r k s h o p s ,  to u r s ,  e tc.  

S tr o ng  co ntr as t d e s i g n f o r   
h ats ,  T - s h i r ts  and  o th e r  m e m o r ab i l i a.    



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

4  of 10  

C onservation Strategies 
Promotion of smart water use all year round is al w ay s  relevant in the Truckee Meadows. I t 
b ecomes more so during years when the minimum req uired flow rate in the Truckee River at the 
C alifornia- N evada state line cannot b e met,  which is also known as the Floriston Rate.  
 
C urrently,  req uired river flows are proj ected to drop off mid- Septemb er,  which is also when 
customer demands typically decrease. While the r e q u i r e d  rate of flow may not b e met,  river water 
is anticipated to meet TMWA’ s needs at the onset of fall. B ecause proj ected river flows will b e 
enough to satisfy demand,  and no drought reserves will b e req uired,  this year’ s drought situation is 
at “ L evel 1 ” ,  b ut this plan can adj ust if something changes.  This cues in standard water 
conservation practices as ex plained in TMWA’ s 2 0 2 0 - 2 0 4 0  Water Resources Plan and demonstrated 
in the chart b elow.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Standard c onservation outreach supports TMWA’ s Assigned Watering D ays program. The annual 
campaign includes earned and paid placement ( see page 6 )  using multiple media channels. I t b egins 
in April and this year will continue through Septemb er. 

E nhanc ed c onservation outreach includes all standard conservation with an ex pansion of channels 
used and freq uency of messaging. With TMWA’ s new customer information system,  enhanced 
insight into water- use trends can also cue direct messaging that could influence water use.  



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

5  of 10  

Planned Timing for O utreach and C ampaigns 
C ornerstone topics and timing of outreach can b e found in the grey b ox es b elow. The tab le shows 
how these topics nest with the ongoing tactics that support the four communication pillars. 

Timing 
2 0 2 1 –

2 2  
F orec ast of monthly outreac h ac tivity 

Communic ation Pillar- R einforc ement Messaging 

Transactional Water 
Q uality C onservation Water 

L eadership
April PRE SE N TATI O N S:  Water Y ear in Review � �

April O PI N I O N  E D I TO RI AL :  Water Y ear in Review � �

April V I RTU AL  WO RK SH O PS:  I rrigation System Start- U p  � �

April PRO MO TI O N :  L andscape G uide— Spring Planning  �  

May PRO MO TI O N :  D rinking Water Week FB  L ive V ideos  �   � 

May PRE SE N TATI O N S:  Water Y ear in Review   

May V I RTU AL  WO RK SH O P:  D rip- System Maintenance �  �  

May V I RTU AL  WO RK SH O P:  K now Y our D rinking Water  �

May V I RTU AL  WO RK SH O P:  Tree C are  �

May C AMPAI G N :  Summer Assigned D ay Watering D ays � �

J une C AMPAI G N :  Summer Assigned D ay Watering D ays � �

J une WO RK SH O PS:  I rrigation*   � �

J une TO U R:  V alley Wood Park w/ E dib le N ative Plants*  �

J une PRO MO TI O N :  2 0 th Anniversary D eclaration �

J uly C AMPAI G N :  Water Q uality I s C lear � �

J uly PRO MO TI O N :  Water Q uality Report Release  � �

J uly C AMPAI G N :  I nfrastructure I mprovements � � � �

Aug. TO U R:  Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant*  � � �

Aug. TO U R:  TMWA H ydroelectric Plant* �   � 

Aug. TO U R:  V alley Wood Park w/ E dib le N ative Plants*   �

Sept. TO U R:  Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant*  � �

Sept. TO U R:  C halk B luff Water Treatment Plant*    

Sept. PRO MO TI O N :  L andscape G uide— Fall Planting    �

O ct. PRO MO TI O N :  C omprehensive Annual Financial Report   

O ct. C AMPAI G N :  C ool D own /  Reduce Watering �  �  

O ct. WO RK SH O P:  Winteriz ation*   �  �  

O ct. SU RV E Y :  SmartAb outWater b enchmarking � � � 

N ov. PRO MO TI O N :  Proj ect Spotlights and U tility Awards � � � � 

N ov. PRO MO TI O N :  Truckee River Fund Proj ect U pdates  � � �

April ‘ 2 2  ( RE B O O T TO PI C S)  PRE SE N TATI O N :  Water Y ear in Review    � � 

*  Tours and workshops throughout the summer months will b e virtual unless recommended county and state social distance restrictions are adj usted.  



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

6  of 10  

O wned 
Media Printed inserts O nline payment 

portal
tmwa.com and 

smartab outwater.com Social media D irect mail 
( email and U SPS)

E arned
Media Press releases E vents and 

presentations
Workshops,  

tours
Social / influencer 

sharing O rganic search

Paid 
Media D igital display ads L ocal TV ,  radio,  

print ads
Sponsored news and 

weather
Social content 

b oosts
Search engine 

Placement

C ommunication C hannels O verview
The following identifies accessib le communication tactics b y channel of ex posure. A full b reakdown of 
reach and audience targeted b y each channel can b e found on pages 8  and 9 . 
 
 
 

 

 

Channel U p dates for 2 0 2 1  

O w ned Channels 

Two maj or new internal developments at TMWA have come online in recent months and will b e 
leveraged in the coming year:  

1 . I nc reased func tionality w ithin TMWA’ s new  c ustomer information system 
L aunched last month,  TMWA’ s new customer information system has created more flex ib le and 
timely ways to communicate with customers. D irect messaging to customers will b e more 
targeted and relevant b ecause we now have the ab ility to segment audiences and create 
ex ception rules for message distrib ution. Most of TMWA’ s transactional outreach ( messages to 
customers ab out their accounts or service)  will b e conducted through this new system. 

2 . E x p anded top ic  struc ture on SmartAb outWater. c om 
Additionally,  the Smart Ab out Water campaign platform has a redesigned web site to b roaden 
water topics b eyond the scope of TMWA’ s mission. Through this site,  other community partners 
can also host and share content ab out the watershed,  storm water,  flood mitigation,  effluent 
management and indirect potab le reuse. Traffic to the web site will b e encouraged through 
messaging in TMWA paid,  earned and owned channels. 

 
E arned Media 

E arned media is a highly credib le channel for our messaging. Typically,  it is the outcome of TMWA’ s 
media outreach,  pub lic- facing events,  workshops,  tours,  etc. Most will continue to b e hosted virtually. 
Any in- person event will follow the C O V I D - 19  guidelines as determined through county and state 
guidance. 
 
Paid Plac ement 

L inks and redirects from estab lished media web sites help elevate search engine ranking for TMWA-
generated content. To help make b udget decisions and ensure TMWA’ s media b uy is effective,  b road-
reach media placement will prioritiz e outlets that have a healthy digital footprint. C ulturally specific 
media outlets to reach targeted demographics will continue to b e part of the b uy. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

7  of 10  

I nternal and E x ternal Stakeholders Map for 2 0 2 1 
The circular map b elow is an overview of TMWA’ s stakeholder community. I t is intended to represent the 
internal and ex ternal stakeholders TMWA serves,  affects,  or may influence. Those who are more likely to 
address water topics to fulfill their own outreach ob j ectives are noted in yellow. 

For those highlighted in yellow,  the likelihood of crossover with TMWA- related messaging can b e seen 
b elow. Whenever relevant,  partnership and collab oration with these important stakeholders could b e 
important to achieving community education goals. 

 

Planned O utreach Planned O utreach



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

   8 of 10 

Appendix: Communication Channels Inventory 
The following are TMWA’s current inventory of controlled communication channels in order of 
audience reach. Content structure will adjust to accommodate tactical shifts in communication 
objectives or in the way the public utilizes the channel. 

Billing Inserts, Envelope Backers, and Buck Slips 
Audience: Customers, can also apply target or exclusion audience rules 
Reach:  133k households/businesses  
Frequency: Monthly 
Distribution: With bill statements 
Content: + Quick spotlight on key topics 
  + Reinforcing call to action when needed (e.g., start of 3x-per-week watering) 
  + New CIS  

Quality.Delivered eNewsletter  
Audience:  Customers 
Reach:  107k subscribed emails 
Frequency: Monthly 
Distribution: Email and online 
Content: + Updates and explanations on snowpack, water storage, and water supply 
  + Notices about upcoming workshops 

+ Notification of water quality reports 
+ Updates on large-scale projects and improvements 
+ Tips on conservation and lowering bills 
+ In-depth topic education and/or analysis when needed 
+ Pertinent community news or partner announcements 
+ Assigned-day watering reminders 

TMWA.COM 
Audience: Customers  
Reach:  23.6k visitors per month 
Frequency: Monthly 
Distribution: Internet 
Content: + Organizational information 

+ Customer service and billing 
+ Business and development information 
+ Water quality 
+ Conservation messaging 
+ Promotion for workshops and tours 
+ Planning 

  + Links to educational or informational content 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

   9 of 10 

 
TMWA Online (Web payment portal) 
Audience: Customers 
Reach:  2,788 
Frequency: Monthly 
Distribution: With bill statements 
Content: + Quick spotlight on key topics 
  + Reinforcing call to action when needed (e.g., start of 3x-per-week watering) 
 
From the Source Newsletter 
Audience:  Employees  
Frequency: Monthly 
Reach:  Approx. 230 employees 
Distribution: Email 
Content: + Updates from board of directors meeting 

+ Spotlight and perspective on interesting projects or service calls 
+ Other newsworthy TMWA information that might be relevant or topical 
+ Employee profiles 

 
TMWA Facebook and Twitter Pages 
Audience:  Community  
Reach:   2,498 followers (Facebook), 1,713 followers (Twitter), 1,191 followers (Instagram) 
Frequency: Weekdays 
Distribution: Followers and broader membership populations 
Content: + Conservation messaging 

+ Promotion for workshops and tours 
  + Links to educational or informational content 
  + Promotion of TMWA and community partner events 
  + Employee highlights 
 
YouTube Channel 
Audience:   Community 
Reach:   174 subscribers 
Frequency:  Topic dependent 
Distribution:  Social media, newsletters, TMWA websites, bill inserts 
Video Content:  + Do-it-yourself home water system repairs 

+ Spotlight on major infrastructure accomplishments 
+ In-depth analysis of key topics or relevant historical perspectives 

    

 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

   10 of 10 

Smart About Water Website 
Audience:  Community 
Frequency: Updated with summer campaign 
Distribution: n/a 
Content: + Content to understand water-resource management in the Truckee Meadows 
  + External link source to funnel views to TMWA.com or other partner websites 
  + Up-to-date information about river flows, storage capacity, production stats, etc. 
  + Source for additional information for facts for summer campaign 

 



1

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Communications Plan

Overview of Approach

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 1 of 6



Truckee Meadows Population ProjectionsCommunication Pillars:  Collective Focus Areas & Message Objectives  

Conservation
Engagement

Encourage smart water use, help ensure demand on the system is manageable and 
help meet conservation requirements of the Truckee River Operating Agreement.
Assigned Watering Days     Landscape Guide     Irrigation Workshops    Instructional Videos     Interpretive Tours        

Customer
Outreach

Ensure customers are informed and understand their bill statements, rates and 
other account details regarding their water service.  
Bill statements       Bill Inserts        Envelope Messaging        TMWA Online       Customer Information System 

Water Quality
Education

Maintain awareness levels about the high standards and rigor applied through
TMWA’s water treatment process.
Water Quality Report    Water Quality Look-up Map   Water Treatment Plant Tours    Water Source Workshops   

Water Leadership
Awareness

Raise knowledge about water resource management, resilient infrastructure
systems and fiduciary stewardship. 
Plan Positioning        Speaking Engagements       Smart About Water©

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 2 of 6



O wned 
Media

Printed b ill 
inserts 

TMWA O nline 
payment portal

tmwa.com and 
smartab outwater.com Social media D irect mail 

( email,  U SPS)

E arned
Media

Media releases and 
advisories

I nterviews,  events 
and presentations

Workshops,  
tours

Social/ influencer 
sharing

O rganic  
searches

Paid   
Media D igital display ads L ocal TV ,  radio,  

print ads
Sponsored news & 

weather
Social content 

b oosts
Search engine 

Placement

O utreac h Channels:   Main assets and tac tic s for message distrib ution

O w ned Channels:  Tw o maj or internal develop ments at TMWA w ill b e leveraged.  
1. I ncreased functionality within TMWA’ s new customer information system.
2 . E x panded topic structure on SmartAb outWater.com.

E arned Media:  Soc ial p rotoc ols w ill c ontinue to b e follow ed for in- p erson outreac h.  
E arned media typically is the outcome of TMWA’ s pub lic- facing events,  workshops,  tours,  etc.  Most will continue to b e hosted 
virtually. Any in- person event will follow the C O V I D  guidelines in our community as identified b y county and state officials.  

Paid Plac ement:  I mp ortanc e of digital p lac ement reac hes b eyond message p ositioning.  
I nb ound redirects and links from estab lished web pages is given weight b y search engines and increases TMWA’ s
search engine rank value. Media with digital footprints will b e given consideration of this added- value   
in TMWA’ s media b uy,  once primary demographic- reach goals have b een met.  

Channel R eview  and K ey Shifts in 2 0 2 1

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 3 of 6



Truckee Meadows Population Proj ectionsMessaging for a Milestone Y ear:   TMWA’ s 2 0 th Anniversary 2 0 0 1  - 2 0 2 1

Bill inserts 
I nfographic delivery,  

featured history sideb ars. 

L ob b y disp lay
H istoric milestones outlined.  

TMWA history in contex t. 

V ideo features
First- person history of key events 

and accomplishments.  

Media interview s
TMWA educating the community 

ab out its shared history.

E x amp les of ow ned p lac ement and earned media tac tic s:   

I co n f o r  co v e r s h e e ts and  s e l e ct 
co l l ate r al  ap p l i cati o n.

T ag  e l e m e nt s cal e d  f o r  b anne r s ,
p r e s e ntati o ns ,  w o r k s h o p s ,  e tc.

S tr o ng  co ntr as t d e s i g n f o r  
h ats ,  t- s h i r ts ,  e tc.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 4 of 6



Truckee Meadows Population Proj ectionsMessaging for D rought:   Calib rating O utreac h for Tiered Situations

Standard Conservation O utreac h 
Supports TMWA’ s Assigned Watering 
D ays program and other conservation 
offerings. This year’ s campaign 
includes paid placement and earned 
positioning,  b eginning in April and 
continuing through Septemb er. 

E nhanc ed Conservation O utreac h 
I ncludes an ex pansion of channels 
and freq uency of messaging. With 
TMWA’ s new customer information 
system,  enhanced insight into water-
use trends can also cue direct 
messaging to influence water use. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 5 of 6



6

Plan F ormat:  See detail into other areas through one- sheet overview s
04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13

Page 6 of 6



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 

Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager  
FROM: Jessica Atkinson, HR Manager 

Michele Sullivan, CFO  
DATE: April 7, 2021 
SUBJECT: Presentation and discussion regarding consideration of adding a Risk 

Manager position, and possible direction to staff 

Recommendation
After review and consideration of TMWA’s risk management strategies, resources and 
processes, staff recommends continuing with its current risk management approach and does not 
recommend increasing the budgeted FTE’s to hire a Risk Manager at this time.

Summary

• TMWA uses a broker to market and purchase third-party insurance coverage for 
property, general liability, employment practices, professional & wrongful acts, crime, 
network security and privacy (cyber coverage), workers’ compensation and employer’s 
liability. Where recommended, TMWA also has umbrella/excess coverage policies.

• NRS 41.033 provides that no lawsuit may be brought against TMWA for: 
o Failure to inspect any building, structure, vehicle street, public highway or other 

public work, facility or improvement to determine any hazards, deficiencies or 
other matters, whether or not there is a duty to inspect; or 

o Failure to discover such a hazard, deficiency or other matter, whether or not an 
inspection is made. 

• NRS 41.035 limits a person’s recovery in a tort against a governmental entity to a 
maximum of $150,000 (increasing to $200,000 effective July 1, 2022), exclusive of 
interest computed from the date of judgment and may not include any amount as 
exemplary or punitive damages. 

• TMWA continuously works internally and regularly engages external consultants to 
identify risk and mitigate or eliminate risk where possible and to the satisfaction of our 
insurance carriers.



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 

  Page 2 of 4 

Background  
During the October 21, 2020, Board of Directors Meeting, Member Brekhus requested staff 
consider adding a Risk Manager as a proposed goal objective for FY2021. 
 
TMWA’s approach to Risk Management is decentralized.  This means there is not one person 
solely responsible for all aspects of Risk Management. Department heads, the CFO and the 
Human Resources Manager are all responsible for Risk Management with the guidance of our 
insurance broker, insurance carriers and our internal legal resource. 
 
TMWA’s Risk Management strategies include risk identification, risk transfer, risk 
reduction/risk control, risk avoidance and in some cases, risk acceptance/retention. These 
strategies are carried out at a departmental level. Finance works directly with department heads 
to make sure TMWA has insurance coverage sufficient for the current and prospective operating 
environment. Liability and workers’ compensation claims are administered through the Human 
Resources (HR) department. TMWA is insured by outside insurance carriers for liability and 
workers’ compensation coverage. When a claim under either liability or workers’ compensation 
is received, the HR department works with the claimant as a liaison facilitating the submission 
and processing of claims and ensuring our insurance company has information necessary to 
adjudicate any claims. 
 
Despite all appropriate and prudent efforts, based on the nature and scope of TMWA’s business, 
there is always a likelihood that incidents will occur. When incidents occur, financial impacts to 
TMWA are mitigated through insurance.  In addition, several state statutes limit TMWA’s legal 
obligations and liability.   
 
Discussion 
Broadly, risk can be described as an uncertain outcome with the possibility of loss or reward, 
with loss exposures resulting from the assets and operations of an organization. The chance or 
likelihood of an event happening that will have an impact on organizational objectives combined 
with the financial, personnel and other consequences are driven by the frequency and severity of 
such losses. 
 
Risk management is the systematic process of identifying, analyzing, planning, controlling, and 
responding to these risks and can be managed internally or externally using either a centralized 
or decentralized approach.  
 
When determining how or who should manage risk in an organization some common 
considerations include the employment of: 

1. Internal employees who manage risk for the entire organization; 
2. Independent consultants who provide risk-management services for a fee; and 
3. Insurance agents to provide risk assessment services and insurance advice, 

recommendations, and solutions. 
 
Internal risk managers are often found in organizations that are larger in size than TMWA, have 
specific or increased risks and are self-insured and may only transfer high severity/catastrophic 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 

  Page 3 of 4 

risk exposures. When risk is not transferred, the impact of adverse events is absorbed directly by 
the organization. This is not the case for TMWA as we are not self-insured. 
 
Independent consultants are often used to centralize risk management in small organizations that 
lack internal resources or can be used to provide services related to a particular project, 
department or for a specific type of risk, as in the case of cyber security. The use of an 
independent consultant to perform a centralized risk management function for TMWA has been 
employed in the past and was determined to be unnecessary because TMWA is insured and has 
certain statutory liability limits. However, TMWA currently engages consultants such as those 
made available through our insurance broker, property insurer, liability insurer, workers’ 
compensation insurer, Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Nevada Department of Public 
Safety (DPS) and others related to specific projects or operational disciplines such as cyber 
security and network infrastructure. 
 
TMWA is insured for property, general liability, employment practices, professional & wrongful 
acts, theft/crime, network and cyber security, and workers’ compensation claims through outside 
insurance carriers. In addition, TMWA has excess/umbrella policies which provide additional 
coverage beyond the primary policy limits.  By electing to be insured by a third-party versus 
self-insured, TMWA transfers the potential liability associated with risk to our insurance carriers 
with appropriate deductibles. 
 
In addition to transferring of risk, due to TMWA’s status as a political subdivision of the state of 
Nevada, potential liability for TMWA is controlled under the following Nevada Revised Statutes 
due to statutory immunities and caps: 

• NRS 41.033 provides immunity from actions being brought under NRS 41.031 or against 
an officer or employee of the state or any of its agencies or a political subdivision which 
is based upon: 

o Failure to inspect any building, structure, vehicle street, public highway or other 
public work, facility or improvement to determine any hazards, deficiencies or 
other matters, whether or not there is a duty to inspect; or 

o Failure to discover such a hazard, deficiency or other matter, whether or not an 
inspection is made. 

• NRS 41.035 limits a person’s recovery in a tort against a governmental entity to a 
maximum of $150,000 (increasing to $200,000 effective July 1, 2022), exclusive of 
interest computed from the date of judgment and may not include any amount as 
exemplary or punitive damages. 

 
Finally, and most important, is TMWA’s commitment and effort to avoid and reduce (mitigate) 
risk whenever possible. This is accomplished at the departmental level and is assessed any time a 
new facility, process or system is designed and installed and regularly thereafter through 
monitoring and evaluation of performance indicators. TMWA also leverages insurance resources 
available through our insurance broker and various carriers.   Periodically, our carriers and 
insurance broker conduct site visits and formal loss control surveys.  As an example, TMWA’s 
insurance brokerage recently conducted facility visits to update current risk assessments and to 
assess the new Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant. From these surveys, the brokerage or carrier 
consultants identify hazards (actual and potential) and make recommendations to mitigate or 
eliminate risk. These recommendations are reviewed with department heads and corrective 
action is taken as necessary.  Additionally, TMWA regularly engages the DHS to conduct 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 

  Page 4 of 4 

vulnerability assessments related to both physical and cyber/network security and the NV DPS to 
conduct vulnerability and physical security assessments.  DHS and DPS also provide reports 
identifying hazards and threats and make recommendations, which are addressed and prioritized 
for correction. 
 
TMWA uses a decentralized risk management approach with a focus on communication between 
departments and external resources, leveraging resources and consultants as necessary to assist 
with the different aspects of risk associated with our operations.  Currently, there are sufficient 
processes and practices in place for the identification, measurement, and evaluation of the 
different types of risks that can occur and TMWA has processes in place to minimize the 
probability and consequences of adverse events. Therefore, adding a Risk Manager at this time is 
not recommended. If something were to change related to our insurance status or related to 
statutory immunities, then that would be an appropriate time to reevaluate the need for adding a 
Risk Manager. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
TMWA estimates an approximate total cost (wages and benefits) of $190, 620 annually to add a 
Risk Manager to our payroll.   



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 

Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Standing Advisory Committee 
FROM:   Sonia Folsom, TMWA SAC Liaison 
DATE: April 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion and action on appointments to the Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) 

to fill the Multi-Family Residential Primary Customer Class vacancy, Senior Citizen 
Alternate Customer Class vacancy, and Residential Representative 3 Customer Class 
Alternate vacancy and other possible vacancies for terms beginning May 1, 2021 to 
December 31, 2023 from the following pool of candidates listed in alphabetical order: 
Al Black, Jordan Graham, Russ Foreman, Tom Kurtz, Kevin Ryan and Alex Talmant

Recommendation
Staff is presenting the SAC recommendation to fill the vacancies for the senior citizen alternate 
customer class and residential representative customer class alternate positions with Alex Talmant and 
Kevin Ryan, respectively. In addition, the SAC recommended, at the Boards discretion, to keep vacant
the multi-family residential primary customer class position until an interested candidate submits a 
letter of interest for consideration. 

Summary
• A total of six (6) applications were received for the three vacant positions:

o Multi-Family Primary – One (1) Vacancy; 0 Applicants 
o Senior Alternate – One (1) Vacancy; 6 Applicants 
o Residential Representative 3 Alternate – One (1) Vacancy; 3 Applicants 

The table in Attachment 1 illustrates the SACs recommendation, for Board approval, of the applicants 
to fill the vacant positions by customer class. 

Background 
The SAC was created in 2005 to review budgets, rate proposals and other matters as directed by the 
Board. In 2016, the TMWA Board decided to remove the two appointments made by the Northern 
Nevada Water Planning Commission and the Office of Consumer Advocate and replace those with two 
at-large positions. The committee currently consists of Board-appointed representatives of ten customer 
classes and four other seats (including two alternates) held by representatives of community-interest 
groups (Attachment 2). TMWA customers interested in becoming a SAC member can submit a letter of 
interest at any time and will be presented to the SAC when a vacancy opens for consideration.

Discussion
The applicants, and summary of pertinent experience, are listed in the table below, and the letters of 
interest submitted are compiled in Attachment 3. The SAC was pleased to have such skilled and diverse 
applicants express interest in representing customer issues to the TMWA Board as part of the SAC.  



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 

  Page 2 of 3 

In addition, Attachment 4 is a map showing locations of all current SAC members, as well as all 
applicants. 

APPLICANT 
NAME 

CITY CUSTOMER 
CLASS 

PERTINENT EXPERIENCE 

Al Black Reno Senior, Alternate • Metered rate residential customer 
• Has been on the: Board of Promontory Pointe HOA, 

Caughlin Ranch HOA, Hayward HOA, and The 
Museum of Early Trades and Crafts where I was also 
the Chair for four years 

• Retired from the Chemical industry where I was a 
Global Procurement Manager, Marketing Manager, 
Product Manager, and Salesman 

• Master’s degree in Organic Chemistry and an MBA in 
Management 

John Russ 
Foreman 

Reno Senior, Alternate • Worked as a computer software designer, financial 
auditor for the State of Nevada, construction project 
manager for McCarran Airport & financial manager 
for both the US Army & Air Force 

• Interested in the SAC to get involved in Reno 
governmental activities and learn more about Reno 

• BA & Master's in Finance & Business from UNLV 
Jordan 
Graham 

Reno Senior and 
Residential 
Representative, 
Alternate  

• Seven years as head of a digital transformation 
consulting organization working with senior executives 
in several key industries including energy and utilities 

• Previous experience in land management working with 
geologist, landowners, and strategic partners to explore 
for natural resources 

• Six years of marketing and sales experience with a 
public utility 

• Sixteen years as a public company board director 
serving as past Chairman of the Strategy Committee 
and current Chairman of the Finance and Investment 
Committee 

• Previous Board service as a Director of two non-
profits-one with assets over $2B 

• Two years' experience working as a community board 
member for the Department of Planning and Building, 
County of San Mateo, CA 

• CEO of two venture capital backed technology 
companies 

• Board Director and Advisor to eleven venture capital 
and private equity backed companies 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 

  Page 3 of 3 

APPLICANT 
NAME 

CITY CUSTOMER 
CLASS 

PERTINENT EXPERIENCE 

Thomas Kurtz Reno Senior and 
Residential 
Representative, 
Alternate 

• Was a municipal manager in State College, PA, served 22 
years as Manager of Patton Township, 5 years as 
Assistant Manager for Community Services at State 
College Borough and 10 years as Director of 
Administration for the Centre Region Council of 
Governments, a consortium of 6 local governments 
including Patton Township and State College Borough 

• Served as President of the Association for Pennsylvania 
Municipal Management and as regional Vice President 
for the International City/County Management 
Association 

• BA in Political Science from the University of New 
Hampshire and an MA in Political Science from Penn 
State 

Kevin Ryan Sparks Senior and 
Residential 
Representative, 
Alternate 

• A certified Grade II Distribution Operator, and with over 
35 years experience as an environmental scientist in the 
drinking water field 

• Participated in numerous advisory committees, managed 
multi-million dollar drinking water infrastructure projects 

• Familiar with the SRF grant procedures 
• Trained in emergency response and have been deployed 

multiple times to disaster areas where he worked with 
impacted public water systems. experience with state, 
local, tribal, and federal agencies, and my knowledge of 
the Safe Drinking Water Act 

Alex Talmant Reno Senior, 
Alternate 

• Office manager with New York Life Insurance Company 
until 1986 

• Transitioned to Federal Civil Service with the Nevada 
Army National Guard: Budget Officer, Deputy 
Comptroller and Comptroller 

• Served as a member of the Board of Directors at Greater 
Nevada Credit Union from 1996 until 2020: During his 
time on the Board I served on the Governance and 
Investment committees as well as Board Treasurer for six 
year 

• Volunteered at Fool 4 Thought in Carson City and Carson 
Tahoe Hospital 

 



Customer Class
Primary 

Representative Member Since Term Ends
Alternate 

Representative Member Since Term Ends

Wholesale (Sun Valley) Chris Melton 2020 12/31/2021 Vacant 

Irrigation Neil McGuire 2005 12/31/2022 Karl Katt 2013 12/31/2022

Multi-family Residential Vacant Jonnie Pullman 2012 12/31/2021

Commercial Donald Kowitz 2017 12/31/2022 John Krmpotic 2020 12/31/2021

Senior Citizen Robert Chambers 2005 12/31/2022 Alex Talmant 2021 12/31/2023

At-Large 1 Ken McNeil 2013 12/31/2022 Ken Becker 2017 12/31/2022

At-Large 2 Jordan Hastings 2017 12/31/2022 Susan Hoog 2019 12/31/2021

Residential:

Representative 1 Carol Litster 2014 12/31/2022 Dale Sanderson 2017 12/31/2022

Representative 2 Harry Culbert 2006 12/31/2022 Fred Arndt 2017 12/31/2022

Representative 3 Jerry Wager 2014 12/31/2022 Kevin Ryan 2021 12/31/2023

Appointments:

BANN Colin Hayes 2010 12/31/2021 Jim Smith 2010 12/31/2021

Reno-Sparks Chamber Kristine Brown 2020 12/31/2021 Ann Silver 2019 12/31/2021

TMWA Standing Advisory Committee
Term Appointments

2021 Membership List

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15
Attachment 1

Page 1 of 1



Revised 12 / 12 / 2 0 19  

TMWA Standing Advisory Committee History 

Bullet Points for SAC history 

• 2 0 0 4 :  The B oard formed a Rate Making Review C ommittee ( RMRC )  for the purpose of reviewing and
providing customer input on the proposed second and third phases of the current rate case that was
going b efore the B oard in 2 0 0 5 . At the time this C ommittee was formed,  the B oard did not foresee a
permanent role for it.

• The initial RMRC  recommended that the B oard form a committee that serves in an advisory capacity
on a permanent b asis. Staff supported the recommendation for a standing committee.

• J anuary 2 0 0 5 :  Staff first approached the B oard to recommend formation of the Standing Advisory
C ommittee ( SAC ) .

• March 2 0 0 5 :  the B oard estab lished a SAC  consisting of eleven ( 11)  memb ers:  one ( 1)  each of the
following customer types –  commercial;  irrigation;  multi- family;  senior citiz en;  wholesale;  and three
( 3 ) residential users all appointed b y the TMWA ( Truckee Meadows Water Authority)  B oard.  The
B uilders Association of N orthern N evada,  Reno- Sparks C hamb er of C ommerce and the Regional
Water Planning C ommission to appoint one ( 1)  memb er each.  D uties of the SAC  include b udget and
rate increase review and recommendations and other matters the B oard may assign.

• J uly 2 0 0 5 :  The B oard appointed a sub committee to select applicants.

• Septemb er 2 0 0 5 :  The B oard appointed the first SAC  memb ers.

• August 2 0 0 7 :  The State of N evada C onsumer Advocates O ffice appointed a memb er to the SAC .

• The SAC  reviewed rate proposals in 2 0 0 9 ,  2 0 10  and 2 0 12 .

• D ecemb er 3 1,  2 0 14 :  Successful consummation of the mergers of South Truckee Meadows G eneral
I mprovement D istrict and Washoe C ounty Water U tility into TMWA.

• Septemb er 2 0 16 :  The B oard eliminated the N orthern N evada Water Planning C ommission and the
State of N evada C onsumer Advocates O ffice appointments and created two At- L arge positions.

• The SAC  reviewed rate proposals in 2 0 16 ,  2 0 17  and 2 0 19 .

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15
Attachment 2

Page 1 of 1



March 22, 2021 

Dear TMWA, 

I would like to become the Senior  member of the Standing Advisory Committee for TMWA. My name is 
Allen Black and I live in Caughlin Ranch. I have had extensive board experience. I have been on the 
board of Promontory Pointe HOA, Caughlin Ranch HOA, Hayward HOA, and The Museum of Early Trades 
and Crafts where I was also the Chair for four years. I am a 73 yr old who retired from the Chemical 
industry where I was a Global Procurement Manager, Marketing Manager, Product Manager, and 
Salesman. I have a Masters degree in Organic Chemistry and an MBA in Management. I was raised on a 
farm and have some knowledge of land management. I think I would provide knowledge to the board 
that could be useful in managing the water supply of Washoe county and the surrounding communities. 
Please let me know if you need further information. 

Regards, 

Al Black 

Reno, NV 89519 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 1 of 6



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 2 of 6



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 3 of 6



Thomas S. Kurtz

5eno, NV 89523

 

)ebruary 25, 2�21
0s. Sonia )olsom
7ruckee 0eadows Water Authority 
P2 %o[ 3��13 
5eno, NV 8952� 
   SubMect�  Standing Advisory Committee Vacancy 
 
'ear 0s. )olsom� 
 
, would be honored to be of service to the 70WA and our community by serving on the 
Standing Advisory Committee.  , am a senior �age 79� and a residential customer of the 
Authority.  0y wife and , purchased our home here in 5eno in 2�11 and became full 
time residents in 2�1�.  , have a strong interest in water service in the 7ruckee 
0eadows and have reviewed the 752A and some historical documents about water 
service in this area.  
 
0y professional career was as a municipal manager in State College, Pennsylvania, the 
host community for Penn State 8niversity.  , served for 22 years as 0anager of Patton 
7ownship �a suburb of State College with 15,��� residents�, 5 years as the Assistant 
0anager for Community Services at State College %orough and 1� years as 'irector of 
Administration for the Centre 5egion Council of *overnments, a consortium of � local 
governments including Patton 7ownship and State College %orough.  Water service in 
this area is provided by the State College %orough Water Authority, an authority similar 
to 70WA, but with a water supply consisting entirely of groundwater.     
 
, have a %A in Political Science from the 8niversity of New +ampshire and an 0A in 
Political Science from Penn State. , have served as President of the Association for 
Pennsylvania 0unicipal 0anagement and as regional Vice President for the 
,nternational City�County 0anagement Association. 
 
, am the author of the ,ntergovernmental Cooperation +andbook published by the 
Pennsylvania 'epartment of Community and (conomic 'evelopment, currently in its 7th 
edition �2�18�. 

,f you find my background and e[perience might be of service to the 70WA, , would be 
pleased to serve on the 70WA Standing Advisory Committee. 

Sincerely 
 

7homas S. .urt] 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 4 of 6



Kevin J. Ryan 
 Sparks, NV 89434 

March 29, 2021 

To whom it may concern: 

I am writing to express my interest in volunteering to serve 
on the Standing Advisory Committee for the residential or 
the senior citizen representative class vacancy.  I 
understand that the monthly responsibilities may include 
reviewing budgets, rate proposals and other priorities of the 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority.  I enjoy working with 
utilities and believe safe, affordable drinking water is vital to 
the health of communities. 

As a certified Grade II Distribution Operator, and with over 
35 years experience as an environmental scientist in the 
drinking water field, I have participated in numerous advisory 
committees, managed multi-million dollar drinking water 
infrastructure projects, and I am familiar with the SRF grant 
procedures.  I am trained in emergency response and have 
been deployed multiple times to disaster areas where I 
worked with impacted public water systems. 

I trust my experience with state, local, tribal and federal 
agencies, and my knowledge of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 
will provide an opportunity to be considered for this important 
stakeholder position.  References available on request. 

Respectfully, 

Kevin J. Ryan 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 5 of 6



TO:  Sonia Folsom  3/6/2021 

sfolsom@TMWA.com 

Subject:  Standing Advisory Committee 

I am Alex W. Talmant Jr. residing at , Reno, NV  89511 for four 
and one half years.  My customer class would be Senior and my contact 
information is , .  My education includes 
a BS in Business Administration from the University of Idaho and an MBA from 
Golden Gate University. 

In 1975 I arrived in Reno where I was the office manger with New York Life 
Insurance Company until 1986 when I transitioned to Federal Civil Service with 
the Nevada Army National Guard.  Over the next 24 years I held the positions of 
Budget Officer, Deputy Comptroller and  Comptroller when I retired in 2010 with 
34 years of combined military/Federal Civil Service. 

My interest in volunteering led me to help at Fool 4 Thought in Carson City and 
Carson Tahoe Hospital.  I served as a member of the Board of Directors at Greater 
Nevada Credit Union from 1996 until 2020.  During my time on the Board I served 
on the Governance and Investment committees as well as Board Treasurer for six 
years.  I have always had an interest in growth in the Truckee Meadows and hope 
I can be a contributing member of the Standing Advisory Committee. 

Sincerely, 

Alex W. Talmant Jr. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 3

Page 6 of 6



1

2

3

4

5
6

7

89

10

11

12 13

14

15

16
17
18

21

22

23

24

25

19

20

26

NAD 83 NEVADA STATE 
 PLANE WEST FEET

DATE

MAP BY:

REQUESTED BY:

SCALE:

4/1/2021

JAK

SF

1 in = 2 miles

Distribution of SAC Members & Applicants

W
:\p

ro
je

ct
s\

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s\
Fa

ci
lit

y_
cl

ea
n_

up
\p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
xd

\J
K_

11
x1

7_
SA

C
_M

EM
BE

R
S_

20
21

.m
xd

Storey

2021 SAC Members

MEMBER

APPLICANT

TMWA Service Boundary
City of Reno
City of Sparks
Sun Valley
County Boundary

Washoe

Lassen

Sierra

Nevada
SAC Applicants (Id # labeled on map)

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 15 
04-06-21 SAC Agenda Item 9 

Attachment 4



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 

Page 1 of 1

STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager
DATE: April 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report

Attached please find the written reports from the Management team including the Operations 
Report (Attachment A), the Water Resource and the Annexation Activity Report (Attachment
B), and the Customer Services Report (Attachment C). 

Included in your agenda packet are press clippings from March 11, 2020 through April 14, 2021. 

Also, staff received a Tell the Board email regarding the special letter sent out the all customers 
informing them of the new customer service information system and their issue with the font 
size. Staff replied they would definitely consider font size in future correspondence to customers. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16
Attachment A

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: Scott Estes, Director of Engineering 
BY: Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator
DATE: April 19, 2021 
SUBJECT: April 2021 Operations Report  

Summary

• The water supply outlook for the region is fair
• Lake Tahoe storage is @ 38% of capacity
• Combined total upstream reservoir storage is 39% of maximum capacity
• Customer demands are at typical springtime levels (~75 MGD)
• Hydroelectric revenue for March 2021 was $258,269 

(A) Water Supply 

• River Flows - Truckee River flows at the CA/NV state line were approximately 750 
cubic feet per second (CFS) this morning. 

• Reservoir Storage - Truckee River reservoir storage is 39% of capacity. The elevation of 
Lake Tahoe is 6225.35 feet (3.75’ below maximum storage elevation). Storage values for 
each reservoir as of April 19th are as follows: 

Reservoir
Current Storage

(Acre-Feet)
% of Capacity

(Percent)
Tahoe 284,400 38%
Boca 13,869 34%
Stampede 91,582 40%
Prosser 9,572 32%
Donner 5,364 56%
Independence 11,980 68%

In addition to approximately 17,300 acre-feet of storage in Donner and Independence reservoirs, 
TMWA has about 29,800 acre-feet of water stored between Lake Tahoe, Boca, and Stampede 
reservoirs under the terms of TROA. TMWA’s total combined upstream reservoir storage is 
approximately 47,100 acre-feet (as of April 19th). 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment A 

  Page 2 of 2 

• Snowpack - The NRCS season-ending snowpack was recorded at 67% of normal in the 
Lake Tahoe Basin, and 68% of normal for the Truckee River basin. This winter ended up 
quite similar to last year, both noticeably below average. A hot, dry summer and a warm 
fall with very little precipitation coming into the snowpack building season left soils dry 
throughout the winter until the snowmelt began. And with no noteworthy storms since the 
first of April, snowpack values are now significantly below where they should be this 
time of the year. This morning 43% of normal was being reported in the Lake Tahoe 
Basin, and 44% of normal was being reported in the Truckee Basin.   
 

• Runoff Forecast - The runoff forecast continues to be downgraded. The latest 
projections point toward significantly below average runoff for both Lake Tahoe @ 27% 
of normal, and the Truckee River at Farad @ 35% of normal.  
 

• Outlook - Current snowpack conditions and projections for streamflow runoff are 
significantly below average. But while upstream storage numbers aren’t nearly as good as 
we would like to see, there is still enough carry-over storage in Lake Tahoe to help 
provide normal Truckee River flows through TMWA’s peak demand season. At this time 
no releases of drought reserves are anticipated in order to meet TMWA customer 
demand. By the end of this year however, most if not all of the carry-over storage in Lake 
Tahoe is expected to be exhausted. With no carry-over storage remaining going into 
2022, Truckee River flows will be almost certainly be dependent upon the outcome of 
next winter.    

 
(B) Water Production  
 

• Demand - TMWA’s customer demand averaged 75 million gallons per day (MGD) for 
the second full week of April. Overall, surface water made up 86% of our supply and 
groundwater the other 14%.   

 
(C) Hydro Production   
 
Generation - Truckee River flows at Farad (CA/NV state line) for the month of March 2021 
averaged 503 CFS. Both the Fleish and Verdi power plants were on-line and available the entire 
month (100% available). The Washoe Power plant was still out of service as the flume rebuild 
continues. Statistics for the month as follows:     
 

 
Hydro Plant 

Days 
On-Line 

Generation 
(Megawatt hours) 

Est. Revenue 
(Dollars) 

Est. Revenue 
(Dollars/Day) 

Fleish 31   1,831 $  136,731 $   4,411 
Verdi 31    1,642 $  121,538 $   3,921 

Washoe  0        0         $           0         $         0 
Totals 62              3,473 $ 258,269         $   8,332 

 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment B

Page 1 of 3

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Chairman and Board Members 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager
FROM: John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources 
DATE: April 12, 2021 
SUBJECT: Report Water Resources and Annexation Activity

RULE 7

Rule 7 water resource purchases and will-serve commitment sales against purchased 
water resources through this reporting period: 

Beginning Balance                    3,870.50 AF
Purchases of water rights                       0.00 AF 
Refunds       0.00 AF
Sales                       − 102.19 AF
Adjustments                  0.00 AF
Ending Balance                               3,768.31 AF

Price per acre foot at report date:  $7,700 

FISH SPRINGS RANCH, LLC GROUNDWATER RESOURCES

Through the merger of Washoe County’s water utility, TMWA assumed a Water Banking 
and Trust Agreement with Fish Springs Ranch, LLC, a subsidiary of Vidler.  Under the 
Agreement, TMWA holds record title to the groundwater rights for the benefit of Fish Springs.  
Fish Springs may sell and assign its interest in these groundwater rights to third parties for 
dedication to TMWA for a will-serve commitment in Areas where TMWA can deliver 
groundwater from the Fish Springs groundwater basin.  Currently, TMWA can deliver Fish 
Springs groundwater to Area 10 only (Stead-Silver Lake-Lemmon Valley).  The following is a 
summary of Fish Springs’ resources. 

Beginning Balance                       7,693.51 AF
Committed water rights            −  0.00 AF
Ending Balance            7,693.51 AF

Price per acre foot at report date:  $41,500 (for SFR and MFR); $36,000 (for all other services)1

1 Price reflects avoided cost of Truckee River water right related fees and TMWA Supply & Treatment WSF charge. 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment B 

Page 2 of 3 

 
WATER SERVICE AREA ANNEXATIONS 
 
 Since the date of the last report there has been one 34.98-acre annexation (see attached 
map). 
 
INTERRUPTIBLE LARGE VOLUME NON-POTABLE SERVICE 
 

No new ILVNPS customers have been added during this reporting period. 
 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment B

Page 3 of 3



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment C 

  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: Marci Westlake, Manager Customer Service 
DATE: April 9, 2021 
SUBJECT: March Customer Service Report 
 
The following is a summary of Customer Service activity for March 2021.   
 
Ombudsman 
 

• Customer called regarding payment, crossed in the mail with current bill. Explained and 
customer was good. 

• Customer wanted his account number. 
• Customer called regarding deceased persons account and that it is in probate and will 

bring current as soon as they have the funds. 
• Customer called with pressure complaints- sent out a pressure test with tech.  
• Customer called to compliment TMWA on how wonderful we are in all that we do.  

From delivering the water to Customer Service this gentleman was very complimentary 
in all aspects of the Utility.  

• Customer wanted our email address. 
• Customer wanted to sign up for AutoPay, we signed them up. 

 
Communications 
 

• On March 12 Sonia Folsom had a virtual College and Career fair for Nevada Virtual 
Academy about TMWA, different careers, education/experience requirements.  We had 
15 attendees.  

• On March 23 Angel Lecroix held a virtual panel discussion for UNR Theta Tau 
Engineering Fraternity on experiences moving from school into the workforce, what the 
job is like, what our companies look for in employees, favorite thing about the job. We 
had 15 attendees. 

• On March 25 John Enloe held a virtual Closing session panel discussion about Regional 
Collaboration on water recycling projects in Northern NV, 200 people attended.  

• On March 31 Chuck Swegles, Robert Charpentier and Sonia Folsom had a virtual 
Irrigation start-up workshop and 5 people attended. 
 



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment C 

  Page 2 of 3 

 
 

Conservation (2021 Calendar year) 
 
• 10 Water Watcher Contacts 
• 157 Water Usage Reviews 
 
Customer Calls –March 
 
• 11,978 phone calls handled  
• Average handling time -5 minutes, 04 seconds per call 
• Average speed of answer –5 minutes, 17 seconds per call 
 
Billing –March 
 
• 109,037 bills issued. 
• 1 (0.00%) corrected bills. 
• 9,510 customers (7%) have signed up for paperless billing to date. 
 
Service Orders March (% is rounded) 
 
• 1,188 service orders taken 
• 716 (60%) move-ins / move-outs  
• 1 (1%) cut-out-for-non-payment and cut-in after receiving payments, including deposits and 

checks for tamper only 
• 122 (10%) zero consumption meter checks 
• 91 (7%) re-read meters 
• 101 (9%) new meter sets and meter/register/ERT exchanges and equipment checks 
• 43 (3%) problems / emergencies, including cut-out for customer repairs, dirty water, no 

water, leaks, pressure complaints, safety issues, installing water meter blankets, etc.  
• 13 (1%) high-bill complaints / audit and water usage review requests 
• 101 (9%) various other service orders 
 
Remittance –March 
 
• 24,579 mailed-in payments 
• 4,758 electronic payments 
• 14,242 payments via AutpPay (EFT)  
• 16,541 one-time bank account payments 
• 1,249 credit card payments  
• 208 store payments  
• 180 payments via drop box or at front desk 
 
Collections –March 
 
• 3,831 accounts received a late charge                     



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Attachment C 

  Page 3 of 3 

• Mailed 1,354 10-day delinquent notices, 0.01% of accounts     
• Mailed 473 48-hour delinquent notices, 0.01% of accounts    
• 0 accounts eligible for disconnect 
• 1 account was disconnected (including accounts that had been disconnected-for-non-payment 

that presented NSF checks for their reconnection) 
• 0.14% write-off to revenue 
 
Meter Statistics – Fiscal Year to Date 
 
• 0 Meter retrofits completed 
• 3,551 Meter exchanges completed 
• 1,981 New business meter sets completed  
• 131,297 Meters currently installed    



Biden delays Trump changes to
and copper drinking water rule
BY RACHEL FRAZIN - 03/10/21 04:36 PM EST

853 SHARES SHARE TW

Just In...

Illinois to expand
vaccine eligibility to all
adults on April 12
STATE WATCH — 6M 7S AGO

Republicans launch
fundraising vehicle for
Newsom recall
CAMPAIGN — 9M 54S AGO

GOP senator blocks bill
to prevent private debt
collectors from seizing
stimulus checks
SENATE — 10M 28S AGO

GOP lawmaker makes
reference to lynching
during Asian-American
hearing
HOUSE — 10M 46S AGO

Poll �inds Clarence
Thomas is GOP's most
popular Supreme Court
Justice
NEWS — 15M 12S AGO

Blinken warns of
possible sanctions on
Russia's Nord Stream 2
pipeline
INTERNATIONAL — 18M 24S AGO

GOP lawmaker
introduces bill targeting
tech liability
protections
TECHNOLOGY — 23M 56S AGO

Joe Biden can build
back better on more

The Biden administration announced on Wednesday that it is delaying the
implementation of a Trump administration update to a rule governing lead
and copper in drinking water. 

The  is expected to quicken the speed at which cities need
to notify people who may have been exposed to lead but gives utilities a

longer timeline to replace lead-tainted service lines. 

A new statement from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) said
that it is extending the date that the rule becomes effective, delaying it
until at least June 17. It was originally expected to go into effect next
week. 

Radhika Fox, the agency’s acting assistant administrator for water, said in
the statement that the EPA is extending the rule so it can review it and
“fully consult with stakeholders, including those that have been
disproportionately impacted by lead in drinking water.”

“Exposure to lead in drinking water can be a very serious problem for
children’s health. It is essential that EPA takes the time now to review this
important rule to ensure that we are protecting current and future
generations,” Fox said. 

The EPA said that it will also take public comment on an action that would
extend the effective date until Dec. 16. 

The Trump administration’s rule would require monitoring for lead at

© iStock

rule in question

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16
Press Clips

Page 1 of 115



THE HILL 1625 K STREET, NW SUITE 900 WASHINGTON DC 20006 | 202-628-8500 TEL | 202-628-8503 FAX
THE CONTENTS OF THIS SITE ARE ©2021 CAPITOL HILL PUBLISHING CORP., A SUBSIDIARY OF NEWS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

transparency in
government
OPINION — 25M 26S AGO

VIEW ALL

Related News

Workout from home -
Unlimited Yoga…
Sponsored | Alo Moves

Trump rally organizer
claims Alex Jones…

by

The Trump administration s rule would require monitoring for lead at
primary schools and child care centers. It would also require cities to
notify residents of potential lead exposure within 24 hours. 

However, the rule extends the amount of time utilities have to replace the
lead service lines that connect homes to the water supply. Critics argue
that the extension could allow lead-tainted pipes to remain underground
for another 30 years.

The rule also does not enact a stricter limit on lead levels in water, which
advocates say is necessary to protect health. The rule creates a 10 parts
per billion (ppb) “trigger” level at which cities would need to reevaluate
their water treatment processes and possibly add corrosion-control
chemicals to city water.

But it keeps the previously set 15 ppb level that requires cities to begin
replacing the nation's estimated 6 million lead service lines that connect
homes to city water supplies — the underlying source of lead
contamination. 

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, exposure to
lead can harm children's health and can cause brain and nervous system
damage, slowed growth and development, and problems with learning,
behavior, hearing and speech. 

The decision to delay the rule comes after the Biden administration issued
a memo freezing pending regulations for review. 

The White House also separately identi�ied the lead and copper rule as
one of dozens of Trump administration environmental rules that it would
seek to review. 

TAGS  EPA  DRINKING WATER  LEAD

Border surge puts Democratic push for immigration reform on shaky...

OVERNIGHT ENERGY: Native groups hope Haaland's historic
con�irmation...

SHARE TWEET

02:06

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 2 of 115



Fernley fears future water shortage as $148M 

plans to line Truckee Canal move forward

Amy Alonzo 
Reno Gazette Journal 

Some rural Nevada water users will be on the hook to help fund a project that could ultimately 
dry up their city’s main source of water, although neither the state or federal government 
recognizes it as a valid water right. 

Following a 2008 Truckee Canal breach that flooded nearly 600 Fernley residences, the Bureau 
of Reclamation has ordered nearly 13 miles of the canal be lined with an impermeable 
membrane – a roughly $148 million project. But the canal has been unlined for more than 100 
years, and groundwater that percolates from the canal and into Fernley’s aquifer has served as 
the city’s primary source of water. 

“You can address safety without impacting the future water of the residents of Fernley,” City 
Manager Daphne Hooper told the RGJ. “How can you just take away the water we’ve been 
dependent on for so many years?” 

According to the Bureau, in 2012 the Fernley area received anywhere from 14,000 to 22,000 
acre-feet of water from canal seepage. In a recently released record of decision that finalized the 
project, the Bureau acknowledged that without the groundwater recharge, the city could face 
water shortages if groundwater is the only supply to the city. In addition to the city, roughly 400 
domestic well users rely on the canal for groundwater recharge.

But in previous legal challenges regarding water rights, the state has opined that artificial water 
recharge is not a valid water right.  

Since at least 1945, the Supreme Court of Nevada has held that valid water rights in the state are 
obtained only from natural sources. In a 2007 case regarding Fallon water rights and the 
Truckee Canal, the ruling stated that groundwater recharge from the canal could not be relied 
upon permanently by surrounding communities.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 3 of 115



And federal officials say that lining the canal and making additional repairs are the only way to 
shore up the aging infrastructure.    

“The things that will make the canal safe are also the things that cut off seepage, because that’s 
what makes the canal unsafe,” said Terry Edwards, Lahontan Basin area manager for the Bureau. 
“There is a need to fix the canal to make it safe, and people on the other end of it have a water right. 
If the canal can’t operate, they can’t get their water. We have the same mixed feelings. Yeah, we 
need to fix it, but it’s going to hurt people to do it. 

Fixing aging infrastructure or a knee-jerk reaction? 

The Truckee Canal was built more than 100 years ago as part of the Newlands Project, one of the 
Bureau of Reclamation’s first endeavors. The canal originates at the Derby Diversion Dam on the 
Truckee River, 20 miles east of Reno and terminates at Lahontan Reservoir near Silver Springs. 

“When the canal was built, the intent was that there’s this water system that’s going to go through 
this community that will support agriculture and growth, and that’s what happened,” Hooper said. 
“Our community grew up around this water system that was intended for those purposes.” 

The canal provides irrigation water for about 57,000 acres of cropland in the Fernley and Fallon 
areas, as well as entities including the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Churchill County, Fallon and 
Fernley. 

 More:Fernley facing 'a real problem' as Bureau of Reclamation plans to line Truckee Canal 

 The Bureau also does not recognize the water rights, as the water is not a contractually 
obligated delivery from the canal. 

More projects: Historic Steamboat Ditch could get piped under proposed project 

In January 2008, after more than 100 years of operation, the canal’s north embankment breached 
about 12 miles downstream of Derby Dam, flooding nearly 600 properties on the east side of 
Fernley. 

Nobody was killed in the flood, but more than a dozen people were rescued from rooftops by 
helicopter. Others were rescued by boat after a 2-foot-tall wave of water roared into town. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 4 of 115



When the canal breached, Valerie and Ben Roberds lived across town, near the canal – and they 
watched as the floodwaters rushed toward their house. 

“We watched as it blew through the field across from the house and then down the street,” she 
said “We could see it, that’s how close it was. It was probably a couple thousand feet away from 
where we used to live.” 

Related:Fernley suing Reclamation for public comment extension on canal project 

The couple said they understand where the Bureau is coming from with its plan to line the 
canal, but they don’t agree with it. 

“I can't help but think much of the motive for lining the canal is a knee-jerk reaction to the flood 
and the concern about liability. This is a valid concern,” he said. “However, the canal is now 
managed far better than it was during the time of the flood, and there are several less expensive, 
more practical options which need to be vetted before knee-jerk reactions are implemented.” 

Project 'could take decades' 

Prior to the breach, the canal operated at flows of 750 cubic feet per second. Since the breach, 
flows have run much lower as a permanent solution was sought for the canal. 

Over the years, the Bureau proposed and studied various solutions — all included lining the 
canal. 

“Throughout this process, Fernley has advocated that the Bureau implement one of several 
solutions that would fix the long-term maintenance issues with the canal without the need to 
line the canal,” according to a Fernley report. 
“The Bureau refused to include any of these solutions as alternatives and instead analyzed only 
alternatives that included a lining of significant portions of the canal.” 

The Bureau did consider other options, according to project manager Laurie Nicholas. But those 
options all had larger drawbacks than lining the canal, including environmental impact, cost and 
engineering feasibility, she said.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 5 of 115



During the public comment period, more than 200 comments opposing the project were 
submitted to the Bureau. 

In December, the Bureau approved a record of decision to line 12.7 miles of the ditch in the 
Fernley area with an impermeable membrane and a concrete liner, as well as to update structures 
associated with the canal. Just under three miles of the canal will remain unlined in the Fernley 
area to still allow some groundwater recharge. 

The Bureau owns the Newlands Project, but since 1926, the Truckee-Carson Irrigation District 
has had a contract with the Bureau for its operation and maintenance. 

TCID was also on the hook for the canal breach, which an investigation showed was caused by 
burrowing rodents weakening the canal. Again, TCID and its customers will also need to find 
funding for the costly lining project.  

“As a small district, we can’t handle that kind of massive outlay. We can only do it a tiny little 
chunk at a time,” said Rusty Jardine, general manager at TCID. “And it’s going to take a long, 
long time to do that. It could take decades.” 

Jardine did not say whether or not customers would see rate increases due to the project.  

Looking ahead 

Not long after the canal breach, the Roberds moved across town to two acres in west Fernley – 
still near the canal. 

With the closest city water line roughly an eighth of a mile away, they rely on the canal to 
recharge their 75-foot deep domestic well. During strong water years, the water level sits around 
25 feet below the surface. In drought years, the water level drops to about 37 feet below the 
surface. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 6 of 115



Jardine estimates that it will take the district five to six years to pay off the $3.5 

million in debt it incurred for the project’s environmental impact statement – 

construction will not start before that debt is paid off. 

“It’s not going to happen in our lifetime, but it’s going to happen in somebody’s 

lifetime,” Valerie said. “I just hate to see it happen.” 

Amy Alonzo covers the outdoors, recreation and environment for Nevada and Lake 

Tahoe. Reach her at aalonzo@gannett.com or (775) 741-

8588. Here's how you can support ongoing coverage and local journalism. 

View Comments

An 11-year resident of the property, she said she’s watched as multiple neighbors have had to re-
drill their wells over the past few years. 

“I’m concerned about the city of Fernley’s water situation. We’ve been told the drainage out of the 
bottom of the canal helps replenish the aquifers out here,” Valerie said. “I’m concerned about my 
own well and my neighbors, but I’m really concerned about the city and development … I don’t 
see it working out very well having the whole canal lined like that.” 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 7 of 115



BUSINESS

Western states chart diverging paths as water
shortages loom

BY SOPHIA EPPOLITO AND FELICIA FONSECA ASSOCIATED PRESS/REPORT FOR AMERICA
MARCH 10, 2021 07:34 PM

   

SALT LAKE CITY
As persistent drought and climate change threaten the Colorado River, several states that rely on 
the water acknowledge they likely won't get what they were promised a century ago.

But not Utah.

Republican lawmakers approved an entity that could push for more of Utah of water as seven 
Western states prepare to negotiate how to sustain a river serving 40 million people. Critics say the 
legislation, which the governor still must sign, could strengthen Utah's effort to complete a billion-
dollar pipeline from a dwindling reservoir that's a key indicator of the river’s health.

This Aug. 21, 2019 image shows Lake Powell near Page, Arizona. A plan by Utah could open the door to the state pursuing an expensive pipeline that critics say could
further deplete the lake, which is a key indicator of the Colorado River's health. (AP Photo/Susan Montoya Bryan) SUSAN MONTOYA BRYAN AP

Other states have had similar entities for decades, but Utah's timing raised questions about its 
commitment to conservation and finding a more equitable way of surviving with less.

“There’s a massive disconnect all centered around climate change,” said Zach Frankel, executive 
director of the Utah Rivers Council, which opposed the legislation. “The other six basin states know 
the Colorado River is dropping, and they know they have to decrease their usage, while Utah is 
running around in this fantasy.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 8 of 115



The river supplies Arizona, California, Colorado, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah, Wyoming and Mexico as 
well as a $5 billion-a-year agricultural industry. As the states face a dire environmental future and 
negotiations over a new plan to protect the waterway from drought, it's forced a shift in thinking.

The goal of renegotiating is figuring out how to use less, “not staking out political turf to try to figure 
out how to use more," said John Fleck, director of University of New Mexico’s Water Resources 
Program.

“It’s just not clear Utah has a willingness to do that,” he said.

The six members of the Colorado River Authority of Utah would oversee the state's negotiations on 
the drought plan and other rules that expire in 2026. Opponents worry parts of the legislation would 
allow the authority to avoid scrutiny by keeping some documents secret and permitting closed 
meetings.

House Speaker Brad Wilson said Utah will pursue conservation, but that alone won't meet the needs 
of one of the nation's fastest growing states. Utah is entitled to water under longstanding agreements 
among the states.

d to theACCEPT COOKIES

“We just need to make sure that as we kind of preserve and protect our interests in the Colorado 
River, that we have the expertise and the tools we need at our disposal to do that,” Wilson said.

The bill comes six months after the other states rebuked Utah’s plan to build an underground pipeline 
that would transport billions of gallons of water 140 miles
(225 kilometers) from Lake Powell to a region near St. George, Utah, close to the Arizona border. 
Other states, such as Colorado and Wyoming, also are pursuing projects to shore up their water 
supply.

Utah began pursuing the pipeline 15 years ago to serve the city that's seen a 23%population jump 
since 2010, according to census figures, likely driven by a warm climate, red rock landscape and 
outdoor recreation. The project is under federal review.

Water experts worry Utah, which experienced its driest year ever in 2020, is banking on water that 
might not be available and could further deplete Lake Powell. Utah is one of the so-called upper basin 
states that get their share of water based on percentages of what's available but historically haven't 
used it all. The lower basin states — Arizona, California and Nevada — get specific amounts that are 
subject to cuts.

Utah plans to tap 400,000 acre-feet of water on top of the 1 million acre-feet it typically uses. An acre-
foot is enough to serve one to two average households a year.

“Using more out of the Colorado River system might be on some piece of paper somewhere as a legal 
entitlement, but it is not a practical reality in the system that we’ve got today,” said James Eklund, 
former director of the Upper Colorado River Commission, an interstate agency that helps states 
administer water rights.

With conservation in mind, states have passed laws focused on safeguarding other water supplies.

In Arizona, Gov. Doug Ducey recently signed a bill allowing farmers, ranchers and others to file a 
conservation plan and not lose their full water entitlements. Colorado and New Mexico also have 
eased up on “use it or lose it” laws.

The Arizona law doesn't affect the Colorado River but could boost water in other streams and rivers 
for wildlife habitat, recreation or city use.

“Everyone in the state needs to take a good, long look at the water that they're using and how much 
water they expect to use in the future and how to properly manage that so we can have long-term 
water security for everybody,” said Kim Mitchell of Western Resource Advocates, which supported 
the Arizona bill.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 9 of 115



Utah isn't alone in a history of lawsuits, disagreements and posturing to defend its share of 
water, though much of it recently has come from lower basin stats that use most of their water.

The Imperial Irrigation District in Southern California, which holds the single largest share of 
Colorado River water, refused to join the drought plan without federal money to address a 
briny inland sea that's become a health hazard as evaporation leaves behind contaminated 
dust. The Salton Sea also will be a sticking point in renegotiations, the district said.

Southern Nevada has built a pipeline near the bottom of Lake Mead to ensure taps will keep 
flowing to Las Vegas homes and casinos even if the reservoir no longer can deliver water to 
Arizona, California and Mexico.

And Native Americans want to ensure their voices aren't missing from talks as they say they 
have been in the past. The 29 tribes in the Colorado River basin collectively hold rights to about 
20% of its flow.

“The days of tribes standing silently by as the federal government, states and other entities set 
the terms for managing and distributing water to which our people are entitled and depend 
upon for survival are over,” Gila River Indian Community Gov. Stephen Roe Lewis said in a 
statement.

1 of 61 of 6

This Aug. 20, 2019 image shows the Colorado River flowing south of Page, Arizona. A plan by Utah could open the door to the state pursuing an expensive pipeline
that critics say could further deplete Lake Powell, which is a key indicator of the Colorado River's health. (AP Photo/Susan Montoya Bryan) SUSAN MONTOYA BRYAN AP

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 10 of 115



What to know about increased 

capacity limits, public gatherings in 

Nevada amid COVID-19 
Kristin Oh

Reno Gazette Journal 

Public gatherings and some capacity limits are allowed to increase under the 

state's updated COVID-19 mitigation measures. 

The following guidelines are effective as of March 15 for all Washoe County 

residents and businesses. However, wearing face masks and maintaining 

social distancing measures remain in effect. 

Public gatherings and events may now operate at 50% of their fire code 

capacity or at 250 individuals, whichever is less. They must also follow strict 

social distancing requirements. 

Large public gatherings are open for submission and approval. If an organizer 

wants to host a large gathering or event, including conferences, conventions 

and trade shows, with more than 250 people they may now have up to 50% 

capacity, according to the new guidelines. However, they must complete 

and submit a form to the Department of Business and Industry (B&I). 

COVID restrictions:Nevada easing convention restrictions, allowing 50 

percent capacity with approval 

The following businesses may now operate at 50% capacity: 

• Libraries, museums, art galleries, aquariums and zoos

• Retail stores and indoor malls

• Medicinal and recreational cannabis establishments

• Community/recreational centers (including public pools)

• Food and beverage establishments: restaurants, bars, pubs, wineries

distilleries and breweries (those that serve food and those that do not)

• Places of worship

• Gyms, fitness studios, yoga studios, dance studios, martial arts studios

and similar establishments

• Gaming floors

• Arcades, racetracks, bowling alleys, mini-golf, pool halls/billiards

rooms, amusement and theme parks and similar activities

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 11 of 115



Vaccine eligibility:COVID-19 in Nevada: Those 55 and older with 

underlying conditions eligible for vaccinations 

The following businesses may operate under strict social distancing 

requirements and protocols established by existing guidelines: 

• Spas, massage therapy and massage establishments

• Hair salons, barbershops, nail salons and businesses that provide

aesthetic skin services

• Body art and piercing establishments

Youth and recreational adult sports are allowed to hold tournaments if 

a Preparedness & Safety Plan is approved by applicable state authorities. 

Get the Daily Briefing newsletter in your inbox. 

Start your day with the morning's top news 

Delivery: Daily 

Your Email 

Adult entertainment establishments, dayclubs, nightclubs, brothels and 

karaoke will remain closed through May 1.  

Kristin Oh is a public safety reporter for the Reno Gazette Journal. She can 

be reached at koh@rgj.com or at 775-420-1285.  Please help support her 

work by subscribing. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 12 of 115



Judge orders City of Reno to 
pay Lemmon Valley flood 

victims $1 million 
By Bob Conrad March 15, 2021 

Flood waters in Lemmon Valley. Image: Washoe County. 
 

  
The City of Reno is planning to appeal verdicts that found the city caused 
damages to Lemmon Valley homeowners for being flooded out of their homes. 

But District Court Judge Barry Breslow in a late afternoon hearing, and in two 
separate orders published today, ordered the city to pay three plaintiffs $1.1 
million in damages, interest, costs and attorney fees. Breslow previously awarded 
plaintiffs more than $750,000. 
The judge cited Nevada law: “Nevada Revised Statute 37.170(1) provides that the 
Court may require deposit of ‘…such further sum as may be required by the court 
as a fund to pay any further damages and costs that may be recovered in the 
proceedings, as well as all damages that may be sustained by the defendant…’” 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 13 of 115



The city tried to avoid paying because of its planned appeal. 

“We’re just requesting a stay pending the appeal and, lacking that, if we could get 
a period of time to make a stay request of the Supreme Court, and get some time 
for that…” Deputy City Attorney Jonathan Shipman requested of the court. 

Breslow ordered the city to pay now. 

The city has 24 hours to cut a check to be deposited to the court. Should the city 
prevail on appeal, plaintiffs will have to pay back the money — unless the Nevada 
Supreme Court determines otherwise. 

Breslow previously fined the city, as first reported by This Is Reno, for failing to 
admit to basic facts in the case. 

Another 27 cases against the city are making their way through the legal system. 

 

 
BOB CONRAD 
Bob Conrad is publisher, editor, and co-founder of This Is Reno. He has served in 
communications positions for various state agencies and earned a doctorate from 
the University of Nevada, Reno in 2011, where he completed a dissertation on 
social media, journalism and crisis communications. In addition to managing 
This Is Reno, he holds a part-time research appointment for the Mineral County 
University of Nevada Extension office. 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 14 of 115



TIME TO PUT TEETH IN NEVADA’S PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

RICHARD KARPEL

MARCH 15TH, 2021 - 2:00AM

Unbeknownst to Nevada of�cials, the state has been conducting a natural

experiment in public policy for many years now: What would happen if the Open

Meeting Law had an enforcement mechanism and criminal penalties for government

of�cials who violate the law, while the Public Records Act — the state’s other primary

open-government statute — left malfeasors completely unmolested?

You probably won’t be surprised to learn that the law that imposes sanctions and a

means to enforce them has been more effective in shaping the behavior of the

state’s elected of�cials and civil servants.

Nevada’s Open Meeting Law was approved by the state legislature in 1960. It was

intended to ensure that the actions of all public bodies “be taken openly and that

their deliberations be conducted openly.” In 1977, the statute was amended to

establish criminal penalties for government of�cials who knowingly participate in a

meeting in which members of the public are unlawfully barred from attendance. It

also authorized the Attorney General to investigate and prosecute infractions of the

law. In 2011, civil penalties now as high as $2,500 were added. In 2015, a process was

established for local residents and open-government organizations to �le open-

meeting complaints with the Attorney General’s of�ce.

By and large, the enforcement mechanisms and penalties have worked. Most public

of�cials in our state are keenly aware of the law’s mandates and generally do their

best to comply with them. In the two-plus years I’ve been executive director of the

Nevada Press Association, I’ve heard few complaints from journalists about state

of�cials holding unlawful secret meetings.

Mea Nenwhile, vada’s liPub c Records Ac NPt ( cRA) is cho kfull of rights but has few

practical remedies. If a go rve nment uof�cial nla wwfully eithholds a docum nt or other

public record, a requestor’s only option is to n �le a expensive law hsuit and ope for

eventual redress in the court system. It’s a slow, cumbersome and prohibitively

expensive process. Only relatively large corporations and the wealthy can afford to

pursue it.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 15 of 115



NPRA’s toothlessness incentivizes public of�cials to slow-walk or stonewall records

requests they view as problematic or just plain irksome. Civil penalties and �nes of up

to $10,000 were added to the law in 2019, but they apply only to government

entities, not the individuals who violate the law. Those �nes may ultimately prove to

have some deterrent effect, but the record suggests the effect will be limited.

Take a recent case involving the Clark County Coroner’s Of�ce. The Las Vegas

Review-Journal sued the coroner’s of�ce in 2017 for access to juvenile autopsies it

sought for an investigation into failures by child protection workers to protect

children from neglect or abuse. It took almost four years and two rulings by the

Nevada Supreme Court to �nally convince Clark County to release the records a day

after the deadline set by now-retired District Judge Jim Crockett.

“Everything demonstrates the coroner’s of�ce is bound and determined to

circumvent and avoid the Nevada Public Records Act by stonewalling and

obfuscating,” said Judge Crockett.

Obstructing the Review-Journal’s records request also cost Clark County at least

$80,000 in legal fees, and earlier this month the district court ordered the county to

pay the news organization $167,000 to cover some of its legal expenses as well.

Would the government of�cials who decided to spend so much time and taxpayer

money on this obviously losing battle have made different decisions if their own

money and criminal records were on the line?

The evidence accumulated over the years of of�cial compliance with Nevada’s Open

Meeting Law suggest they would have

Richard Karpel is e th executive director of the Ne a vad Press Association, which

represents newspapers, online news websites and magazines based in the Silver

State.

Privacy Policy RSS Contact Support Our Work

7455 Arroyo Crossing Pkwy Suite 220
s La Vegas, NV 38911

The Nevada ndep deI en nt s a pi roject : of Nevada News Bur u,ea Inc.
| Federal Tax ID 27-3192716

© 2021 THE NEVADA INDEPENDENT

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 16 of 115



E N V I R O N M E N T

Eight States Are Seeding Clouds to Overcome Megadrought
But there is little evidence to show that the process is increasing precipitation

By Chelsea Harvey, E&E News on March 16, 2021

Credit: John Finney Getty Images

The mountaintops rumble to life unnaturally each year as snow clouds darken the sky across 
the West.

Open flames burst from the throats of metal chimneys, mounted on squat towers nestled 
among the peaks. With a low hiss, puffs of particles belch from their mouths into the air, where 
the wind catches them and whisks them away.

These aren’t ordinary particles. They’re tiny bits of crushed-up silver iodide, a crystal-like 
photosensitive substance once used in photography.

But it’s not used to take pictures out in the mountains. It’s meant to make snow.

As the wind whips the particles across the mountaintops, drafts of air sweep them higher into 
the sky—so high that some of them eventually touch the clouds. There, an elegant 
transformation takes place.

The crystalline silver iodide particles have a structure similar to ice—and inside a cloud, like 
attracts like. Water droplets begin to cluster around the particles, freezing solid as they gather 
together.

These frozen clusters eventually grow too heavy to stay in the air. They fall from the cloud 
and drift gently toward the Earth, dusting the mountaintops with fresh snow.

This is not a page from a science fiction novel. “Cloud seeding” is a real practice—in fact, it’s 
been around for decades. It’s used today to boost precipitation in at least eight states across the 
western U.S. and dozens of countries around the world.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 17 of 115



Interest in cloud seeding is growing as temperatures steadily rise, increasing drought risks in 
places like the Mountain West. But there’s a catch. Scientists aren’t sure how well cloud seeding 
works today, let alone in a warmer climate.

Amid growing concerns about water resources in the western U.S., scientists are working to 
answer those questions. Today, cloud seeding research represents the cutting edge of weather 
and climate science—a convergence of questions about the influence of warming on our 
dwindling water resources and our ability to control those consequences.

“Certainly we’re in a better position now to address that question than we were 10 years ago,” 
said Jeff French, an atmospheric scientist at the University of Wyoming. “The state of the 
science has progressed to the point that it is a question that we can and should be trying to 
address now.”

Cloud seeding can take a few different forms. In some places, it’s used to boost rainfall or 
prevent hailstorms. But in the U.S., it most commonly aims to enhance snowfall, and usually 
with silver iodide.

Extra snow can be a boon for water resources, especially in places like the drought-plagued 
West. Snowpack is a vital source of fresh water for millions of people across the country when it 
melts in the spring.

Boosting snowpack is being pursued with growing urgency. Much of the western U.S. has been 
gripped by drought for the last 20 years.

Scientists recently concluded that the past two decades represent the driest span in the region 
since at least the late 1500s. This “megadrought” has been heavily influenced by climate change, 
they found.

Rising temperatures and the ongoing drought have taken a major toll on Western water 
resources.

Recent studies find that large patches of the Mountain West have experienced major snowpack 
declines over the last few decades (Climatewire, Dec. 13, 2018). The snow season is also growing 
shorter as the climate warms and spring gets an early start.

Meanwhile, Western water managers are contending with the growing threat of shortages. Flow 
has dwindled on major water systems like the Rio Grande and the Colorado River, which each 
supply water to millions of people.

With temperatures steadily rising, cloud seeding poses one attractive solution.

“Water managers basically have two choices, and both of them are implemented,” said French. 
“One is to somehow reduce the demand through conservation, and the other is to somehow 
increase the supply. And cloud seeding is a relatively inexpensive proposition.”

Proving that it works, though, is another matter.

Weather experiments are notoriously difficult to conduct. The scientific gold standard would be a 
study that proves cloud seeding produced an outcome that definitely would not have happened 
without it. But that kind of research requires a combination of specialized experimental design 
and highly advanced technology.

For most of cloud seeding’s long history, it just wasn’t possible. Only within the last few years has 
technology advanced enough for researchers to really dig into the problem.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 18 of 115



“We now have much better tools to try to observe cloud seeding as it’s happening,” French 
said. “So it’s sort of about taking this new technology that has been developed over the last 20 
years, or improved upon over the last 20 years, and applying it to really a very old problem.”

D E C A D E S O F Q U E S T I O N S

Humans have been experimenting with weather control for the better part of the last century.

Vincent Schaefer, a researcher with General Electric, is often credited with the first cloud 
seeding experiments in the 1940s. Much of Schaefer’s work during and after World War II 
centered on preventing aircraft from icing over in midair. So he designed a special homemade 
freezer to help him better understand the way ice forms inside clouds.

As the story goes, Schaefer entered the lab one day to discover that his freezer had been turned 
off. Hoping to cool it as quickly as possible, he placed a block of dry ice inside the box. A cloud 
of glistening ice crystals instantly formed in the air.

In 1946, Schaefer conducted the first true cloud seeding experiment by aircraft. He dropped 6 
pounds of crushed dry ice into a cloud in the Adirondack Mountains of New York. Almost 
immediately, snow began to fall.

In later experiments, Schaefer and other GE colleagues would discover that certain types of 
particles are more effective at helping ice crystals form. Silver iodide, they found, is one of the 
best.

Weather modification quickly captured the attention of the U.S. government. Over the next 
few decades, it would fund cloud seeding experiments on everything from drought 
management to military applications.

In 1947, Project Cirrus—a collaboration between GE and the U.S. military—made history as 
scientists’ first attempt to modify a hurricane. On Oct. 13, the operation dumped nearly 200 
pounds of dry ice into a cyclone that was churning off the coast of Florida.

In the 1960s and early 1970s, the federal government continued to experiment with the idea 
of cloud seeding hurricanes—but to little avail. Scientists eventually concluded that it wasn’t 
effective.

Beginning in the early 1960s, the Bureau of Reclamation funded a series of cloud seeding 
experiments known as Project Skywater, aimed at boosting water resources in the Western 
states. Reports suggest the project had mixed results.

In the late 1960s and early 1970s, the U.S. military even experimented with weather 
modification as a weapon of war. Operation Popeye, as it was dubbed, aimed to generate 
enough rainfall to disrupt enemy supply routes in Vietnam.

These efforts were short-lived. In 1977, an international treaty banned the use of weather 
modification for military purposes.

There was a common thread among many of these early experiments: Either they weren’t 
useful, they were quickly discontinued or scientists couldn’t tell how well they were working.

“There was a ton of research done in the ‘60s and ‘70s and ‘80s,” said French, the University 
of Wyoming scientist. “But all of that kind of came to a halt when I think there was a 
realization that agencies were spending millions upon millions of dollars year after year, and 
the results continued to sort of be inconclusive.”

The problem, he said, is that weather modification studies are really difficult to design and 
carry out.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 19 of 115



To prove that cloud seeding has a real effect, scientists have to demonstrate that whatever 
outcome it produces would not have happened without it. That requires setting up an 
experiment with at least two tests—one with cloud seeding and one without it—in the same 
location and under identical weather conditions.

Because the weather changes so quickly, that’s really difficult to do. And even when it’s 
possible, such studies require advanced monitoring technology, including high-tech radar. 
This kind of tech just wasn’t widely available until recently.

That means cloud seeding research has mainly relied on statistical studies instead. These 
studies measure the precipitation produced with cloud seeding in one location, and then they 
compare it to a different location where no cloud seeding took place.

The two settings aren’t identical in these kinds of studies. That means they don’t definitively 
prove that the precipitation produced by cloud seeding in one area would not have happened 
without it.

In 2003, the National Research Council published a comprehensive report on weather 
modification, highlighting these problems. It concluded that “there is still no convincing 
scientific proof of the efficacy of intentional weather modification efforts.”

Still, NRC recommended continued research on weather modification—in no small part 
because of its potential to address the West’s worsening water concerns.

That same hope has led state water agencies to keep funding cloud seeding operations, even 
after federal research efforts dropped off in the 1980s.

“I think there’s a pretty easy explanation for why it continued,” French said. “Cloud seeding is 
rooted in a pretty solid, well-understood physical basis of why it should work.”

S T A T E S E M B R A C E U N C E R T A I N T Y

Today, cloud seeding operations take place in at least eight states across the western
U.S., with varying levels of investment often shared among state agencies, utilities and private 
companies such as mountain resorts.

Cloud seeding programs in the upper Colorado River Basin, for instance, cost around
$1.5 million each year. The costs are split among state agencies in Colorado, Utah and 
Wyoming, where the majority of the operations take place, as well as Nevada, California, New 
Mexico and Arizona, which also stand to benefit from increased flow on the Colorado River.

In the last few years, cloud seeding has featured more prominently in drought management 
strategies across the West. The cost-sharing agreement in the Colorado River Basin was 
finalized in 2018, after states had spent years individually managing their cloud seeding 
operations. The agreement extends through the fall of 2026.

Since 2018, Wyoming and Colorado have strengthened their programs by investing in aerial 
cloud seeding operations—that’s seeding conducted by aircraft—in addition to the ground-
based machines they already have scattered throughout the mountains.

These are relatively inexpensive investments, all things considered—a low risk for a potentially 
high reward. But is it actually making a difference?

Most programs point to statistical studies to justify their efforts. These studies indicate that 
seeded clouds can produce around 5% to 15% more snowfall compared with areas where no 
cloud seeding took place.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 20 of 115



If that’s right, it puts the cost of cloud seeding at around a few dollars per acre-foot of water 
(equivalent to about half an Olympic-size swimming pool). That’s far less expensive than the 
cost of many other water-saving interventions, such as water conservation, recycling or 
desalination, which can cost hundreds of dollars per acre-foot.

Still, statistical studies don’t prove that cloud seeding is actually causing the heavier snowfall. 
That requires a more specialized scientific experiment—and only within the last few years 
have scientists finally been able to make that happen.

As recently as 2015, an extensive report prepared for the Bureau of Reclamation concluded 
that continued research is still warranted, but it noted that “the ‘proof’ the scientific 
community has been seeking for many decades is still not in hand.”

C U T T I N G - E D G E R E S E A R C H

On Jan. 19, 2017, a research plane roared through the gray skies above Idaho’s Payette River 
Basin, spewing silver iodide into the air. Assembled on the snow-capped peaks below, snow 
gauges and portable radar machines were poised to measure the snow that scientists hoped 
would follow.

It was the beginning of an experiment that would turn cloud seeding science on its head. 
Known as the SNOWIE project—short for “Seeded and Natural Orographic Wintertime 
Clouds”—the study provided some of the first quantitative evidence that cloud seeding 
actually works.

For three days that January, weather conditions would align to set up the perfect cloud 
seeding experiment. The sky was cold and cloudy—but no snow was falling. Over the course of 
these three days, the research plane would make more than a dozen trips over the 
mountaintops, releasing the same amount of silver iodide each time.

“For three days there was cloud cover, but no snowfall, no natural precipitation,” said Katja 
Friedrich, an atmospheric scientist at the University of Colorado, Boulder, who helped lead 
the SNOWIE project. “We put the seeding material into the supercooled liquid cloud, and we 
were able to generate precipitation. And that was very revolutionary.”

Thanks to high-tech radar equipment, the scientists were able to monitor the response of the 
clouds from the moment the silver iodide was released into the air until the moment snow 
began to fall. Over the course of those three days, the scientists estimated that around 286 
Olympic swimming pools’ worth of snow fell from the clouds they seeded.

Friedrich and her colleagues, including scientists from Colorado, Wyoming, Illinois and 
Idaho, published their findings in a groundbreaking paper last year in Proceedings of the 
National Academy of Sciences.

SNOWIE came in the midst of a kind of a renaissance for cloud seeding research in the United 
States. After years of relatively little scientific interest in weather modification, a series of 
projects over the last decade have paved the way for new insights.

The Wyoming Weather Modification Pilot Project, launched in 2008, was among the first of 
these. Funded by the state of Wyoming, the project aimed to evaluate the success of cloud 
seeding efforts spanning three target areas in mountain ranges across the state.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 21 of 115



“The results that came out on that—they were positive, but they weren’t sort of 100%fully 
conclusive,” said French.

But the project did highlight some major advancements in cloud seeding research over the last 
few decades, including improvements in radar and other observation tools, as well as major leaps 
in computer modeling.

With these new and improved technologies, the SNOWIE project catapulted cloud seeding 
research to the cutting edge of weather and climate science.

“The question is not anymore, ‘Does cloud seeding work?’” said Sarah Tessendorf, an 
atmospheric scientist with the National Center for Atmospheric Research and another scientist 
who worked on the SNOWIE project. “The questions really are, ‘How and when does it work? 
How effective is it under different conditions?’”

As droughts and warming squeeze water supplies in the American West, scientists are busy 
trying to answer those questions.

The SNOWIE project is still lending insight four years after it ended, Tessendorf said. Thanks to 
recent advancements in computer models, scientists can now simulate the effects of silver iodide 
on clouds—and they can use these simulations to conduct

controlled experiments, exactly the kinds of studies that cloud seeding research has been 
missing.

At the same time, the data collected by the SNOWIE project is helping scientists validate their 
models and make sure their simulations are realistic.

“I really feel like today, in this day and age, we are at a pretty exciting stage with the science 
behind cloud seeding, being that we’ve been able to collect some really great data over the last 
few years,” Tessendorf said. “And with the computer capabilities, there’s really a lot of promise to 
make advancements in this field.”

But experts also advise keeping expectations in check. The science so far suggests that cloud 
seeding is far from a silver bullet when it comes to dealing with drought.

For one thing, the SNOWIE experiments generated a fairly modest amount of snowfall.

“As we’ve shown in the paper, we cannot really generate an awful lot of snow,” Friedrich said. 
“We can generate snow, but not that we can really overcome a drought situation.”

Moreover, the SNOWIE project took place across a single, small slice of Idaho over the course of 
just three days.

With the momentum from the SNOWIE project still strong, scientists are hopeful they’ll be able 
to answer many of the biggest questions still remaining about how well cloud seeding works. But 
it may take time and much more research.

“The bigger question is does it ‘work’—and I put ‘work’ in quotes—on the scale of an entire 
season over an entire mountain range?” said French, the University of Wyoming scientist, who 
also contributed to the SNOWIE project.

“Can we really make an impactful difference? And in my mind we’re still quite a ways away from 
answering that question.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 22 of 115



Reprinted from E&E News with permission from POLITICO, LLC. Copyright
2021. E&E News provides essential news for energy and environment professionals.

A B O U T  T H E  A U T H O R ( S )

Chelsea Harvey

Recent Articles

Greenland's Lakes Are Vanishing during Winter as Well as Summer

Iconic Cherry Blossoms Are Blooming Earlier Than Ever in Washington, D.C.

Solar Geoengineering Should be Investigated, Scientists Say

E&E News

Recent Articles

Greenland's Lakes Are Vanishing during Winter as Well as Summer

What Is Wall Street's Role in Climate?

Iconic Cherry Blossoms Are Blooming Earlier Than Ever in Washington, D.C.

R E A D  T H I S  N E X T

P U B L I C  H E A L T H

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 23 of 115



This water meter can shut off leaks before they cause damage
By Michelle Cohan, CNN Business

Updated 12:34 PM ET, Wed March 17, 2021

�&11 %XVLQHVV� ² Israeli engineer Moshe Ravid came home one day to find his house flooded by a burst 
water pipe. Once he'd finished mopping up, he immediately went to work on a solution to prevent it from 
happening again.

Ravid created an artificial intelligence-powered water meter called WINT. The unit integrates into existing pipe 
systems, where it can learn the normal water flow, detect when things go wrong, and shut o� malfunctioning 
parts before any damage is done, according to Yaron Dycian, chief product and strategy o�cer at WINT Water 
Intelligence, a startup based in Tel Aviv.

WINT communicates with the cloud over a cellular network to deliver real-time analytics and alerts through its 
app.

Launched in 2012, the company's technology was originally designed for homes but has since started targeting 
companies that are looking not only to prevent damage but also to waste less water.

Nine years and many algorithms later, WINT is gaining recognition for its water saving tech. In 2019, the 
company expanded into the United States and Europe -- where the technology has already been adopted by 
companies such as Microsoft, HP and Mastercard.

The huge cost of water damage
According to the Association of British Insurers, water damage is one of the most common household 
property claims in the United Kingdom. On average, a burst pipe claim can cost nearly £9,000 ($13,000).

Other water-saving tech on the market include home monitors Flo by Moen and Belkin's Phyn Plus system. 
But Dycian says what makes WINT stand out is its ability to deal with large-scale o�ce buildings, factories and 
construction sites.

The damage caused by burst water pipes can cost businesses millions of dollars.
"It's quite amazing the amount of damage that water can cause in a building," he tells CNN Business. "A pipe 
breaks on the 20th floor, water trickles down and anything in its wake is really destroyed. We have customers 
who have lost tens of millions of dollars in a single event like this."

This problem was all too familiar for UK-based construction company Mace, which built London icons like The 
Shard and the London Eye.

"We've had a number of issues around leaking pipes in the final throes of construction that caused millions of 
pounds' worth of damage," says Paul Connolly, technical director for Mace.

Beyond the financial cost, Connolly says damage to reputation and rising insurance premiums forced the 
company to look for solutions. Today, WINT is incorporated into each new Mace construction site, which 
Connolly says has helped their bottom line and their sustainability goals.

WINT typically saves users 20 to 25% in water consumption, according to Dycian.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 24 of 115



LIVE TV

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 25 of 115



Saving water
With water supplies under pressure globally, it's more important than ever to cut down on consumption and 
wastage. Even a small or slow leak can waste a lot of water; a 3-millimeter crack in a pipe can waste about 946 
liters (250 gallons) of water per day, according to American Water Resources.

Dycian says 25% of water that enters any building is wasted through small things like a running toilet or a 
dripping faucet.

LIVE TV

"Here's water scarcity (and) here's a huge business problem that's causing massive damages -- and a 
solution that manages to solve both," he says. "That's exciting to me."

Correction: An earlier version of this article misidentified the founder of WINT.

Most stock quote data provided by BATS. Market indices are shown in real time, except for the DJIA, which is delayed
by two minutes. All times are ET. Disclaimer. Morningstar: Copyright 2018 Morningstar, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Factset: FactSet Research Systems Inc.2018. All rights reserved. Chicago Mercantile Association: Certain market data
is the property of Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. and its licensors. All rights reserved. Dow Jones: The Dow Jones
branded indices are proprietary to and are calculated, distributed and marketed by DJI Opco, a subsidiary of S&P Dow

Jones Indices LLC and have been licensed for use to S&P Opco, LLC and CNN. Standard & Poor's and S&P are
registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC and Dow Jones is a registered trademark of Dow
Jones Trademark Holdings LLC. All content of the Dow Jones branded indices Copyright S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC

2018 and/or its affiliates.

Terms of Use Privacy Policy Do Not Sell My Personal Information AdChoices About Us CNN Store Newsletters

Transcripts License Footage CNN Newsource Sitemap

© 2021 Cable News Network. A Warner Media Company. All Rights Reserved.
CNN Sans ™ & © 2016 Cable News Network.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 26 of 115



In US households alone, those average leaks account for
nearly 1 trillion gallons wasted each year.

Related Article: This 'snake robot' can fix
pipelines on the ocean floor

US

World

Politics

Business

Opinion

Health

Entertainment

Tech

Style

Travel

Sports

Videos

Audio

Coupons

Weather

Search CNN...

LIVE TV

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 27 of 115



More

FOLLOW CNN BUSINESS

LIVE TV

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 28 of 115



Drought May Lead to Elevated Levels of
Naturally Occurring Arsenic in Private
Domestic Wells

Jacks Pond in Hancock, New
Hampshire. Groundwater from this area supplies
nearby private wells. (Credit: Melissa Lombard, USGS.
Public domain.)

Release Date: MARCH 18, 2021

An estimated 4.1 million people in the lower 48 states are
potentially exposed to arsenic levels that exceed EPA’s drinking
water standards

A new U.S. Geological Survey study highlights the importance of homeowners
testing their well water to ensure it is safe for consumption, particularly in drought-
prone areas. The first-of-its-kind national-scale study of private well water, conducted
in collaboration with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, showed that
drought may lead to elevated levels of naturally occurring arsenic and that the longer
a drought lasts, the higher the probability of arsenic concentrations exceeding U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency’s standard for drinking water.

Researchers estimate
that during drought
conditions, 4.1 million
people in the lower 48
states who use private
domestic wells are
potentially exposed to
unsafe levels of arsenic.
This is an increase of
54% from the estimated
2.7 million people
exposed to unhealthy
arsenic levels in private
wells during normal, non-
drought conditions. 

Arsenic is a metal that
can occur naturally in
bedrock and sediments
around the world and is
commonly reported in drinking-water supply wells. However, chronic exposure to
arsenic from drinking water is associated with an increased risk of several types of
cancers, including bladder, lung, prostate and skin cancers. Other adverse effects
include developmental impairments, cardiovascular disease, adverse birth outcomes
and impacts on the immune and endocrine systems.

Contacts
Department of the
Interior, 
U.S. Geological
Survey
Office of
Communications and
Publishing 
12201 Sunrise Valley
Drive 
Reston, VA 20192 
United States 
Phone: 703-648-4460

Jason Burton
3XElLF�$IIDLUs
6SeFLDlLsW
Eastern States Office of
Communications
Email:
jburton@usgs.gov
Phone: 678-924-6692

Melissa A Lombard
+\GUoloJLsW
New England Water
Science Center
Email:
mlombard@usgs.gov
Phone: 603-226-7816

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 29 of 115



The study’s findings can help public health officials and emergency managers notify well owners in areas 
potentially affected and further refine their strategies for addressing the issue. The EPA regulates public water 
supplies, but maintenance, testing and treatment of private water supplies are the responsibility of the 
homeowner. Private well owners can work with their local and state officials to determine the best way to test 
and, if necessary, treat their water supply.

“The population potentially exposed to arsenic levels exceeding the EPA standard during simulated drought 
conditions amounts to roughly one-tenth of the estimated 37.2 to 43.2 million people in the conterminous U.S. 
who use domestic wells for household water supply,” said Melissa Lombard, a USGS hydrologist and lead 
author of this study.

This is the first national-scale study to assess the potential impact of drought on arsenic levels in private 
domestic wells. It is also the first to estimate the population of private well users who are potentially exposed 
during droughts to arsenic levels above EPA’s limits, which are intended to protect human health.

The study also estimated that 2.7 million people are exposed to elevated arsenic levels above EPA standards 
under normal conditions. This is an increase from a 2017 study by the USGS and CDC that estimated 2.1 
million people were exposed to elevated arsenic levels. The increase reflects new estimates of well locations 
and the population reliant on private wells.

The new study, which did not examine private domestic wells in Alaska or Hawaii, includes maps showing 
where simulated drought conditions are likely to increase the probability of high arsenic levels and the number 
of people potentially exposed. 

The states with the largest populations facing elevated arsenic levels in private domestic well water during the 
simulated drought conditions are Ohio (approximately 374,000 people), Michigan (320,000 people), Indiana 
(267,000 people), Texas
(200,000 people) and California (196,000 people).

Even without drought conditions, relatively large numbers of people are estimated to be exposed to elevated 
arsenic levels in private domestic well water. Under normal conditions, the largest populations potentially 
exposed to high levels of arsenic are in Ohio (approximately 241,000 people), Michigan (226,000 people), 
Indiana (162,000 people), California (157,000 people) and Maine (121,000 people).

This study is the first to explore the potential large-scale impact of drought on naturally occurring arsenic in 
private drinking water wells,” said Lombard. “While the results suggest that drought will have a negative 
impact, the study cannot predict what might happen at an individual well, further highlighting the importance of 
testing.”

The occurrence of arsenic in groundwater is due to a variety of complex interactions, added Lombard. The 
reasons for the increase in arsenic during drought and as drought persists could vary depending on changes 
to groundwater flow, alterations in water chemistry and other factors.

Further exacerbating these challenges, climate models predict increasing temperatures and decreasing 
precipitation in portions of North America during the 21st century. USGS findings suggest that as the duration 
of drought increases, the probability of arsenic concentrations greater than EPA’s drinking water standard will 
also increase.

This study used an existing USGS statistical model that predicts the probability for elevated arsenic 
concentrations in domestic well water. In the new research, scientists used the model to simulate drought 
conditions by changing precipitation and groundwater levels. The researchers also used data from the drought 
of 2012, one of the worst on record in the U.S., to investigate how drought duration can impact arsenic levels.

Read the study “Assessing the Impact of Drought on Arsenic Exposure from Private Domestic Wells in the 
Conterminous United States” published in Environmental Science and Technology at https://pubs.acs.org/doi/
full/10.1021/acs.est.9b05835.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 30 of 115



View from Hedgehog Hill in Deering, New Hampshire. Groundwater from this area
supplies nearby private wells. (Credit: Melissa Lombard, USGS. Public domain.)

View from Thumb Mountain in Hancock, New Hampshire. Groundwater from this
area supplies nearby private wells. (Credit: Melissa Lombard, USGS. Public
domain.)

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 31 of 115



March 18, 2021 08:35 AM Eastern Daylight Time

HAMILTON, N.J.--(BUSINESS WIRE)--Water utilities have been chronically underfunded for decades and an estimate
from the American Water Works Association found that a $1 trillion investment is needed to meet the drinking water
system needs in the U.S. To better understand how this industry is leveraging digital capabilities to its benefit in order to
address these historical challenges, Dodge Data & Analytics and partner Bentley launched a new study and report titled,
The Digital Capabilities of US Water Utilities SmartMarket Brief, which established a benchmark for municipal water
systems and the readiness of this market for digital transformation. The findings showed that the ability to gather, share
and analyze data and other digital resources are essential to improving the effectiveness of operations and maintenance,
capital planning, and emergency preparedness and will play a significant role in digital transformation and their future
capabilities.

While water utilities clearly understand the value of data, and 87% report that they gather data digitally, 50% of all
respondents believe that they are gathering less than half of the data available to them. In addition, two common issues
prevent them from conducting their work efficiently across their organizations:

90% say that data is either isolated in disconnected IT systems, spreadsheets or paper
records, which prevents effective operations and maintenance at their organization on
occasion (45% say frequently)

68% report that lack of visibility across stakeholders interferes with effective capital
planning on occasion (43% say frequently)

Nearly three quarters report that they are in the process of digital transformation at their organization, demonstrating a
commitment to improving their digital capabilities. However, when it comes to how engaged they are with eight different
types of digital capabilities, the findings indicate that they are still in the early stages of that process.

The strongest scores were tied to effective management and sharing of data, but even in
these categories, only 12% or fewer report very good to excellent capabilities, around

1eZ�5eSoUW�6KoZs�8�6��:DWeU�8WLlLWLes�6eFWoU�6WLll�LQ�(DUl\�6WDJes�oI
'LJLWDl�7UDQsIoUPDWLoQ

Findings highlight how data and technology resources will serve as critical assets to
improve future efficiencies and operational performance.

While water utilities clearly understand the value of data, and 87% report that they gather data digitally, 50% of all

By clicking “Accept All Cookies”, you agree to the storing of cookies on your device
to enhance site navigation, analyze site usage, and assist in our marketing efforts.
CooNLe�3olLF\��KWWSs���seUYLFes�EXsLQessZLUe�FoP�FooNLe�SolLF\�

CooNLes�6eWWLQJs  

$FFeSW�$ll�CooNLes

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 32 of 115



two-thirds have moderate to good capabilities, and between one-quarter and one-third
still have limited to no capabilities.

Gathering information in real-time whether directly from the assets or from reality capture
tools like drones and laser scanning is a particular challenge, with around half reporting
that they have no or limited capabilities in these areas.

Only about 4% report that they have digital twins in place (i.e., a digital version of the
asset with real-time data that can be used for planning and operational purposes).

“In the four decades that we have been providing software-based applications and guidance for water professionals, a lot
has changed. What hasn’t changed is this: the utilities that leverage their technology best will serve their customers best,”
says Gregg Herrin, Vice President, water infrastructure at Bentley Systems.

“Openness has been a driving focus for Bentley for many years, which leads to flexibility, interoperability and scalability.
That helps make the technology accessible to the people who need it, combining information from systems like GIS,
SCADA, simulation tools, and beyond to create, extend, and apply digital twins to help make better decisions throughout
the organization.”

To achieve their digital priorities and future potential, water utilities need to overcome several challenges. While issues
such as data quality and quantity are a concern for 80% of respondents, nearly as many are concerned about the lack of
internal staff with the necessary digital skills (74%) and resistance to change (70%). In addition, when asked to consider
the top means of advancing their digital capabilities, respondents most frequently rank increasing the skills of their staff
and improving their understanding of the value of digital capabilities among their top three. Better technology is a distant
fourth, suggesting that improvement in these areas is focused more on people than on making big technology investments
at this time.

“We find consistently in our research that people are at the heart of a successful adoption of new technology,” says Steve
Jones, Senior Director of Industry Insights for Dodge Data & Analytics. “The technology is the tool, but as the case study
featured in the SmartMarket Brief reveals, the real value comes from the insights it provides to help them to do their work
more effectively.”

The Digital Capabilities of US Water Utilities SmartMarket Brief includes more detailed examination of the current status of
many operations and maintenance, capital planning and emergency preparedness and response activities and functions,
and helps to benchmark the industry’s progress toward its digital future. The report is available for free download at:
https://www.construction.com/toolkit/reports/Digital-Capabilities-of-US-Water-Utilities

$EoXW�'oGJe�'DWD�	�$QDl\WLFs� Dodge Data & Analytics is North America’s leading provider of commercial construction
project data, market forecasting & analytics services and workflow integration solutions for the construction industry.
Building product manufacturers, architects, engineers, contractors, and service providers leverage Dodge to identify and
pursue unseen growth opportunities that help them grow their business. On a local, regional or national level, Dodge
empowers its customers to better understand their markets, uncover key relationships, size growth opportunities, and
pursue specific sales opportunities with success. The company’s construction project information is the most
comprehensive and verified in the industry. Dodge is leveraging its more than 125-year-old legacy of continuous innovation
to help the industry meet the building challenges of the future. Learn more at www.construction.com.

$EoXW�%eQWle\�

Bentley Systems (Nasdaq: BSY) is the infrastructure engineering software company. We provide innovative software to
advance the world’s infrastructure – sustaining both the global economy and environment. Our industry-leading software
solutions are used by professionals, and organizations of every size, for the design, construction, and operations of roads
and bridges, rail and transit, water and wastewater, public works and utilities, buildings and campuses, and industrial
facilities. Our offerings include MicroStation-based applications for modeling and simulation, ProjectWise for project

two-thirds have moderate to good capabilities, and between one-quarter and one-third

many operations and maintenance, capital planning and emergency preparedness and response activities and functions,many operations and maintenance, capital planning and emergency preparedness and response activities and functions,
and helps to benchmark the industry’s progress toward its digital future. The report is available for free download at:

By clicking “Accept All Cookies”, you agree to the storing of cookies on your device
to enhance site navigation, analyze site usage, and assist in our marketing efforts.
CooNLe�3olLF\��KWWSs���seUYLFes�EXsLQessZLUe�FoP�FooNLe�SolLF\�

CooNLes�6eWWLQJs  

$FFeSW�$ll�CooNLes

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 33 of 115



delivery, AssetWise for asset and network performance, and the iTwin platform for infrastructure digital twins. Bentley
Systems employs more than 4,000 colleagues and generates annualized revenues of more than $800 million in 172
countries. www.bentley.com

Contacts
0eGLD�CoQWDFWs��
Christine Byrne | Bentley Systems | +1 203 805 0432, Christine.Byrne@bentley.com and  
Nicole Sullivan | AFFECT Public Relations & Social Media | +1-212-398-9680,
nsullivan@affectstrategies.com

Tweets by @DodgeData

delivery, AssetWise for asset and network performance, and the iTwin platform for infrastructure digital twins. Bentley
Systems employs more than 4,000 colleagues and generates annualized revenues of more than $800 million in 172

By clicking “Accept All Cookies”, you agree to the storing of cookies on your device
to enhance site navigation, analyze site usage, and assist in our marketing efforts.
CooNLe�3olLF\��KWWSs���seUYLFes�EXsLQessZLUe�FoP�FooNLe�SolLF\�

CooNLes�6eWWLQJs  

$FFeSW�$ll�CooNLes

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 34 of 115



At numerous points along the Truckee River’s 125 mile path from Lake Tahoe to Pyramid Lake, water is 
diverted from the river. A serpentine network of ditches, canals, and natural creeks wind through highly 
developed areas of Reno and Sparks before  owing into the Truckee laden with a complex mix of 
pollutants. Click on the colored areas in the interactive map below for more detailed information. This map 
is not an exhaustive visualization of NPS pollution sources for the Truckee River, merely a rendering of 
major sources. Use the scroll wheel on your mouse or the controls at the top left to explore the Truckee 
River watershed.

Nonpoint Source Pollution: killing the Truckee
River by degrees
Leading cause of water pollution in Nevada poses complex problem and 
solution
By Richard Bednarski - March 18, 2021

Foamy effluent from the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility discharges into Steamboat Creek 

just

before it enters the Truckee River on the eastern side of the valley - photo: Brian Bahouth/the Ally

As more people move into the Truckee River watershed, demand for water is increasing while more 
and more nonpoint source (NPS) pollution is making its way to the river. Nearly half a million people 
get their water from the Truckee River, and nonpoint source pollution threatens the quality of not 
just the drinking water, but the greater ecosystem of the entire watershed.

Nonpoint source contaminants are the largest single source of water pollution in Nevada and across 
the nation.  Here in the Truckee Meadows, things such as fertilizers, herbicides, insecticides, motor 
oil, engine coolant, septic tanks, chemical runo , silt from ̀ erosion, and e. Coli bacteria, to list a few, 
all aect the overall quality ̀ of ground, surface, and ultimately, drinking water. 

NPS pollution accumulates in the Truckee River like a snowball rolling downhill, growing with each 
rotation. 

“Water owing ̀ over the lands, not coming directly out of a pipe, is making its way into our waterways,” 
explains Birgit Widegren, the nonpoint source branch manager with the Nevada Division of 

Environmental Protection (NDEP), “either from Csltosoerm drain inlets, or directly discharged into the waterways.” 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 35 of 115



In 1985 the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) de�ned nonpoint source pollution as
“runo�, precipitation, atmospheric deposition, drainage, seepage or hydrologic modi�cation.” 

As water �ows over the ground it dissolves and collects chemicals, solids, and other matter and 
�ushes it into the watershed. Ultimately, this pollution gets deposited into lakes and rivers—and our 
water supply.

One of the most prevalent sources of NPS pollution in Reno comes from grass and lawns. Every year, 
potable water is sprayed through dry desert air onto untold tonnage of fertilizer and other chemicals 
spread across the region on decorative turf. 

“If you’re looking in a typical neighborhood, it could be over-fertilization [and] over watering,” said 
Widegren. This introduces nitrogen, phosphorus, and other chemicals into the waterways that 
compound in terminal sources, which can lead to toxic algae blooms.

Most storm drains in Reno enter the Truckee River untreated. The pipe pictured here channels runoff from a

neighborhood adjacent to the river near downtown Reno. This pipe is tufted with bright green grass, evidence 

that plenty of fertilizer and other street runoff are making their way to the river – photo: Brian Bahouth/the 

Ally

When nitrogen levels increase, we start to see overstimulation of aquatic vegetation. As these 
nutrients are elevated in the watershed there is an increase in the likelihood of algae blooms. Though 
rare in the Truckee River watershed, algae blooms steal oxygen and other nutrients from the water. 

“And that’s where you actually get a toxic algae that could hurt your pet or make people sick,”

explained Widegren “[but we] don’t really have that in this area.” 

There have been recent algae blooms in Red Lake and Indian Creek near Markleeville, and in Pyramid 
Lake. 

Where is Pyramid Lake? The End of the Line, the Catchall

“In my young life, it’s been really important for me to educate people upstream, especially within the 
cities of Reno and Sparks,” explained Autumn Harry, a member of the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe. 

Her father, the late Norm Harry, was a local advocate for water quality. He played a pivotal role in the 
adoption of the Truckee River Operating Agreement. This agreement “brought an end to historic 
uncertainty between Nevada and California over distribution of the river’s water, allocating 90 percent to 
Nevada,” according to the Truckee Meadows Water Authority website. 

Along its 125-mile route, a signi�cant amount of water is still diverted from the river for domestic, 
industrial, and agricultural use. A major diversion is made at the Derby Dam near Pyramid Lake, where 
water �ows into the Truckee Canal for agriculture and potentially domestic use in far-ung Fernley and ̀
Fallon. 

The tribe holds the oldest water rights on the river, and the Truckee River  Agreement ensures Pyramid 
Lake gets a carefully proscribed amount of water to protect both the endangered cui-ui and Lahanton 
cutthroat trout.  But the impact of regional development on water quality in the river is a worsening 
problem. 

“I’m seeing that there is a lot of privilege, just to be able to live within Lake Tahoe. You can use that water, 
but you don’t have to know where it’s going, because it doesn’t a ect those people up there, you know, 
but we’re a ected downstream,” elaborated Harry. 

Harry urges communities upstream to educate themselves about the unique watershed – to truly know 
where water comes from and where it goes when it leaves their homes. 

“Because when I talk to people there’s still so many people who haven’t even heard of Pyramid Lake,” she 
said. “Even when people are like, where are you from? And I said, I’m from Pyramid Lake, and they’re like, 
Where’s that? Well, it’s the terminal end of this watershed that you’re living on.” 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 36 of 115



Using direct community action, Harry and her mother, Beverly have organized four river cleanups in 
the past couple of months. She said volunteers have focused on the east end of the valley. Most of the 
trash they have collected was near the low water level line in the river.

“Once that snow melts,” Harry said “those river levels are going to come up.” 

In just six weeks, Harry and volunteers collected and disposed of at least 320 cubic yards of trash, all 
paid for through donations. All this trash would have been ushed ̀ by the spring thaw and carried 
downstream. 

Close

Effluent from the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility mingles with the polluted waters of 

Steamboat Creek on the east side of the Truckee Meadows just before joining the Truckee River. The spray 

nozzles are

spraying water meant to suppress foam – photo: Brian Bahouth/the Ally

Harry explained the tribal community has traditionally relied on sh ̀ for survival. And �shing remains 
a big tourist attraction on Pyramid Lake, but the tribe is concerned about desecration of the sh ̀
through nonpoint source pollution.

“If there’s an increase in pollution coming down the river, that could aect the ̀ amount of nitrogen 
and phosphorus, which could eventually aect the ̀ health of the sh. ̀ It’s become part of our cultural 
identity,” Harry said. “There’s all these factors that go into the protection of the sh ̀ because those 
sh ̀ are such a big part of our identity as people.” 

“Being at the bottom of the watershed, we are an important stakeholder,” said Kameron Morgan, 
water quality manager for the Natural ResourcesC lDoseepartment with the Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Tribe. “Part of my job is to be a partner to the state, the federal government, to Reno and Sparks and 
work with those partners to ensure that their project is not going to have any major impacts on us 
downstream.”

According to Morgan, there was an algae bloom in Pyramid Lake last summer. This bloom prompted 
Morgan and his team to go out and collect samples to determine if any cyanobacteria, a type of 
blue-green algae that produces cyanotoxins, were present. In addition to test strips, small samples 
were sent to a lab in California for additional analysis. 

Free pet bags on the Hunter Creek trail. When pet owners do not pick up animal waste, it can pollute the 

watershed with nitrogen, e. Coli bacteria, and other contaminants – photo: Richard Bednarski

Initially, the test came back negative for the toxic bacteria. 

“About a week, maybe ten days later, there was a huge algae bloom on the surface of the lake,” 
Morgan said.

This prompted Morgan and his team to resample the algae. The test strips revealed the presence of 
deadly cyanotoxins. 

The levels were found to be above the threshold set by the World Health Organization (WHO),  prompting Morgan 

to close public access to the lake. Pyramid Lake remained closed until

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 37 of 115



samples revealed a reduced amount of cyanotoxins, as these present the greatest threat to human 
and animal health.

“Because Pyramid Lake is at the bottom of a terminal watershed, everything ends up in the lake from 
upstream areas,” Morgan explained. This results in some pollutants never leaving the lake, and an 
increase in total dissolved solids (TDS). These diverse particles suspended in the water directly impact 
the endangered cui-ui sh, ̀ a species located only in Pyramid Lake.  

The Derby Dam was built in 1903. gates on the left of center direct water to Pyramid Lake. Gates to the right 

of center direct water into the Truckee Canal. Since the diversion began, Pyramid Lake level has dropped 

some 80 feet, and the adjacent Winnemucca Lake is dry – photo: Brian Bahouth/The Ally

According to US Census data, the Washoe County population has increased from roughly

422,000 in 2010 to 486,000 in 2020, which is cause for concern for Morgan. He cited the industrial 
development happening in the USA Parkway areClao saes a threat to water quality. While the 
chemical and industrial plants in this area do not necessarily dump anything into the water, “they 
have air emissions that have the potential to be transported to the water through atmospheric 
deposition,” said Morgan.

Pyramid Lake water quality has been monitored extensively since the early 1980s. Monthly water 
samples from the river as it enters the Pyramid Lake Reservation have been collected for over 20 
years. “One parameter that is consistently impaired is temperature,” explained Morgan.

Urban development is increasing upstream from Pyramid Lake resulting in more and more 
impervious surfaces. Cement and asphalt lead to faster runo and ̀ elevated stormwater 
temperatures. As river water warms, dissolved oxygen decreases, causing potential problems for �sh. 

“Our temperature standard was actually developed to protect the propagation of Lahontan cutthroat 
trout,” said Morgan. 

The trout species require cooler water temperatures during the spawning season and into the 
summer, but the Truckee River has been consistently warmer over the past several years. 

Another source of NPS pollution Morgan identied ̀ is the presence of mercury from the legacy mining 
era below Virginia City around Little Washoe Lake. “That basically discharges into Steamboat creek and 
Steamboat leads to the Truckee river. One of our concerns is the development that is going on in the 
South Meadows because that area has ooded ̀ with waters containing mercury,” Morgan said. 

This is where the North Truckee Drain enters the Truckee River in Sparks, Nevada. In late February, the ditch 

is not flowing, but when it does, it delivers a chocolate brown stream into the Truckee after flowing through 

densely developed areas. The remnants of past years can be seen in the significant silt deposit pictured here – 

photo: Brian Bahouth/the Ally

Residential developments in this area have stirred up this sediment and created the possibility of 
redistributing the mercury downstream. Morgan is concerned about this mercury ending up in Pyramid 
Lake.

“Especially if it’s redistributed into a wetland-type environment,” Morgan explained “that’s when 
mercury can change into methyl-mercury and that’s when it’s bioavailable to the �sh.” 

Morgan is currently working with the Bureau of Reclamation to remove a sediment island that has 
formed above Marble Blu Dam. This island ̀ has blocked sh ̀ passage. Working with the

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 38 of 115



Close

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 39 of 115



Bureau of Reclamation on this ongoing project, Morgan said “they found elevated levels of 
mercury in all their samples.” 

Still in the early stages of the project, Morgan did not say what the next steps were. 

Solutions

Close

“The leverage we have is our water quality standards,” said Morgan. “This helps keep developers 
upstream from creating any sort of development that aects the ̀ water quality. They have to ensure 
that their discharge is not going to violate our water quality standards downstream.” 

The Truckee River flows through downtown Reno and a whitewater park where many swim and kayak 

during warmer months- photo: Richard Bednarski

As more commercial and residential development is approved in the Truckee River watershed, 
Morgan wants the community to construct low-impact projects. Things like stormwater basins slow 
down water and better enable pollution to be �ltered out before it enters the watershed. He also 
described the importance of stream bu�ers, essentially a natural area which keeps development 
away from the edge of the river. 

Nonpoint Source Pollution is Complex and Ubiquitous

Nonpoint source pollution is a complex issue with many stakeholders and community groups 
working together to mitigate the problem.  

“As long as we prevent the nonpoint source pollution,” said Widegren “it’s a high quality water source.”

One way NDEP is addressing NPS pollution is by studying the individual watersheds within the Truckee 
River basin. These are smaller watersheds composed of one or two tributaries that

ow ̀ into the river. Creeks such as Hunter Creek, Chalk Creek, and Peavine Creek all move water and 
pollution into the Truckee Meadows. By studying these tiny watersheds, NDEP and river advocacy 
groups can identify key pollutants and zero in on the problems. 

The Truckee River just east of downtown Reno, Nevada – photo: Richard Bednarski/the Ally.

Nonpoint source pollution comes from a dizzying number of sources, large and small, so solving the 
problem requires an equal number of preventive steps.

“Every single person in the Truckee Meadows can help prevent nonpoint source pollution,” believes 
Widegren. 

“The best solutions include all of the collaboration between these di�erent groups, whether they’re 
governmental, or nonpro�t, to implement the plan and implement the projects that

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 40 of 115



Close

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 41 of 115



Close

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 42 of 115



are identi. ed and prioritized through the plan,” said Widegren. 

Local nonpro. t organizations such as Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful and Sierra Nevada

Journeys are working to educate the public about nonpoint source pollution. 

The mission of Sierra Nevada Journeys is to “deliver innovative outdoor, science-based

education programs for youth to develop critical thinking skills and to inspire natural resource

stewardships.” The group has received several NDEP grants and works with school-aged

children. They take them into the environment to teach them about the Truckee River

watershed. On these excursions, children learn about water quality and what they do has a

direct impact on the environment. 

“A lot of people still mistakenly think that our storm drains are linked to the wastewater

treatment system,” said Widegren. “In fact, they are not and anything that goes down the

storm drain will eventually . nd its way into the Truckee River.” 

Bird feces make the island in Virginia Lake a major source of pollution in the Truckee River watershed – photo:

Brian Bahouth/the Ally

Close

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 43 of 115



“Everybody lives downstream from somebody,” explained Brian Be. ort, the president of the

Toiyabe Chapter of the Sierra Club. 

Echoing Kameron Morgan’s hope for more equitable and natural-focused construction

upstream, Be. ort believes individual community members can be part of the solution to

reduce runo.  and NPS pollution. 

“We need more green infrastructure,” he said. Things like natural landscapes, such as rain

gardens and bioswales; channels designed to collect and move stormwater while also

removing debris and pollution. While there has been some local interest in permeable

pavement, Be. ort said the biggest impact comes from creating green spaces around streets,

parking lots, and developed areas. 

“Use nature and nature’s tools,” explained Be�ort “to remove pollution.” He understands this

is a broad issue not easily solved but that it “starts with each of us and that we look at our

own property.” 

Be�ort feels that the biggest impact an individual can have in addressing NPS pollution is to

reduce the use of toxic lawn chemicals like Roundup. 

“Most people don’t think when they �ush their toilet, take a shower, or water their lawn,

where the water goes,” Kameron Morgan said “most watersheds end in the ocean, whereas

the Truckee River ends up in Pyramid Lake.”

“I really want upstream communities to know where their water comes from,” said Autumn

Harry. 

She hopes people can start to “know the traditional territories that you’re living on. I get that

because of all of these di�erent industries that are coming into northern Nevada like Tesla

and Panasonic, it’s creating jobs and causing people to move here. But when people are

moving here from other states or other places, they’re not realizing their own impact in

moving to a place that’s so arid.”

Richard Bednarski is a freelance photo journalist and graduate journalism student at UNR. He

focuses on crafting solutions and advocacy-based stories that move the community

forward. Support his work in the Ally.

Close

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 44 of 115



NOAA warns of water use cutb
�ires and low levels in reservoir
amid signi�icant drought
BY CELINE CASTRONUOVO - 03/19/21 11:19 AM EDT

Dry weather is likely to persist in the U.S. in the coming months, with the possibility of water use 
cutbacks in California and the Southwest as more than half of the country experiences moderate to 
severe drought conditions, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) said 
Thursday. 
NOAA’s Spring Outlook report stated that the U.S. could face the most signi�icant spring drought since 
2013, with the potential to impact roughly 74 million people across the country.
The federal weather agency said that the drought conditions stretching from the Paci�ic Coast to the 
Great Plains and upper Midwest have largely been spurred by the drier weather in the Southwest and a 
failed 2020 summer monsoon season. 
NOAA predicts that warmer-than-average temperatures this spring and low soil moisture will cause 
drought conditions to further expand into the southern and central Great Plains and southern Florida. 
Mary Erickson, deputy director of NOAA’s National Weather Service, said in a statement along with 
Thursday’s report that the Southwest, “which is already experiencing widespread severe to 
exceptional drought, will remain the hardest hit region in the U.S., and water supply will continue to be 
a concern this spring in these drought-affected areas.” 
"This is a major change from recent years where millions were impacted by severe �looding,” she 
added.
“Nonetheless, NOAA's forecasts and outlooks will continue to serve as a resource for emergency managers and 
community decision-makers as they navigate all potential extreme seasonal weather and water events."

The weather conditions going into April, May and June have prompted concerns from weather service and agriculture 
o
wild

NOAA warns of water use cutbacks, fires and low…

The chances of wild�ires come after the country faced an unprecedented 2020 season of burning throughout the 
West, though UCLA climate scientist Daniel Swain told The Associated Press Thursday that wild�ires may not be as 
bad this year with so much vegetation already burned and the drought slowing regrowth. 

 showed almost 66 percent of the U.S.
in abnormally dry conditions, which the AP noted is the highest mid-March level recorded since 2002. 

With the more intense droughts, however, NOAA on Thursday said there will be limited moderate �looding this spring, 
with no areas having greater than a 50 percent chance of major �looding for the �irst time since 2018.

TAGS NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE CALIFORNIA SOUTHWEST DROUGHT WILDFIRES FLOODING 
MIDWEST

Thursday’s national Drought Monitor

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 45 of 115



MATT SIMON SCIENCE 03.19.2021 07:00 AM

Why Covering Canals With Solar Panels Is a Power
Move
Covering waterways would, in a sense, make solar panels water-cooled, boosting their
efficiency.

PEANUT BUT TER AND  jelly. Hall & Oates. Now there’s a duo that could literally and figuratively be even more powerful:

solar panels and canals. What if instead of leaving canals open, letting the sun evaporate the water away, we covered

PHOTOGRAPH: DIANE MILLER/GETTY IMAGES

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 46 of 115



them with panels that would both shade the precious liquid and hoover up solar energy? Maybe humanity can go for

that.

Scientists in California just ran the numbers on what would happen if their state slapped solar panels on 4,000 miles of

its canals, including the major California Aqueduct, and the results point to a potentially beautiful partnership. Their

feasibility study, published in the journal Nature Sustainability, finds that if applied statewide, the panels would save 63

billion gallons of water from evaporating each year. At the same time, solar panels across California’s exposed canals

would provide 13 gigawatts of renewable power annually, about half of the new capacity the state needs to meet its

decarbonization goals by the year 2030.

California’s water conveyance system is the world’s largest, serving 35 million people and 5.7 million acres of farmland.

Seventy-five percent of available water is in the northern third of the state, while the bottom two-thirds of the state

accounts for 80 percent of urban and agricultural demand. Shuttling all that water around requires pumps to make it

flow uphill; accordingly, the water system is the state’s largest single consumer of electricity.

Solar-paneling canals would not only produce renewable energy for use across the state, it would run the water system

itself. “By covering canals with solar panels, we can reduce evaporation and avoid disturbing natural and working lands,

while providing renewable energy and other co-benefits,” says environmental engineer Brandi McKuin of the University

of California, Merced, and the University of California, Santa Cruz, lead author on the paper.

Ironically enough, the performance of solar panels falls as temperatures rise. In a solar cell, photons from the sun knock

electrons out of atoms, producing an electric current. When a panel gets too hot, that puts electrons into an already

excited state, so they don’t create as much energy when dislodged by photons. Spanning panels over canals would, in a

sense, make them water-cooled, boosting their efficiency. “And additionally,” McKuin adds, “shade from the panels

mitigates aquatic weed growth, which is a major canal maintenance issue.”

The WIRED Guide to Climate Change

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 47 of 115



The world is getting warmer, the weather is getting worse. Here's everything you need to know about what humans can do to stop

wrecking the planet.

BY KATIE M. PALMER AND MATT SIMON

The engineering wouldn’t be all that complicated, either. You could throw a steel truss over a canal and cover it with

panels. India has actually been experimenting with solar canals like this, and it has commissioned one 25-mile-long

stretch for an estimated cost of $14 million.

To be clear, this new paper is not a full-throated pitch to state officials to immediately cover all canals with solar panels.

“Our paper is not a detailed engineering design or conceptual design—it's a feasibility study, a proof of concept for taking

it to the next phase of investing in a demonstration project,” says engineer Roger Bales of the University of California,

Merced. “But I think the amount of electricity could be significant, both statewide and locally.”

Bales and McKuin calculated all of this by incorporating a variety of models. Evaporation rates, for instance, came from

hydrological models. They folded in climate models, too, to predict how the state will warm over the coming years. They

got so granular that they also calculated how the cooling effect of the canal water would improve the panels’ generating

efficiency.

Ultimately, they landed on a potential annual savings of 63 billion gallons of water across California. But they also took

into account the human benefits of such a project, which are more nebulous. For example, many farmers pump their

water with diesel generators. If solar panels provided that energy instead, that could cut local emissions, thus improving

air quality. “You can look at the economic costs, but you can also look at the social benefit,” says Bales.

An added social benefit could be that by situating the panels over canals, the state wouldn’t have to convert croplands or

disrupt natural habitats to set up sprawling solar farms—a canal is already on long-disturbed land. Think about how

you’d install a solar array in your own home. “I can put it on my roof, rather than mowing down the yard next to my

house and putting panels there,” says Michael Kiparsky, director of the Wheeler Water Institute at the UC Berkeley School

of Law. “You're taking something that's already been altered by human activity and doubling up on the benefits it

provides. That's the profound piece.”

Solar-paneling California's canals could also prepare the state for the widespread adoption of electric cars. The California

Aqueduct runs right along Interstate 5, the major artery carrying traffic between the northern and southern halves of the

state. Where there are now gas stations dotted along the way, in the future there might be car-charging stations that draw

power from the nearby aqueduct.

The plan could also help California prepare for future climate change. “Droughts are part of our history and part of our

future,” says Kiparsky. “It's just that under climate change, they're projected to become both more frequent and more

severe.” As the state gets hotter, more and more water will evaporate away from its canals, which the panels can help

attenuate.

While the researchers focused on California in this study, this kind of modeling “could easily be applied to other

locations,” McKuin says. “In water-stressed regions of the world with open canals, it makes a lot of sense to consider this.”

For instance, that might include California’s neighbors, like the increasingly molten-hot southwestern states and Texas,

which just showed it needs to overhaul its energy system anyway.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 48 of 115



There are, of course, some challenges when mulling such a large infrastructure project. For instance, these researchers

didn’t take into account the potential effects on wildlife—covering canals might cut off access for waterbirds who depend

on it for habitat, especially considering that California has lost more than 90 percent of its wetlands. Also, situating solar

panels and their trusses over water could lead to rusting of equipment, raising maintenance costs. And then there’s the

cost of solar-paneling canals on a wide scale. (The study didn’t suggest an overall price tag. McKuin says it will be hard to

estimate without a demonstration project first, and it would depend on variables like which sites are chosen for

development.)

But then again, this isn’t an all-or-nothing idea: Some canals here and there could be converted, while others remain

open. While that might not provide the full boost of saving 63 billion gallons of water each year, it would still provide

power to water pumps and local car-charging stations, all while reducing evaporation at a smaller scale. “With or

without climate change, the supply of water in California is tightening, and the demand for water in California is

increasing,” says Kiparsky. “And those two facts together mean that, indeed, any water savings is good, and it's welcome.”

More Great WIRED Stories

�  The latest on tech, science, and more: Get our newsletters!

The buzzy, chatty, out-of-control rise of Clubhouse

How to find a vaccine appointment and what to expect

Can alien smog lead us to extraterrestrial civilizations?

Netflix's password-sharing crackdown has a silver lining

OOO: Help! How do I find a work wife?

�  WIRED Games: Get the latest tips, reviews, and more

� Want the best tools to get healthy? Check out our Gear team’s picks for the best fitness trackers, running

gear (including shoes and socks), and best headphones

Matt Simon is a science journalist at WIRED, where he covers biology, robotics, cannabis, and the environment. He’s also the author of

Plight of the Living Dead: What Real-Life Zombies Reveal About Our World—And Ourselves, and The Wasp That Brainwashed the

Caterpillar, which won an Alex Award.

STAFF WRITER

Featured Video

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 49 of 115



A $28K donation is bringing back   a water-

generating cloud seeding    program  for T ahoe  
Basin 
Amy Alonzo 
Reno Gazette Journal 
View Comments

A program that modifies cloud structures in the Tahoe area to increase the chance of precipitation 
is back online after a lack of funding left it high and dry. 

A $28,000 donation from the William N. Pennington Foundation has Desert Research Institute’s 
cloud seeding program in the Lake Tahoe and Truckee basins up and running through the end of 
the year. 

Tthe donation came shortly after the program was highlighted in a February story by the RGJ. 

Others are reading:Program that helps generate water for 40,000 Reno homes paused after 
funding shortfall 

"They volunteered the money unsolicited," DRI Associate Research Scientist Frank McDonough 
said. “When they saw the article, that’s what stimulated their interest." 

The foundation declined to comment on the donation. 

Cloud seeding is a method of altering the amount of precipitation formed in clouds by adding 
substances such as silver iodide to increase rain or snowfall. DRI uses ground generators 
strategically located in the mountains to introduce the silver iodide. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 50 of 115



DRI oversees multiple cloud seeding programs throughout the west. While 

many of those programs remained funded in late 2020 and early 

2021, McDonough had a hard time securing funding for the Tahoe Basin 

Project, which generates water for up to 40,000 Reno households. 

The cost to fully operate the Tahoe-Truckee Basin Project’s eight generators 

runs around $150,000 to $200,000. 

The Pennington Foundation’s donation is enough to run three cloud seeding 

generators – one in the Little Truckee River area, one at Squaw Valley/Alpine 

Meadows and one that targets the Sierra Crest. 

If storms stay steady, the three generators could generate up to 9,000 acre-feet 

of water for the area, McDonough said. The generators started running in 

early March, right after the donation was made. 

“We had a couple storms last week and I’ve run them at least three times 

since. We’ve had some nice cold storms, and everything’s been perfect for it,” 

he said. “I’ve been watching the longer-term forecast, and there are definitely 

some storms rolling through for the rest of the month.” 

The state funded the Tahoe-Truckee Basin Cloud Seeding Project from 1977 to 

2009. Since then, DRI has relied on agencies including the Truckee River 

Fund, Truckee Meadows Water Authority, Western Regional Water 

Commission, Mt. Rose Ski Tahoe and the Pennington Foundation to fund the 

project. 

Amy Alonzo covers the outdoors, recreation and environment for Nevada 

and Lake Tahoe. Reach her at aalonzo@gannett.com or (775) 741-

8588. Here's how you can support ongoing coverage and local journalism. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 51 of 115



NevadaToday

University of Nevada, Reno researchers and City of Sparks staff collect samples of
wastewater to test for prevalence of SARS-CoV-2 virus in the community.

Wastewater testing  nds SARS-CoV-2 in 
Truckee Meadows wastewater
University partners with cities, county for wastewater environmental surveillance 
during pandemic Sampling Truckee Meadows wastewater for the SARS-CoV-2 virus 
found a very clear upward spike approximately seven days before the spike appeared 
in the community in the form of people testing positive for the virus, according to a 
study conducted by the University of Nevada, Reno and community partners.

“The latest data shows very low to non-detect viral levels in wastewater suggesting a 
consistent reduction in COVID-19 prevalence in our community,” Krishna Pagilla, an 
environmental engineering professor at the University and leader of the study, said.

Sampling and testing were conducted at the three water reclamation facilities and at 
12 sewer sites in the region beginning in April 2020.

Research & Innovation (https://www.unr.edu/nevada-today/news/research-innovation-
x132079) | March 23, 2021 
Mike Wolterbeek (https://www.unr.edu/nevada-today/about/authors/mike-wolterbeek)

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 52 of 115



“The data we collected from the many sites shows that the monitoring reflects what’s 
happening in the community,” Pagilla said. “It clearly reflects the extent of the disease as it 
was determined by human testing, so it is a good leading indicator of what’s happening in 
the community.”
He said that by doing this type of wastewater monitoring, tracking the virus can be done 
without interrupting people’s lives, and it includes asymptomatic people who may not go 
in for testing. Coupled with the human testing, this gives health officials another tool in 
development of management actions to deal with the pandemic in the region
“And it’s predictive for seven days ahead, telling us the trend in new positive cases we’ll see 
in the community in that timeframe,” Pagilla said. “It’s predictive because people don’t get 
tested until they have symptoms, but our marker concentrations are real time – as soon as 
the virus is discharged into the wastewater.”

Virus on the increase or decrease?
The data indicates whether COVID-19 is increasing or decreasing in the community.
“Using the monitoring samples, we can’t separate out just the vaccine effect, but overall if 
the pandemic is decreasing and the number of cases is going down – that we are able to 
clearly see through wastewater-based monitoring,” Pagilla said. “So, by doing more 
frequent monitoring we can really see whether the pandemic is going away or if a 
resurgence is happening. Now we are in position to do that.”
Pagilla is also the chair of the Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering and 
director of the Nevada Water Innovation Institute based at the University, which includes 
regional agency partners. In this ongoing study, the group began monitoring the Truckee 
Meadows wastewater at the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility in April 2020 to 
determine the level of COVID-19 in the community. The Truckee Meadows Water 
Reclamation Facility receives and treats wastewater from the majority of the Truckee 
Meadows.
In addition, from August through December, the group collected samples from 12 
community locations. They expanded the sampling and survey to collection systems of the 
region to identify hot spots in the community.
“Looking for prevalence of COVID in the wastewater system, the environmental 
surveillance of wastewater, was funded by the cities of Sparks and Reno and Washoe 
County, using CARES Act funding,” Sparks Assistant City Manager John Martini said. “It 
was a regional effort to get the data, and the results are remarkable. We can see the amount 
of genetic material in wastewater rise as we hit the spike in October, November and into 
January; it tracked very well with testing results on people in our communities.”
Another project goal was to determine what happened to the virus as it passed through the 
treatment plant.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 53 of 115



“The majority of wastewater in the community comes through the Truckee Meadows 
Water Reclamation Facility,” TMWRF Manager Michael Drinkwater said. “So, testing the 
wastewater is a good leading indicator of what’s happening in the community.
“We looked at the entire treatment process, which included the influent and effluent. The 
virus was clearly detected when coming into the plant, but not detected in the outgoing, so 
we can say definitively that the virus does not survive the wastewater plant and the water 
going back to the Truckee River is free of the virus.”
About 20 people from the University worked on the monitoring. They sampled each of the 
12 sites, all in one day, on a weekly basis. Pagilla said it takes many resources to conduct 
the sewer monitoring.
“We had students and faculty working weekends, Thanksgiving and Christmas to collect 
samples,” Pagilla said. “It was a complicated collection procedure, using a long telescopic 
handle to capture the sample. The team took multiple samples and measurements on-site 
before bringing them back to the lab for analysis. The samples were transported on ice 
within two hours of collection to the University’s biomolecular engineering laboratory.”
The University crew had tremendous support from the agencies throughout the process.
“City and county staff helped with safety and traffic control at the collection sites,” Pagilla 
said.
“There was also a two-member crew at the sites that built a safe area around the sewer 
access hole and helped with proper protocols for safety.”
The University team included co-authors on the study, Lin Li, a post-doctoral scholar in 
Pagilla’s research group, Laura Haak, and Niloufar Gharoon, a doctoral candidate under 
Pagilla.
Li is an expert in biomolecular testing and has developed the method to measure the viral 
signatures (an inactive RNA fragment of the SARS-CoV-2 virus) of COVID-19, which 
allows them to determine the presence of COVID-19 in the community, using the existing 
qPCR system (a technology used to measure DNA) in the lab.

In-house capabilities
“Since the pandemic began, we have developed in-house capability at the University to do 
this study,” Pagilla said. “And not just for COVID. We are now able to apply our 
knowledge, experience and resources to other substances in wastewater, to do further 
research related to wastewater and community health.” 
This field of study is known as Wastewater Based Epidemiology and is being looked into 
by many cities around the world to determine COVID-19 prevalence in the absence of 
extensive clinical testing of humans. The purpose of this future work is to develop 
predictive tools that can complement clinical testing and other human testing data in 
assessing the prevalence of COVID-19 in the community.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 54 of 115



“Environmental observations of wastewater is not new, it’s been around for a while,” 
Martini said. “But what is new is that we now have the ability to do it at our 
university. Having this tool in the toolbox up at the University will help this 
community for the next pandemic, to understand it and to find more efficient and 
better ways to manage a future pandemic.”
Monitoring of sewage or other environmental media (air, soil and water) has been 
an important method to determine community prevalence of disease due to disease-
causing pathogens by measuring certain molecular markers of their DNA/RNA and 
is known as environmental surveillance.
“While TMWRF has been treating wastewater for the community since 1966, being 
part of a proactive effort to improve our understanding of public health is new to us,” 
Drinkwater said. “We are very happy to be able to contribute to this effort in 
addressing the COVID-19 pandemic.”
While continuing on a limited scale, sampling duration could last throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic and is likely to continue for at least one year. Sample sites at 
each plant will include raw sewage and the finished effluent.
The project work was supported by faculty, staff and students from multiple research 
groups of the University. Staff from the City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County 
and contractors provided additional field sampling support and personal safety 
protective measures. Technical support was provided by Washoe County Health  
District (Health Statistical Data) and Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 
(GIS Support).

Processing wastewater samples in the lab.

▶ ◀ 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 55 of 115



More press releases»Press Release

Water Leak Repair Services in Reno on the Rise with Cold 
Weather and Increased Population Growth
Experienced companies continue to provide professional services to protect householdsExperienced companies continue to provide professional services to protect households

5eQo��19� � The city of Reno, Nevada, is a wonderful place to be with all the beauty and peace. That's why more The city of Reno, Nevada, is a wonderful place to be with all the beauty and peace. That's why more 
people want to live here and enjoy their family life. Another reason is the quality service offered by people want to live here and enjoy their family life. Another reason is the quality service offered by 
professionals who help homeowners in emergency times. 

Water leaks can be devastating for anyone, no matter where they're living. When it happens, the first thing can be devastating for anyone, no matter where they're living. When it happens, the first thing 
people want to do is fix the problem themselves. That usually leads to unwanted situations that make things worse. people want to do is fix the problem themselves. That usually leads to unwanted situations that make things worse. people want to do is fix the problem themselves. That usually leads to unwanted situations that make things worse. people want to do is fix the problem themselves. That usually leads to unwanted situations that make things worse. 
Reno City's growth and the cold weather have led to an increase in the number of high-quality, professional, and Reno City's growth and the cold weather have led to an increase in the number of high-quality, professional, and Reno City's growth and the cold weather have led to an increase in the number of high-quality, professional, and Reno City's growth and the cold weather have led to an increase in the number of high-quality, professional, and 
reliable water leak repair services. 
To learn more, please visit To learn more, please visit T here. 
While there are many water leak repair services in Reno, the one that stands out among the rest is SuperBest While there are many water leak repair services in Reno, the one that stands out among the rest is SuperBest While there are many water leak repair services in Reno, the one that stands out among the rest is SuperBest 
Water Damage & Flood Repair Reno. The company offers exceptional quality service based on the experience Water Damage & Flood Repair Reno. The company offers exceptional quality service based on the experience Water Damage & Flood Repair Reno. The company offers exceptional quality service based on the experience 
of the Reno City area. They have a deep understanding of the terrain and provide great work to help clients of the Reno City area. They have a deep understanding of the terrain and provide great work to help clients of the Reno City area. They have a deep understanding of the terrain and provide great work to help clients 
protect their homes from water leak damage. protect their homes from water leak damage. 
They offer 24/7 emergency services that respond to clients in minutes. Just call them, and they will be at the They offer 24/7 emergency services that respond to clients in minutes. Just call them, and they will be at the They offer 24/7 emergency services that respond to clients in minutes. Just call them, and they will be at the 
doorstep as soon as possible. They never make estimates on the phone; they come to the location, look at the work possible. They never make estimates on the phone; they come to the location, look at the work possible. They never make estimates on the phone; they come to the location, look at the work 
level to be done, and then come up with a fair and affordable estimate. 
What makes the people of Reno, NV, fall in love with this water repair company is their experience and use of the What makes the people of Reno, NV, fall in love with this water repair company is their experience and use of the 
latest flood and water damage restoration equipment. These gadgets have the latest technology that makes it latest flood and water damage restoration equipment. These gadgets have the latest technology that makes it 
easy to quickly and easily locate the water leak source, seal it up, and get to work restoring the items damaged in easy to quickly and easily locate the water leak source, seal it up, and get to work restoring the items damaged in 
the home. 
They're passionate and committed people who love what they do and have a genuine purpose of helping other They're passionate and committed people who love what they do and have a genuine purpose of helping other 
people. Every job they do always comes out perfect, so

NEWS TECH & SCIENCE SOCIAL MEDIA BUSINESS ENTERTAINMENT LIFE SPORTS

Media Contact
CoPSDQ\�1DPe� SuperBest Water Damage & Flood Repair Reno
CoQWDFW�3eUsoQ� Management
(PDLl� Send Email
3KoQe� 775-302-9638
$GGUess�2966 S Virginia St #R55 
CLW\� Reno
6WDWe� NV 89502
CoXQWU\� United States
:eEsLWe� https://superbestwaterdamagefloodrepair.com/Northern_Nevada/emergency/

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 56 of 115



APRIL 2, 2021 contribute now

In The News

POLITICS

By Emily Cureton (OPB)
March 24, 2021 3:36 p.m. Updated: March 26, 2021 8:48 a.m.

Volunteer Emergency Manager Dorothea Thurby of Warm Springs takes inventory of bottled water Aug. 2, 2019.
Emily Cureton / OPB

COVID-19 surge US Capitol CDC on travel Chauvin trial I-5 bridge Oregon Tech

All Things Considered
STREAMING NOW

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 57 of 115



THANKS TO OUR SPONSOR: Become a Sponsor

THANKS TO OUR SPONSOR: Become a Sponsor

All Things Considered
STREAMING NOW

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 58 of 115



All Things Considered
STREAMING NOW

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 59 of 115



THANKS TO OUR SPONSOR: Become a Sponsor

THANKS TO OUR SPONSOR: Become a Sponsor

OPB's First Look newsletter
Sign up to get important news and culture from around the Northwest, delivered to your inbox six days a
week.

EMAIL

Sign Up
All Things Considered
STREAMING NOW

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 60 of 115



Overview (/resources)

Blog (/resources/blog)

Publications (/resources/publications) Blog
Back to list (/resources/blog)

Recovering Stronger: State Innovations - West 
Region: Respond, Recover, and Reimagine
Joya Banerjee and Sarah Huckins | March 24, 2021

The West, and the nation, are facing myriad challenges. Years of devastating climate impacts, like 
droughts, wildfires, and heat waves, have left many in the West struggling to make ends meet. This has 
been compounded over the last year by the COVID-19 pandemic, which laid inequities bare and 
highlighted how deeply embedded those inequities are. But times of upheaval can lead to lasting 
change. The US Water Alliance believes our country has a unique opportunity to recover stronger—and 
to center One Water policy as a driving force.  
As a part the US Water Alliance’s Recovering Stronger Initiative
(http://www.uswateralliance.org/initiatives/recovering-stronger), and as a companion to the recently 
released Federal Blueprint
(http://uswateralliance.org/sites/uswateralliance.org/files/publications/Recovering%20Stronger%
20Fe the Alliance set out to identify state policies and projects that are enabling the water sector to

recover stronger. This project started with conversations in the West and included a survey of the 
Alliance network, targeted interviews, and a dialogue with 30 changemakers from California, Oregon, 
Washington, and Nevada to discuss innovative state policy approaches that leverage One Water 
practices.  

What We Heard: 
Water Can and Must Collaborate. Leaders throughout the water sector and beyond emphasized the 
importance of collaboration and the willingness of those that were once adversaries to work together. 
After decades of making decisions in silos, leaders are now seeing stakeholders embracing new 
partnerships and adopting new technologies to move projects forward. The urgency for water solutions 
is real, but to truly recover stronger, the water sector in the West must take the time to address 
agency integration, improve coordination across agencies, advance new governance models, and 
engage communities. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 61 of 115



Water Can and Must Adapt. While the challenges facing the region are great, participants expressed 
hope for a more resilient future. Amid the upheaval of the past year, One Water leaders have
adapted to keep communities safe and healthy – demonstrating that the water sector can and will 
adapt to new conditions. Across all four states, participants shared a collective recognition that leaders 
need to be looking for and implementing new solutions. In the words of one participant: “We don’t want 
to recover by going back to where we were, but rather by going where we need to be.” Participants also 
emphasized the need to center equity and justice in recovery efforts and acknowledged there will be no 
equitable recovery without equitable access to safe, affordable, and reliable water and wastewater 
services. Finally, even in communities that had previously been resistant to change, leaders are 
adapting rapidly and demonstrating openness to new ways of operating. 
Water Policy and Projects Can Advance Recovery. Participants highlighted the policies and projects 
that have enabled them not just to respond and recover from the pandemic, but to reimagine what is 
possible. Polling data
(https://f.hubspotusercontent10.net/hubfs/6000718/Water%20Hub/March%202021%20National%20Pol 
utm_campaign=Water%20%7C%
20Polling&utm_medium=email&_hsmi=116802218&_hsenc=p2ANqtz-97YhlKjIJPq9_ePagntQla0hP0_Q
gRRnCx1DuLEapYe7Bx6y2YO38_rIDPee015r39Am77VpCOogF2HN3ZuT shows that voters share the 
belief that water projects and infrastructure investments are important economic recovery objectives. 
The examples of policy and programs that are enabling recovery efforts span the breadth of the One 
Water movement and can serve as inspiration for those across the country working to recover stronger. 
A few are listed below: 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 62 of 115



Climate Adaptation and Mitigation 
In Nevada, Governor Sisolak issued Executive Order 2019-22
(http://dcnr.nv.gov/news/gov.-sisolak-signs-exec.-order-directing-administration-to-
collaborate-on-n) directing the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources and
the Governor’s Office of Energy to collaborate with public, private, and tribal partners to
implement Nevada’s climate goals. Emerging from this foundational effort came the
Nevada State Climate Strategy (https://climateaction.nv.gov/our-strategy/). Multiple
agencies developed the Strategy together, with input from more than 1,500 residents. To
learn about the Strategy’s stakeholder engagement, read more here
(https://climateaction.nv.gov/policies/introduction/#stakeholder-engagement).   
In California, the Natural Resources Agency, the Department of Environmental
Protection, the Department of Food and Agriculture, and the State Water Resources
Control Board launched an interagency effort called Cutting the Green Tape
(https://resources.ca.gov/Initiatives/Cutting-the-Green-Tape). The goal of the initiative is
to accelerate environmental restoration. In collaboration with the California Landscape
Stewardship Network, the Natural Resources Agency developed a report to forward

these efforts: Regulatory Efficiencies for the a Resilient Environment
(https://calandscapestewardshipnetwork.org/sites/default/files/2020-
11/GCT_FINAL_hires.pdf).   
Also in California, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-10-9
(https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/4.29.19-EO-N-10-19-
Attested.pdf)calling for a portfolio of actions to ensure the state’s long-term water
resilience. The final product, California’s 2020 Water Resilience Portfolio
(https://waterresilience.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Final_California-Water-
Resilience-Portfolio-2020_ADA3_v2_ay11-opt.pdf), resulted from the collaboration of an
interagency working group and input from more than 20 public listening sessions.

Affordability and Access
In Washington, state legislation provides utilities more flexibility in offering low-income
customers a discount on their rates. Section 80.28.068
(https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=80.28.068) of the Revised Washington
Codes states, "Expenses and lost revenues as a result of these discounts shall be
included in the company's cost of service and recovered in rates to other customers."
Washington, Oregon, and California are all states that offer broad-based categorical
eligibility (https://www.fns.usda.gov/snap/broad-based-categorical-eligibility) (BBCE), a
policy in which households may become eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP) because they qualify for other assistance programs. While BBCE
currently is used to address food insecurity, there are ongoing conversations at the state
level to develop categorical eligibility for water rate assistance programs to lower the
barriers to enrollment.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 63 of 115



Innovation and New Models of Partnership  
In Nevada, Oregon, and California, state and local agencies, as well as agricultural
partners, have engaged in a project to make evapotranspiration data freely accessible.
The OpenET (https://openetdata.org/) Project strives to enable more accurate water
budgets and innovative water management programs.   
In California, the state Department of Conservation and the California Water Data
Consortium (https://cawaterdata.org/), a nonprofit organization that was developed in
partnership with state agencies, are working together to align around an investment in
mapping the state with LiDAR technology
(https://cadoc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Cascade/index.html?
appid=4a63a54438f74d5db21114bec266baf4). LiDAR has been used to support water
quality modeling and to plan major environmental restoration efforts.   

Water Quality  
In Washington, Seattle’s Duwamish Valley Program
(https://www.seattle.gov/environment/equity-and-environment/duwamish-valley-
program) is a multi-departmental effort led by the Office of Sustainability & Environment
and the Office of Planning and Community Development. The Duwamish Valley Action
Team bring together 18 city departments, and with feedback from over 500 Duwamish
Valley residents, developed the Duwamish Valley Action Plan
(http://greenspace.seattle.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2018/06/DuwamishValleyActionPlan_June2018.pdf), which aims to
improve water quality while advancing environmental justice.   
In California, the Cleanup and Abatement Account
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/caa/cleanup_and_a
was established to provide grants for the cleanup of instances of pollutions where there
are no responsible parties to undertake the work. Public agencies, tribal governments,
and non-profits serving a disadvantaged community are all eligible to apply for grant
funding.   

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 64 of 115



These bright spots, among many others, provide insights that extend far beyond the West. Different 
stakeholders each have their own levers they can pull, but all are important in the advancement of a 
One Water future. State policy can enable local action, but local action also can inform state policy. 
Recovery efforts will require both top-down and bottom-up efforts, as well as new levels of 
information sharing and communication across the water sector. And a thread through all of what 
we heard was the need for coordination and alignment with current and future federal relief and 
recovery efforts. But it is important to recognize these policies and projects, while key to recovery 
efforts, are not a panacea. There are many challenges for which solutions have not yet been 
generated. But together, through collaboration and innovation, the water sector can help America 
recover stronger.  

What’s Next:
The West Regional Listening Session is the first of six Listening Sessions to bring together state 
policymakers and One Water leaders identify opportunities for action and shape recovery efforts.   
The Alliance’s Recovering Stronger Initiative aims to share and spread how different stakeholders 
across the country can drive recovery efforts. The Initiative seeks to reknit a local, state, and federal 
partnership for water. To learn more about the local, state, and federal components of transforming 
the nation’s water management, read more here:
http://www.uswateralliance.org/initiatives/recovering-stronger
(http://www.uswateralliance.org/initiatives/recovering-stronger). 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 65 of 115



The American River in Sacramento
in 2014 shows the effects of the
2012-2016 drought. Climate change
is expected to result in more
frequent and intense droughts and
floods. (Source: California
Department of Water Resources)

“Water rights can either be
something that helps us adapt

Western Water  March 26, 2021  By Gary Pitzer

CALIFORNIA WEIGHS CHANGES FOR NEW WATER RIGHTS
PERMITS IN RESPONSE TO A WARMER AND DRIER CLIMATE
WESTERN WATER NOTEBOOK: STATE WATER BOARD REPORT
RECOMMENDS ALIGNING NEW WATER RIGHTS TO AN UPENDED
HYDROLOGY

As California’s seasons become warmer and drier, state officials are pondering whether the water

rights permitting system needs revising to better reflect the reality of climate change’s effect on

the timing and volume of the state’s water supply.

A report by the State Water Resources Control Board recommends that new water rights permits

be tailored to California’s increasingly volatile hydrology and be adaptable enough to ensure

water exists to meet an applicant’s demand. And it warns that the increasingly whiplash nature of

California’s changing climate could require existing rights holders to curtail diversions more often

and in more watersheds — or open opportunities to grab more water in climate-induced floods.

“California’s climate is changing rapidly, and historic data are no longer a reliable guide to future

conditions,” according to the report, Recommendations for an Effective Water Rights Response to Climate Change. “The

uncertainty lies only in the magnitude of warming, but not in whether warming will occur.”

The report says climate change will bring increased frequency and intensity of extreme weather events, such as atmospheric

rivers and drought, prolonged fire seasons with larger fires, heat waves, floods, rising sea level and storm surges. Already, the

state is experiencing a second consecutive dry year, prompting worries about drought. “The wet season will bring wetter

conditions during a shorter period, whereas the dry season will become longer and drier,” the report said.

The State Water Board report catalogues 12 recommendations — inserting climate-change data into new permits, expanding

the stream-gauge network to improve data and refining the means to manage existing water rights to ensure sufficient water

is available to meet existing demands. At the same time, the report says, the State Water Board should build on its existing

efforts to allow diverters to capture climate-driven flood flows for underground storage.

Because floods and the magnitude of the peak flows are expected to increase under many climate change projections, “there

may be greater opportunity to divert flood and high flows during the winter to underground storage,” the report said. The

State Water Board could build on the flood planning data used by the Department of Water Resources to help inform water

availability analyses and to spell out conditions for the resulting water right permits for floodwater capture.

“The recommendations are a menu of options,” said Jelena Hartman, senior

environmental scientist with the State Water Board and chief author of the report.

The goal, she said, was to “clearly communicate what the water rights issues are

and what we can do.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 66 of 115



and create resiliency … or it can
really hinder us.” 
~Joaquin Esquivel, State
Water Resources Control
Board Chair

Climate change is expected to
move the snow line in Sierra
Nevada watersheds higher, which
will likely change the timing and
volume of winter and spring runoff.
(Source: California Department of
Water Resources)

Joaquin Esquivel, chair of the State
Water Resources Control Board.
(Source: State Water Resources
Control Board)

The result of a 2017 State Water Board resolution detailing its comprehensive

response to climate change, the report could be the first step toward a retooled

permitting system for new water rights applications. (The Board has averaged

about a dozen newly issued permits per year, mostly for small diverters, since

2010.) The State Water Board is seeking public comments on the report through

March 31.

And while the report does not call for reopening existing permits, it does sound a warning for those permit holders: With

droughts projected to become longer and more severe, the State Water Board may need to curtail water diversions more

often and in more watersheds.

Time to ‘Reset Expectations’?

During a March 18 webinar on the report, Erik Ekdahl, the State Water Board’s deputy director for the Division of Water

Rights, said it may be time to “reset expectations” regarding curtailments for water use permits, given that curtailments have

only been implemented by the state in 1976-1977 and 2014-2015.

“That’s not an overuse of curtailments,” he said. “If anything, it’s an underuse. We may need to look at curtailment more

frequently.”

Some water users fear the report could be the beginning of a move to restrict their access.

“To the extent climate change is incorporated into water rights administration, it should be to

respond to a changing hydrology in a manner that is protective of existing users … and not to turn

back the clock on water rights or to service new ambitions for instream flows that aren’t in the

law,” said Chris Scheuring, senior counsel with the California Farm Bureau Federation.

The report notes that many of California’s existing water rights are based on stream gauge data

drawn during a relatively wet period (since about 1955). Although California has had some of its

most severe droughts on record since the 1970s, annual flow on many streams is highly variable due to California’s

Mediterranean climate. Fluctuations in year-to-year precipitation are greater than any state in the nation, ranging from as little

as 50 percent to more than 200 percent of long-term averages.

If climate conditions swing drier overall, the report says, it will be difficult for those existing water

right holders to divert their permitted volume. Expanding the network of stream and precipitation

gauges will be critical, the report says, to improving the accuracy of water availability analyses.

But the report’s focus is on new water rights applicants and the need to weave climate change

data into their permits to provide a clear description of projected water availability. “We take the

long view in asking if there is sufficient water available for a new appropriation,” Hartman said.

State Water Board leaders said the water rights response is part of the umbrella of actions needed

to confront climate change.

“Water rights can either be something that helps us adapt and create resiliency … or it can really hinder us,” Chair Joaquin

Esquivel said at the Board’s Feb. 16 meeting where the report was presented.

Writing Climate Change into New Permits

The fingerprints of climate change are increasingly evident in California’s seasonal weather. Extreme conditions are on the

upswing. Peak runoff, which fuels the state’s water supply, has shifted a month earlier during the 20th century. The four years

between 2014 and 2017 were especially warm, with 2014 the warmest on record. Annual average temperatures in California

are projected to rise significantly by the end of the century.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 67 of 115



Jennifer Harder, a professor at
McGeorge School of Law in
Sacramento and an expert on water
rights law. (Source: McGeorge
School of Law)

Dorene D'Adamo, a member of the
State Water Resources Control
Board. (Source: State Water
Resources Control Board)

A State Water Board report on
adapting water rights permits to
address climate change impacts
says the state needs to improve its
system of stream and precipitation

“We are already experiencing the impacts of climate change,” said Amanda Montgomery, environmental program manager

with the State Water Board. The continuous warming creates an “unambiguous trend” toward less snow, she said, and shifts

in snowpack and runoff are relevant for water management and water rights.

Jennifer Harder, a water rights expert who teaches at the University of Pacific’s McGeorge School

of Law in Sacramento, said integrating climate change considerations into water rights permits is

good policy that aligns with the State Water Board’s mission of ensuring the highest and most

beneficial use of water.

“It’s beyond dispute that the changes in precipitation and temperature patterns resulting from climate change will affect

water availability,” she said.

Kimberly Burr, a Sonoma County environmental attorney and member of the North Coast Stream Flow Coalition, told the

State Water Board at the Feb. 16 meeting that knowledge about the effects of climate change on water is sufficient enough

to be incorporated into new water rights permits. It’s an important issue, she said, because the state must ensure adequate

flows exist to protect endangered species, vulnerable communities and public needs under the public trust doctrine.

“There is a finite amount of water and we have to prepare for the worst and move forward with great caution,” she said.

A Challenging Water Rights System

Water rights in California are based on a permitting system that includes several specifics, such as season and point of

diversion and who can continue taking water when there is not enough to supply all needs. Getting a water right permit can

take from several months for a temporary permit to several years for a permanent right.

In deciding whether to issue permits, the State Water Board considers the features and needs of the proposed project, all

existing and pending rights, and the necessary instream flows to meet water quality standards and protect fish and wildlife.

The priority of a water right is particularly important during a drought, when some water right holders may be required to

stop diverting water according to the priority of their water right. Suspension of right is done through curtailments of the

user’s ability to divert water.

If the State Water Board implemented the recommendations in the water rights and climate

change report, critics say, it would add another component in a system that aims to meet the

demand for additional water. Already, local groundwater agencies are lining up to get access to

available water sources for aquifer recharge and groundwater banking so they can comply with

the state’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

Some question whether putting the report’s recommendations into action would possibly hinder the permitting process.

“The concern I have is we have quite a big backlog already and it’s already challenging to get through the system,” said State

Water Board Vice Chair Dorene D’Adamo, who serves as its agriculture member. “How do we incorporate all of this and still

be nimble and move with deliberate speed?”

Incorporating a climate change response into new water rights permits would be complicated, but necessary, State Water

Board member Tam Doduc said.

Striving For Complete Data

Adding climate change data to water rights permits applications is problematic because of questions about the precision of

existing data and the degree to which it can be localized.

“Current climate change models have disparate findings, and many are calibrated for a global

scale but not regional areas,” Lauren Bernadett, regulatory advocate with the Association of

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 68 of 115



gauges to better track climate
change impacts on water
availability. (Source: California
Department of Water Resources)

“We don’t have all the details
yet and this won’t be an easy
task. Too often we focus on our
water quality activities because
water rights are too difficult.” 
~Tam Doduc, State Water
Board member

California Water Agencies, told the Board. “The recommendations insert significant uncertainty

for any person or agency applying for a permit.”

Harder, the law professor, said good data is critical for determining water availability, but perfect

data to achieve absolute certainty is unattainable. “There are many different facets of water management and it requires us to

give careful thought into how we make decisions in the face of the data we have, knowing it will never be perfect and always

be changing” she said.

Better streamflow data is crucial to knowing whether the water exists to support new permits. The report notes that the low

number of gauges, particularly on the smaller stream systems in California, means there is often not enough information to

accurately characterize hydrologic variability over years or decades. That significantly limits the ability to reliably estimate

water availability.

The report says the state may need to rethink how it estimates water availability. It added that one way to improve accuracy

may be temporary installation of portable stream gauges at requested diversion points.

Moving From Theoretical To Practical

Addressing how to respond to climate change in water rights permitting would be a substantial undertaking, particularly

given the existing array of complex and controversial matters on the State Water Board’s agenda.

“We don’t have all the details yet and this won’t be an easy task,” Doduc said.

“Too often we focus on our water quality activities because water rights are too

difficult.”

Said Esquivel: “There is a lot of work to be done and it can seem overwhelming.

But there is a lot of great groundwork and a commitment to making sure the

water rights system is going to adapt and be here for us when we need it most.”

The State Water Board already has broad authority under existing law to take on

climate change in water rights permits should it decide to do so, said Harder, with

McGeorge Law School.

“What the board is trying to do,” she said, “is snap those tools together in a new way and polish up the edges.”

However the issue proceeds, Harder said, the state should recognize that water resources are best understood by the local

agencies that have the most pertinent information about them.

“We need to approach this as a partnership as opposed to looking at it through the lens of … state power vs. local power,”

she said. “There is an important role for both here.”

Reach Gary Pitzer: gpitzer@watereducation.org, Twitter: @GaryPitzer 
Know someone else who wants to stay connected with water in the West? Encourage them to sign up for Western Water,
and follow us on Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 69 of 115



Provided
The Kaveri River in India is the source for an extensive irrigation system
and for hydroelectric power�

Water scarcity is often understood as a problem for regions experiencing drought� but a new study from
Cornell and Tufts universities �nds that not only can localized water shortages impact the global economy�
but changes in global demand send positive and negative ripple e�ects to water basins across the globe�

“We are looking at water scarcity as a globally connected and multi�sector phenomenon�” said Jonathan
Lamontagne� M�S� ���� Ph�D� ���� assistant professor of civil and environmental engineering at Tufts
University� who co�authored the study with Patrick Reed� the Joseph C� Ford Professor of Civil and
Environmental Engineering at Cornell� Tufts graduate student Flannery Dolan is lead author of the study�
which suggests water scarcity dynamics are more complicated than traditionally acknowledged�

The study� “Evaluating the economic impact of water scarcity in a changing world

�https�//www�nature�com/articles/s�������������������” was published March �� in Nature Communications� and
uniquely captures the interdependent e�ects of global trade consistently with di�erences in regional
climate policies as well as river basin�speci�c capacity to address water scarcity risks�

The researchers coupled physical and economic models to simulate thousands of potential climate futures
for ��� major river basins � a technique known as scenario discovery � to better understand how water
scarcity is a globally�connected phenomenon� with local conditions having reverberations across the globe
in industries such as agriculture� energy� transportation and manufacturing�

The research found that global trade dynamics and market adaptations to regional water scarcity result in
positive and negative economic outcomes for every regional river basin considered in the study�

For instance� in the lower Colorado River basin� the worst economic outcomes arise from limited
groundwater availability and high population growth� but that high population growth can also prove
bene�cial under some climatic scenarios� In contrast� the future economic outcomes in the Indus Basin
depend largely on global land�use policies�

CORNELL CHRONICLE

Study exposes global ripple e�ects of regional water scarcity

By Syl Kacapyr � March ��� ����

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 70 of 115



“What is happening elsewhere in the world through di�erences in regional choices related to energy
transitions � how land is being managed as well as di�erent regional water demands and adaptive choices �
can shape relative advantages and disadvantages of water intensive economic activities�” said Reed�

Restrictions in water availability usually lead to a negative regional economic impact� but the research
revealed that some regions can experience a positive economic impact if they hold an advantage over other
water basins and can become a virtual exporter of water� The Orinoco basin in Venezuela� for example�
usually has a reliable supply of water and is often in a relative position that can bene�t when other regions
are under stress� according to the researchers�

The study also found that small di�erences in projections for future climate conditions can yield very large
di�erences in the economic outcomes for water scarcity�

“Human activities and market responses can strongly amplify the economic e�ects of water scarcity� but
the conditions that lead to this ampli�cation vary widely from one basin to the next�” said Lamontagne�

A river basin can be considered economically robust if it is able to adapt to drought with alternative
sources of water or adjust economic activity to limit usage� If a basin is unable to adapt its supply options
and if prolonged water scarcity leads to persistent economic decline� then the researchers describe the loss
in water basin adaptive capacity as having reached an ‘economic tipping point�’

For example� in the Indus region in South Asia� the water supply is under stress due to heavy agricultural
use and irrigation leading to unsustainable consumption of groundwater� which places it close to the
tipping point�

The conditions that lead to these tipping points are highly variable from basin to basin� depending on a
combination of local factors and global conditions� In the Arabian Peninsula� low groundwater availability
and pricing of carbon emissions are key factors� In the lower Colorado River basin� a mixture of low
groundwater availability� low agricultural productivity� and strong economic demands from the U�S� and
Europe lead to tipping points�

“It is noteworthy that the lower Colorado River basin has some of the most uncertain and widely divergent
economic outcomes of water scarcity of the basins analyzed in this study�” said Reed� “This implies that
assumed di�erences in regional� national and global human system conditions as well as the intensity of
climate change can dramatically amplify the uncertainty in the basin’s outcomes�”

As climate change makes the physical and economic e�ects of water scarcity more challenging for policy
makers to understand� the researchers hope their work will provide the basis for similar analyses and draw
attention to the importance of expanded data collection to improve modeling and decision making�

The study was co�authored by researchers from the Joint Global Change Research Institute at the Paci�c
Northwest National Laboratory� and was supported by the U�S� Department of Energy’s O�ce of Science�

MEDIA CONTACT

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 71 of 115



An indigenous river
THE TRUCKEE ENDURED MANY INSULTS OVER 160 YEARS

PHOTO/LARRY GEVERT: Spring runoff water tumbles down the Truckee River west of Verdi in this undated photo.

Born amid an uplift of mountains millions of years ago, the Truckee River still �ows 125 miles from Lake 
Tahoe to Pyramid Lake. It carries life from the Sierra Nevada to the Great Basin Desert, where all the rivers 
�ow inland and never know the sea.

The waterway has nurtured countless generations of indigenous people. The Wa She Shu (the Washoe Tribe 
of California and Nevada) lived on the shores of Lake Tahoe in the warm seasons and moved to villages in 
what is now Douglas County, Carson City and the Truckee Meadows in advance of winter’s wrath. The 
homeland of the Numu (Northern Paiutes) stretches across high desert of Northern Nevada, with the Newe 
(Western Shoshone) as eastern neighbors. The branch of the Numu known as the Cui-ui Tuccutta (cui-ui 
eaters) prospered at Pyramid Lake.

Caretakers of the water

The native people are, and have always been, stewards of the water of life. They maintained an ecological

equilibrium that lasted from the late Ice Age until the late 18th century, when European-American

newcomers �ooded into their territories. In the 150 years of development that followed, the lives of the

original inhabitants — and the health of the watershed – spun out of balance. 

It is only in the last several decades that some of that damage has been reversed, but threats to the region’s

water system remain. History attests that ignorance, arrogance and greed are the forces that have always

worked to destroy the region’s vital watershed.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 72 of 115



WIKIMEDIA: Ancient Lake Lahontan. Pyramid and Walker lakes are its last remnants.

An ancient lake

During the glacial eras from 75,000 to 
10,000 years ago, the Truckee entered the 
Basin at what is now Lockwood to feed 
ancient Lake Lahontan. That inland ocean 
waxed and waned with the rhythm of 
climate changes over millions of years. At 
its greatest depth, at what is now Pyramid 
Lake, Lahontan was 886 feet deep. What 
is now Fallon was beneath 420 feet of 
water.

People �shed in the great lake, perhaps as 
early as �fteen millennia ago. The oldest 
known petroglyphs in North America, 
carved in calcium carbonate rock on what 
is now the Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Reservation, have been dated at between

10,500 and 14,800 years before the 

present. 

The river was a highway

Humans have been crossing the Sierra Nevada for thousands of years. Shells from the Paci�c Ocean have 
been found at archaeological sites far to the east of what is now Reno. In the Truckee Meadows, �shing 
villages hugged the river. For more than 4,000 years, tribal people returned to a camp on the Truckee at 
what is now the Vista Boulevard/Interstate-80 interchange in Sparks.
In wet cycles and dry, the site was a base for hunting, food preparation and winter camping. It 
was most used from A.D. 500 to 1400, according to archaeologists who investigated the site for 
Nevada’s Department of Transportation.
The Indians ate antelope, mule deer, mountain sheep, cottontails and jackrabbits. Fish were 
plentiful: cutthroat trout, cui-ui, chub and Tahoe suckers were caught in gill nets. The greatest 
shing activity came during the winter spawning runs, when the Truckee thrashed with sh; 
families ate their ll.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 73 of 115



IMAGE/DETAIL OF AN ILLUSTRATION BY RON ODEN: Tribal people lived in a marsh near what is now Fallon as Lake Lahontan was drying up 
10,600 years before the present.

   
At Pyramid Lake, the Numu thrived; the cui-ui and Lahonthan cutthroat trout were staples of their diets.

They began their day with a prayer to the Father of All People as they washed their faces in the lake or the

river.

“Give me a good day. Take away any sicknesses I may have and drop them on the other side of the mountains.”“Give me a good day. Take away any sicknesses I may have and drop them on the other side of the mountains.”

– Paiute prayer.– Paiute prayer.

Across the desert, the Numu lived in small bands. The family was the main unit of society. They had no 
word for cousins, who were addressed as brothers and sisters. Food was shared with visitors.

For more than 300 years after 1492, the Great Basin was a blank space on maps of North America. Until the 
early 19th century, most Great Basin Indians never had seen a European-American. Once they did, changes 
came swiftly.

Fur trappers arrived in the 1820s and 1830s, but did not linger. In January of 1844, explorer John C. 

Fremont followed a canyon southward to the shores of a bright blue desert lake. “It broke upon our eyes 

like the ocean,” he wrote. “For a long time we sat enjoying the view.” The lake, “set like a gem in the 

mountains,” had a singular feature: a triangular rock formation that Fremont fancifully described.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 74 of 115



NATIONAL ARCHIVES: Winnemucca the Younger, war chief of the Northern Paiutes in the 1860s.

Cheops…  I called it Pyramid Lake.”Cheops…  I called it Pyramid Lake.”

– Capt. John C. Fremont, 1844.– Capt. John C. Fremont, 1844.

Fremont dubbed the waterway that fed the lake the “Salmon-Trout River.” Nine months later, the leaders of

a wagon train bound for California called the same river the Truckee, in honor of the friendly Paiute who

directed them to what would become a new emigrant route across the Sierra at Donner Pass.

Fremont’s name for the river appeared on early maps, but pioneer journals show that calling the waterway

the Truckee River caught on as early as 1845. By the 1850s, the moniker was well established.

life.”life.”

— Elisha Brooks, journal, 1852.Elisha Brooks, journal, 1852.

 In 1859, the Rush to Washoe brought tens of thousands of miners to Western Nevada. Chinese laborers 
carved a railroad line across the Sierra and through the Truckee Meadows after the Civil War.  Reno was 
founded in 1868. Ditches and canals soon sliced up the landscape.

IMAGES/NEVADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY: Left, a handbill announces the founding of Reno. A metal bridge, 
on the right, spans the Truckee River at Virginia Street in 1877.

 Beginning in the 1870s, the Truckee River through Reno became an open sewer. In summer, human waste

festered in ditches along the parched river banks. In spring, rushing waters washed away the sewage, which

ended up downstream at Pyramid Lake. Tanneries, butcher shops, hotels, eateries and all manner of other

businesses used the ditches and the river for waste disposal.

ersonally about the fearful stenches that greet theersonally about the fearful stenches that greet the

uncultured nose at almost every point in Reno”

— Nevada State Journal, Aug. 12, 1882.Nevada State Journal, Aug. 12, 1882.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 75 of 115



Throughout the 1880s and 1890s more dams, ditches and industry made matters worse. Laws were passed 
and then diluted. Powerful interests teamed up to squeeze every penny of pro�t from an already 
overexploited river.

In February 1879, the Reno Evening Gazette reported the Truckee was the color of melted butter because of 
oil dumped in the water. The newspaper reported the river “is a tumbling mass of sawdust…A poor 
lonesome �sh would not even know its mother two feet away.” From the 1900 until 1930, sawdust from the 
Floriston Pulp and Paper Company operations upstream in California clogged the waterway, mixing with 
human and animal waste generated by Reno residents and businesses. Residents referred to the water as 
noxious “Reno chowder.”

Dams  and dead sh

The industrial boom of the late 19th century swept up the river in its wake and left pollution behind. Few 
voices came to its defense. By the end of the 1800s, the Truckee River was on its way to becoming the 
most dammed stream in the West. At the same time, the Sierra was being stripped of its trees to 
prop up the mines of the Silver State.

PHOTO/TAHOE-TRUCKEE HISTORICAL SOCIETY: The Floriston Pulp and Paper Company.

Less than three decades after the �rst settler’s cabins were built in the Truckee Meadows, the �sh in the 
river were severely depleted. Between over�shing and dozens of dams blocking the spawning runs, the 
Truckee River �shery was doomed. On Sept. 6, 1898, the Tuscarora Times-Review reported: “The Truckee 
River, once the grandest trout stream on the coast, is now declared to be depopulated of all but cat�sh.”

The passage of the Newlands Act in 1902 paved the way for the diversion of Truckee River water into the 
Carson River system at Derby Dam. The federal project to “make the desert bloom” came at the expense of 
the �sh and the people at Pyramid Lake. The Pyramid Lake species of Lahontan cutthroat trout could no 
longer navigate the river to spawn; they became extinct. The cutthroats in the lake today, a species 
designated as “threatened,” are relatives of the original species.

PHOTO/NEVADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY: A tribal member drying �sh at Pyramid Lake around 1900.

Flood control projects

By 1903, the Reno Evening Gazette reported that the river �owing through downtown was “a blend between 
black and brown with soapy bubbles covering its surface.”  Reno’s water supply — already �lthy and crawling 
with microbes  —  became the dirty joke of the West. A 1915 newspaper editorial complained that  “even 
cows won’t drink from the Truckee.”

In the late 1950s and early 1960s, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers began major �ood control projects that 
removed some of the river’s natural features and turned its banks into a shallow canyon in downtown Reno. 
Dams and reservoirs were built upstream at Prosser and Stampede.

The cui-ui �sh, a staple of Paiute life for thousands of years, seemed destined to vanish by 1967. That year, 
Pyramid Lake reached its lowest level in recent history: 3,783.9 feet above mean sea level. That 
measurement was 86.1 feet lower than in July 1911, shortly after the Derby Dam began diverting water to 
the Newlands Project in Churchill County. The Pyramid Lake cui-ui no longer could swim to the river from 
the lake during the annual spawning season. Because of water diversions, the lake was slowly drying up.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 76 of 115



PHOTO/BUREAU OF RECLAMATION: The Derby Diversion Dam on the Truckee River, near Interstate-80 east of Reno.

In the 1970s, federal environmental laws – including the Endangered Species Act and the Clean Water Act— 
were passed. Those measures had a positive effect on the Truckee River and the lakes at its beginning and 
its terminus. In the 1970s and 1980s environmental groups and the Pyramid Lake tribe �led lawsuits to 
protect the water. Indian voices, ignored for so many years, were �nally heard in courtrooms from Nevada to 
Washington, D.C.

In 1988, U.S. Sen. Harry Reid kicked off negotiations aimed at resolving a century of con�icts over the 
Truckee River.

The late Norman Harry, who served several terms as chairman and vice-chairman of the Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe, along with his team, eventually completed a multi-party negotiation of the Truckee River 
Operating Agreement. That compact settled decades of litigation over water rights in Northern Nevada. The 
settlements returned water rights to the tribe.

“What’s good for the �sh is good for the people”“What’s good for the �sh is good for the people”

– Norman Oliver Harry, water protector, Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe.– Norman Oliver Harry, water protector, Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe.

 In the last 150 years on the Truckee River, nothing has changed and everything has changed.

Truckee River water is no longer “Reno chowder,” but challenges remain. In the 160 years since wagon trains 
trundled across the meadows, error has ruled the river and in time some of those mistakes have been 
corrected.

Community groups stepped up to defend the resource. The indigenous people of Northern Nevada, stewards 
of the water since prehistoric times, have a long-awaited seat at some of the tables of power. Advances have 
been made.

Yet, the clear, rushing water beneath the Virginia Street Bridge in Reno doesn’t tell the whole story.

Increased development upstream sends more and more pollution downstream. Fragmented planning and

short-sighted avarice still threaten a resource that has existed from the dawn of time and now is essential

to the survival of half a million people.

The river does not heal itself. History teaches us what the original inhabitants of the Great Basin always

knew: we are all guardians of the water – or will be counted among its destroyers.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 77 of 115



Environment & Energy

Industry Eyeing EPA’s Hustle to Control ‘Forever 
Chemicals’
By Pat Rizzuto
March 29, 2021, 3:01 AM

Agency moving toward finalizing four PFAS rules

Attorneys predict more regulation, lawsuits coming

Industry attorneys say they’re bracing for a wave of corporate liability and litigation as the 
Biden administration works swiftly to fulfill a campaign promise to control “forever chemicals.”
The Environmental Protection Agency this month announced it’s working on three water-
related regulations for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, or PFAS. It sent a fourth chemical 
data-collection proposal to the Office of Management and Budget, or OMB, for approval.
In the near future, the agency is likely to list some or all PFAS as hazardous waste, triggering 
cleanups and financial obligations for companies nationwide, attorneys counseling chemical 
and other manufacturers said.
One of the the four regulations the EPA announced would provide a needed, national drinking 
water limit for two PFAS, said Robert J. Simon, a vice president at the American Chemistry 
Council. He said the others would help the agency determine whether controls are needed for 
additional PFAS, and when.
Enforcement Liability
More regulation “increases potential enforcement liability for manufacturers across the 
country making PFAS and using them,” Eric Gotting, a partner with Keller and Heckman LLP, 
who specializes in litigation.
“It may also give fodder to the plaintiffs bar to cite to those regulations in tort suits,” he said.
Industries making products with PFAS and manufacturers in states such as Kansas and 
Missouri that haven’t focused on the chemicals likely will face new liabilities and lawsuits, said 
Allyson Cunningham, a partner in the environmental and tort practice group in Lathrop GPM 
LLP’s Kansas City, Mo., office.
Even before the coming regulatory wave, her law firm has seen “more and more lawsuits 
against companies that have used PFAS in their production process,” she said.
Emerging Rules
The EPA declined interview requests but pointed to its recent activities on PFAS, including: 

its determination to set drinking water limits for the two most well-recognized and toxic PFAS: 

perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA);

a proposed rule to require drinking water utilities to monitor 29 PFAS as unregulated contaminants; 

and; an advanced notice of proposed rulemaking to collect effluent discharge information from 

chemical, plastic, textile, food packaging, and other manufacturers known to make or use PFAS.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 78 of 115



Those rulemakings began under the Trump administration, so they show actions it delayed rather 
than the new administration’s initiatives, said Elizabeth “Betsy” Southerland, a retired a 30-year EPA 
veteran and former Office of Water science and technology director.

But the EPA sent a fourth proposed rule to the OMB on March 1—earlier than environmental 
organization attorneys said they expected.

The proposed rule would enact a section of the 2020 National Defense Authorization Act that 
required the agency to issue a particular Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) rule that would order 
chemical manufacturers to submit information about PFAS they made or imported since Jan. 1, 
2011.

The information the EPA could collect includes the identities and volumes of PFAS, how they’ve been 
used, any PFAS byproducts, and number of exposed workers.

The proposed rule could generate a lot of information useful for other regulatory efforts, said David 
Lennett, a senior attorney with the Natural Resources Defense Council.

For example, the data it would collect—combined with the information from water utilities through 
the unregulated contaminants monitoring rule—would help to clarify possible sources of the 29 
PFAS, said Chris Moody, regulatory technical manager at American Water Works Association (AWWA).

That’s why the association, which represents drinking and wastewater utilities, asked the Biden 
administration to issue the TSCA rule quickly, Moody said.
Another rule that Cunningham predicts the EPA will issue would designate at least some PFAS as 
hazardous substances. That designation would trigger increased liabilities and litigation due to the 
Superfund law’s extensive cost recovery mechanisms, she said.

The EPA can seek to recover costs for planning and implementing hazardous waste cleanups, waste 
investigations and monitoring, and contractor costs, according to its website.

Water utilities already face anywhere from $3 billion to an excess of $38 billion to remove just two 
types of PFAS—PFOA and PFOS—from drinking water, Moody said. That doesn’t include the costs of 
managing water remediation equipment, biosolids, or other materials as hazardous wastes due the 
presence of PFAS, he said. 

Beyond potential costs, utilities are preparing to face a public that’s worried about PFAS in their water 
and asking questions with few answers, Moody said. EPA has readily available information for only 
two of the 29 PFAS listed in the proposed monitoring rule, he said.

What’s known about PFAS now is raising public concerns, Moody said, including links to health 
problems such as higher cholesterol, decreased vaccine effectiveness, and cancer, according to the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

‘Every Dollar Spent’

Billions of Dollars

PFAS: The 'Forever ChemiPFAS: The 'Forever ChemiPFAS: The 'Forever ChemiPFAS: The 'Forever ChemiPFAS: The 'Forever Chemi………

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 79 of 115



The EPA has seven more PFAS health effects analyses underway, and other agencies have some 
information, he said. But the EPA needs to do more, Moody said.
Utilities need to better understand the science on PFAS, so they can answer the public’s 
questions and address demands to reduce concentrations of more PFAS if monitoring detects 
them, he said.

“AWWA’s stance is always to follow the science,” Moody said. But, he said, “water systems are 
faced with a lot of other issues. We need to make sure every dollar spent is another dollar 
going toward public health.”

EPA said by email that it’s “committed to taking action to better understand and ultimately 
reduce the potential risks caused by these chemicals.”

The EPA must use more of the regulatory tools available to both get the information it needs 
and prevent problems from getting worse, attorneys representing environmental groups said.

Robert Sussman, the principal with Sussman and Associates, which represents Safer 
Chemicals Healthy Families, urged the agency to limit environmental releases of PFAS and 
the entry of more PFAS onto the marketplace.

Just this month, an EPA Federal Register notice showed it approved a new PFAS and a new use 
of an existing one of these chemicals. A coalition of 18 environmental health groups sent the 
EPA’s chemicals office a letter March 26 asking it to stop approving new PFAS and revise certain 
assumptions it makes to better protect workers who could be exposed to them.
Sussman also said it should collect more information about PFAS being produced now; gather 
more data on the chemicals’ release into the air, water, and land; and require PFAS 
manufacturers to provide the EPA with their methods for detecting the chemicals.

“We are allowing companies to put these chemicals into the environment” and that has to be 
stopped, Lennett said. “PFAS are a big public health crises facing our country.”

To contact the reporter on this story: Pat Rizzuto in Washington at 
prizzuto@bloombergindustry.com

To contact the editor responsible for this story: Rebecca Baker at 
rbaker@bloombergindustry.com

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 80 of 115



How bad is Nevada's drought? It 

depends where you live 
Amy Alonzo

Reno Gazette Journal 
View Comments 

Nevada is facing serious drought conditions heading into summer. 

According to water and fire experts, the nation’s driest state is getting even 

drier – the entire state has been flagged for dry conditions, with 92 percent of 

the state in what climatologists classify a “severe” drought. 

According to the U.S. Drought Monitor, a joint effort of the National Drought 

Mitigation Center, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and the 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, 100 percent of Nevada is in drought of 

moderate severity or worse. 

The drought monitor issues five stages of drought warning – abnormally dry, 

moderate, severe, extreme and exceptional. 

Washoe County is among the 92 percent of the state in a “severe drought.” 

During times of severe drought, residents can expect to see things such as 

increases in bear and other wildlife encroaching into residential areas and 

more dust. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 81 of 115



The majority of southern and eastern Nevada are facing an even more dire 

situation, with 40 percent of land in an “exceptional drought.” Residents in 

those regions can expect to see impacts such as boat ramps closed, water 

allotments for farmers and ranchers curtailed, alfalfa and hay yields decrease, 

and fire season and activity extended. 

“The natural systems are definitely feeling the impacts. The soil moisture in 

the Sierra Nevada is seeing near-record lows. Rangelands are reporting 

reduced forage,” said Dan McEvoy, regional climatologist with the Western 

Regional Climate Center. “And this is before we are really even getting into the 

hot and dry season.” 

Amy Alonzo covers the outdoors, recreation and environment for Nevada 

and Lake Tahoe. Reach her at aalonzo@gannett.com or (775) 741-

8588. Here's how you can support ongoing coverage and local journalism. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 82 of 115



The Truckee’s blighted banks
INDIANS LEAD EFFORT TO CLEAN RIVER’S EDGE BEFORE HIGH WATER FLUSHES WASTE TO LAKE

PHOTO/PYRAMID LAKE PAIUTE TRIBE: Tribal Chairwoman Janet Davis at Pyramid Lake March 27. The lake is the terminus of the Truckee River
and the destination of pollution that �ows downstream.

A woman’s birthday wish to provide food to unsheltered people along the Truckee River last month evolved 
into an ongoing effort to remove mountains of trash from the river’s edge before the rushing waters of 
spring can sweep the ef�uent downstream to Pyramid Lake.

Beverly Harry and 16 friends and family members, including many members of the Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Tribe, brought 150 burritos to people living in tents along the Truckee in Sparks on Feb. 4.  All along the 
waterway, they saw campsites — along with mounds of garbage, including human waste. Homeless people 
have found refuge along the river for decades, but during the pandemic their numbers increased 
exponentially.

Much of the refuse from the camps, once swept downstream, will wind up at Pyramid Lake, the terminus of 
the Truckee. The mission to provide food morphed into a cleanup effort.

Volunteers assemble

Since then, Avory Wyatt, a member of the Washoe Tribe, inspired the original group to team up with other 
indigenous people and community volunteers to make the cleanups a longer-term campaign. So far, the 
River Justice volunteers have collected and hauled away more than 200 cubic yards of refuse scattered 
along the river banks. The next cleanup day is scheduled for April 3 and a larger effort to cleanse the river 
banks is being planned for April 24, the week of Earth Day.

“It was very surprising, shocking, to see �rst-hand what has happened to the river,” said Pyramid Lake Tribal 
Chairwoman Janet Davis. “There is so much trash along the banks, a lot right at the edge of the water. There 
are a lot of syringes…  The people are living in terrible conditions; there are no restrooms.”

The trash problem isn’t limited to the many camping spots in the Truckee Meadows, she said. “What 
happens upstream affects everything downstream,” Davis said. “It all ends up in our lake, which has no 
outlet.” The tribe’s people, the lake’s �sh, crops and livestock all depend on the health of the river that has 
fed the desert lake for millions of years.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 83 of 115



SCREEN GRAB/RIVER JUSTICE VIDEO: Volunteers from the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe, the Reno-Sparks Indian Colony, the Washoe Tribe of
Nevada and California and other indigenous people at a Truckee River cleanup east of Sparks.

DONATIONS TO RIVER JUSTICE: USPS: River Justice c/o Autumn Harry, PO Box 76, 
Nixon, NV 89424; through VenMo: @autumnharry; or at Zelle: 
autumnharry24@gmail.com

The sacred lake

“It’s our obligation to monitor the river and remind the people upstream that we need to keep it safe, we 
need to keep the ecosystem clean, not just for us, but for everyone,” Davis said. “We need to be mindful of 
what we do to the water; water is life for everybody and we can’t take it for granted.”

The tribe, which has left nearly all of Pyramid Lake’s shoreline undeveloped, considers the lake a sacred 
place whose health is its ancient responsibility, she said.

Beverly Harry’s late husband, Norman Harry, was a former tribal chairman who was at the forefront of water 
quality and environmental issues for decades. He was a key negotiator during years of legal battles that 
ultimately led to a regional water pact and the restoration of the tribe’s water rights.

‘A holistic approach’

Beverly Harry said the effort to clean up the upstream river corridor is a continuation of that legacy. 
“Norm always said ‘what’s good for the sh is good for the people.’ We need to take a holistic 
approach to taking care of the water.”
Everything that happens along the river affects everything else along the course of the waterway, she 
said. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 84 of 115



In addition to the trash generated by the camp sites, the cleanup teams noted that the route from the Waste 
Management transfer station, located at Kirman Street and the river, follows the Truckee’s route to the 
land�ll at Lockwood. Garbage blows off the trucks, creating a trail of litter on the way to the dump.

PHOTOS/RIVER JUSTICE: A shelter near the Truckee Meadows wastewater treatment facility, left. An 
abandoned camp near the Truckee River east of Vista Boulevard in Sparks.

Pollution into the river

Runoff from new developments in the Truckee Meadows also increases what environmentalists call non-
source-point pollution. Rain sweeps trash and other pollutants, including pesticides from lawns and 
gardens, into storm drains, then into the river.

down the river is going to be even more of a detriment to the lake.”down the river is going to be even more of a detriment to the lake.”

– Chairwoman Janet Davis, Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe.– Chairwoman Janet Davis, Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe.

“It’s a real big mess,” said Beverly Harry, who is a member of the Navajo Tribe. “The counties and the cities 
need to step up to the plate. Approving all these new developments not only increases that pollution, but 
when these industrial parks and luxury housing developments get approved, rents go up even more and that 
contributes to homelessness. Renters get pushed out.

“We’ll be seeing an increasing amount of water pollution and we’re not getting the environmental justice for 
the river that we’d like to see,” she said. “The local governments, the state and the developers need to be 
taking care of the river.”

PHOTO/FRANK X. MULLEN: Beverly Harry on the Truckee River bank near the Kuenzli Street overpass March 24. Her birthday wish to bring food
to unsheltered people led to an ongoing cleanup effort along the river.

So far, the volunteers have made six trips to the encampments.  They bring food, water, trash bags, sharps 
containers and other equipment. Josh Myers, of Myers Brothers Tree Care, brings a dump truck. Keep Truckee 
Meadows Beautiful supplied a 20-yard waste container.

The group raised $1,723 in donations on social media, including $450 from the Progressive Leadership 
Alliance of Nevada. Members of the effort are trying to raise $450 for each future cleanup to cover the costs 
of equipment.

Autumn Harry, Norm and Beverly’s daughter, is among the volunteers who contributed the elbow grease 
during the six river cleanups to date. The camps along the river are the most recent and visible effect of 
what has been happening upriver, she said.

“It’s a concern when we see all these large industries coming in along USA Parkway (in Storey County east of 
Reno), ” she said. The people who work at Tesla and the other large employers there increase the traf�c

along the Interstate-80 river corridor. In Reno, massive housing projects for high-end homes have been 
approved, often in �ood plains, she said.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 85 of 115



“We have to think about where the water is coming from to support that growth and where the runoff from 
all that developed land will go,” Autumn Harry said. “In (Reno’s) North Valleys, the growth will have an 
effect on the ground water at Pyramid Lake.”

Politicians often rubber-stamp approvals for large projects against wide opposition from communities, she 
noted.

“That connects back to the houseless issue we see along the river,” she said. Increased demand for housing 
and high property values raise the costs of rent beyond many people’s ability to pay. “In addition to the 
pandemic, a lot of people just can’t afford to rent a place in Reno anymore.”

Much of the recent cleanup effort has been focused on the river banks on the eastern edge of Reno and in 
Sparks. Camps are scattered at intervals and in small tent villages at or near parks or street overpasses. The 
people who live there have few options for their sanitation needs, Beverly Harry said.

“Between trail marker 51.5 and mile 59 we counted just eight trashcans and 2 bathrooms,” she said. “I know 
where they are going to relieve themselves.”

The volunteers bring food and water to the campers. They supply bundles of �rewood at camps where 
residents are stripping branches from trees and bushes that line the river banks and are essential to prevent 
erosion. On their cleanup missions, volunteers start conversations with unsheltered people about the river 
and where the water goes.

They hand out trash bags and return later with a dump truck to pick them up. People whose shelters are 
close to the river’s edge are encouraged to move their camps to higher ground so that they are not washed 
out when the water rises.

The cleanup crew members treat campers with respect, but it’s often hard to make connections. “They are 
focused on day-to-day survival,” Beverly Harry said. “It’s dif�cult to think about anything past that 
immediate need.”

PHOTOS/FRANK X. MULLEN: Tents on both sides of the Truckee River on Feb. 19 near the Kirman Street 
Bridge, left. A shelter built on the river’s edge, on right, is shown across the river from John Champion Park 
on .arch ��.

On a recent walk along the bike trail along the river just east of downtown Reno, Beverly Harry visited the 
camp of a married couple who have been using the trash bags and are moving their tent higher on the 
Truckee’s banks. Jane, whose husband was not in camp, explained that they received one of their two 
pandemic stimulus checks and are moving to a weekly-rental motel. The windfall will buy them at least two 
months of a roof over their heads.

Jane, 19, who said she has lived on the streets on and off since she was 15, was asked how she and her 
husband are treated by people who have homes.

“I wish people would be more empathetic than sympathetic. I know what motivates me to do better is someone who “I wish people would be more empathetic than sympathetic. I know what motivates me to do better is someone who “I wish people would be more empathetic than sympathetic. I know what motivates me to do better is someone who “I wish people would be more empathetic than sympathetic. I know what motivates me to do better is someone who 

– Jane, 19, who lived along the banks of the Truckee RiverJane, 19, who lived along the banks of the Truckee River this winterthis winter.this winter.this winter

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 86 of 115



PHOTOS/FRANK X. MULLEN: On left, an encampment alongside the Truckee River near Gateway Park in 
Sparks in February. Police swept the campers from the area Feb. 17 and crews cleaned up the site; some of 
the people who left relocated to other spots along the river. An encampment, right, along the river bank 
near the Kuenzli Street Bridge shown on Jan. 20. Reno of�cials are reexamining ordinances pertaining to 
camping within city limits. A court decision limits what enforcement actions are allowed when local 
governments do not provide adequate resources to help unsheltered people.

The volunteers said that cleaning up the river banks is a start, but the problems the squatters’ camps bring 
into focus go far beyond the pandemic. Like the river system, all is connected; causes and effects are 
intertwined.

A lack of affordable housing, social services and mental health care; runaway development; fractured 
planning processes; political indifference; the overriding in�uence of wealthy corporations on decision 
makers; and many other factors affect the health of the river, they said.

 “It comes back to the cities and the counties being accountable,” Beverly Harry said. “(Jane) gets a motel for

two months, that’s what $1,400 in stimulus is going to do for them. It’s not a solution.  The cities build more

houses for elite people and more people are left without homes, or they have to rent without ever being

afforded the opportunity to buy a home.”

“People have to realize that what’s happening along the river is connected to what happens with development… They“People have to realize that what’s happening along the river is connected to what happens with development… They

– Beverly Harry, River Justice volunteer.– Beverly Harry, River Justice volunteer.

Autumn Harry said the unsheltered people should not be demonized. Their camps merely underline a 
greater threat to the area’s most vital resource – the fragile watershed that half a million people depend 
upon to survive. When people in Reno turn on their taps and water �ows, then �ush impure water away, 
they take that resource for granted, she said.

“I don’t really see a difference between the tent camps and the beautiful houses along the river on 
California Street,” she said. “We have people coming to our houses and picking up our trash, whereas the 
people on the river aren’t afforded those same luxuries. We’re not exempt from creating waste ourselves.”

Just like the campers at the river’s edge, Autumn Harry said, comfortable people in houses have a hard time 
seeing the effect of their actions on the environment – and the people – downstream. “It’s a really complex 
issue, there are a lot of parts to it,” she said. “But a lot of the responsibility falls back on the local 
governments.”

Education and awareness are keys to solving problems, she said.

“It’s a whole different thing when you are down at the river and see all the trash and what’s happening 
there,” Autumn Harry said. “When you’re aware of where that water is going afterward, of course you want to 
clean it up; of course you want to help. It’s not just a cosmetic thing. It’s a bigger issue that affects 
everyone.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 87 of 115



Wall Street Wants Nevada’s Water
Will Lawmakers Let Them Have It?

AB354 and AB356.

If I were thirsty and deep-pocketed, I would limit the due process rights of Nevadans, bar access to the 
courts, and make a mockery of things like public comment. I would legitimize dangerous and speculative 
water plays (currently illegal) and throw out the fundamentals that have guided our water law for more than 
a century. 

Lastly, I would create a loose framework for a marketplace that allows those with the most money and 
power to buy, sell, and export our water resources with as little oversight as possible. I would let regulators 
have unfettered discretion to pick winners and losers. Then I would let me –– the Wall Street power broker –– 
manage the water. Lastly –– and most importantly –– I would let entities with water rights sit on their water 
without putting it to use. 

Guess what? AB354 and AB356 do all the above in grotesque fashion. The beguiling thing about the bills is 
that they are dolled up with piggish lipstick, painted with terms like conservation and transparency. Those 
catch-all terms are nice ways to give unsuspecting lawmakers warm and fuzzy feelings. But they are 
unbecoming provisions designed to do one thing: Ship rural water to urban areas. 

AB354 and AB356, proposals crafted and being pushed by the state’s top water regulators, are meant to 
work in tandem. 

AB354 creates a framework for water markets, referred to in the bill as banks. But these are not like checking 
accounts for water. Water banking is a di use term in the West. In the case of this bill, the bank is a 
transactional marketplace where water can be commoditized with little oversight or concern for the public 
interest. Indeed, the bill allows for large-scale, inter-basin transfers of water i.e. massive pipeline projects. 
But it also allows for fancy accounting mechanisms where paper water can be traded and moved around 
despite physical limitations on the ground. AB356 aids in this e ort by allowing entities to acquire water and 
not put it to use. That is speculation masquerading as conservation.  

By  Kyle Roerink  - April 3, 2021

Water tanks above Fernley, Nevada. The Fernley Public Lands Act makes adjacent federal land available for

auction and development. The availability of water is a limiting factor as long-time agricultural users compete with a growing demand for 

residential and commercial uses - photo: Brian Bahouth/the Ally

Opinion

If Wall Street wanted to have more control over Nevada’s water supply what would it do: Look no further than 

So where does Wall Street come into play in all of this? Look no further than Water Asset Management (WAM). It’s 
a New York hedge fund that operates a massive potato farm in Winnemucca. WAM isn’t merely interested in 
farming. It’s unabashedly interested in shipping water from places like Winnemucca to cities further west. For 
WAM, current laws are a bit of a nuisance. Statutory provisions that protect the public interest, property rights, 
and due process foil exportation goals.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 88 of 115



In the name of conservation, AB354 and AB356 could allow an entity to fallow its  elds, sit on the water, and 
create a marketplace for selling, leasing, or trading that water across a vast swath of the state. 

Right now, there’s nothing stopping WAM or another entity from doing that. The problem for WAM is the 
existing laws. These bills allow entities to sidestep the safeguards while attempting to convince the public that 
they are safeguards. 

To give you another example, let’s go with Blockchains – the tech company that wants its own government 
system and, basically, its own county. It also wants its own water. Blockchains ––notwithstanding their 
promises of innovation –– bought land without much water in the desert east of Reno. Bills like AB354 and 
AB356 are the cornerstones to  xing their water issues. Right now, Blockchains is in the farming business 
south of Gerlach – having purchased more than 2.9 billion gallons of water for annual use. With these bills, 
they will be able to fallow their  elds, create a so-called “marketplace” and  gure out some fancy ways to move 
water around the desert. 

Lastly, let’s look at our neighbors in California. They have a long-established system of water banking aided by 
millions of acre-feet running o  the western Sierra Nevada mountains, billions of dollars worth of conveyance 
infrastructure like the State Water Project, and the gall to test the limits of Mother Nature. Nevada only has 
the latter. 

Over the years, entities with the most money and power seem to get the most of water banks. Government 
entities in metro areas and private entities cut deals. Small farmers get pushed out, big operations take over, 
rural water gets exported, and rural communities su er along with the environment. 

Additionally, consider the recent headlines about Wall Street’s California water play via the Nasdaq California 
Water Index, a marketplace for trading water futures. This is not an index that moves physical water – it’s all 
cash-settled – but it is a way to legitimately hedge and speculate on water. 

What’s the next step. One of the masterminds of the Index was pretty clear. Lance Coogan, the CEO of Veles 
Water Limited, said in a recent interview that he hopes the index will expand into other investment vehicles: 
options, bonds, mutual funds, swaps, and physical trades of water.

In theory, water markets could save water. But the implication is that greed won’t get in the way of that utopic 
vision. Conservation is only conservation when water currently used goes unused. Putting ag water in banks 
for big-city use isn’t conservation. It’s more of the same. 

Don’t fall for the charade. Tell lawmakers to oppose these bills. 

Editor’s note: The Sierra Nevada Ally invites local writers to pen approved opinion columns for the publication. We invited 

Kyle Roerink to write columns on natural resource issues throughout Nevada and the West. Kyle is the executive director 

of the Great Basin Water Network. He lives in Reno. Support his writing.

The opinions expressed above are not necessarily those of the Sierra Nevada Ally. Our newsroom remains entirely 

independent of our opinion page. Published opinions further public conversation to fulll ̀ our civic responsibility to 

challenge authority, act independently of corporate or political in�uence, and invite dissent.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 89 of 115



���
Reno, NV

ADVERTISEMENT

Enjoy our surprisingly great 
rates on car insurance.

INCLINE VILLAGE, Nev. (KOLO) - It was hydrologist Jeff Anderson’s last snow survey of 2021, which was a lot different than that of last year.

“It peaked below normal and it’s starting to melt earlier than normal,” he explained. “This year’s snowpack is kind of disappointing.”

The survey revealing an April 1st snow depth of 63 inches with just under 24 inches of snow water at the site located within Mount Rose Ski Tahoe. The
snowpack is currently only 63% of average

“This is a natural cycle that we go through, and hopefully it will turn around,” said Federal Water Master Chad Blanchard.

ADVERTISEMENT

Bill Hauck of TMWA was on hand for the survey to see about the impact on our water supply. He says Truckee river flows should still be normal this
year, but that’s not the case with other rivers, and the reason why is simple.

“Look at a river system that has upstream reservoir storage like the Truckee and compare that to the Carson River which is going to be dry by the
fourth of July,” he predicted.

)LQDO VQRZ VXUYH\ RI VHDVRQ VKRZV VQRZSDFN DW ���
April 1st snow depth was 63 inches with just under 24 inches of snow water

By Ben Deach
Published: Apr. 5, 2021 at 3:57 PM PDT



 1HZV :HDWKHU 6SRUWV .2/2 &DUHV /LYHVWUHDP 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 90 of 115



1HYDGD ZDWHU ULJKWV ELOO UDLVHV FRQFHUQV RYHU ´ZDWHU 
EDQNLQJµ

Nevada Legislature (Gurajpal Sangha)
By Associated Press
Published: Apr. 5, 2021 at 10:57 PM PDT

CARSON CITY, Nev. (AP) - Rural water users are panicking over a proposal to create a market for the sale and purchase of water rights in Nevada. A 
Monday legislative hearing about so-called “water banking” proposals pitted state water bureaucrats against a coalition of farmers, conservationists 
and rural officials who were unconvinced by arguments that the concept would encourage conservation.

Nevada State Engineer Adam Sullivan said water banking would encourage conservation by offering water rights holders an option beyond using, 
abandoning or selling their allocations.

Opponents argued creating a market would lead to water being exported from rural areas and potentially financial speculation.

Throughout the West, rural water users have been pursued by New York-based hedge fund Water Asset Management, which has reportedly purchased 
water rights from farmers in central Nevada’s Humboldt River basin, in Colorado’s Grand Valley and in central Arizona.



 1HZV :HDWKHU 6SRUWV .2/2 &DUHV /LYHVWUHDP

Nevada Department of Conservation & Natural Resources spokesperson Samantha Thompson said the proposal, which was submitted by the
Governor’s Finance Office on behalf of the state division of water resources, wasn’t geared toward a particular basin or seeker of water rights.

Deputy Administrator for the Nevada Division of Water Resources Micheline Fairbank said she wasn’t aware of any hedge funds seeking to use water
banking frameworks for speculation.

Copyright 2021 The Associated Press. All rights reserved.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 91 of 115



IMAGE/BLOCKCHAINS LLC: An artist's conception gives a glimpse of the environment imagined for Painted Rock Smart City.

The road to building a high-tech, smart city in the desert east of Reno has so far been paved with cash and 
propaganda, and will soon reach a crossroads as the Nevada Legislature lurches past the half-way point in the 2021 
session.

Nevada lawmakers soon are expected to consider a proposal for the creation of Innovation Zones that would allow a 
tech company to carve a new political jurisdiction out of the desert hills and valleys of Storey County for its Painted 
Rock Smart City. The of�cial bill had yet to be introduced as of April 5, but the concept has been promoted by Gov. 
Steve Sisolak and others who say it is the Silver State’s best shot at a golden future. Critics, meanwhile, see the 
measure as a stew of potential pitfalls and boondoggles wrapped in a thin layer of shiny promises.

In a legislative session in the grip of a pandemic, person-to-person lobbying is limited. At the beginning of the session 
in February, Blockchains LLC, the company behind the smart-city scheme, �oated its bill draft among the lawmakers. 
Since then, the company launched a media campaign of positive messages about the Innovation Zones concept. The 
�rst phase of the battle for public support is winding down, but is about to advance to the next level.

Since late February, social media ads steered by algorithms have followed some web surfers from click-to-click, the 
governor hosted a virtual media event to tout the idea, and guest opinion pieces in favor (and some against) the plan 
have popped up in local newspapers and on websites. Blockchains also has been the bene�ciary of what is called 
“earned media” – articles and television reports appearing everywhere from the BBC to CNN to the Wall Street Journal.

“These times call for a more urgent pace. Confronting the reality of this pandemic, moving forward boldly in “These times call for a more urgent pace. Confronting the reality of this pandemic, moving forward boldly in 
rebuilding our economy, getting people back to work. We cannot wait for economic recovery to come to us.” rebuilding our economy, getting people back to work. We cannot wait for economic recovery to come to us.” 

Television commercials have aired regularly in the Reno and Las Vegas markets. The TV spot features drone-camera 
shots of clear water rushing down the Truckee River and wild horses racing through the sagebrush. The voiceover 
says: Innovation Zones can provide “124,000 jobs and $16 billion in economic impact with no �nancial risk to the 
state and accelerate the path to recovery” from the pandemic.
S$3&&/(3"#S� 5he #locLchains� *nnovation ;ones 3��second 57 commercials have aired daily dVring popVlar programs, 
inclVding i+eopardy.w

5he message is simple and positive� Gor some viewers it has the whiGG oG snaLe oil.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 92 of 115



Sheila Parker of Reno said it’s ironic that the ad uses the wide-open spaces and iconic mustangs of Northern Nevada 
as a backdrop to sell an idea that, if approved, is sure to threaten those things.

“I feel strongly about this and have informed my neighbors and friends as well,” Parker said. “Selling out our present 
and future for the vapor of Innovation Zones is so short sighted. I am very concerned about self-governing zones, 
where the resources, such as water, air quality, density of population, and effect on wild horses and wildlife are 
issues… I have no doubt major (impacts) will happen if Innovation Zones happen.”

She’s not alone in her skepticism. Critics, both inside and outside of the state’s halls of government, have derided the 
self-governance part of Blockchains’ proposal. Those naysayers, as well as people who haven’t yet formed an opinion, 
are the targets of the ad campaign.

 Fine. Let’s start with some (independent) analysis…  And  Fine. Let’s start with some (independent) analysis…  And 

ake Blockchainsville seriously? You  rst, governor.”ake Blockchainsville seriously? You  rst, governor.”

Todd Felts, an associate professor who teaches classes on public relations and advertising at the Reynolds School of 
Journalism at the University of Nevada, Reno, said the early stage of Blockchains’ marketing effort introduces 
Nevadans to the Innovation Zones idea. He compared the campaign to initial ads for a presidential hopeful, which 
focus on the candidate’s positive attributes.

“Then if the candidate wins a few primaries, the ads start getting more meaningful and offering some ideas,” he said. 
“The early ads increase public perception.”

The commercials offer vague promises, he said, and so qualify as propaganda. “Propaganda can be lies, but that’s not 
the only de�nition. In this case, they paint a beautiful picture, but there’s not a lot of there, there.(The spots) are 
meant to grip the emotions of the viewer… They will have to be backed with some solid information at some point.”

The Innovation Zones proposal has gotten a lot of attention around the nation and some of it has been as skeptical as 
Parker’s comments. Late-night talk show host Stephen Colbert, for example, devoted a segment

of his show to mocking the Nevada plan as feudalism. He compared the idea to something hatched by a James Bond 
movie villain. Yet, Felts said, even negative mentions can help Blockchains get its positive message out to the public.

“Historically speaking, as long as people are having a conversation about what you are offering — as long as you 
aren’t harming people —  you are in a good place, whether they are saying good or bad things,” Felts said. Blockchains 
is “talking to people multiple times in multiple ways, and that’s what’s needed. Attention spans are short and the 
audience is fragmented across multiple platforms. The awareness stage of a campaign is critical.”

Don Vetter, a Reno marketing and advertising consultant, agreed that even non-�attering mentions of Innovation 
Zones can assist Blockchains’ effort to swing public opinion. “The mention on Cobert’s show is incredible earned 
media,” he said. “Things like that keep the issue front and center.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 93 of 115



“The tax structure’s already business-friendly. The problem is our education system, and healthcare system, and the“The tax structure’s already business-friendly. The problem is our education system, and healthcare system, and the

services we give people are abysmal. So, if you want to attract the businesses here that will actually contribute to theservices we give people are abysmal. So, if you want to attract the businesses here that will actually contribute to the

— Annette Magnus, director of Battle Born Progress, quoted in the Nevada IndependentNevada Independent.

Blockchains’ campaign “checks all the boxes” for a political issue, he said, “It’s a quality campaign.”

Vetter said the association of  the project with a tech magnate cuts both ways. While some people may be wary of a 
millionaire who claims to have a path to prosperity, others will see that as a selling point. Tech tycoons like Bill Gates, 
Elon Musk and others have big ideas that can change the world. “There’s a cachet associated with them,” he said. “…
They are seen as riding the wave of the future.”

The campaign has a way to go to change some hearts and minds. Aside from members of the public and some state 
lawmakers, “I know that many of our local of�cials throughout this region are very nervous about this.” Vetter said.

IMAGES: BLOCKCHAINS LLC: Artists’ renderings of scenes in Painted Rock Smart City, the self-governing development 
proposed on a 100-acre parcel about 12 miles east of Reno. Blockchains’ founder Jeffrey Berns envisions a city where 
tech �rms develop innovative technology. People who live and work there would not only purchase goods and 
services with digital currency, but also use the Blockchains’ digital ledger technology for just about all their records. 
Blockchain is a decentralized, digital ledger known mostly for recording cryptocVrrency transactions, CVt also has Ceen 
adopted Cy some local governments Gor data transactions and storage.

Pete Ernaut, a former Nevada legislator who is president of government affairs at R&R Partners advertising and public 
relations �rm, is at the helm of Blockchains’ campaign. The effort soon will move from an awareness phase to public 
education, he said.

“There will eventually be a call to action,” he said. “…This is such an unprecedented idea that getting people 
comfortable with what it doesn’t do is as important as getting them comfortable with what it does do. We’re trying to 
eliminate bogeymen as much as possible.”

The claim of big bene�ts to the state at no cost to its taxpayers will be backed up, he said, and fears that creating a 
self-governing district will mean the return to a company-town model will be allayed. He understands that those 
objections may be “instinctive,” he said, but they aren’t valid.

Summary-of-Bill-Draft-Authorizing-Creation-of-Innovation-Zones.update.1.31.2021 Download

Innovation-Zone-Bill-Draft.update.1.31.2021 Download

“Other big projects have had tax incentives and this has none,” Ernaut said. “There is no investment from the state or 
counties.” He agreed that such a large development will have impacts on surrounding cities and counties, but said the 
proposed tax on Blockchains’ transactions built into the Innovation Zone proposal will mitigate them. That revenue 
“will be distributed to the county, the state general fund, and also a higher share goes to the most impacted counties, 
Storey, Lyon and Washoe.”

The new county carved out of Storey County would be governed by a panel of three appointed commissioners during 
the building stage, but by the time services are needed the residents of the new jurisdiction will be voting in 
elections, he said. The Innovation Zone, rather than being a “company town,” will start off like a general improvement 
district, a common mechanism used by developers to make improvements during the early stages of large projects.

In the smart city, up to 35,000 residents will live and work within the new county’s borders. “It will be a fully-
integrated community between work and living. That’s a selling point that nobody else at this point can make. It will 
be the second actual smart city in the world, after Songdo, South Korea.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 94 of 115



community… It’s a big dream. Lots of big dreams seemed like pie in the sky (when proposed), but now they havecommunity… It’s a big dream. Lots of big dreams seemed like pie in the sky (when proposed), but now they have

become integral for life. That includes the Internet itself. Blockchains’ technology has that range of possibilities, thatbecome integral for life. That includes the Internet itself. Blockchains’ technology has that range of possibilities, that

effect on people’s lives. It’s not something you can build out one building at a time.”effect on people’s lives. It’s not something you can build out one building at a time.”

– Pete Ernaut, R&R Partners.Pete Ernaut, R&R Partners.

Ernaut noted that the new county would be subject to all state laws that govern Nevada’s 17 existing counties. 
Blockchains would build the city, but wouldn’t run it. “It’s really more like a (general improvement district), which is 
common when developers take on all the risk at the front end.”

By the time taxes would be levied and services would be needed, governance would be in the hands of elected 
of�cials. “There would be an elected board by the time they need to spend public money,” he said. “There would be 
hundreds if not thousands of individual businesses within the zone. The residents who live there will not be 
Blockchains’ employees across the board. The idea that Blockchains would control the city is sort oG ridicVloVsy 5hey 
CVild it, CVt those who live there, who operate CVsinesses there, are completely independent.w

Still, even if state lawmakers pass the Innovation Zones measure into law, there are mountains of obstacles in the 
way of constructing the utopia on the Truckee. Civil libertarians worry that smart cities pose a threat to privacy, and 
attempts to create smart cities elsewhere have failed.

Blockchains has about 66% of the water rights needed to support the city, but the water is 100 miles away. Past 
efforts to transport water to Storey County via a pipeline fell to overwhelming opposition from environmental groups 
and the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe. Other regional water battles have spawned decades of litigation.

Some local governments oppose the plan, including the Storey County commissioners, who on March 2 voted to 
“oppose separatist governing control” within their county. Tens of thousands more vehicles would eventually be using 
the Interstate-80 corridor through a narrow river canyon where the highway can’t be widened.

Those concerns, and many more, could stymie the smart city even if the measure clears the Legislature this session. 
Ernaut said Blockchains will meet any challenges.

“We’re going to keep putting our best foot forward; we’re very passionate about it,” he said. “… The rewards 
exponentially outweigh any perceived risk. If it doesn’t happen, there’s nothing to claw back, no public dollars will 
have been lost. It would be a lost opportunity for the state, but no massive �nancial loss except for the developer 
itself. If it does happen, it’s transformative.”

When the bill is introduced, all efforts will be made to get it passed, Ernaut said, and to keep informing Nevadans 
about Innovation Zones and their bene�ts.

As people become educated about the concept, he said, “some of those bogeymen will disappear.”

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 95 of 115



   

 Search

NEWS EVENTS REAL ESTATE CARS JOBS SUBMIT STORIES/PHOTOS ABOUT ADVERTISE VISIT CARSON CITY

Home

View  View items

Submitted by Jeff Munson on Tue, 04/06/2021 - 2:01pm

Nevada Division of State Lands

From Lake Tahoe’s crystal-clear water, to the surrounding forests and serene backcountry, the
Tahoe Basin is an amazing natural and recreational treasure. As part of continuing efforts to keep
Lake Tahoe beautiful for generations to come, every year, proceeds from Nevada Lake Tahoe
License Plate sales and annual renewal fees are invested in projects that help protect Lake Tahoe's
unique natural environment.

This year, the Nevada Division of State Lands is excited to announce that over $186,000 in NV-
LTLP proceeds will help fund the following environmental preservation and restoration projects:

— SCUBA-enabled underwater litter clean-up in Lake Tahoe. As a world-class destination
enjoyed by thousands of residents and visitors every year, keeping Lake Tahoe clean is key to
protect the "Jewel of the Sierra" for future generations. Clean up the Cayes, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organization, will remove underwater litter across 22 miles of Nevada’s Lake Tahoe shoreline. Last
summer, SCUBA divers removed about 9,000 pounds of litter to help restore and enhance the
lake's underwater environment and famed water clarity.

3osW1eW
PostNet of Carson City. Your shipping
experts! UPS, FedEx, USPS and DHL
International.

7LPelLQe�3KoWos
Not sure where to start with your next
international shipment? Start right here
at PostNet. From customs paperwork to
custom packing, our full- ...

4 sec ago

3250 Retail Drive, Suite 120 - (775) 515-4455

CDUsoQ�CLW\�'oZQWoZQ
%XsLQess�$ssoFLDWLoQ

State Agent and Transfer Syndicate, Inc.
is one of only four existing companies
formed in 1903. Here in our present
location 2003, 2006, 2009 and ...

44 min 56 sec ago

.DGee�0DsoQ���$PeULFDQ
)DPLl\�,QsXUDQFe�$JeQW
Unsure about which tax laws to follow as a
small business owner? It can be confusing,
especially for business owners who operate
online and in ...

6eUYLFe�XQDYDLlDEle
www.amfam.com

51 min 17 sec ago

808 College Pkwy, Ste 106 - (775) 883-5935

$$$�8lWLPDWe�3DZQ
JBL Google Assist Speaker with charger!
Today $60! See Dane!

1 hour 25 min ago

892 E William St. - (775) 350-7621

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 96 of 115



— Permanent Aquatic Invasive Species Boat Inspection Station. Aquatic invasive plants and
animals can spread quickly in Lake Tahoe, threatening the health and vibrancy of Lake Tahoe's
sensitive natural environment and native ecosystems. To help prevent aquatic invasive species
from entering the lake, a permanent boat inspection station is being planned near Spooner
Summit. Station design plans will include: a decontamination unit, restroom facilities, shade
structure, educational kiosk and more. Over the past 21 years, the NV-LTLP program has funded
over a dozen aquatic invasive species prevention and control projects that have helped restore and
enhance vital habitat for native plant and wildlife species.

— Stormwater treatment options in a changing climate. The combined pressures of climate
change, population growth, and increased visitation have challenged the health and clarity of the
Lake. As part of ongoing efforts to address these pressing challenges, the Desert Research
Institute and Tahoe Resource Conservation District are partnering to conduct research that targets
urban stormwater management and treatment options to limit the flow of pollutants and fine
sediment particles into the Lake.

The challenges in Lake Tahoe continue to change and grow every day. As wildfire risks, climate
change, and ever-growing demands for outdoor recreation continue to compound in Lake Tahoe,
supporting the long-term sustainable health of the Tahoe Basin is more pressing than ever.

Right now, over 22,000 Nevadans are helping to protect Lake Tahoe through the purchase and
annual renewal of their Nevada Lake Tahoe license plates. Since the first license plates were sold in
February 1998, the NV-LTLP program has generated over $9 million through sales and annual
renewal fees, funding over 165 preservation and restoration projects on the Nevada side of Lake
Tahoe.

All Nevadans can help preserve and protect Lake Tahoe by purchasing a Lake Tahoe license plate
for $61 with an annual renewal fee of $30. Learn more by clicking here.

To learn more about the projects funded by the NV-LTLP program, go here. You can also follow
@NevDCNR on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram using #EveryPlateCounts.

Outdoors

Click here to get the latest news sent to
your inbox every day

... or see all stories

Business - Thursday, April 1, 2021 - 1:19pm

In Plain Sight Marketing
CARSON CITY — Shaheen Beauchamp Builders LLC
announces the completion of tenant improvements
on the America First Credit Union branch on Topsy
Lane. The project remodeled the 2,200-square-foot
suite previously occupied by Five Guys Burgers.

News - Thursday, April 1, 2021 - 10:17am

A 53-year-old man was arrested early Thursday for suspicion of misdemeanor battery and a felony
parole and probation violation, according to a Carson City Sheriff's Office booking report.

%ellD�9LWD�%LsWUo
RichyRich is playing Tonight at 5:45! Make
reservations by calling us at 775-515-4300

1 hour 58 min ago

1304 South Stewart St. - (775) 515-4300

%DWWle�%oUQ�+DUle\�'DYLGsoQ
We're getting tons of new MotorClothes at
the store and just in time for riding season!
Check out what else we have at Battle Born
Harley- ...

3KoWos�IUoP�%DWWle�%oUQ�+DUle\�
'DYLGsoQ
s�SosW

3 hours 42 min ago

2900 Research Way - (775) 882-7433

.ULsKD�CDUDZD\���9Dlle\�5eDlW\
During the course of the pandemic, home
has become more important than ever. If the
meaning of home has changed for you in
the last year, it may ...

7LPelLQe�3KoWos

4 hours 32 min ago

(775) 400-6650 - NRED S0172941

%UeQGD�CollLQJs��5eDlWoU��5C0
5eDlW\�*UoXS

0XlWLJeQeUDWLoQDl�+oXsLQJ�,s�*DLQLQJ
0oPeQWXP
www.simplifyingthemarket.com
Some Highlights If your house is feeling
a little cramped with the addition of adult
children or aging parents, it might be
time to consider a ...

4 hours 33 min ago

(775) 691-9371 - NV. #0179788

4XDLl�5LGJe�$QLPDl�+osSLWDl
https://quailridgepets.com/2021/04/how-to-
keep-your-dog-fit/

+oZ�Wo�.eeS�<oXU�'oJ�)LW���4XDLl
5LGJe�$QLPDl�+osSLWDl
quailridgepets.com
April is canine fitness month, and itâ��s
the perfect time to work on your
dogâ��s health and wellness. The
warming spring weather gives us the ...

4 hours 55 min ago

937 Mica Dr, Ste 18 - (775) 267-4888

0oXQWDLQ�/DNes�(sWDWes
Getting the recommended amount of
exercise lowers blood pressure and
provides a healthy outlet to relieve stress.
Rhythmic exercise such as ...

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 97 of 115



Third-driest year reported in
California
BY CELINE CASTRONUOVO - 04/06/21 04:54 PM EDT

289 SHARES SHARE TW

© Getty Images

The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has marked 2021 as the third-driest water year, a period marked 
from October to March, on record for the Golden State, potentially setting up another deadly wild�ire season after last 
year's record setting blazes. 

The department’s annual snow survey released this month recorded precipitation levels at 50 percent the annual average 
for the water year. 

The dry conditions can also be seen in the state’s water supply, with the department reporting that California’s major 
reservoirs are at just 50 percent of overall capacity. 

At Lake Oroville, the State Water Project’s largest reservoir, water levels are currently at 53 percent of the average, DWR 
found. 

Department Director Karla Nemeth said in a statement along with the report that there is “no doubt California is in a 
critically dry year.” 

“State agencies, water suppliers and Californians are more prepared than ever to adapt to dry conditions and meet the 
challenges that may be ahead,” she continued. “With climate change impacting how precipitation falls in California, 
ongoing water e�iciency and long-term efforts like recycling water, capturing stormwater, and planting water-friendly 
landscapes are essential to securing California’s water future.”

The 2021 water year is tied for third-driest with the 2014 season, following the second driest recorded in 1924. 

California’s driest year on record was in 1977, when recorded precipitation was less than 35 percent the average, 
according to a report that year the U.S. comptroller general. 

The DWR said in its report that compared to years past, California is better prepared to handle drought conditions. The 
state following the 2012 to 2016 drought enacted programs “focused on managing the state’s water through a strategic, 
integrated approach with a strong emphasis on water use e�iciency and conservation,” according to DWR. 

This month’s DWR report comes after 2020 brought a record-breaking year of weather and climate disasters, with the 
western drought and record-high temperatures causing a series of wild�ires across California that burned more than 4 
million acres and caused an estimated $10 billion in property damage.

TAGS CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA DROUGHT DROUGHT WILDFIRES WATER RESOURCES
WATER SUPPLY CLIMATE CHANGE

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 98 of 115



RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - 83'$7(� Washoe County Commissioners voted 4 to 1 to move forward with a reopening plan with proposed amendments.

Amendments include removing social distancing minimums as soon as 50 percent of the population in Washoe County is vaccinated.

The transition of mitigation management to local authorities begins May 1, but proposed plans must be submitted to the State COVID Task Force on
April 15.

Washoe County Assistant County Manager and Incident Commander David Solaro consulted and collaborated with the business community, as well as
the City of Reno, City of Sparks, the Washoe County Health District and the Washoe County School District to develop the plan.

“I appreciate you, Mr. Solaro, and the manager for putting this together, being the local leader and being acknowledged by the governor as the local 
leader and the expert as to how we’re going to open up,” Commissioner Kitty Jung said. “I know this is a working draft, but I think it is the best and 
most thoughtful. There has been a lot of crafting of this behind the scenes, and let’s continue the conversations and get through this.”

“COVID will always be here, it’s how we manage it,” Chair Bob Lucey said. Lucey made a motion to approve the plan with the following amendments:

Allow 10 people to a group in restaurants and event settings
Eliminate social distance minimums for outdoor events
Private gatherings are un-enforceable, so they should not be addressed in the plan

&RPPLVVLRQHUV YRWH � WR � LQ IDYRU RI DPHQGHG UHRSHQLQJ
SODQ

Published: Apr. 7, 2021 at 11:53 AM PDT | Updated: Apr. 8, 2021 at 12:54 PM PDT



Masks will not be required during exercise, such as working out at a gym or athletic activities. 

V 1HZV :HDWKHU 6SRUWV .2/2 &DUHV /LYHVWUHDPaccination rate of 50 percent to lessen current restrictions (for example, to move from 6 feet of distancing to 3 feet indoors)
Remove 75 percent vaccination rate as a trigger to move to full pre-COVID operations. Full reopening would depend on hospitalization rates instead. 
Metrics to be brought to the board every two weeks for review.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 99 of 115



Commissioners will need to ratify the amended version on April 14. The proposed plan will be then be reviewed by the State of Nevada COVID Task 
Force on April 15. Upon approval by the Task Force and governor, it may go into effect on May 1.
25,*,1$/ 6725<� A new COVID-19 mitigation plan calls for state restrictions to ease once the vaccination rate in Washoe County reaches 75 percent. 
Back in February, Governor Steve Sisolak announced a goal of transitioning mitigation management to local authorities starting May 1.
A plan released by Washoe County outlines objectives and guidelines to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 including monitoring the virus in the 
community, protecting vulnerable populations, contact tracing efforts, mitigation enforcement, and more.
The plan also outlines certain benchmarks that must be reached in order for the easing of restrictions.
Under the new plan, if 60 percent of the county gets vaccinated, the county will relax social distancing from six feet to four feet indoors and three feet 
outdoors.
If 75 percent of the county gets vaccinated, all social distancing requirements will be dropped except the mask mandate.
Currently, the vaccine rate in Washoe County is more than 23 percent of people 16 and older.
A state mask mandate will continue to be in place after May 1. The governor has not announced criteria for the mask mandate to be lifted.
Both the county and State COVID Task Force must give their approval of the plan.
County Commissioners will discuss the plan during a special meeting Thursday, April 8.
See the full plan below:

  Learn more...





04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 100 of 115



04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 101 of 115



Shop Cassava Flour

Cassava �our with a taste & texture just like all- 
purpose �our. Shop now.

O�o's Naturals Open

Deeply Cleanses
the Skin for a

Healthy
Complexion

InstaNatural Facial Cleanser - Vitamin C F…

$19.97
13,746

Add to Cart

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 102 of 115



Nevada farmers and conservationists balk
at “water banking,” an idea also being
weighed in Colorado

C
By Sam Metz, AP / Report for America

ARSON CITY, Nevada — Rural water users are panicking over a proposal to 
create a market for the sale and purchase of water rights in Nevada, 
unconvinced by arguments that the concept would encoVrage conservation.

Lawmakers on Monday weighed whether so-called “water banking” would be preferable to 
prevailing water law doctrines that govern surface and groundwater rights disputes in the 
driest state in the U.S.
A legislative hearing about two proposals to allow water rights holders to sell their 
entitlements pitted state water bureaucrats against a coalition of farmers, conservationists 
and rural officials.
One proposal would allow for basins to create “banks” where surface and groundwater 
rights holders can sell or lease water they conserve. The other would create programs to 
manage the conserved water, allowing the state to pVrchase iconservation creditsw or pay 
water rights holders to iretirew their claims.
“What we’ve heard all the time for years is that this is incentivizing people to use more 
water that they need; or they are being punished for not using their entire water right; or 
they’re forced to sell off what they don’t use. There’s no really satisfying response to that 
except that it’s how (the law) was written,” acting Nevada State Engineer Adam Sullivan said.

MORE: Colorado’s ornery, independent water guardians finally
agree on one thing: Wall Street can look elsewhere

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 103 of 115



As the U.S. West contends with a hotter and drier future, water banking is becoming an 
increasingly prevalent management strategy in states including Colorado and Utah. 
Proponents argue crediting people for conservation will help prevent future shortages 
and offer water rights holders an option beyond use, abandonment or selling.
A working group in the Colorado Legislature is evaluating the concept and the proposals 
under consideration in Nevada are based off policies in place in Utah and Oregon. The 
state’s proposals were among the most anticipated bills in the Nevada Legislature this 
year. In his presentation to lawmakers, even Sullivan said he was skeptical about 
creating an account to allow the state to purchase conservation credits and told 
lawmakers “it should only move forward with great caution.”
“Criticism that we’ve heard about creating an account like this are that it could 
accelerate the cost of water rights, creating more problems than it solves,” he said.
In rural Nevada, where limited groundwater has long sustained industries like ranching 
and mining, local officials worry that creating a market for water rights will encourage 
their constituents to lease their water for use elsewhere. They also worry water banking 
facilitates speculation from investors betting that water will become more valuable as 
perennial drought makes it more scare.
“I think there needs to be more work before you open that Pandora’s box, because when you 
open it, you can’t shut it,” Edwin James, the General Manager Carson Water Subconservancy 
District, said of the idea to start buying water in order to conserve it for the future. “You have 
to really be careful before you start buying water rights that are not being used.”
Throughout the West, rural water users have been pursued by New York-based hedge fund 
Water Asset Management, which has reportedly purchased water rights from farmers in 
central Nevada’s Humboldt River basin, in Colorado’s Grand Valley and in central Arizona.

Nevada Department of Conservation & Natural Resources spokesperson Samantha 
Thompson said the proposal, which was submitted by the Governor’s Finance Office on 
behalf of the state division of water resources, wasn’t geared toward a particular basin 
or seeker of water rights.
Deputy Administrator for the Nevada Division of Water Resources Micheline Fairbank 
said she wasn’t aware of any hedge funds seeking to use water banking frameworks for 
speculation.

Sam Metz is a corps member for the Associated Press/Report for America
Statehouse News Initiative. Report for America is a nonprofit national
service program that places journalists in local newsrooms to report on
undercovered issues.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 104 of 115



THE LEGISLATURE 

Water authority looks for a turf removal law: Toward the end of a long committee hearing on 
two controversial state-backed water bills Monday, the Southern Nevada Water Authority made 
some big news. The authority testified in neutral on AB356, one of the bills being pushed by the 
Nevada Division of Water Resources, and then went on to propose an alternative: 

• The proposed bill, AB356, seeks to establish a conservation credit program that state water 
officials argue would create an incentive to use less water. But the bill faces broad opposition 
from agricultural interests and conservationists who are concerned that such a program is 
out of step with how water is managed on-the-ground and could potentially lead to 
speculative behavior. Enter the Southern Nevada Water Authority. 

• After lawmakers heard opposition to AB356, a water authority lobbyist, Andy Belanger, 
asked the committee to consider an amendment to the bill or separate legislation for its own 
conservation initiative. The water authority, for weeks, has indicated that it was 
seeking a legislative vehicle to remove unused turf by the end of 2026.  

• Across the Las Vegas Valley, there are about 5,000 acres of non-functional turf — grass that 
is decorative and used for landscaping in medians, along sidewalks or in entryways to 
communities. “It is purely for show,” Belanger said. “And it is a luxury our community can no 
longer afford.” Non-functional turf is a leading driver of water use across the Las Vegas 
Valley, and while the water authority has long offered incentives to remove grass at 
residences, it has run into some opposition with HOA boards and other hold-outs.  

• Backing from groups: The water authority’s push yesterday came with buy-in from key 
groups. The Vegas Chamber, the Southern Nevada Homebuilders Association, the city of 
Henderson and the city of North Las Vegas all backed the water authority’s proposal at the 
hearing. And shortly after the hearing ended, the Center for Biological Diversity put out a 
statement in favor of the water authority’s proposal.  

Farmers, conservationists criticize water banking bill: The AP’s Sam Metz has an update on 
another bill (AB354), which the Assembly Committee on Natural Resources heard Monday. Rural 
water users, agricultural interests and conservationists expressed concerns that a bill to create “water 
banks” had not been fully vetted and could lead to unintended consequences.  

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 105 of 115



POLITICS

Lucey unsuccessfully pushes to drop mask 
mandate in Washoe as counties take over 
COVID mitigation measures
County seeks state's approval for big changes in virus-prevention efforts

James DeHaven Reno Gazette Journal

Published 1:22 p.m. PT Apr. 8, 2021 Updated 1:41 p.m. PT Apr. 8, 2021

Washoe County on Thursday punted on a plan to handle its share of Nevada's ongoing fight against the 
coronavirus, delaying passage of a heavily amended blueprint for keeping COVID-19 under control once 
counties take over that responsibility on May 1. 

Washoe’s plan, set for consideration by the state’s COVID-19 Task Force next week, allows for the 
resumption of all sports activities and eliminates an existing 50 percent cap on attendance at 
restaurants, bars, churches and retail businesses. 

The proposal also permits expanded body art and piercing services, as well as get-togethers of more than 
500 people with a county-approved large gathering plan. Officials said any additional easing of those 
rules should depend on the county’s ability to get 75 percent of its residents vaccinated while keeping the 
disease’s transmission rate under control. 

More: Unemployment claims in Nevada declined last week

More: How to book appointments for COVID-19 vaccine in Washoe County

But conservatives on the board of county commissioners loudly objected to that vaccination goal, along 
with the plan’s reliance on the Truckee Meadows COVID Risk Meter developed at the University of 
Nevada, Reno.

They wanted, and got, the plan’s inoculation target dropped to 50 percent, while nixing all of its 
recommended social distancing requirements at outdoor venues. 

Chairman Bob Lucey agreed with Commissioner Vaughn Hartung that many of the plan’s mask-wearing 
requirements should also be dropped, though county attorneys cautioned that could invite a clash with 
the governor’s office. 

Eventually, the pair joined two other commissioners in adopting major changes that will, among other 
things, leave the enforcement of outdoor mask-wearing rules up to individual businesses and 
entertainment venues. Commissioner Jeanne Herman cast the lone vote against the amendments. 

“Viruses never go away,” Lucey said ahead of the vote. “They’re always here. It’s how we deal with them.

“I can’t, in good conscience, call this a medical emergency, when we have 500,000 people living in this 
county and 30 people in the hospital.”

Washoe’s plan does not call for the immediate reopening of adult entertainment establishments or 
buffets.

Newly approved revisions to the blueprint will have to be adopted at a separate hearing tentatively set 
for Wednesday, one day before the proposal’s scheduled review by the state’s COVID task force. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 106 of 115



That panel hasn’t hesitated to reject Washoe’s previous pandemic-era reopening plans. The governor-
appointed task force bounced back two of those proposals over a two-week period late last summer. 

Gov. Steve Sisolak in February announced plans to turn over the bulk of ongoing virus-containment 
efforts to local officials by the end of April, though he said the state would continue to play a role in 
supporting city and county health officials. 

Sisolak has repeatedly said that statewide protocols would remain in place to mitigate the virus' spread, 
including but not limited to mask-wearing and social distancing requirements. 

Washoe’s initial plan abided by those rules, prompting fierce pushback from residents who wanted 
commissioners to join rural county leaders who have bucked the governor’s guidelines. 

Several took turns reading a lengthy citizen petition calling on the county to break away from Sisolak’s 
“dictatorial” statewide mask-wearing and social distancing protocols.

Commissioner Kitty Jung told residents she understood their concerns, but pleaded with them to 
understand the strict limits Nevada law has long placed on local government power. 

“We’re still going to the task force on April 15th and saying ‘please governor, will you let us have local 
control?’” she said. “I don’t pick fights with people when I know I’m going to lose. 

“I feel you, I want to hug you, I honestly do. … But we don’t have home rule here. Google it.”

Jung ultimately voted in support of changing the county’s plan because she wanted it to emphasize 
hospitalizations, not vaccination rates, as the primary benchmark for the future roll back of pandemic 
restrictions.

County leaders said some 37 percent of Washoe residents have already received a COVID vaccine. 
Staffers expect the county to reach 60 percent inoculation by mid-June.

James DeHaven is the politics reporter for the Reno Gazette Journal. He covers 
campaigns, the Nevada Legislature and everything in between. Support his work by 
subscribing to RGJ.com right here. 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 107 of 115



���
Reno, NV

RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - The dry winter means homeowners will need to be more careful with how they use water while landscaping. “I think the latest
water level shows we were only 65% of normal, that is a drought,” said BrightView Landscape Services Branch Manager Aurora Marin. She continued,
“We are probably looking at a couple more years of a drought, it’s going to get worse before it gets better.”

Marin said your lawn and garden are one of the biggest uses of water and people should be mindful this spring. She said to turn on your irrigation
system, make sure it’s working properly, and there are no leaks. “If we are going to water especially in a drought prone area we want to make sure we
are making the best of the water usage.”

Marin also said to consider aeration, fertilization, and start mowing your lawn to get your grass green. Lastly, water three times a week, twice a day,
between 8 a.m. to 11 a.m. and 4 p.m. to 6 p.m. in the evening.

“It doesn’t need a lot of water right now, its not very hot, there’s not very much evaporation occurring, so all that water is going to go do down and
soak into the ground.”

([SHUWV XUJH VDYLQJ ZDWHU ZKLOH ODQGVFDSLQJ DIWHU GU\
ZLQWHU

By Elizabeth Rodil
Published: Apr. 9, 2021 at 7:23 AM PDT | Updated: 9 hours ago

 1HZV :HDWKHU 6SRUWV .2/2 &DUHV /LYHVWUHDP 

She said the closer we get to June the more stringent water regulations become with Truckee Meadows Water Authority.

Copyright 2021 KOLO. All rights reserved.

BrightView Landscape Services also said now is the time to clear your yard and create defensible space. “Because of the drought we are going to   
experience a high fire season,” said Marin.

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 108 of 115



Image: Northumbrian Water

Northumbrian Water is launching rollout of its smart
metering network in Essex, where the company operates
as Essex & Su�olk Water.

The rollout, over five years by UK infrastructure provider

Arqiva, will see implementation and monitoring of a fixed

network infrastructure, delivering connectivity to up to

11,000 domestic meters. These meters will replace both

meters already installed and new meters for already

identified un-metered supplies.

The infrastructure includes the Sensus FlexNet communication network and Sensus meters, with

installations due to begin in May when also the network is planned to go live.

The initiative is in line with Northumbrian Water’s commitment to deliver smart metering to customers

within the current regulated Asset Management Plan, which runs to 2025, a statement reads. The company is

targeting all domestic water meters being smart by 2035.

Related articles:
Welsh water utility improves metering processes with Itron

Southern Water intensifies Customer Services Improvement programme

Lessons learned from this initial implementation will be used to guide the subsequent smart-meter rollout

over the rest of Northumbrian Water Group’s operating regions.

“This accelerator project will enable us to further understand the role smart metering can play in improving

our water management capabilities and the service our customers receive,” says Gary Adams, head of smart

programme at Northumbrian Water.

“We are at the very early stages of our smart programme and we’re excited to see the value this initial

partnership with Arqiva will bring as we decide on our long term smart strategy and look for a scalable

solution that meets our future demands.”

  

This site uses cookies which are essential to make the site function effectively. By using our site you accept the terms
of our cookie policy.

ACCEPT Cookie Policy

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 109 of 115



Alex Pannell, executive director, commercial broadcast and utilities at Arqiva, points out that this initial

process should help to identify and reduce leakage alongside communicating consumer consumption

behaviour.

“The reduction of water leakage and consumption are just two of the ways in which the industry can reduce

its carbon footprint too. It goes without saying that the less water lost in the network, the less energy is

needed to treat and supply it to the network.”

Sign up to our newsletter

In addition to its operations in the southeast, Northumbrian Water operates under its own name in the

northeast of England.

The company’s business plan for 2020-25 envisages installation of over 473,000 water meters with smart

technology as part of its customer metering programme.

  

 

This site uses cookies which are essential to make the site function effectively. By using our site you accept the terms
of our cookie policy.

ACCEPT Cookie Policy

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 110 of 115



 

View this email in your browser  

 

  

 

 

 

The Nevada Legislature Building in Carson City on Tuesday, July 14, 2020. (David Calvert/The Nevada Independent) 

  

 

Indy Environment: Natural gas legislation, water 
bills fail to advance after legislative deadline 

 

 

Good morning, and welcome to the Indy Environment newsletter. 

Friday was a major deadline day at the Legislature, and hundreds of bills failed to make 

it out of committee. They are effectively dead (though nothing is actually dead until the 

end of session). This week, the newsletter is looking at what environmental bills died and 

what bills are still alive.  
 

 

  

 

THE LEGISLATURE (Deadline Day Edition) 

Natural gas legislation, efficiency bills die on deadline day: Two closely watched 
pieces of natural gas legislation failed to make it out of committee. The first bill, AB380, 
was aimed at requiring natural gas utilities undergo more rigorous resource planning, an 
effort to align the utility’s infrastructure investment with the state’s climate goal of net-zero 
emissions by 2050.  

SB296, backed by Southwest Gas, sought to harden the utility’s infrastructure by 
establishing a pipeline replacement program. The legislation from Senate Majority Leader 
Nicole Cannizzaro (D-Las Vegas) did not get a hearing and was not given a special 
exemption to move forward.  

Why did these bills die so early in the session? I’m working on a piece with my colleague 
Riley Snyder about what happened and the gas utility’s lobbying efforts around the bills.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 111 of 115



As our legislative team, Michelle Rindels, Tabitha Mueller and Riley Snyder, reported, an 
energy efficiency bill (SB382) also died. “NV Energy opposed the bill, and said advocates 
should go through other avenues at the state Public Utilities Commission to accomplish 
their goals,” they wrote. 

Mining oversight bill moves forward as regulatory reorganization stalls: The 
Assembly Committee on Natural Resources advanced AB148. The bill seeks to prevent so-
called “bad actors” — companies or executives with a track-record of not meeting mine-
cleanup obligations — from doing business in Nevada. Another bill, AB240, seeking to 
dissolve the Nevada Division of Minerals by splitting up its regulatory and advocacy roles, 
did not advance out of committee. 

State’s water bills: Several proposed bills backed by the state’s Division of Water 
Resources died before the Friday deadline. SB155, legislation to change the requirements 
for Nevada’s top water regulator, the state engineer, did not advance past a key Senate 
committee. Similarly, two controversial proposals died, at least in their original form. 
AB354, legislation to create “water banks,” did not make it out of a committee after 
conservationists and rural interests argued that the proposal could lead to speculation and 
was not specific to Nevada water issues. Companion legislation, AB356, passed, but was 
amended with a largely unrelated conservation proposal backed by the Southern Nevada 
Water Authority. Its proposal seeks to remove unused turf. 

There are still many bills to keep watching (this is by no means an exhaustive 
list): 

• Water legislation: An amended version of AB146, which passed out of 
committee on Friday, seeks to better manage water quality issues arising from 
indirect pollution. It also declares the state’s policy to a right to clean 
water. AB97 seeks to require regulators to form a working group to look at PFAS, 
often called “forever chemicals.” And of course, there’s the Southern Nevada Water 
Authority’s bill (AB356). It’s going to be interesting to watch how it is received in 
Carson City, in Las Vegas and in the Colorado River Basin.  

• Energy/Emissions legislation: AB349 seeks to close the “classic car” loophole, 
which allows cars that are not, by most reasonable definitions, “classic” to evade 
regulations for tailpipe emissions. Another bill, AB383, looks to direct the state to 
adopt energy efficiency standards for appliances. And while most bills have been 
introduced at this point, Sen. Chris Brooks (D-Las Vegas) could still offer an 
omnibus clean energy bill.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 112 of 115



 

• Mining resolutions: Lawmakers could still consider three resolutions to raise 
taxes on mining (AJR1, AJR2, SJR1), first passed during the special session over 
the summer. 

• Land and conservation legislation: AB171 aims to make it the state’s policy to 
protect stands of swamp cedars, geographically isolated populations of Rocky 
Mountain juniper trees that are sacred for Indigenous communities in the Great 
Basin (our story on the bill from March). And SB52 looks to create a program for 
awarding dark sky designations. 

 

 

  

 

The Humboldt River flows near Elko on Tuesday, Feb. 6, 2018. (Jeff Scheid/The Nevada Independent) 
 

WATER AND LAND 

State senator raises concerns about hedge fund’s water marketing proposal: 
Sen. Pete Goicoechea (R-Eureka) said last week that he is concerned about a hedge fund’s 
proposal to market water in Humboldt County, Nevada Newsmakers’ Ray Hagar reports. 
Last summer, we co-published a three-part series on concerns about the hedge fund’s 
activities across the West.  

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 113 of 115



 

The push to protect Tiehm’s buckwheat: Tiehm’s buckwheat, a rare plant that is 
threatened by proposed lithium mining outside Tonopah, has been targeted for special 
protection, according to new documents reported by Scott Sonner with the Associated 
Press. The records show that state and federal officials, recognizing the threats to the 
buckwheat, found only on a small stretch of land in Nevada, considered measures to 
conserve its habitat.  

Restoring a wetland where few remain: Amy Alonzo, with the Reno Gazette Journal, 
reports on wetland restoration in southeast Reno — with sobering statistics about the loss 
of wetlands. 

Coming up in the Supreme Court: A newly formed Supreme Court commission to 
study water law in Nevada plans to have its first meeting on April 16, the court announced 
this week.  

What I’m reading: The Atlantic published a powerful essay by David Treuer making the 
case for returning the stewardship of the national parks to Indigenous communities. 
Weaving history with our present moment, the essay is worth spending time with. “We live 
in a time of historical reconsideration, as more and more people recognize that the sins of 
the past still haunt the present,” Treuer writes. “For Native Americans, there can be no 
better remedy for the theft of land than land. And for us, no lands are as spiritually 
significant as the national parks.” 

CLIMATE CHANGE 

What the snow tells us about intensifying drought: Across the West, the snowpack 
holds much-needed water for ecosystems, irrigators and communities. The timing of when 
that snow melts is critical. As the climate changes, the timing is changing, with significant 
ramifications. InsideClimateNews reporters Bob Berwyn and Judy Fahys look at what 
research tells us about the effects of longer dry spells and earlier snowmelt. One quote 
that stood out: “We’ve grown up in a world in which snowpack has been a reliable 
reservoir, but it’s not that way anymore.” 

ENERGY AND MINING 

Deseret News’ Sofia Jeremias writes an in-depth piece about the Thacker Pass lithium 
mine. “In Nevada, mining has a long legacy of offering economic opportunity, giving it an 
influential voice among policymakers eager to accommodate the industry’s interests,” 
Jeremias writes. “It appears that may remain the case when it comes to mining the state’s 
lithium resources.” 

 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 114 of 115



'o�\oX�DSSUeFLDWe�WKe�ZoUN�WKDW�Joes�LQWo�WKLs�QeZsleWWeU"�
,I�so��SleDse�GoQDWe�QoZ�Wo�sXSSoUW�WKe�eIIoUW�   

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

    

 

 

Copyright © 2019 The Nevada Independent

All rights reserved

Our mailing address is:
7455 Arroyo Crossing Parkway Suite 22

Las Vegas, NV 89113

Want to change how you receive these emails?

You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

  

  

 
 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16 
Press Clips

Page 115 of 115



From: WEBSITE: Comments to the Board
To: Folsom, Sonia
Subject: New submission from Comments to the Board
Date: Monday, March 22, 2021 10:33:49 PM

Name

Janice 

Email

Account Number

Comments

Michele Sullivan
I am reading your special edition letter dated March 9, 2021. I am deeply disappointed that you would
send a letter of such importance in a small italic font that is so difficult to read. I think your special edition
letter needs to be re-sent in a format that can be easily read by all.

From: Gebhardt, Andy 
Sent: Wednesday, March 24, 2021 9:26 AM
To: 'jagcarry@sbcglobal.net' <jagcarry@sbcglobal.net>
Subject: Comment to TMWA Board of Directors

Hello Janice-

     Thank you for taking the time to contact us regarding your concern. We are sorry that the font size of our recent letter 
caused an issue for you.  We will certainly take your comments and concerns into account for this mailing and evaluate the best 
way to proceed.  In addition, we will definitely take font size into consideration in any future correspondence with customers.

Please let me know if you have any further questions.

Thank you.

Andy Gebhardt
Director Operations and Water Quality
Truckee Meadows Water Authority
1355 Capital Blvd. I Reno, NV 89502
O: (775) 834-8007, M: (775) 230-3699
agebhardt@tmwa.com  I www.tmwa.com

***Our vision is to enhance the quality of life in the Truckee Meadows by delivering exceptional, customer-focused water 
services.*** 

04-21-21 BOARD Agenda Item 16

Page 1 of 1


	__2021.0421-BOD-07-Water-Resource-Exchange-Agreement.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-07.1-TRIC-TRIGID-TMWA.RFMA-Water-Resource-Exchange.Agreement

	__2021.0421-BOD-08-OneWaterNV-Palomino-Valley-Feasibility-Study.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-08.1-Palomino-Valley-Effluent-Map

	__2021.0421-BOD-09-TMWA-COR-American-Flat-ILA.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-09.1-TMWA-COR-American-Flat-ILA

	__2021.0421-BOD-10-TMWA-IBEW-Local1245-Agreement.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-10.1-IBEW-CBA-Proposed-Wage-Table- 2021-23.Final
	_2021.0421-BOD-10.2-CBA-Fiscal-Impact-Statement
	_2021.0421-BOD-10.3-TMWA-IBEW-CBA
	Collective Bargaining Agreement


	__2021.0421-BOD-11-2021-Legislative-Subcommittee.REPORT
	_2021.0421-BOD-11.1-TMWA-LSC-Bill-Tracking
	NEW BILLS
	EXISTING BILLS


	__2021.0421-BOD-12-Water-Supply-Update
	__2021.0421-BOD-13-TMWA-2021-Communication-Plan
	_2021.0421-BOD-13.1-TMWA_CommPlan_BoardOverview

	__2021.0421-BOD-15-SAC-Recruitment-2021.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-15.1-SAC-Member-Vacancy.Chart
	_2021.0421-BOD-15.3-SAC-Application-Letters
	Black-Al-SAC-Letter
	Foreman-Russ-SAC-Letter
	Graham-Jordan-SAC-Letter
	Ryan-Kevin-SAC-Senior-Letter
	Talmant-Alex-SAC-Letter

	_2021.0421-BOD-15.4-SAC-Member-Map

	__2021.0421-BOD-16-General-Managers.Report
	_2021.0421-BOD-16.C-GM-Customer-Service.Report

	__2021.0421-BOD-16-Press-Clips
	New submission from Comments to the Board_Redacted




